
CITY OF SELMA 
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

JANUARY 12, 2018 
 

The Special Council meeting of the Selma City Council was called to order at 9:00 a.m. in 
the Council Chambers.  Council members answering roll call were:  Franco, Montijo, Derr, 
Mayor Pro Tem Robertson, and Mayor Avalos.     
 
Also present were Interim City Manager Perea, Finance Manager Moreno, Fire Chief Kain, 
Police Chief Garner, Public Works Director Shiplee, the press, and interested citizens. 
 
The agenda for this meeting was duly posted in a location visible at all times by the general 
public seventy-two hours prior to this meeting. 
 
COMMUNITY FORUM WORKSHOP:  Interim City Manager Perea stated the purpose 
of the workshop was to listen to the Council discuss its vision, mission and goals for the 
future.  He noted the City department heads were present to hear the discussion.  He stated 
that community forums were held in the east and west areas of the City to hear what 
residents value, and the results of those sessions were posted online and available in the 
Chamber.  He said the discussion and expressions of interest and priorities of the Council 
will be foundational in the development of the 2018-2019 budget.   
 
Interim City Manager Perea introduced facilitator Dr. Jackie Ryle, who gave brief overview 
of the community forums, cited the feedback as reflected in the summary report, copies of 
which were furnished the Council members.  Council provided and discussed priorities and 
vision for the City of Selma. 
 
RECESS:  At 9:50 a.m., Mayor Avalos called for a short break in the meeting.  The meeting 
then reconvened at 10:05 a.m. 
 
At this point in the meeting, there was Council discussion regarding the focus and priorities 
for the city.  Discussion also occurred regarding the similarities of the priorities mentioned 
during the meeting to the current mission statement.  Focus points discussed in detail were 
safe community, effective economic development, and best quality of life.  Further Council 
discussion regarding the proactive process which encourages and allows Council to engage 
in dialog and be part of the budget process. 
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS: Ms. Janalee Jones stepped forward to inquire on business 
incentive assistance or partnerships. She asked about security system discounts for 
businesses. 
 
Mr. Mark Armenta, Selma Boys and Girls Club stepped forward to discuss a recent incident 
that occurred.  
 
ADJOURNMENT:  There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 11:51 
a.m.  
 
 
 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 1

agenda item 1.a.



 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Reyna Rivera       ___________________________ 
City Clerk                  Jim Avalos 
        Mayor of the City of Selma 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 2



CITY OF SELMA 

WORKSHOP/PRE-COUNCIL MEETING 

January 16, 2018 
 

The Workshop/ pre-Council meeting of the Selma City Council was called to order at 5:02 
p.m. in the Council Chambers.  Council members answering roll call were:  Franco, 

Montijo, Derr, Mayor Pro Tem Robertson, and Mayor Avalos. 

 

Also present were Interim City Manager Perea, City Attorney Costanzo, Fire Chief Kain, 

Finance Manager Moreno, Police Chief Garner, Public Works Director and interested 

citizens. 

 
The agenda for this meeting was duly posted in a location visible at all times by the general 

public seventy-two hours prior to this meeting. 

 

INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF ELECTRICAL WORKERS (IBEW) 

LOCAL 100 PRESENTATION:  Interim City Manager Perea introduced Mr. Chuck 

Riojas, IBEW Local 100 Union Representative, who stepped forward to discuss an 

apprentice program for the upcoming police station project. 

 

After much discussion, Council thanked him for the information and directed staff to bring 
the matter back for consideration. 

 

AT&T SMALL CELL PRESENTATION: Mr. Eric Johnson and Ms. Julie Tone 

representing AT&T stepped forward to discuss a small cell tower concept and introduced 

their contractor Mr. Tom Hanna, Smartlink Project Manager. 

 
Mr. Hanna provided a PowerPoint presentation and discussed small cells, which are flexible 

network solutions that can be readily deployed to specific locations including areas where 

customers are prone to experience connectivity issues, heavily populated areas that need 

more network capacity, as well as areas that cannot effectively be served by a traditional 

macro cell.  He further explained that there are generally three ways to increase capacity in 

the network that include license more spectrum from the FCC, upgrade existing cell sites to 

use new technology, or build more cell sites.   
 

He further discussed options to accommodate future technologies by establishing Universal 

Master Attachment Agreements (MAAs) for small cell deployment; establishing streamlined 

permitting processes allowing for strategic and proactive public policy that facilitate 

deployment and more quickly bring the benefits of small cells to Selma. 

 

After much discussion, Council directed staff to further review all the information. 

 

ADJOURNMENT:  There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 5:54 
p.m.  

 

 

 

 

 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 3

agenda item 1.b.



 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 
Reyna Rivera       ___________________________ 

City Clerk                  Michael Derr 

        Mayor of the City of Selma 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 4



CITY OF SELMA 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

January 16, 2018 
 

The regular meeting of the Selma City Council was called to order at 6:04 p.m. in the 

Council Chambers.  Council members answering roll call were:  Derr, Franco, Montijo, 

Mayor Pro Tem Robertson, and Mayor Avalos.   

 

Also present were Interim City Manager Perea, City Attorney Costanzo, Community 

Services Director Kirchner, Finance Manager Moreno, Fire Chief Kain, Police Chief 
Garner, Public Works Director Shiplee, the press and interested citizens. 

 

The agenda for this meeting was duly posted in a location visible at all times by the general 

public seventy-two hours prior to this meeting.   

 
  

INVOCATION: Pastor/Chaplain Shannon Schwamb from Church of the 

Redeemer/FSO/SPD led the invocation. 

 

RECOGNITION OF POLICE DEPARTMENT VOLUNTEERS – VIP’S AND 

EXPLORERS:  Police Chief Garner stepped forward to discuss the vital programs in the 

police department and acknowledged each volunteer for their services.   
 

Council provided certificates of recognition to each Volunteer in Policing and Explorer and 

thanked them for the service that they provide to the community of Selma. 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR:  Mayor Pro Tem Robertson requested that agenda items 1.h., be 

pulled for separate consideration.  Council member Montijo requested that agenda item 1.j. 
also be pulled for separate consideration. Council member Derr then motioned to approve 

the remainder of the Consent Calendar as read.  The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro 

Tem Robertson and carried with the following vote:    
 

 AYES: Derr, Robertson, Franco, Montijo, Avalos 

 NOES: None 

 ABSTAIN: None 

 ABSENT: None 

 

a. Minutes of the November 6, 2017 regular meeting, approved by standard motion.  

 

b.  Minutes of the December 4, 2017 special meeting, approved by standard motion. 
 

c.  Minutes of the December 4, 2017 workshop/pre-Council meeting, approved by 

 standard motion. 

 

d. Minutes of the December 4, 2017 regular meeting, approved by standard motion. 
 

e. RESOLUTION NO. 2018 – 1R, A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

 THE CITY OF SELMA ADOPTING THE AMENDED SECTION 125 PLAN 

 (CAFETERIA PLAN) YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2018. Resolution 

 approved by standard motion. 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 5

agenda item 1.c.



City of Selma 
Regular City Council Meeting 
January 16, 2018 
Page 2 

 

f.       RESOLUTION NO. 2018 – 2R, A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

 THE CITY OF SELMA DECLARING CERTAIN VEHICLES/EQUIPMENT 

 SURPLUS AND AUTHORIZING THEIR SALE, DONATION, OR DISPOSAL 

 

g. Shafer Park Concession Agreement between the City of Selma and Jessica Hernandez,  
 approved by standard motion. 
 

  

h.        Pulled for separate discussion. 
 

i.  RESOLUTION NO. 2018  –  4R, A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

 THE CITY OF SELMA APPROVING THE APPOINTMENT TO THE 

 GOVERNING BOARD OF THE SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY AIR POLLUTION 

 CONTROL DISTRICT.  Resolution approved by standard motion. 
 

j.         Pulled for separate discussion. 

 

AGENDA ITEM 1.h. CONSIDERATION AND NECESSARY ACTION ON 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE APPLICATION FOR LAND AND WATER 

CONSERVATION FUND – ROCKWELL PARK PROJECT:  After discussion, motion to 
approve RESOLUTION NO. 2018 – 3R, A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF SELMA APPROVING THE APPLICATION FOR LAND AND 

WATER CONSERVATION FUND ROCKWELL PARK PROJECT was made by Mayor 

Pro Tem Robertson.  Motion was seconded by Council member Derr and carried with the 

following vote: 

 
 AYES: Robertson, Derr, Franco, Montijo, Avalos 

 NOES: None 

 ABSTAIN: None 

 ABSENT: None 

 

 AGENDA ITEM 1. j. CONSIDERATION AND NECESSARY ACTION ON CHECK 

REGISTER DATED JANUARY 10, 2018:  After discussion, motion to approve the 

CHECK REGISTER DATED JANUARY 10, 2018 was made by Council member 

Montijo and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Robertson.  Motion carried with the following 
vote: 

 
 AYES: Montijo, Robertson, Derr, Franco, Avalos 

 NOES: None 

 ABSTAIN: None 

 ABSENT: None 

 

 

 

 

 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 6



City of Selma 
Regular City Council Meeting 
January 16, 2018 
Page 3 

CONSIDERATION AND NECESSARY DISCUSSION ON STATUS OF POLICE 

DEPARTMENT VACANCIES AND RECRUITMENT ENHANCEMENT OPTIONS: 
Police Chief Garner stepped forward to discuss current vacancy and recruitment status for 
his department.  He also provided various options to enhance recruitments such as a 

creation of a police cadet position, level three reserve officer programs, and level two reserve 

(limited peace officer powers).  Police Chief Garner discussed costs for the enhancement 

options and stated that the funding source would be allocated out of the general fund, cost 

savings from salaries. 
 

Interim City Manager Perea also discussed recent changes made to the application process, 

allowing for continuous recruitment and overall streamlining of the recruitment process. 

 

After much discussion, it was the Council consensus to approve additional recruitment 
options to expedite hiring of police officers.  

 

CONSIDERATION AND NECESSARY ACTION ON FENCE PLACEMENT 

VARIANCE BY ADAN GONZALEZ, 1628 MILL STREET:  Interim City Manager 

Perea and Public Works Director Shiplee reported on the fence placement variance 

received.   

 

Mr. Adan Gonzalez stepped forward to answer various questions from Council regarding 
his request and clarified the placement of the fence. 

 

After much discussion, it was the consensus of Council to direct the City Manager to meet 

with the applicant and approve the fence placement as long as all issues are resolved.  

 

CONSIDERATION AND NECESSARY ACTION ON RESOLUTION 

AUTHORIZING INTERIM CITY MANAGER OR DESIGNEE TO NEGOTIATE 

AND FINALIZE A PROPOSAL FOR TAX EXEMPT LEASE BACK FINANCING 

OF PROPOSED FIRE STATION NO. 2:  Fire Chief Kain stepped forward to provide the 

background information on the proposed fire station.  He introduced Mr. Mike Scott, RRM 
Design Group and Mr. Jeffrey H. Tamkin, President of PFIC, who both stepped forward to 

discuss the facilities assessment and renovation survey as well as the funding mechanism for 

implementation. 

 

At this point in the meeting, there was much Council discussion regarding funding process, 

funding source, and project timelines. 

 
After further discussion, motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Robertson to approve 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018 –  5R, A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF SELMA AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM CITY MANAGER OR HIS 

DESIGNEE TO NEGOTIATE AND FINALIZE A TAX EXEMPT LEASE BACK 

FINANCING ARRANGEMENT THROUGH PUBLIC FACILITIES INVESTMENT 

CORPORATION AND TO RETURN TO COUNCIL WITH A DEFINITE PROPOSAL 

FOR SUCH TAX EXEMPT FINANCING OF CONSTRUCTION COSTS FOR SELMA 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 7



City of Selma 
Regular City Council Meeting 
January 16, 2018 
Page 4 

FIRE STATION NO. 2.  Motion was seconded by Council member Montijo, and carried 

with the following vote: 

 

 AYES: Robertson, Montijo, Derr, Franco,  Avalos 

 NOES: None 

 ABSTAIN: None 
 ABSENT: None 

 

CONSIDERATION AND NECESSARY ACTION ON RESOLUTION AMENDING 

THE PRICE FOR SALE OF DIRT REMOVED TO DEVELOP GROUNDWATER 

RECHARGE BASIN ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF VALLEY VIEW WEST OF 

MCCALL:  Motion was made by Council member Derr to approve RESOLUTION NO. 

2018-6R, A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELMA  

AMENDING THE PRICE FOR SALE OF DIRT REMOVED TO DEVELOP 

GROUNDWATER RECHARGE BASIN ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF VALLEY VIEW 
WEST OF McCALL.  Motion was seconded by Council member Montijo and carried with 

the following vote: 

  

 AYES: Derr, Montijo, Franco,  Robertson, Avalos 

 NOES: None 

 ABSTAIN: None 

 ABSENT: None 
 

CONSIDERATION AND NECESSARY ACTION ON RESOLUTION APPROVING 

AGREEMENT WITH K.W.P.H. ENTERPRISES, AMERICAN AMBULANCE FOR 

AMBULANCE SERVICES:  Motion to approve RESOLUTION NO. 2018 – 7R, A 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELMA APPROVING 
AGREEMENT WITH K.W.P.H. ENTERPRISES (AMERICAN AMBULANCE) FOR 

AMBULANCE SERVICES was made by Mayor Pro Tem Robertson and seconded by 

Council member Montijo.  Motion carried with the following vote: 

  

 AYES: Robertson, Montijo, Derr, Franco,  Avalos 

 NOES: None 

 ABSTAIN: None 
 ABSENT: None 

 

CONSIDERATION AND NECESSARY ACTION ON RESOLUTION APPROVING 

AND AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL FROM GATEWAY 

ENGINEERING FOR CITY OF SELMA CITY WIDE STORM DRAIN SYSTEM GPS 

SURVEY:  Public Works Director Shiplee discussed the proposal received from Gateway 

Engineering to perform the survey. 

 

Interim City Manager Perea discussed the project in detail, which is vital to move forward 
for grant funding purposes. 

 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 8



City of Selma 
Regular City Council Meeting 
January 16, 2018 
Page 5 

City Engineer Bond stepped forward to provide Council with detailed information on the 

survey, which will be funded partially (twenty-five percent) by Selma Kingsburg Fowler 

County Sanitation District.  He further stated that once the survey is complete, any 

information moving forward would be added at no additional costs by the engineering 

department, as well as requesting as built data from developers to keep the information 

current. 
 

Motion to approve RESOLUTION NO.  2018 – 8 R, A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELMA APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING 

ACCEPTANCE OF A PROPOSAL FOR THE CITY OF SELMA CITY-WIDE STORM 

DRAIN SYSTEM GPS SURVEY was made by Mayor Pro Tem Robertson.  The motion 

was seconded by Council member Montijo and carried with the following vote:   

  
 AYES: Robertson, Montijo, Derr, Franco,  Avalos 

 NOES: None 

 ABSTAIN: None 

 ABSENT: None 
 

CONSIDERATION AND NECESSARY ACTION ON RESOLUTION RATIFYING  

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF SELMA AND THE FAHRNEY GROUP 

AND SELMA DEVELOPMENT PARTNERS LLC, AS DEVELOPER CONCLUDED 

BY STAFF ON JANUARY 4, 2018:  Interim City Manager Perea discussed the 
background on the project.  He stated that the Resolution before Council is to memorialize 

specific mitigation measures such as when traffic improvements are to be completed and 

what measures can be deferred until specific development occurs.  He further stated that this 

agreement was done to accommodate the Fahrney Group’s timeline for the Toyota 

Dealership Corporation. 

 

After much discussion, motion to approve RESOLUTION NO. 2018 – 9R, A 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELMA RATIFYING 

AGREEMENT FOR ISSUANCE OF A CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY was made by 

Council member Franco and seconded by Council member Montijo.  Motion carried with 

the following vote: 

 

 AYES: Franco, Montijo, Derr, Robertson, Avalos 

 NOES: None 

 ABSTAIN: None 
 ABSENT: None 

 

 DEPARTMENT REPORTS:  Interim City Manager Perea discussed the assessment and 

evaluation of staff and current projects.  He discussed succession planning, economic 

development, infrastructure, current residential projects, and pending projects. 

 

 Fire Chief Kain reported on the STRIKE team. 

  
 Police Chief Garner reported on calendar year crime statistics. 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 9



City of Selma 
Regular City Council Meeting 
January 16, 2018 
Page 6 

  

 Community Services Director Kirchner updated Council on the current park projects. 

 

 Public Works Director Shiplee discussed the recent addition of the stop sign, beautification 

project on 2nd Street, and freeway cleanup.  He also thanked Mr. and Mrs. Nelson for their 

efforts in beautifying Selma. 
 

 Finance Manager Moreno reported on the upcoming audit presentation and Measure S 

Oversight meeting. 

  

MAYORAL APPOINTMENTS TO VARIOUS COMMITTEES AND 

COMMISSIONS:  Mayor Avalos discussed and distributed the Mayoral appointment list 

for Council, which would be held in the office of the City Clerk. 

 
 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS:  Mr. Joe Gonzalez stepped forward to voice his concerns 

regarding the community and city staff. 

 
Mrs. Leslie Nelson stepped forward to discuss concerns regarding outside agencies 

transporting individuals in Selma.   

 

ADJOURNMENT:  There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:37 
p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

  
    

       _____________________________ 

Reyna Rivera      Jim Avalos 

City Clerk      Mayor of the City of Selma                    

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 10



CITY MANAGER'S/STAFF'S REPORT 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING: 

February 20,2018 

ITEM NO: 

SUBJECT: Resolution awarding consultant agreement to Qateway Engineering 
for the preliminary engineering for Active Transportation Plan (ATP 
- 5096(033)) grant funded project. 

BACKGROUND: Selma has received authorization to proceed with Engineering from 
Caltrans for the above listed project. The project ATP funds available are 
listed below: 

DISCUSSION: 

PS&E: 
Construction: 
Non - Infrastructure: 

$ 34,000 
$400,582 
$ 34,000 

A proposal was received from Gateway Engineering for the A TP 
5096(033) Project, funded by ATP. The project consists of improving safe 
routes to schools at Jackson Elementary, Eric White Elementary, Garfield 
Elementary, Roosevelt Elementary and Sel~~~ High. 

Design & Engineering is scheduled for March, 2018 with a eTe allocation 
for construction in June, 2018. Plans would advertise for construction 
within 6-months of a eTC allocation. 

1 
February 20, 2018 Council Packet 11

CITY MANAGER'S/STAFF'S REPORT 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING: 

February 20,2018 

ITEM NO: 

SUBJECT: Resolution awarding consultant agreement to Qateway Engineering 
for the preliminary engineering for Active Transportation Plan (ATP 
- 5096(033)) grant funded project. 

BACKGROUND: Selma has received authorization to proceed with Engineering from 
Caltrans for the above listed project. The project ATP funds available are 
listed below: 

DISCUSSION: 

PS&E: 
Construction: 
Non - Infrastructure: 

$ 34,000 
$400,582 
$ 34,000 

A proposal was received from Gateway Engineering for the A TP 
5096(033) Project, funded by ATP. The project consists of improving safe 
routes to schools at Jackson Elementary, Eric White Elementary, Garfield 
Elementary, Roosevelt Elementary and Sel~~~ High. 

Design & Engineering is scheduled for March, 2018 with a eTe allocation 
for construction in June, 2018. Plans would advertise for construction 
within 6-months of a eTC allocation. 

1 

1.d. 



COST: (Enter cost of item to be purchased) BUDGET IMP ACT: (Enter amount this 
non-budgeted item will impact this years' budget-
ifbudgeted, enter NONE). 

$68,000.00 None 

FUNDING: (Enter the funding source for this ON-GOING COST: (Entertheamount 
item - if fund exists, enter the balance in the fund). that will need to be budgeted each year - if one-

time cost, enter NONE}. 

Funding Source: ATP None 

Fund Balance: 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution awarding consultant agreement to 
Gateway Engineering for the ATP - 5096(033) Project. 

/ s / Neal E. Costanzo 

Neal E. Costanzo, City Attorney Date 

Henry Perea, Inte m CIty Manager 

2 
February 20, 2018 Council Packet 12

COST: (Enter cost of item to be purchased) BUDGET IMP ACT: (Enter amount this 
non-budgeted item will impact this years' budget-
ifbudgeted, enter NONE). 

$68,000.00 None 

FUNDING: (Enter the funding source for this ON-GOING COST: (Entertheamount 
item - if fund exists, enter the balance in the fund). that will need to be budgeted each year - if one-

time cost, enter NONE}. 

Funding Source: ATP None 

Fund Balance: 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution awarding consultant agreement to 
Gateway Engineering for the ATP - 5096(033) Project. 

/ s / Neal E. Costanzo 

Neal E. Costanzo, City Attorney Date 

Henry Perea, Inte m CIty Manager 

2 

02-15-2018



ENGINEERING, INC. 

February 14, 2018 

City of Selma 
1710 Tucker Street 
Selma, CA 93662 

Subject: Proposal for Active Transportation Plan Project # 5096(033) 
Selma, CA 

Dear Henry: 

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal to provide engineering services for survey, 
engineering, and construction engineering services for the above listed project. Outlined below is a 
summary of our assumptions, our proposed scope of services, exclusions, schedule, and fee proposal: 

Scope of Services 

• Perform topographic and Right of Way survey of all project sites as defined in the approved ATP 
application. 

• Prepare plans and cost estimates for design of various pedestrian safety facilities. Including: 
upgrading ADA ramps, installation of Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons (RRFB's) (multiple 
locations), signing and striping improvements and replacing missing or damaged sidewalks. 

• Coordinate with City staff for CTC allocation request and obtain E-76 for construction from 
Caltrans. 

• Prepare construction specifications 

• Perform Construction staking 
• Perform Construction inspection services 
• Non-Infrastructure: Develop and produce outreach materials related to the project and its 

benefits. These materials will be distributed at parent club meetings, school assemblies and 
distributed for students to take home. 

Exclusions 

The following are specifically excluded from our scope of services: 
• Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan by Contractor if required 

• Bidding performed under City Engineering services. 

Fee Proposal 
Gateway Engineering, Inc. proposes to perform the above referenced scope of services for fees broken 
down as defined in the approved ATP grant application: 

• Topographic and R/W Survey $ 8,500 

• Plans and specifications $ 21,500 

• Project Specifications $ 4,000 

• Non-I nfrastructu re $ 34,000 

• Construction Staking $ 6,800 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 13

ENGINEERING, INC. 

February 14, 2018 

City of Selma 
1710 Tucker Street 
Selma, CA 93662 

Subject: Proposal for Active Transportation Plan Project # 5096(033) 
Selma, CA 

Dear Henry: 

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal to provide engineering services for survey, 
engineering, and construction engineering services for the above listed project. Outlined below is a 
summary of our assumptions, our proposed scope of services, exclusions, schedule, and fee proposal: 

Scope of Services 

• Perform topographic and Right of Way survey of all project sites as defined in the approved ATP 
application. 

• Prepare plans and cost estimates for design of various pedestrian safety facilities. Including: 
upgrading ADA ramps, installation of Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons (RRFB's) (multiple 
locations), signing and striping improvements and replacing missing or damaged sidewalks. 

• Coordinate with City staff for CTC allocation request and obtain E-76 for construction from 
Caltrans. 

• Prepare construction specifications 

• Perform Construction staking 
• Perform Construction inspection services 
• Non-Infrastructure: Develop and produce outreach materials related to the project and its 

benefits. These materials will be distributed at parent club meetings, school assemblies and 
distributed for students to take home. 

Exclusions 

The following are specifically excluded from our scope of services: 
• Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan by Contractor if required 

• Bidding performed under City Engineering services. 

Fee Proposal 
Gateway Engineering, Inc. proposes to perform the above referenced scope of services for fees broken 
down as defined in the approved ATP grant application: 

• Topographic and R/W Survey $ 8,500 

• Plans and specifications $ 21,500 

• Project Specifications $ 4,000 

• Non-I nfrastructu re $ 34,000 

• Construction Staking $ 6,800 



• Construction Administration/Inspection $13,600 

We will invoice monthly based upon as estimated percentage of completion. Please do not hesitate to 
contact me if you have any questions or if additional information is required for your review. 

Respectfully, 

--j) c:L-?- 1-~ . ~ 
/' /?-' 

Joseph D. Daggett, CE 71873, LS 8861 

2 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 14

• Construction Administration/Inspection $13,600 

We will invoice monthly based upon as estimated percentage of completion. Please do not hesitate to 
contact me if you have any questions or if additional information is required for your review. 

Respectfully, 
~/) / -? 1-7c' 2/ 

Joseph D. Daggett, CE 71873, LS 8861 

2 



RESOLUTION NO. 2018· R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELMA 
APPROVING THE CONSULTANT AGREEMENT WITH GATEWAY ENGINEERING 

FOR PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING FOR THE 
ATP - 5096(033) FUNDED PROJECT, IN THE CITY OF SELMA 

WHEREAS, Gateway Engineering, Inc. currently serves as the City Engineer for 
the City of Selma; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Selma has received a proposal from Gateway 
Engineering for the engineering for the ATP - 5096(033) Project in the City of Selma; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City of Selma has received funding from ATP; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 
1. The foregoing facts are true and correct. 
2. The City Council hereby accepts and approves the attached February 14, 

2018, proposal by Gateway Engineering, Inc. at the lump sum fee proposed, authorizes 
the performance of that work by Gateway Engineering, and directs the payment of the 
fee of $68,000 on presentation of the monthly invoices based upon estimated 
percentage of completion of the work. 

The foregoing Resolution 2018· R, was approved at a regular meeting held on 
the 20th day of February, 2018, by the following vote, to wit: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

ATTEST: 

Reyna Rivera 
City Clerk 

COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

Jim Avalos, Mayor 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 15

RESOLUTION NO. 2018· R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELMA 
APPROVING THE CONSULTANT AGREEMENT WITH GATEWAY ENGINEERING 

FOR PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING FOR THE 
ATP - 5096(033) FUNDED PROJECT, IN THE CITY OF SELMA 

WHEREAS, Gateway Engineering, Inc. currently serves as the City Engineer for 
the City of Selma; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Selma has received a proposal from Gateway 
Engineering for the engineering for the ATP - 5096(033) Project in the City of Selma; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City of Selma has received funding from ATP; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 
1. The foregoing facts are true and correct. 
2. The City Council hereby accepts and approves the attached February 14, 

2018, proposal by Gateway Engineering, Inc. at the lump sum fee proposed, authorizes 
the performance of that work by Gateway Engineering, and directs the payment of the 
fee of $68,000 on presentation of the monthly invoices based upon estimated 
percentage of completion of the work. 

The foregoing Resolution 2018· R, was approved at a regular meeting held on 
the 20th day of February, 2018, by the following vote, to wit: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

ATTEST: 

Reyna Rivera 
City Clerk 

COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

Jim Avalos, Mayor 



AUTHORIZATION I AGREEMENT SUMMARY - (E-76) 

FEDERAL AID PROGRAM CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
DLA LOCATOR: 06-FRE-0-SEL PROJECT LOCATION: 
PREFIX: A TPL 
PROJECT NO: 5096(033) 

MULTIPLE INTERSECTIONS AND CROSSINGS NEAR VARIOUS SCHOOL SITES INCLUDING JACKSON ELEMENTARY, ERIC WHITE ELEMENTARY, 
TYPE OF WORK: 

SEQ NO: 1 INSTALL VARIOUS PEDESTRIAN SAFETY FACILITIES, INCLUDING ADA RAMPS, PREV AUTH I AGREE DATES: 
STATE PROJ NO:0616000146L-N 
AGENCY: SELMA 
ROUTE: 

DISASTER NO: 
TIP DATA 

MPO: 
FSTIP YR: 
STIP REF: 
FSTIP ID NO: 

BRIDGE NO: 

PROG CODE 
M30E 

FCOG 
16/17 
203-0000-0905 
FRE150045 

LINE NO 
10 

FUNDING SUMMARY 

PHASE 

IMPVTYPE 
15 

PREVo OBLIGATION 
PE THIS REQUEST 

SUBTOTAL 

PREV, OBLIGATION 
RIW THIS REQUEST 

SUBTOTAL 

PREVo OBLIGATION 
CON THIS REQUEST 

SUBTOTAL 

PREVo OBLIGATION 
OTH THIS REQUEST 

SUBTOTAL 

FED RR NO'S: PE: 
PUC CODES: RIW: 
PROJ OVERSIGHT: ASSUMEDILOCAL ADMIN CON: 
ENV STATUS lOT: DELEG TO STATE USC 326/SEC 6004 05/22/2017 SPR: 
RW STATUS lOT: MCS: 
INV RTE: OTH : 
BEG MP: 
END MP: 

FUNC SYS URBAN AREA URBIRURAL 

PROJECT COST FEDERAL COST 

$0.00 $0.00 
$68,000.00 $68,000.00 
$68,000.00 $68,000.00 

$0.00 $0.00 
$0.00 $0.00 
$0.00 $0.00 

$0.00 $0.00 
$0.00 $0.00 
$0.00 $0.00 

$0.00 $0.00 
$0.00 $0.00 
$0.00 $0.00 

TOTAL: $68,000.00 $68,000.00 

STATE REMARKS 

DEMO ID 

AC COST 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 

07/24/2017 The purpose of this request is to authorize the PE phase For this project. The project proposes to install various safety facilities including ADA ramps, high visibility crosswalks, rapid flashing beacons, and Flashing 
stop signs at various school sites including Jackson Elementary, Eric White Elementary, Selma High School, Garfield Elementary, and Roosevelt Elementary. CTC allocated $68,000 for the PE phase on June 
28, 2017 . The PE phase is fully funded using Toll Credits in lieu of local match. 

07/26/2017 SEQ#1 : Request to obligate $68,000 of Federal M30E Funds for PE for PS&E. Toll Credits are being used in lieu of local funds. - CP J 

FEDERAL REMARKS 

AUTHORIZATION 

AUTHORIZATION TO PROCEED WITH REQUEST: PRE 
FOR: AUTHORIZATION 

DOCUMENT TYPE: AAGR 

PREPARED IN FADS BY: KAWATE, SUSAN 
REVIEWED IN FADS BY: ZINKE, WESLEY 

SUBMITTED IN FADS BY: JENSEN, CHRIS 
PROCESSED IN FADS BY: FOGLE, JERILYNN 

E-76 AUTHORIZED DATE IN FMIS BY: MARY CUNNINGHAM 

ON 2017-07-25 445-5914 
ON 2017-07-26 651-6873 
ON 2017-07-26 FOR CALTRANS 
ON 2017-07-27 FOR FHWA 
ON 2017-08-0112:03:41 .0 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 16

AUTHORIZATION 1 AGREEMENT SUMMARY - (E-76) 

FEDERAL AID PROGRAM CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
DLA LOCATOR: 06-FRE-0-SEL PROJECT LOCATION: 
PREFIX: A TPL 
PROJECT NO: 5096(033) 

MULTIPLE INTERSECTIONS AND CROSSINGS NEAR VARIOUS SCHOOL SITES INCLUDING JACKSON ELEMENTARY, ERIC WHITE ELEMENTARY, 
TYPE OF WORK: 

SEQ NO: 1 INSTALL VARIOUS PEDESTRIAN SAFETY FACILITIES, INCLUDING ADA RAMPS, PREV AUTH 1 AGREE DATES: 
STATE PROJ NO:0616000146L-N 
AGENCY: SELMA 
ROUTE: 

DISASTER NO: 
TIP DATA 

MPO: 
FSTIP YR: 
STIP REF: 
FSTIP ID NO: 

BRIDGE NO: 

PROG CODE 
M30E 

FCOG 
16/17 
203-0000-0905 
FRE150045 

LINE NO 
10 

FUNDING SUMMARY 

PHASE 

IMPVTYPE 
15 

PREVo OBLIGATION 
PE THIS REQUEST 

SUBTOTAL 

PREVo OBLIGATION 
RIW THIS REQUEST 

SUBTOTAL 

PREVo OBLIGATION 
CON THIS REQUEST 

SUBTOTAL 

PREVo OBLIGATION 
OTH THIS REQUEST 

SUBTOTAL 

FED RR NO'S: PE: 
PUC CODES: RIW: 
PROJ OVERSIGHT: ASSUMEDILOCAL ADMIN CON: 
ENV STATUS 1 DT: DELEG TO STATE USC 326/SEC 6004 05/22/2017 SPR: 
RW STATUS 1 DT: MCS: 
INV RTE: OTH : 
BEG MP: 
END MP: 

FUNC SYS URBAN AREA URBIRURAL 

PROJECT COST FEDERAL COST 

$0.00 $0.00 
$68,000,00 $68,000.00 
$68,000.00 $68,000.00 

$0.00 $0.00 
$0.00 $0.00 
$0.00 $0.00 

$0.00 $0.00 
$0.00 $0.00 
$0.00 $0.00 

$0.00 $0.00 
$0,00 $0.00 
$0.00 $0,00 

TOTAL: $68,000.00 $68,000.00 

STATE REMARKS 

DEMO 10 

AC COST 

$0,00 
$0,00 
$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 

07/24/2017 The purpose of this request is to authorize the PE phase for this project. The project proposes to install various safety facilities including ADA ramps, high visibility crosswalks, rapid flashing beacons, and flashing 
stop signs at various school sites including Jackson Elementary, Eric White Elementary, Selma High School, Garfield Elementary, and Roosevelt Elementary. CTC allocated $68,000 for the PE phase on June 
28, 2017. The PE phase is fully funded using Toll Credits in lieu of local match. 

07/26/2017 SEQ#1 : Request to obligate $68,000 of Federal M30E funds for PE for PS&E. Toll Credits are being used in lieu of local funds. - CPJ 

FEDERAL REMARKS 

AUTHORIZATION 

AUTHORIZATION TO PROCEED WITH REQUEST: PRE 
FOR: AUTHORIZATION 

DOCUMENT TYPE: AAGR 

PREPARED IN FADS BY: KAWATE, SUSAN 
REVIEWED IN FADS BY: ZINKE, WESLEY 

SUBMITTED IN FADS BY: JENSEN, CHRIS 
PROCESSED IN FADS BY: FOGLE, JERILYNN 

E-76 AUTHORIZED DATE IN FMIS BY: MARY CUNNINGHAM 

ON 2017-07-25 445-5914 
ON 2017-07-26 651-6873 
ON 2017-07-26 FOR CALTRANS 
ON 2017-07-27 FOR FHWA 
ON 2017-08-0112:03:41 .0 



SIGNATURE HISTORY FOR PROJECT NUMBER 5096(033) AS OF 08/03/2017 

FHWA FMIS SIGNATURE HISTORY 
MOD # SIGNED BY 

o JERIL YNN FOGLE 
DOMINIC HOANG 
MARY CUNNINGHAM 

FHWA FMIS 3.0 SIGNATURE HISTORY 

CALTRANS SIGNATURE HISTORY 

DOCUMENT TYPE SIGNED BY 

AUTH/AGREE JENSEN. CHRIS 

SIGNED ON 

07/28/2017 
08/01/2017 
08/01/2017 

SIGNED ON 

07/26/2017 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 17

SIGNATURE HISTORY FOR PROJECT NUMBER 5096(033) AS OF 08/03/2017 

FHWA FMIS SIGNATURE HISTORY 
MOD # SIGNED BY 

o JERIL YNN FOGLE 
DOMINIC HOANG 
MARY CUNNINGHAM 

FHWA FMIS 3.0 SIGNATURE HISTORY 

CALTRANS SIGNATURE HISTORY 

DOCUMENT TYPE SIGNED BY 

AUTH/AGREE JENSEN. CHRIS 

SIGNED ON 

07/28/2017 
08/01/2017 
08/01/2017 

SIGNED ON 

07/26/2017 



CYCLE [IJ FUND STATUS I PROJECT ST ... TUS IAdtve r - SEARCH ENGINE '1 
ALL CYCLE]A STATEWIDE & SMALL URBAN & RURAL WILL BE UPLOADED SHORTLY AFTER OCT. 2011 CTC lITO. FtsItq! Nvrnbtr SEARCH 5096(033) I Pf!HO IEARCH 6836A 
ALL CYCLE 3 AND ]A IFO &a£CTEO PROJECTS WILL BE UPLO ... DED SHORTLY AFTER DEC. 2017 CTC IITG. 

PROJECT IDENTIFIERS APPLICANT , ... L. AGENCY FUNDING INFO ALLOCATION INFO EXPEND CON COMPLETION OBLIGATION INFO PROJECT ST ... TUS TIME EXTENSIONS 

ATPI) ~ TP02-4l6-1 .. 3M 

CTCIO c:::=J - NOTE - AClDt.AE - AGREB.tENT BETWEEN APPl-1CAHT' CORPS MUST BE SUBIAITTED TO OATSP PRIOR TO RJND "UTHORIZ"TIOOoI, •• 

FEDERAL PROJECT NO 150961033) I ... TPTOTALPROGRAIIIIED $48,0001 
REVISED AWARD AMOUNT REVISED ... WARD TYPE 

ADVANTAGE 10 ~616000146 II 
AMOUNT Milich I I I I 

PPNO j6&36A I6836B ..... TCH I Rjulrejnts ST ... TE PROVIDEO .. ATCH Toll Credit. 

~ I I 11':5 Yes ~ No 
DISTRICT 16 I • OTHERFUNOS ELIGIBLE FUItOS COMMEItTS 
COUNTY FRE LOCAL FUNDS NON-PART1CIP ... TING S!!l 

~ ... SSEMBLY DlST P1 
TOTAL PROJECT COSTS $468.iiiiiiI 

ST ... TE SENATE DISTRICT It .. 
... LLOWABLE FUNDING TYPE trAP Fnl. STP Sec:4nd 

REVISED ESTIMATE AMT 
CONGRESSION ... L ~1 I I DISTRICT * OllER FUNOS MAY 10000UDE LEVERAGE LOCAl ST"TE & FEDERAL FUNDS 

APPLICANT r;tyof Se'ma Programming PECTCODE 20.30 • Local 

fBOGRAMMED fUNDS PER CrC AQOPTED PROJECTS 'tt/ BEVlSIO~S 
YEAR I I YEAR I I YEAR 111117 17118 18119 YEAR I 

PROJECT NAME Safety for an Active Selma School PRoo_ANT I mI,@ PROO. ANTI s.coo,ooOl PROO. AMT PRoo_AMT I 

Community (Install various pedestrian SHA AMT I SHA AMTI I SHAAMT SH ... AMT I 

safety facilities in the City of Selma) FT' AH I S~OOOI P'F .,.r! s.coo 0001 FlF AMT FTO JlMT I 

RMRAAMT I I RMRAAMTI I RMRA AMT RMRAAMT I 

SOLICITATION GGRFAMT I I GGRF Alir l I GGRFAMT GGRF AMT I 

SOUCIT ... TION 
r (POP>200,OOOJ-50LlCfTAOONoCYCLE 2 

ORIGINAL PROGRAMMED INFO CURRENTIREVISED PROG_ INFO 

POPULATION I I 
SOLICITING ... GENCY IFcoo 

PROGR ..... MED PROGR ... MMED 
PROGRAMMED 

YEAR AlIT. PHASE YEAR "'IIT. PH ... SE 
IDENnFIER COMMENTS 

I 
AllTCH ... NGE 

c:::J (OUringTKh c:::J P ... &ED PUED CorrK-l: 

I 111117 I • • 0001 PS&E ~ $6810001 PS&E 

IU'PlICA TIOOoIIO E~Se'ma-, c:::=J RW c:::::J RW 

~ $366.0:001 I 17/18 I $366_iiiiiil CON CON 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION EUGIBIUTY SCOPE CHANGE I 1711. I E!,0001 I CON:H'I I ~ ~CIo:ClI I COINII I 
c:::=J c:::=J 

PROJ. DESC. RELATED 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION DOCUMENTS TOT ... L :1468,0001 TOT ... L $468.001II 

The SaIoty far on ""' ..... SeIru Sc:_ eonon. ... ", prvject ;. '0 CQllllENTS ...... on omri .......... 1MI enco<r_. phyoic:" odMly_ 
IIdM choic-.. PHO challged ... 

[ 1 
A for IF 
B for NI 

... 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 18

CYCLE [IJ FUND STATUS ! PROJECT STATUS p;dtVtI ( .-----:==="SEj-'-~..,RCH ENGINE ] 

ALL CYCLE lA STATEWIDE & SMALL URBAN & RURAL WILL BE UPLOADED SHORTLY AFTER OCT. 2017 CTC lITO. l....Eftc!mI!!!~Humbt!!!!!!!!!!!:r !SEA8~!CH~.....!:=~S096~~'O~33~}b::::!IL_..!:pPNO~~IEARQt~~!!....~==68=36A===:!..._--I 
ALL CYCLE 3 AND lA MPO SELECTED PROJECTS WILL BE UPLOADED SHORTLY AFTER DEC. 2017 CTC IITG. 

PROJECT IDENTIFIERS APPLICANT , ... L. AGENCY EXPEND CON COIIPLETIOH OBLlGAnoN INFO PROJECT STATUS TillE EXTENSIONS 

ATPIO ~TP02~143M 

CTCIO c::::=J 
FEDERAl. PROJECT NO 15096!0331 I 

ADVANTAGE 10 10616000146 II 
PPNO R36A 168368 

DISTRICT 16 I 
COUNTY ~RE 

ASSEMBLY DlST ~1 
STATE SENATE DISTRICT 1'4 

CONGRESSIONAL t21 
DISTRICT 

APPLICANT 

PROJECT NAME Safety for an Active Selma School 
!community (Install various pedestrian 
~afety facilities in the City of Selma) 

SOUCfT ATION 
IMf>O (pop>200,OOOj-50LICITATlON'(; YCLE 2 

SOUCITATIOH L 
POPULATIOH 1 I 

SOLICITING AGENCY 

IDENnFIER COMMENTS 

APPUCA TION 10 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

PROJECT DESCRIPTIOH 

+ - - * 

r'-Setma-, 

EUGIBIUTY SCOPE CHANGE 

PROJ. DESC. RELATED 
DOCUMENTS 

- NOTE· AEIDlAE· AGREBoIENT BETWEEN APf'l1CAHT , CORPS MUST BE SUBMITTED TO OA TSP PRIOR TO RJND "UTHORIZ'" TIOtj , •• 

ATPTOTALPROGRAIIIIED 
AMOUNT 

IIATCH 

* OTHER FUNDS 

LOCAL FUNDS NON-PARncIPATING , OJ 
TOTAL PROJECT COSTS ~68.000l 

ALLOWABLE FUNDING TYPE trAP FiBl, STP Second I 

* OllER FUNDS MAY 10000UDE lEVERAoGE lOCAl ST"TE & FEDERAL FUNDS 

REVISED AWARD AMOUNT REVISED AWARD TYPE 

Milich I I I I 
RjulIWjnls STATE PROVIDED MATCH 
No! I 10YK CNo 

ToIlCr.dIta 

EUGI8l.E FUNDS COIIMENTS 

REVISED ESTIMATE AMT 

I 

~~~~~~1-____________________ ~P=EC~T~C~O~D=E~==2=O,=~=.=L=~==I==~ ______ ___ 

PROGRAMMED FUNDS PER CTC ADOPTED PROJECTS wI REVISIONS 
YEAR ! 16117 I YEAR I 17118 I YEAR I 

PROO. AMT ! $68,0001 PRoo. AMT! 

SHAAMT ! I SHAAMTI 

1 S68,Ol)(]( F n 
RMRAAMT I I RMRAAMT! 

GGRFAMT I I GGRFAIITI 

ORIGINAL PROGRAIIIIED INFO 

YEAR 

c:::J 
rnmJ 
c::::=J 
mm:J 
mm:J 
c::::=J 

TOTAL 

COMMENTS 

i<~~ A for IF 
for NI 

PROGRAMMED 
AlIT. PHASE 

PA&ED 

- 0001 PS&E 

RW 

paOOO! CON 

!3!.DOq ! CON I I 

~ooDJ PROO. AMT ! 

I SHAAMT I 

~ooDJ F1F AMl l 

I RMRAAMT I 

I GGRFAMT I 

PROGRAMMED 
AlIT CHANGE 
(DunngTKh 

CornIC.l: 

18/19 YEAR I 
PROG. AMT I~==---' 

SHA AMT I 
FTOAMT I~========~ 

RMRAAMT ~I========~ 
GGRf AMT I 

CURRENTIREVISED PROG. INFO 

YEAR 

c:::J 
Dill] 

c::::J 
I 17/18 I 

mm:J 
c::::=J 

TOTAL 

PROGRAMMED 
AlIT. PHASE 

PA&ED 

PS&E 

RW 

CON 

I CON-ffl I 

1 



CHECK 

NUMBER

CHECK 

DATE
STATUS VENDOR NAME CHECK DESCRIPTON CATEGORY AMOUNT

70185 02/01/2018 Printed 3SI SECURITY SYSTEMS INC GPS TRACKING ANNUAL FEE 216.00

70186 02/01/2018 Printed AMERICAN AMBULANCE FEBRUARY 2018 PAYMENT 92,500.00

70187 02/01/2018 Printed ASBURY ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES USED OIL DISPOSAL 120.00

70188 02/01/2018 Printed AT&T TELEPHONE-JANUARY 2018 19.78

70189 02/01/2018 Printed AT&T TELEPHONE-JANUARY 2018 60.68

70190 02/01/2018 Printed BANK OF THE WEST SURVEILLANCE EQUIPMENT LEASE 1,120.17

70191 02/01/2018 Printed BANNER PEST CONTROL INC PEST CONTROL-JANUARY 18 441.00

70192 02/01/2018 Printed GUADALUPE MARIA BELTRAN AR INV 1201 OVERPAYMENT REIMB. 46.72

70193 02/01/2018 Printed BENNETT & BENNETT, INC. MISC IRRIGATION SUPPLIES 11.73

70194 02/01/2018 Printed CALIFORNIA BUILDING STANDARDS BUILDING STANDARDS FEE REPORT 4th QRT 198.00

70195 02/01/2018 Printed ROD CARSEY PLAN CHECKS 10,312.52

70196 02/01/2018 Printed CDCE INCORPORATED MDT MONTHLY LEASE-PD 4,755.00

70197 02/01/2018 Printed CENTRAL VALLEY LOCK & SAFE REPLACED EXIT DEVICE-PD GATE 338.56

70198 02/01/2018 Printed CISCO SYSTEMS CAPTIAL CRP LEASE-PHONE SYSTEM/BACKUP 1/15-2/14/18 3,280.05

70199 02/01/2018 Printed CITY OF SELMA REPLENISH PETTY CASH 61.20

70200 02/01/2018 Printed CITY OF SELMA REPLENISH PETTY CASH 108.67

70201 02/01/2018 Printed COLE WILLIAMS ELECTRIC SOLAR PERMIT REFUND 2741 PEACH 376.25

70202 02/01/2018 Printed COOK'S COMMUNICATION CORP OUTFIITING UNIT 195 16,807.48

70203 02/01/2018 Printed CPS POLICE CLERK I WRITTEN TEST 572.00

70204 02/01/2018 Printed CXT INCORPORATED LINCOLN PARK RESTROOMS 154,354.19

70205 02/01/2018 Printed DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION SMIP & SEISMIC FEE REPORT 4th QRT 907.88

70206 02/01/2018 Printed DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE BLOOD ALCOHOL ANALYSIS-DEC 17 315.00

70207 02/01/2018 Printed FEDEX RETURN TEST MATERIAL/BANK DOCS 50.45

70208 02/01/2018 Printed FINANCIAL PACIFIC LEASING LEASE PAYMENT INTEREST 916.42

70209 02/01/2018 Printed TIMOTHY FLETCHER MUSIC DIRECTOR SPRING 400.00

70210 02/01/2018 Printed MICHAEL CHRISTOPHER FLORES CHOREOGRAPHY FOR SPRING AWAKENING 300.00

70211 02/01/2018 Printed FRESNO COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 99 & 

DINBUBA OCT-NOV 17

1,256.11

70212 02/01/2018 Printed FRESNO-MADERA AAA SENIOR MEALS 469.34

70213 02/01/2018 Printed BARRY S. HALAJIAN STREET LIGHT REPAIR 8,616.40

70214 02/01/2018 Printed HEALTHEDGE ADMINISTRATORS INC. DENTAL 1/17/18 1,243.58

70215 02/01/2018 Printed HEALTHEDGE ADMINISTRATORS INC. DENTAL 1/24/18 5,212.24

70216 02/01/2018 Printed HEWLETT-PACKARD FINANCIAL LEASES 3,753.41

70217 02/01/2018 Printed ALEXIS HOLLADAY SPRING AWAKENING BAND 200.00

70218 02/01/2018 Printed INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 

CHIEFS OF POLICE

MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL 150.00

70219 02/01/2018 Printed JEFF KESTLY MEDICAL PREMIUM REIMB JAN 18 328.32

70220 02/01/2018 Printed LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP DUES 10,118.00

70221 02/01/2018 Printed LEE CENTRAL CALIFORNIA INVITING BIDS 2018 FLORAL PROJ / 

EMPLOYMENT ADS

721.52

70222 02/01/2018 Printed LEGENDS CLASSIC MOTORCYCLES SERVICE REPAIR #88 1,147.62

70223 02/01/2018 Printed LIEBERT, CASSIDY, WHITMORE INC REVIEW/ADVISE-PERSONNEL ISSUE 3,424.00

70224 02/01/2018 Printed SOUND CONTRACTING INC COUNTRYMEN MICS-AC 192.21

70225 02/01/2018 Printed LOSS PROTECTION AND MONTHLY SERVICE OF CONTAINERS 85.00

70226 02/01/2018 Printed KYLE SEAN LOWE SPRING AWAKENING BAND 200.00

70227 02/01/2018 Printed STEVEN MCINTIRE MEDICAL PREMIUM REIMB JAN 18 1,165.84

70228 02/01/2018 Printed METRO UNIFORM POLICE REVOLVING ACCT 515.79

70229 02/01/2018 Printed MUNISERVICES,LLC BOND CONSULTING SERVICES 275.00

70230 02/01/2018 Printed NORTH AMERICAN RESCUE LLC HOLDERS FOR VESTS-FD 36,283.12

70231 02/01/2018 Printed OFFICE DEPOT, INC. OFFICE SUPPLIES 917.35

70232 02/01/2018 Printed HENRY PEREA CONTRACT CITY MANAGER SERVICES-JAN 18 10,000.00

70233 02/01/2018 Printed PG&E UTILITIES-JANUARY 2018 18,359.26

70234 02/01/2018 Printed PURCHASE POWER POSTAGE REFILL-CH 1,005.00

70235 02/01/2018 Printed MELINDA RAMOS SPRINK AWAKENING VOCAL COACH 300.00

70236 02/01/2018 Printed ANTHONY RODRIGUEZ SPRING AWAKENING BAND 200.00

70237 02/01/2018 Printed RRM DESIGN GROUP NEW FIRE STATION DESIGN-JAN 18 1,544.20

70238 02/01/2018 Printed ALEXANDRA RUIZ SPRING AWAKENING BAND 200.00

70239 02/01/2018 Printed SECOND CHANCE ANIMAL SHELTER MONTHLY SUPPORT PAYMENT-FEB 18 6,978.00

CHECK REGISTER REPORT

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 19

agenda item 1.e.



CHECK 

NUMBER

CHECK 

DATE
STATUS VENDOR NAME CHECK DESCRIPTON CATEGORY AMOUNT

CHECK REGISTER REPORT

70240 02/01/2018 Printed SELMA COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENT GRANT-VIP RADIOS REIMBURSEMENT 3,000.00

70241 02/01/2018 Printed SELMA GIRLS SOFTBALL LEAGUE SHAFER RESTROOM STALL DOOR 500.00

70242 02/01/2018 Printed SELMA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT FUEL-DECEMBER 2017 12,094.13

70243 02/01/2018 Printed SEQUOIA SAFETY COUNCIL, INC. FIREMED PATIENT DOS 9/7/17 200.00

70244 02/01/2018 Printed SIGNWORKS BUSINESS LIC OVERPAYMENT REIMB 89.00

70245 02/01/2018 Printed DAKOTA WALLACE SIMPSON SPRING AWAKENING BAND 200.00

70246 02/01/2018 Printed MATTHEW SMOKE SPRING AWAKENING BAND 200.00

70247 02/01/2018 Printed SOUTH COUNTY VETERINARY MONTHLY FREEZER USE-DEC 17 175.00

70248 02/01/2018 Printed SPARKLETTS WATER SERVICE 159.17

70249 02/01/2018 Printed SUPERIOR VISION INSURANCE INC VISION INSURANCE PREM-FEB 18 1,620.19

70250 02/01/2018 Printed THE CRISCOM COMPANY POLICE/SEWER INFRASTRUCTURE-FEB 18 4,500.00

70251 02/01/2018 Printed TAMARA THOMAS SPRING AWAKENING T-SHIRTS 1,039.79

70252 02/01/2018 Printed U.S. BANCORP EQUIPMENT FINANCE COPY MACHINE LEASE-FEBRUARY 18 1,063.70

70253 02/01/2018 Printed U.S. BANK CORPORATE PMT SYSTEM CALCARD CHARGES 12/23-1/22/18 18,259.80

70254 02/01/2018 Printed UMPQUA BANK 2015 REFI BOND 276,260.72

70255 02/01/2018 Printed UNITY IT MDT MANAGED SERVICES-DEC 17 1,903.05

70256 02/01/2018 Printed VERIZON WIRELESS AIRCARDS 12/19/17-1/18/18 585.00

70257 02/01/2018 Printed VINCENT COMMUNICATIONS INC RADIO REPAIR 266.31

TOTAL 725,566.92

Grant:  G          PD Station Bond: PDSB              PD State Appropriation:  PDSA              Reimbursement:  R

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 20

agenda item 1.e.



EMPLOYEE NAME

TRANSACTION 

DATE VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION OF PURCHASE ACCOUNT NUMBER AMOUNT

CALEB GARCIA 12/21/2017 VALERO, FRESNO CA FUEL 701-9200-600.257.000 53.39                 

CALEB GARCIA 12/27/2017 76, FRESNO CA FUEL 701-9200-600.257.000 51.75                 

CALEB GARCIA 1/1/2018 SHELL OIL, DUBLIN CA FUEL 701-9200-600.257.000 54.68                 

CALEB GARCIA 1/9/2018 SHELL OIL, FRESNO CA FUEL 701-9200-600.257.000 54.57                 

CALEB GARCIA 1/18/2018 BAD BUDS, FRESNO CA FUEL 701-9200-600.257.000 35.74                 

CHRISTIE MOORADIAN 12/28/2017 ME AND EDS OUTSIDE AGENCY HELP LUNCH 100-2100-600.250.000                   41.50 

CITY OF SELMA SNG RES 1 1/11/2018 76 PASO ROBLES FUEL 701-9200-600.257.000 58.26                 

CITY OF SELMA SNG RES 1 1/15/2018 GOLDEN HILL PASO ROBLES FUEL 701-9200-600.257.000 65.44                 

CITY OF SELMA STATION 2 1/9/2018 MARCONE SUPPLY SPARK MODULE FOR STOVE STAT 2 100-2525-600-375.000 100.04               

CITY OF SELMA STATION 2 1/20/2018 NELSONS HARDWARE SELMA MAGNET HOOKS TRAINING CLASS 100-2525-600.250.000 8.66                   

CITY OF SELMA TRAINING DIV 1/10/2018 HOME DEPOT SELMA LUMBER FOR TRAINING CENTER 111-2500-600.250.000 2,993.04           

DAN RUIZ 1/8/2018 WALMART SELMA BUILDING SUPPLIES 100-3200-600.250.000 24.85                 

DAVID LEWIS 1/4/2018 AMAZON.COM SAMSUNG 32 GIG FLASH DRIVE 100-1600-600.100.000 16.26                 

DAVID LEWIS 1/16/2018 AMAZON.COM ARROW FASTENER & STAPLES-HEAVY DUTY 100-1600-600.100.000 15.44                 

DEBBIE GOMEZ 12/28/2017 WALMART THUMB DRIVES FOR INVESTIGATIONS 100-2100-600.250.000 275.81               

DEBBIE GOMEZ 1/12/2018 THE UPS STORE MAIL FIREARM PLYMPIA, WA 17-4355 100-2100-600.250.000 11.95                 

DEBBIE GOMEZ 1/20/2018 FACEBOOK FRADULENT CHARGES -WILL CREDIT NEXT STATEMENT 800-0000-121.000.000
4.20                   

DEBBIE GOMEZ 1/20/2018 FACEBOOK FRADULENT CHARGES -WILL CREDIT NEXT STATEMENT 800-0000-121.000.000
3.21                   

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 12/21/2017
CALIFORNIA SOCIETY OF MUNICIPAL 

FINANCE OFFICERS
LUNCH MEETING 100-1600-610.915.000

25.00                 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 12/21/2017 CALIFORNIA SOCIETY OF MUNICIPAL 2018 MEMBERSHIP DUES 100-1600-610.900.000 110.00               

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 12/21/2017 CALIFORNIA SOCIETY OF MUNICIPAL LUNCH MEETING 100-1600-610.915.000 25.00                 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 1/5/2018 ICSC 3 YEAR PUBLIC AFFILIATE DUES 100-1600-610.900.000 135.00               

FINANCE DEPARTMENT
1/5/2018 ICSC MONTEREY CONFERENCE & DEAL MAKING 100-1600-610.920.000 95.00                 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 1/11/2018 PAYPAL SIGN HERE POST ITS 100-1600-600.100.000 5.06                   

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 1/11/2018 BNP-ENGINEERING NEWS RECORD 36 MOS ENGINEERING NEWS. PURCHASED FOR ANNUAL CPI REPORT TO 100-1600-610.900.000 78.00                 

FRANK SANTILLAN 12/24/2018 WALMART SELMA PD CLEANING SUPPLIES 100-2100-600.250.000 13.42                 

FRANK SANTILLAN 1/1/2018 PAYPAL SANTILLAN REVOLVING ACCT 100-0000-123.010.000 17.68                 

FRANK SANTILLAN 1/2/2018 SAVEMART SELMA COFFEE 100-2100-600.250.000 10.99                 

FRANK SANTILLAN 1/6/2018 ORIELY'S SANTILLAN REVOLVING ACCT 100-0000-123.010.000 5.40                   

FRANK SANTILLAN 1/6/2018 AUTOZONE POLICE UNIT CLEANING SUPPLIES 100-2200-600.250.000 9.74                   

FRANK SANTILLAN 1/5/2018 PAYPAL SANTILLAN REVOLVING ACCT 100-0000-123.010.000 11.13                 

FRANK SANTILLAN 1/6/2018 PAYPAL SANTILLAN REVOLVING ACCT 100-0000-123.010.000 7.85                   

FRANK SANTILLAN 1/6/2018 PAYPAL SANTILLAN REVOLVING ACCT 100-0000-123.010.000 42.85                 

FRANK SANTILLAN 1/8/2018 ELM FEED STORE SELMA CERDA K9 DOG FOOD 100-2200-600-400-700 62.90                 

FRANK SANTILLAN 1/8/2018 PAYPAL SANTILLAN REVOLVING ACCT 100-0000-123.010.000 29.86                 

FRANK SANTILLAN 1/14/2018 HOME DEPOT SELMA PAT UNIT PRESSURE WASHER HOSE 100-2200-600.250.000 32.51                 

FRANK SANTILLAN 1/16/2018 UNIFORMS WARESHOUSE VIP EQUIPMENT 111-2200-600.250.000 17.85                 

FRANK SANTILLAN 1/16/2018 UNIQUELY YOURS VIP ALERATIONS 111-2200-600.250.000 50.00                 

FRANKIE OLIVARES 1/12/2018 GRANT WRITING USA GRAT WRITING TRAINING COURSE REFUND 100-1550-610.915.000 (375.00)              

GREG GARNER 1/8/2018 STARBUCKS COFFEE FOR MEETING 100-2100-610.920.000 31.90                 

JACOB PUMAREJO 12/28/2018 PATCTECH ONLINE TRAINING COURSE 269-2100-610.915.000 99.00                 

JACOB PUMAREJO 12/28/2018 VALERO FUEL 269-2100-600.257.000 65.34                 

JACOB PUMAREJO 1/2/2018 CHEVRON FUEL 269-2100-600.257.000 70.45                 

JACOB PUMAREJO 1/9/2018 SHELL FUEL 269-2100-600.257.000 76.00                 

JACOB PUMAREJO 1/10/2018 VALERO FUEL 269-2100-600.257.000 68.00                 

JACOB PUMAREJO 1/13/2018 SHELL FUEL 269-2100-600.257.000 75.00                 

US BANK INVOICE FOR CALCARD CHARGES:  12/23/17-1/22/18

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 21

agenda item 1.e.



EMPLOYEE NAME

TRANSACTION 

DATE VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION OF PURCHASE ACCOUNT NUMBER AMOUNT

US BANK INVOICE FOR CALCARD CHARGES:  12/23/17-1/22/18

JACOB PUMAREJO 1/16/2018 VALERO FUEL 269-2100-600.257.000 67.43                 

JACOB PUMAREJO 1/18/2018 2-WAY RADIO GEAR INC. ANTELLA & BATTERY REPLACEMENT 269-2100-600.250.000 77.75                 

JACOB PUMAREJO 1/18/2018 SHELL FUEL 269-2100-600.257.000 79.09                 

KELLI TELLEZ 12/30/2017 ACCO BRANDS DRY ERASE CALENDAR-PREVENTION 100-2550-600.250.000 50.96                 

KELLI TELLEZ 1/19/2018 WALMART CLEANING SUPPLIES 100-2525-600.250.000 48.69                 

MICHAEL KIRCHNER 12/29/2017 NELSONS HARDWARE SELMA SCREWS/BOLTS SR WARMER KITCHEN 100-4500-600.250.000 0.78                   

MICHAEL KIRCHNER 1/10/2018 COSTCO PIONEER VILLAGE LIGHTS 601-4100-600.250.000 596.40               

MIKE KAIN 1/19/2018 HOME DEPOT SELMA MOTION DETECTOR 100-2525-600.250.000 49.22                 

MYRON DYCK 1/9/2018 METRO UNIFORM AND ACCESS. DEPARTMENT SHOULDER PATCHES 100-2200-600.250.000 485.97               

NICOLETTE ANDERSEN 12/28/2017 MUSICAL THEATER INT LITTLE MERMAID PERUSALS 605-4300-656.540.020 7.00                   

NICOLETTE ANDERSEN 12/31/2017 WALMART NEW YEARS EVENT 605-4300-600.250.000 83.41                 

NICOLETTE ANDERSEN 12/29/2017 OFFICEMAX/OFFICE DEPOT FED EX SCRIPT RETURN HUNCH 605-4300-656.540.017 131.91               

NICOLETTE ANDERSEN 12/28/2017 SUBPLOT STDIOS CKP ARISTOCATS ARTWORK 100-4300-600.400.000 210.00               

NICOLETTE ANDERSEN 1/4/2018 AMAZON SPRING COSTUMES 605-4300-656.540.018 25.80                 

NICOLETTE ANDERSEN 1/3/2018 OFFICEMAX/OFFICE DEPOT OFFICE SUPPLIES 100-4300-600.250.000 132.39               

NICOLETTE ANDERSEN 1/3/2017 THE HOME DEPOT SPRING SET SUPPLIES 605-4300-656.540.018 278.40               

NICOLETTE ANDERSEN 1/4/2018 VENDINI TICKETS TICKET STOCK FOR BOCA PRINTER 605-4300-600.250.000 274.64               

NICOLETTE ANDERSEN 1/5/2018 AMAZON SPRING COSTUMES 605-4300-656.540.018 33.79                 

NICOLETTE ANDERSEN 1/9/2018 WALMART OFFICE SUPPLIES / DESK 100-4300-600.250.000 38.28                 

NICOLETTE ANDERSEN 1/14/2018 THE HOME DEPOT SPRING SET SUPPLIES 605-4300-656.540.018 285.53               

NICOLETTE ANDERSEN 1/9/2018 FREEPEOPLE SPRING COSTUMES REFUND 605-4300-656.540.018 (105.14)              

NICOLETTE ANDERSEN 1/5/2018 THE HOME DEPOT SPRING SET SUPPLIES 605-4300-656.540.018 141.17               

NICOLETTE ANDERSEN 1/17/2018 WALMART SPRING PROPS 605-4300-656.540.018 19.30                 

NICOLETTE ANDERSEN 1/16/2018 THE HOME DEPOT SPRING SET SUPPLIES 605-4300-656.540.018 33.52                 

NICOLETTE ANDERSEN 1/17/2018 RETAIL RESOURCE COSTUME HANGERS 605-4300-656.540.018 24.77                 

POLICE DEPT NO 2 12/22/2017 ELM AVE FEED SELMA K9 FOOD 100-2200-600.250.000 115.98               

POLICE DEPT NO 2 1/2/2018 ELM AVE FEED SELMA K9 FOOD 100-2200-600.250.000 62.90                 

POLICE DEPT NO 2 1/17/2018 ELM AVE FEED SELMA K9 FOOD 100-2200-600.250.000 62.90                 

POLICE DEPT NO 2 1/17/2018 PET SUPPLIES PLUS K9 BARK COLLAR 100-2200-600.250.000 84.20                 

RECREATION DEPT-ALLIE CONTRERAS 1/10/2018 SMART N FINAL BINGO CON 805-0000-226.200.000 74.20                 

RECREATION DEPT-EMILY DIXON 1/16/2018 JOANNS CKP COSTUMES 100-4300.600.250.000 239.82               

RECREATION DEPT-EMILY DIXON 1/16/2018 WAL-MART CKP SUPLIES 100-4300.600.250.000 16.79                 

RECREATION DEPT-EMILY DIXON 1/16/2018 AMERICAN VET CKP COSTUMES 100-4300.600.250.000 29.15                 

RECREATION DEPT-EMILY DIXON 1/20/2018 HOME DEPOT SPRING AWAKENING SET 605-4300.656.540.018 226.25               

RECREATION DEPT-TONI HILL 12/22/2017 WALMART CHRISTMAS PARTY LUNCH 805-0000-226.200.000 125.79               

RECREATION DEPT-TONI HILL 12/27/2017 WALMART FORKS, BROOM, DUST PAN,DISH SOAP 100-4500-600.250.000 64.41                 

RECREATION DEPT-TONI HILL 1/3/2018 WALMART DISH PANS(3)  CERTIFICATE FRAMES 100-4500-600.250.000 44.84                 

RECREATION DEPT-TONI HILL 1/5/2018 PANDERIA VANESSA MORNING PASTRIES 805-0000-226.200.000 12.40                 

RECREATION DEPT-TONI HILL 12/29/2017 WALMART KITCHEN SUPPLIES 100-4500-600.250.000 65.08                 

RENE GARZA 1/18/2018 GALLS TACTICAL BOOTS FOR PATROL 100-0000-123.010.000 111.95               

REYNA RIVERA 12/4/2018 WM SUPERCENTER SELMA SPC COUNCIL MEETING SUPPLIES 100-1100-610.920.000 22.40                 

REYNA RIVERA 12/4/2018 PANADERIA VANESSA, SELMA SPC COUNCIL MEETING SUPPLIES 100-1100-610.920.000 20.50                 

REYNA RIVERA 1/17/2018 WM SUPERCENTER SELMA MEETING SUPPLIES 100-2300-610.920.000 70.69                 

RICHARD FIGUEROA 1/16/2018 WALMART SELMA THUMBDRIVE 17-5423 100-2100-600.250.000 75.87                 

RICHARD FIGUEROA 1/18/2018 CVS KINGSBURG THUMBDRIVE 17-5423 100-2100-600.250.000 88.09                 

ROMEO SHIPLEE 12/8/2017 CENTRAL SANITARY SUPPLY JANITORIAL SUPPLIES FOR ART CENTER 605-4300-600.250.000 40.50                 

ROMEO SHIPLEE 12/1/2017 CENTRAL SANITARY SUPPLY JANITORIAL SUPPLIES FOR ART CENTER 605-4300-600.250.000 186.05               

ROMEO SHIPLEE 1/10/2018 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE SPECIAL SUPPLIES - PARKS 100-5300-600.250.000 87.84                 

ROMEO SHIPLEE 1/4/2018 CROWN SHORTLOAD CONCRETE CONCRETE FOR SIDEWALK REPAIR - 1801 SECOND 214-5400-600.250.000 865.63               

ROMEO SHIPLEE 1/11/2018 GRAINGER HARD HATS FOR CITY ENGINEERS 100-5100-600.250.000 38.63                 February 20, 2018 Council Packet 22

agenda item 1.e.



EMPLOYEE NAME

TRANSACTION 

DATE VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION OF PURCHASE ACCOUNT NUMBER AMOUNT

US BANK INVOICE FOR CALCARD CHARGES:  12/23/17-1/22/18

ROMEO SHIPLEE 1/11/2018 GRAINGER INFRARED THERMOMETER 100-5100-600.305.000 87.30                 

ROMEO SHIPLEE 1/4/2018 AMAZON.COM DESK FOR CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER 100-1600-600.100.000 507.78               

ROMEO SHIPLEE 12/26/2017 MCCAIN (2) POWER SUPPLY UNITS FOR TRAFFIC SIGNAL CABINETS 214-5400-600.250.000 347.12               

SHANE FERRELL 1/3/2018 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE SPECIAL SUPPLIES - PARKS 100-5300-600.250.000 3.54                   

SHANE FERRELL 1/16/2018 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE MATERIALS FOR SIDEWALK REPAIR - MEASURE C FLEX 214-5400-600.250.000 16.77                 

SHANE FERRELL 12/28/2017 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE CONCRETE FOR SIDEWALK REPAIR - MEASURE C FLEX 214-5400-600.250.000 21.65                 

SHANE FERRELL 1/4/2018 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE UNIFORM EXPENSE - RUBBER BOOTS 100-5300-600.300.000 33.18                 

SHANE FERRELL 1/4/2018 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE UNIFORM EXPENSE - RUBBER BOOTS 210-5400-600.300.000 33.18                 

SHANE FERRELL 12/26/2017 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE HARDWARE FOR SAFETY SIGNS - MEASURE C FLEX 214-5400-600.250.000 51.70                 

SHANE FERRELL 1/9/2018 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE SPECIAL SUPPLIES - PARKS 100-5300-600.250.000 58.10                 

SHANE FERRELL 1/2/2018 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE SPECIAL SUPPLIES - BUILDING 702-9300-600.250.000 62.95                 

SHANE FERRELL 12/28/2017 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE MISCELLANEOUS JANITORIAL SUPPLIES - BUILDING 702-9300-600.250.000 75.21                 

SHANE FERRELL 12/28/2017 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE STREET PAINTING SUPPLIES - MEASURE C FLEX 214-5400-600.250.000 121.59               

SHANE FERRELL 12/26/2017 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE SPECIAL SUPPLIES - STREETS 210-5400-600.250.000 142.14               

SHANE FERRELL 1/2/2018 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE SPECIAL SUPPLIES - STREETS 210-5400-600.250.000 145.84               

SHANE FERRELL 12/28/2017 HOME DEPOT MATERIALS FOR SIDEWALK REPAIR - MEASURE C FLEX 214-5400-600.250.000 10.69                 

SHANE FERRELL 1/8/2018 HOME DEPOT SPECIAL SUPPLIES - PARKS 100-5300-600.250.000 13.04                 

SHANE FERRELL 1/3/2018 HOME DEPOT SUPPLIES FOR SIDEWALK REPAIR - MEASURE C FLEX 214-5400-600.250.000 29.42                 

SHANE FERRELL 1/16/2018 HOME DEPOT SUPPLIES FOR SIDEWALK REPAIR - MEASURE C FLEX 214-5400-600.250.000 70.86                 

SHANE FERRELL 1/1/2018 ELM AVENUE FEED UNIFORM EXPENSE - RUBBER BOOTS 210-5400-600.300.000 24.95                 

STEVE GIBBS 12/26/2017 NAPA AUTO PARTS CREDIT FOR RETURN 800-0000-121.000.000 (70.82)                

STEVE GIBBS 12/21/2017 NAPA AUTO PARTS AUTO PARTS 701-9200-600.256.000 3.22                   

STEVE GIBBS 12/27/2017 NAPA AUTO PARTS AUTO PARTS 701-9200-600.256.000 5.74                   

STEVE GIBBS 1/19/2018 NAPA AUTO PARTS AUTO PARTS - #804 701-9200-600.256.000 15.18                 

STEVE GIBBS 12/28/2017 NAPA AUTO PARTS AUTO PARTS - SHOP 701-9200-600.256.000 15.41                 

STEVE GIBBS 1/9/2018 NAPA AUTO PARTS AUTO PARTS - SHOP 701-9200-600.256.000 31.61                 

STEVE GIBBS 1/2/2018 NAPA AUTO PARTS AUTO PARTS 701-9200-600.256.000 49.36                 

STEVE GIBBS 12/27/2017 NAPA AUTO PARTS AUTO PARTS 701-9200-600.256.000 56.40                 

STEVE GIBBS 12/26/2017 NAPA AUTO PARTS AUTO PARTS - RETURNED 12/26/17 800-0000-121.000.000 70.82                 

STEVE GIBBS 1/3/2018 NAPA AUTO PARTS AUTO PARTS 701-9200-600.256.000 90.86                 

STEVE GIBBS 1/8/2018 NAPA AUTO PARTS AUTO PARTS - #1315 701-9200-600.256.000 113.11               

STEVE GIBBS 1/10/2018 NAPA AUTO PARTS AUTO PARTS 701-9200-600.256.000 119.21               

STEVE GIBBS 1/3/2018 NAPA AUTO PARTS AUTO PARTS - SHOP 701-9200-600.256.000 120.16               

STEVE GIBBS 12/26/2017 NAPA AUTO PARTS AUTO PARTS 701-9200-600.256.000 124.92               

STEVE GIBBS 12/21/2017 NAPA AUTO PARTS AUTO PARTS - STOCK 701-9200-600.256.000 130.10               

STEVE GIBBS 1/9/2018 SELMA AUTO SUPPLY AUTO PARTS - SHOP 701-9200-600.256.000 9.20                   

STEVE GIBBS 12/21/2017 SWANSON FAHRNEY FORD AUTO SERVICE REPAIR - #182 701-9200-600.457.000 47.49                 

STEVE GIBBS 12/21/2017 BATTERY SYSTEMS AUTO PARTS 701-9200-600.256.000 52.73                 

STEVE GIBBS 12/30/2017 LES SCHWAB AUTO PARTS 701-9200-600.256.000 92.85                 

STEVE GIBBS 1/3/2018 LES SCHWAB AUTO SERVICE REPAIR - #170 701-9200-600.457.000 1,196.86           

STEVE GIBBS 1/2/2018 LES SCHWAB AUTO SERVICE REPAIR - #179 701-9200-600.457.000 1,630.81           

STEVE GIBBS 1/2/2018 NELSON'S POWER CENTER AUTO PARTS - #3201 701-9200-600.256.000 81.35                 

STEVE GIBBS 12/27/2017 NELSON'S POWER CENTER AUTO PARTS - #2737 701-9200-600.256.000 115.86               

STEVE GIBBS 1/18/2018 PBM SUPPLY & MFG AUTO PARTS - #2738 701-9200-600.256.000 48.72                 

STEVE GIBBS 1/9/2018 ZEE MEDICAL SERVICE CO. FIRST AID KIT SUPPLIES - PARKS 100-5300-600.250.000 22.76                 

STEVE GIBBS 1/9/2018 ZEE MEDICAL SERVICE CO. FIRST AID KIT SUPPLIES - FLEET 701-9200-600.250.000 22.76                 

STEVE GIBBS 1/9/2018 ZEE MEDICAL SERVICE CO. FIRST AID KIT SUPPLIES - STREETS 210-5400-600.250.000 22.77                 

STEVE GIBBS 1/8/2018 PAPE MACHINERY AUTO PARTS - 701-9200-600.256.000 149.49               

TERRY REID 1/16/2018 METRO UNIFORM EXPLORER RANCH INSIGNIA PINS 800-0000-121.000.000                   37.58 

TERRY REID 1/20/2018 VALERO -T MART FUEL (PUMPS DOWN) 100-2200-620.100.000                   54.25 February 20, 2018 Council Packet 23

agenda item 1.e.



EMPLOYEE NAME

TRANSACTION 

DATE VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION OF PURCHASE ACCOUNT NUMBER AMOUNT

US BANK INVOICE FOR CALCARD CHARGES:  12/23/17-1/22/18

TESLA NASON 1/2/2018 GOVTJOBS CITY MANAGER AD 100-1400-600.200.000 299.00               

TESLA NASON 1/2/2018 CALIFORNIA CITY NEWS CITY MANAGER AD 100-1400-600.200.000 225.00               

TESLA NASON 1/19/2018 ICMA CITY MANAGER AD 100-1400-600.200.000 643.50               

TIM CANNON 1/18/2018 PLANTINUM PERFORMANCE K9 JOINT SUPPLEMENT 100-2200-600.250.000 105.89               
18,259.80         

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 24

agenda item 1.e.



CITY MANAGER'S/STAFF'S REPORT 
CITY COUNCIL l\1EETING: Februarv 20.2018 

ITEM NO: 

SUBJECT: 

DISCUSSION: 

Proposed assessment change for Landscaping and Lighting 
Maintenance District No.1 in the City of Selma. 

Due to increased costs associated with maintaining all LLMD areas 
in the City of Selma, it will be necessary to adjust 2018/2019 
assessment amounts in order to recoup expenses. 

Tonight's action is to review the proposed rates and authorize the 
mailing of the "Notice of Public Hearing" to all property owners in 
the LLMD District. The public hearing needs to be held at least 45 
days after mailing. If council so directs, notices will be mailed to the 
property owners paying for LLMD services and a public protest 
hearing for the new rates will be set for the May 7th Council 
meeting. 

RECOMl\1ENDATION: Review proposed rates and authorize mailing of Prop 218 
"N otice of Public Hearing", set public hearing for May 7 , 
2018. 

Daniel K. Bond, City Engineer Date 

Henry Perea, Interim City Manager Date 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 25

CITY MANAGER'S/STAFF'S REPORT 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING: Februarv 20.2018 

ITEM NO: 

SUBJECT: 

DISCUSSION: 

Proposed assessment change for Landscaping and Lighting 
Maintenance District No.1 in the City of Selma. 

Due to increased costs associated with maintaining all LLMD areas 
in the City of Selma, it will be necessary to adjust 2018/2019 
assessment amounts in order to recoup expenses. 

Tonight's action is to review the proposed rates and authorize the 
mailing of the "Notice of Public Hearing" to all property owners in 
the LLMD District. The public hearing needs to be held at least 45 
days after mailing. If council so directs, notices will be mailed to the 
property owners paying for LLMD services and a public protest 
hearing for the new rates will be set for the May 7th Council 
meeting. 

RECOMMENDATION: Review proposed rates and authorize mailing of Prop 218 
"N otice of Public Hearing", set public hearing for May 7 , 
2018. 

Daniel K. Bond, City Engineer Date 

Henry Perea, Interim City Manager Date 

2.

/s/ Daniel K. Bond      02/16/2018

/s/ Henry Perea     02/16/2018



c T Y o F S ELM A 
1 7 1 0 T U C K E R S T R E E T • S ELM A, CAL I FOR N I A 9 3 6 6 2 

Dear Property Owner: 

This notice explains the proposed Landscaping & Lighting Maintenance District assessment increase for residents 
within the City of Selma. The proposed assessment increase will be recommended to the Selma City Council at 
the date, time and location specified below in the Notice of Public Hearing. 

Esta notificacion describe en detalle la propuesta para aumentar la tarifa municipalla cualle da servicio a 
su propiedad. Favor de pedirle a alguien que se 10 traduzca si usted no entiende 0 lee ingles. 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

Public Hearing for the proposed LLMD assessment increase will be held on: 

Date: Monday, May 7,2018 

Time: 6:00 p.m., or as soon as possible thereafter 

Place: City of Selma City Hall, Council Chambers, 1710 Tucker Street, Selma, CA 93662 

This notice has been sent to all property owners who own property in an LLMD zone in the City of Selma. If 
adopted, the LLMD assessment increase will become effective July 1, 2018. This notice also describes how to file 
a protest against the proposed assessment increase. 

WHAT IS THE PROPOSED LLMD ASSESSMENT FOR 2018-2019? 

2017/2018 Proposed 2018/2019 Increase/Decrease 
Zone # Zone Name Assessment l2er lot Assessment l2er lot per lot 

1 Nelson East $110.72 $114.14 $3.42 
2 Nelson West $134.06 $141.82 $7.76 
3 Dinuba-Thompson $104.42 $109.98 $5.56 
4 Dancer Meadows $114.82 $120.86 $6.04 
5 Suncrest $138.66 $148.92 $10.26 
6 Blossom Ranch $102.30 $106.82 $4.52 
7 Sundance $99.30 $105.34 $6.04 
8 Rosewood Estates $139.96 $166.88 $26.92 
9 Vineyard Estates $85.02 $ 87.18 $2.16 

11 Royal Country Estates $124.52 $156.60 $32.08 

WHY ARE LLMD ASSESSMENTS BEING INCREASED? 
To continue the City of Selma's long tradition of providing reliable service to our citizens, assessment increases 
are needed to cover increasing operational costs. 

NOTE TO RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY OWNERS: 
In the City of Selma, the LLMD assessment is the responsibility of the property owner. The LLMD assessment is 
included on the Fresno County Property Tax bill as a special assessment. Owners are entitled to submit a written 
protest and either you or your representative may appear at the LLMD assessment protest hearing. 

HOW DO I PROTEST THE PROPOSED RATE INCREASE? 
Under Proposition 218, if you are the owner of record for a parcel or parcels subject to the proposed assessment 
change, you may submit a written protest against the proposed LLMD assessment increase to the City Clerk at or 
before the time set for the public hearing. If written protests are filed by a majority (51 %) of the affected property 
owners, the applicable proposed assessment increase will not be imposed. 

Written protests regarding the proposed assessment change may be mailed to: City Clerk, City of Selma, 1710 
Tucker Street, Selma, CA 93662. Written protests may also be personally delivered to the City Clerk at this 
address. To be valid, a protest must be in writing and received by the City Clerk on or before the time of the 
protest hearing. 

You may obtain more information on the assessment increase by contacting the City of Selma - Joan Ferrales, 
Administrative Assistant, Public Works Department at (559) 891-2215. 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 26

c T Y o F S ELM A 
1 7 1 0 T U C K E R S T R E E T • S ELM A, CAL I FOR N I A 9 3 6 6 2 

Dear Property Owner: 

This notice explains the proposed Landscaping & Lighting Maintenance District assessment increase for residents 
within the City of Selma. The proposed assessment increase will be recommended to the Selma City Council at 
the date, time and location specified below in the Notice of Public Hearing. 

Esta notificacion describe en detalle la propuesta para aumentar la tarifa municipalla cualle da servicio a 
su propiedad. Favor de pedirle a alguien que se 10 traduzca si usted no entiende 0 lee ingles. 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

Public Hearing for the proposed LLMD assessment increase will be held on: 

Date: Monday, May 7,2018 

Time: 6:00 p.m., or as soon as possible thereafter 

Place: City of Selma City Hall, Council Chambers, 1710 Tucker Street, Selma, CA 93662 

This notice has been sent to all property owners who own property in an LLMD zone in the City of Selma. If 
adopted, the LLMD assessment increase will become effective July 1, 2018. This notice also describes how to file 
a protest against the proposed assessment increase. 

WHAT IS THE PROPOSED LLMD ASSESSMENT FOR 2018-2019? 

2017/2018 Proposed 2018/2019 Increase/Decrease 
Zone # Zone Name Assessment l2er lot Assessment l2er lot per lot 

1 Nelson East $110.72 $114.14 $3.42 
2 Nelson West $134.06 $141.82 $7.76 
3 Dinuba-Thompson $104.42 $109.98 $5.56 
4 Dancer Meadows $114.82 $120.86 $6.04 
5 Suncrest $138.66 $148.92 $10.26 
6 Blossom Ranch $102.30 $106.82 $4.52 
7 Sundance $99.30 $105.34 $6.04 
8 Rosewood Estates $139.96 $166.88 $26.92 
9 Vineyard Estates $85.02 $ 87.18 $2.16 

11 Royal Country Estates $124.52 $156.60 $32.08 

WHY ARE LLMD ASSESSMENTS BEING INCREASED? 
To continue the City of Selma's long tradition of providing reliable service to our citizens, assessment increases 
are needed to cover increasing operational costs. 

NOTE TO RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY OWNERS: 
In the City of Selma, the LLMD assessment is the responsibility of the property owner. The LLMD assessment is 
included on the Fresno County Property Tax bill as a special assessment. Owners are entitled to submit a written 
protest and either you or your representative may appear at the LLMD assessment protest hearing. 

HOW DO I PROTEST THE PROPOSED RATE INCREASE? 
Under Proposition 218, if you are the owner of record for a parcel or parcels subject to the proposed assessment 
change, you may submit a written protest against the proposed LLMD assessment increase to the City Clerk at or 
before the time set for the public hearing. If written protests are filed by a majority (51 %) of the affected property 
owners, the applicable proposed assessment increase will not be imposed. 

Written protests regarding the proposed assessment change may be mailed to: City Clerk, City of Selma, 1710 
Tucker Street, Selma, CA 93662. Written protests may also be personally delivered to the City Clerk at this 
address. To be valid, a protest must be in writing and received by the City Clerk on or before the time of the 
protest hearing. 

You may obtain more information on the assessment increase by contacting the City of Selma - Joan Ferrales, 
Administrative Assistant, Public Works Department at (559) 891-2215. 



Zone 

# Name 

1 Nelson East 

2 Nelson West 

3 Dinuba-Thompson 

4 Dancer Meadows 

5 Suncrest 

6 Blossom Ranch 

7 Sundance 

8 Rosewood Estates 

9 Vineyard Estates 

11 Royal Country Estates 

2018-2019 TOTALS 

2017-2018 TOTALS 

Increase/Decrease 
-- -

Increase in water usage 

Increase in labor charge 

TAXID# 

6645 

6646 

6647 

6648 

6639 

6641 

6649 

6642 

6637 

6654 

#of PG&E 

Lots 

359 359.82 

427 404.13 

201 359.90 

213 245.08 

88 119.94 

63 120.06 

172 ll9.94 

254 362.83 

40 -
59 239.94 

1876 2,331.64 

1876 2,322.51 

0 9.13 

CITY OF SELMA 
2018-2019 PREVIOUS VS PROPOSED LLMD ASSESSMENT 

Water Grounds Incidental Total Proposed 2018-2019 Previous 2017-2018 Increase/Decrease 

Maint- PW Expenses Cost/Area Assessment Assement 

Lot Area Lot Area Lot Area 

9,344.20 29,922.14 1,351.77 40,977.93 ll4.14 40,976.26 llO.72 39,748.48 3.42 1,227.78 

23,178.33 35,589.84 1,386.71 60,559 .01 141.82 60,557.14 134.06 57,243.62 7.76 3,313.52 

4,160.13 16,753.06 834.22 22,107.31 109.98 22,105.98 104.42 20,988.42 5.56 1,ll7.56 

6,941.28 17,753.25 803.45 25,743.06 120.86 25,743.18 ll4.82 24,456.66 6.04 1,286.52 

5,163.26 7,334.67 487.71 13,105.59 148.92 13,104.96 138.66 12,202.08 10.26 902.88 

1,057.27 5,250.96 302.12 6,730.41 106.82 6,729.66 102.30 6,444.90 4.52 284.76 

3,054.66 14,335.95 609.18 18,ll9.73 105.34 18,118.48 99.30 17,079.60 6.04 1,038.88 

20,006.24 21,170.54 850.54 42,390.15 166.88 42,387.52 139.96 35,549.84 26.92 6,837.68 

- 3,333.94 153.48 3,487.42 87.18 3,487.20 85.02 3,400.80 2.16 86.40 

3,748.11 4,917.57 333.97 9,239.59 156.60 9,239.40 124.52 7,346.68 32.08 1,892.72 

76,653,48 156,361.92 7,113.15 242,460.19 242,449.78 224,461.08 17,988.70 

61,337.16 147,637.75 13,159.11 224,456.53 

15,316.32 8,724.17 -6,045.96 18,003.66 

decrease in incidental expenses (advertising, Fresno Co charge for assessements, special supplies, small tools, professional services, backflow device testing, mower replacement, etc.) 

The last increase to the LLMD assessment was last year, approved by the Council 05/15/2017, affecting the 2017/2018 tax roll. 

Page 1 February 20, 2018 Council Packet 27

Zone 

# Name 

1 Nelson East 

2 Nelson West 

3 Dinuba-Thompson 

4 Dancer Meadows 

5 Suncrest 

6 Blossom Ranch 

7 Sundance 

8 Rosewood Estates 

9 Vineyard Estates 

11 Royal Country Estates 

2018-2019 TOTALS 

2017-2018 TOTALS 

Increase/Decrease 

Increase in water usage 

Increase in labor charge 

TAXID# #of PG&E 

Lots 

6645 359 359.82 

6646 427 404.13 

6647 201 359.90 

6648 213 245.08 

6639 88 119.94 

6641 63 120.06 

6649 172 119.94 

6642 254 362.83 

6637 40 -
6654 59 239.94 

1876 2,331.64 

1876 2,322.51 

0 9.13 

CITY OF SELMA 
2018-2019 PREVIOUS VS PROPOSED LLMD ASSESSMENT 

Water Grounds Incidental Total Proposed 2018-2019 Previous 2017-2018 Increase/Decrease 
Maint- PW Expenses Cost/Area Assessment Assement 

Lot Area Lot Area Lot Area 

9,344.20 29,922.14 1,351.77 40,977.93 114.14 40,976.26 110.72 39,748.48 3.42 1,227.78 

23,178.33 35,589.84 1,386.71 60,559 .01 141.82 60,557.14 134.06 57,243.62 7.76 3,313.52 

4,160.13 16,753.06 834.22 22,107.31 109.98 22,105.98 104.42 20,988.42 5.56 1,117.56 

6,941.28 17,753.25 803.45 25,743.06 120.86 25,743.18 114.82 24,456.66 6.04 1,286.52 

5,163.26 7,334.67 487.71 13,105.59 148.92 13,104.96 138.66 12,202.08 10.26 902.88 

1,057.27 5,250.96 302.12 6,730.41 106.82 6,729.66 102.30 6,444.90 4.52 284.76 

3,054.66 14,335.95 609.18 18,119.73 105.34 18,118.48 99.30 17,079.60 6.04 1,038.88 

20,006.24 21,170.54 850.54 42,390.15 166.88 42,387.52 139.96 35,549.84 26.92 6,837.68 

- 3,333.94 153.48 3,487.42 87.18 3,487.20 85.02 3,400.80 2.16 86.40 

3,748.11 4.917.57 333.97 9.239.59 156.60 9,239.40 124.52 7,346.68 32.08 1,892.72 

76,653.48 156,361.92 7,113.15 242,460.19 242,449.78 224,461.08 17,988.70 

61,337.16 147,637.75 13,159.11 224,456.53 

15,316.32 8,724.17 -6,045.96 18.003.66 

decrease in incidental expenses (advertising, Fresno Co charge for assessements, special supplies, small tools, professional services, backflow device testing, mower replacement, etc.) 

The last increase to the LLMD assessment was last year, approved by the Council 05/15/2017, affecting the 2017/2018 tax roll. 

Page 1 



CA-99 SB

SR-99

HI
GH

LA
ND

D

W. FRONT

E

ROSE

FLORAL

B CA

SAGINAW

HICKS

NEBRASKA

DITC
H

MC
CA

LL

DO
CK

ER
Y

GOLDEN STATE

VA
N 

HO
RN

NELSON

RORDEN

DU
KE

OL
IVE

MI
TC

HE
LL

TH
OM

PS
ON

PINE

HI
GH

LA
ND

SR
-43

SECOND

WHITSON

PA
CI

FIC

ALTON

ASPEN

EVERGREEN

HIGH

COOPER

GOLDRIDGE

MILL

PARK

HUNTSMAN

OAK

FIG

SYLVIA

DE
 W

OL
F

DINUBA

GA
YN

OR

MOUNTAIN VIEW

F

TAMMY

TODD

KNOWLES

MILL

SH
AF

T
LEWIS

MC
CA

LL

GAITHER

DENNIS

CHANDLER
YOUNG

ARRANTS

LO
VELE

E

TULARE

NORTHHILL

ADOBE

GAITHER

ALMOND

AL
LA

N

NORTH

MAPLE

HILLCREST

JO
Y

RO
DE

O

SARAH

VALLEY VIEW

STILLMAN

MU
LB

ER
RY

TUCKER

MAGNOLIA

GRANT

YERBA

CHESTNUT
JA

SP
ER

BURNHAM

PEACH

SE
LM

A

JOHN

CYPRESS

BR
YA

N

OR
AN

GE

BAUDER

GROVE

ORA
NG

E

WILSON

COLUMBIA

AUTO MALL

ASPEN

JACKSON

CORTLEY

SUNSET

BARBARA

PLUM

CI
NE

MA
 W

AY

NORTHVIEW

W
ILL

OW

CL
AY

MERCED

BIRCH

WALNUT

SN
YD

ER

CH
AP

AR
AL

SIERRA VIEW

ALTON

HO
WA

RD

CA
NA

L

AZALEA

STEPHANIE

HI
LL

OR
YA

N

HUNTSMAN

THIRD

GARY

KE
ITH

COUNTRY CLUB

SH
ER

ID
AN

DINUBA

SYCAMORE

W
RI

GH
T

CL
EV

EL
AN

D

NECTARINE

JO
RD

AN

W. FRONT

COOPER

SA
N 

CA
RL

OS

REDWOOD

HOPE

HICKS

BARBARA

BRANCH

MA
SO

N

CO
UN

TR
YV

IEW

KE
LL

Y

WHITSON

BARBARA

BE
RR

Y

ART GONZALES

STILLMAN

CENTER

CO
UN

TR
Y C

LU
B

CURTIS

FLORAL

WHITSON

BA
LB

OA

BETTY

SHERMAN

KENT

PRAIRIE

FIRST

SK
EL

TO
N

GA
RF

IEL
D

SE
QU

OI
A

MERLOT

PEA SOUP ANDERSEN

MC
 K

EN
NA

PR
IM

RO
SE

OR
CH

AR
D

LO
GA

N

JA
CE

Y

FOURTH

W
OO

DR
OW

QU
AI

L R
UN

FA
ITH

SH
ER

RI

BE
LL

A 
VI

ST
A

VI
A 

CO
RV

IN
O

STILLMAN

SIERRA
MADRE

SH
AF

T

TAMMY

MAPLE

SR-99

SIERRA VIEW

OL
IVE

FIG

JA
SP

ER

SN
YD

ER

HI
GH

LA
ND

OAK

E. FRONT

SN
YD

ER

LE
E

BE
RR

Y

MILL

FIRST

W
ILL

OW

JA
SP

ER
JA

SP
ER

SN
YD

ER

DO
CK

ER
Y

ARRANTS

VALLEY VIEW

OAK

MI
TC

HE
LL

DENNIS A

AL
LA

N

BURNHAM

VA
N 

HO
RN

STILLMAN

MU
LB

ER
RY

GA
RF

IEL
D

OL
IVE

TUCKER

SK
EL

TO
N

HILLCREST

ASPEN

LO
VE

VA
N 

HO
RN

LO
CU

ST

W
ILL

OW

YERBA

ALTON

GOLDRIDGE

KNOWLES

MU
LB

ER
RY

HI
LL

SR-99

NEBRASKA

LEWIS

SN
YD

ER

GA
YN

OR

TH
OM

PS
ON

EVERGREEN

SN
YD

ER

SARAH

NELSON

BIRCH

GOLDEN STATE

GOLDRIDGE

OR
AN

GE

GAITHER

HILLCREST

WALNUT

NORTHHILL

OL
IVE

JACKSON

COUNTRY ROSE

MI
TC

HE
LL

OAK

TH
OM

PS
ON

EVERGREEN

BARBARA

KE
LL

Y

HICKS

CL
EV

EL
AN

D

FOURTH

JA
SP

ER

FIG

ASPEN

MAPLE

HICKS

NEBRASKA

GAITHER

MERCED

PARK

TULARE

NORTH

JA
SP

ER

EVERGREEN

STEPHANIE

SAGINAW

PARK

GA
YN

OR

CHESTNUT

FIRST

MA
SO

N

OL
IVE

MC
CA

LL

LO
GA

N

JO
Y

ROSE

W
RI

GH
T

TAMMY

OL
IVE

PEACH

HO
WA

RD

HUNTSMAN

DO
CK

ER
Y

HI
LL

DO
CK

ER
Y

FLORAL

HUNTSMAN

SH
AF

T

PEACH

PINE

MI
TC

HE
LL

CHANDLER

NORTHHILL

NORTHVIEW

SH
AF

T

SECOND

VA
N 

HO
RN

D

MILL

TAMMY

HILLCREST

ALMOND

SN
YD

ER

HIGH

MILL

STILLMAN

DINUBA

JACKSON

OL
IVE

W
ILL

OW

CL
EV

EL
AN

D

Nelson East (#1)

Legend
City Limits 
Nelson East 1
Nelson West 2
Dinuba Thompson 3
Dancer Meadows 4
Suncrest 5
Blossom Ranch 6
Sundance Estates 7
Rosewood 8
Vineyard Estates 9
Royal Country 11 

CITY OF SELMA
2018 LLMD ZONES

Prepared by
Gateway GIS

1/22/2018

µ

Nelson East 1

Nelson West 2

Dinuba Thompson 3

Sundance
 Estates 7

Rosewood 8

Suncrest 5

Rosewood 8

Suncrest 5

Royal Country 11

Blossom 
Ranch 6

Dancer 
Meadows 4

Vineyard
Estates 9

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 28



CITY MANAGER'S/STAFF'S REPORT 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 

ITEM NO: 

February 20,2018 

Introduction and First Reading of Ordinance Approving a Development 
SUBJECT: Agreement Between the City and Karamjit Singh Nijjar. 

DISCUSSION: On February 21, 2006 the City Council approved Vesting Tentative Tract 
Map No. 5519 ("Tract 5519") for the development of 66 residential units on approximately 
20 acres in the City of Selma. As a result of the financial impacts of the 'great recession' the 
California Legislature approved a series of extensions to subdivision maps beyond the time 
period in which they would ordinarily expire by operation of law. The final 24 month 
extension approved by the Legislature extended the expiration of Tract 5519 to February 21, 
2018. Government Code §66452.6 provides that the expiration of an approved Vesting 
Tentative Tract Map may be extended by a development agreement for the term of the 
development agreement. 

The proposed development agreement, which must be approved by ordinance, will facilitate 
the completion of the approved development and will extend the expiration of the current 
map for the term of the development agreement which is two years. The proposed 
development agreement requires full compliance with all of the conditions imposed by the 
City when Tract 5519 was approved by Resolution No. 2006-14R and all subsequent 
approvals related to the project must fully comply with the City'S General Plan, the 
approved tentative map, and all applicable ordinances, codes, and regulations. The 
resolution approving the project including the terms and conditions of approval, and the 
development fees related to the project are attached to and incorporated into the 
development agreement. Tract 5519 was included in the City of Selma 2035 General Plan, 
is consistent with the General Plan, and therefore the development agreement is also 
consistent with the City's 2035 General Plan. 

Environmental review for Tract 5519 was done by the City Council when it considered 
approval of Tract 5519 and the City Council adopted and certified a Negative Declaration 
for the project. 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 29

CITY MANAGER'S/STAFF'S REPORT 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 

ITEM NO: 

February 20, 2018 

Introduction and First Reading of Ordinance Approving a Development 
SUBJECT: Agreement Between the City and Karamjit Singh Nijjar. 

DISCUSSION: On February 21, 2006 the City Council approved Vesting Tentative Tract 
Map No. 5519 ("Tract 5519") for the development of 66 residential units on approximately 
20 acres in the City of Selma. As a result of the financial impacts of the 'great recession' the 
California Legislature approved a series of extensions to subdivision maps beyond the time 
period in which they would ordinarily expire by operation of law. The final 24 month 
extension approved by the Legislature extended the expiration of Tract 5519 to February 21, 
2018. Government Code §66452.6 provides that the expiration of an approved Vesting 
Tentative Tract Map may be extended by a development agreement for the term of the 
development agreement. 

The proposed development agreement, which must be approved by ordinance, will facilitate 
the completion of the approved development and will extend the expiration of the current 
map for the term of the development agreement which is two years. The proposed 
development agreement requires full compliance with all of the conditions imposed by the 
City when Tract 5519 was approved by Resolution No. 2006-14R and all subsequent 
approvals related to the project must fully comply with the City'S General Plan, the 
approved tentative map, and all applicable ordinances, codes, and regulations. The 
resolution approving the project including the terms and conditions of approval, and the 
development fees related to the project are attached to and incorporated into the 
development agreement. Tract 5519 was included in the City of Selma 2035 General Plan, 
is consistent with the General Plan, and therefore the development agreement is also 
consistent with the City'S 2035 General Plan. 

Environmental review for Tract 5519 was done by the City Council when it considered 
approval of Tract 5519 and the City Council adopted and certified a Negative Declaration 
for the project. 

      3.



COST: 

All costs associated with review of the 
development agreement are 
reimbursable by the developer pursuant 
to SMC §12-3-4(A)(14). 

FUNDING: (Enter the funding source for this 
item in box below - iffund exists, enter the balance 
in thefund). 

Funding Source: NONE 

Fund Balance: 

BUDGET IMPACT: 

None. 

ON-GOING COST: (Entertheamount 
that will need to be budgeted each year in box 
below - if one-time cost, enter NONE). 

Not applicable. 

RECOMMENDATION: Waive introduction and first reading of Ordinance Approving 
a Development Agreement related to Tract 5519. 

Neal E. Costanzo, City Attorney Date 

Henry Perea, Interim City Manager Date 

Attachments Page 

Proposed Development Agreement 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 30

COST: 

All costs associated with review of the 
development agreement are 
reimbursable by the developer pursuant 
to SMC §12-3-4(A)(14). 

FUNDING: (Enter the funding source for this 
item in box below - if fund exists, enter the balance 
in thefund). 

Funding Source: NONE 

Fund Balance: 

BUDGET IMPACT: 

None. 

ON-GOING COST: (Entertheamount 
that will need to be budgeted each yea, in box 
below - if one-time cost, enter NONE). 

Not applicable. 

RECOMMENDATION: Waive introduction and first reading of Ordinance Approving 
a Development Agreement related to Tract 5519. 

Neal E. Costanzo, City Attorney Date 

Henry Perea, Interim City Manager Date 

Attachments Page 

Proposed Development Agreement 

/s/ Neal E. Costanzo      02/16/2018

/s/ Henry Perea                          02/16/2018



RECORDING REQUESTED BY: 
AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

City Manager 
City of Selma 
1710 Tucker Street 
Selma, CA 93662 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - VESTING TENTATIVE TRACT MAP NO.5519 

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and entered into this 20th 

day of February 2018, by and between the City of Selma, a municipal corporation (hereinafter 
referred to as "City"), and Karamjit Singh Nijjar, ("Developer). City and Developer are from time 
to time referred to individually as a "Party" and collectively as the "Parties." 

1. RECITALS 

This Agreement is predicated upon the following recitals, which, are incorporated into and 
made a part of this Agreement. 

1.1 Code Authorizations. The City, a general law city, is authorized pursuant to 
Article 2.5 of Chapter 4 of Title 7 of the Government Code, Sections 65864 through 65869.5 
("Development Agreement Statute"), to enter into development agreements with persons having 
legal or equitable interests in real property for the development of such property in order to 
establish certainty in the development process. This Agreement has been processed, considered, 
approved and executed in accordance with the Development Agreement Statute and the Selma 
Municipal Code. 

1.2 Developer/Property. Developer owns certain real property located in the City of 
Selma, County of Fresno, California, which is the subject property of Vesting Tentative Tract Map 
No. 5519 ("Project" or "VTTM No. 5519" or "Tract 5519") more particularly described in Exhibit 
A, attached hereto and incorporated herein, which real property is the subject matter of this 
Agreement ("Real Property") 

1.3 Interest of Developer. Developer represents that it has an equitable or a legal 
interest, as described in Section 1.2, in the Real Property and that all other persons holding legal 
or equitable interests in the Real Property are to be bound by this Agreement. Developer will 
provide a current preliminary title report at the time of approval of this Agreement to establish the 
legal interests. 

1.4 Project. Developer intends to develop the Real Property to be used as 66 residential 
lots ("Project"). The Project was approved by the City Council ofthe City of Selma by Resolution 

{00016436.DOCX;1} 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 31

RECORDING REQUESTED BY: 
AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

City Manager 
City of Selma 
1710 Tucker Street 
Selma, CA 93662 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - VESTING TENTATIVE TRACT MAP NO.5519 

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and entered into this 20th 

day of February 2018, by and between the City of Selma, a municipal corporation (hereinafter 
referred to as "City"), and Karamjit Singh Nijjar, ("Developer). City and Developer are from time 
to time referred to individually as a "Party" and collectively as the "Parties." 

1. RECITALS 

This Agreement is predicated upon the following recitals, which, are incorporated into and 
made a part of this Agreement. 

1.1 Code Authorizations. The City, a general law city, is authorized pursuant to 
Article 2.5 of Chapter 4 of Title 7 of the Government Code, Sections 65864 through 65869.5 
("Development Agreement Statute"), to enter into development agreements with persons having 
legal or equitable interests in real property for the development of such property in order to 
establish certainty in the development process. This Agreement has been processed, considered, 
approved and executed in accordance with the Development Agreement Statute and the Selma 
Municipal Code. 

1.2 Developer/Property. Developer owns certain real property located in the City of 
Selma, County of Fresno, California, which is the subject property of Vesting Tentative Tract Map 
No. 5519 ("Project" or "VTTM No. 5519" or "Tract 5519") more particularly described in Exhibit 
A, attached hereto and incorporated herein, which real property is the subject matter of this 
Agreement ("Real Property") 

1.3 Interest of Developer. Developer represents that it has an equitable or a legal 
interest, as described in Section 1.2, in the Real Property and that all other persons holding legal 
or equitable interests in the Real Property are to be bound by this Agreement. Developer will 
provide a current preliminary title report at the time of approval of this Agreement to establish the 
legal interests. 

1.4 Project. Developer intends to develop the Real Property to be used as 66 residential 
lots ("Project"). The Project was approved by the City Council ofthe City of Selma by Resolution 

{00016436.DOCX;1} 



No 2006-14R on February 21,2006, with a finding that the Project was consistent with the General 
Plan, the adoption of a negative declaration, imposing conditions of approval, dedications and/or 
mitigation measures and approving other entitlements(s) or conditions which together are referred 
to herein as the Project Approvals. 

1.5 Benefits/Burdens - Intent of Parties. City and Developer desire to enter into this 
Agreement in order to facilitate the development of the Real Property. Developer and City have 
determined that the Project is a development project for which this Agreement is appropriate; that 
this Agreement will reduce uncertainty in planning and provide for a more orderly development 
of the Real Property, insure timely installation of necessary improvements; provide for public 
services appropriate to the development of the Real Property; insure attainment of the maximum 
effective utilization of resources within the City at the least economic cost to its citizens; and 
otherwise achieve the goals and purposes of the Development Agreement Statute. 

1.5.1 The Project will require the construction of substantial public 
improvements. Certain development risks and uncertainties associated with the magnitude and 
long-term nature of the Project, including the cost of portions of the public improvements, could 
discourage and deter Developer from making the long-term commitments necessary to fully 
develop the Real Property. The parties desire to enter into this Agreement in order to reduce or 
eliminate uncertainties associated with the development of the Project over which City has control 
and to set development fees, so that they are specific and certain. 

1.5.2 In exchange for these benefits to City, together with the public benefits to 
be served by the development ofthe Real Property, Developer desires to receive the assurance that 
it may proceed with development of the Real Property in accordance with the existing ordinances, 
resolutions, policies and regulations of City, the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement, 
and the Subsequent Approvals as defined in Section 7.2 ofthis Agreement. 

1.5.3 The assurances provided to Developer in this Agreement are provided 
pursuant to, and as contemplated by, the Development Agreement Statute as consideration for the 
undertakings of Developer as set forth in this Agreement, and are intended by City to be and have 
been relied upon by Developer in undertaking the obligations and covenants provided in this 
Agreement and will be relied upon to an even greater degree in expending monies and making 
improvements pursuant to this Agreement. 

1.5.4 This Agreement will promote and encourage the development of the Real 
Property and other City infrastructure by providing Developer with a greater degree of certainty 
as to its ability to expeditiously and economically complete the Project. The parties agree that the 
consideration to be received by City pursuant to this Agreement and the rights secured to 
Developer hereunder constitute good and sufficient consideration to support the mutual covenants 
and agreements. 

1.5.5 The parties intend by this Agreement to accomplish and accommodate the 
respective goals and desires set forth in these recitals. 

{OOOl6436.DOCX;1 } 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 32

No 2006-14R on February 21,2006, with a finding that the Project was consistent with the General 
Plan, the adoption of a negative declaration, imposing conditions of approval, dedications and/or 
mitigation measures and approving other entitlements(s) or conditions which together are referred 
to herein as the Project Approvals. 

1.5 Benefits/Burdens - Intent of Parties. City and Developer desire to enter into this 
Agreement in order to facilitate the development of the Real Property. Developer and City have 
determined that the Project is a development project for which this Agreement is appropriate; that 
this Agreement will reduce uncertainty in planning and provide for a more orderly development 
of the Real Property, insure timely installation of necessary improvements; provide for public 
services appropriate to the development of the Real Property; insure attainment of the maximum 
effective utilization of resources within the City at the least economic cost to its citizens; and 
otherwise achieve the goals and purposes of the Development Agreement Statute. 

1.5.1 The Project will require the construction of substantial public 
improvements. Certain development risks and uncertainties associated with the magnitude and 
long-term nature of the Project, including the cost of portions of the public improvements, could 
discourage and deter Developer from making the long-term commitments necessary to fully 
develop the Real Property. The parties desire to enter into this Agreement in order to reduce or 
eliminate uncertainties associated with the development of the Project over which City has control 
and to set development fees, so that they are specific and certain. 

1.5.2 In exchange for these benefits to City, together with the public benefits to 
be served by the development ofthe Real Property, Developer desires to receive the assurance that 
it may proceed with development of the Real Property in accordance with the existing ordinances, 
resolutions, policies and regulations of City, the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement, 
and the Subsequent Approvals as defined in Section 7.2 ofthis Agreement. 

1.5.3 The assurances provided to Developer in this Agreement are provided 
pursuant to, and as contemplated by, the Development Agreement Statute as consideration for the 
undertakings of Developer as set forth in this Agreement, and are intended by City to be and have 
been relied upon by Developer in undertaking the obligations and covenants provided in this 
Agreement and will be relied upon to an even greater degree in expending monies and making 
improvements pursuant to this Agreement. 

1.5.4 This Agreement will promote and encourage the development of the Real 
Property and other City infrastructure by providing Developer with a greater degree of certainty 
as to its ability to expeditiously and economically complete the Project. The parties agree that the 
consideration to be received by City pursuant to this Agreement and the rights secured to 
Developer hereunder constitute good and sufficient consideration to support the mutual covenants 
and agreements. 

1.5.5 The parties intend by this Agreement to accomplish and accommodate the 
respective goals and desires set forth in these recitals. 

{OOOl6436.DOCX;1 } 



1.6 City's Position. City, by electing to enter into contractual agreements such as this 
one, acknowledges that the obligations of City shall survive beyond the term or terms of the present 
City Council members, that such action will serve to bind City and future Councils to the 
obligations thereby undertaken, and this Agreement shall limit the future exercise of certain 
governmental and proprietary powers of City. By approving this Agreement, the City Council has 
elected to exercise certain governmental powers at the time of entering into this Agreement, rather 
than deferring its actions to some undetermined future date. The terms and conditions of this 
Agreement have undergone extensive review by City and its Council and have been found to be 
fair, just, and reasonable. City has concluded that the pursuit of the Project will serve the best 
interests of its citizens and the public health, safety and welfare will be served best by entering 
into this obligation. City acknowledges that Developer would not consider or engage in the Project 
without the assurances this Agreement provides. 

1.7 City Council Actions. On , 2018, the City Council, after providing 
public notice as required by law, held a public hearing on the Project Approvals and took the 
following actions: (a) made findings that the provisions of this Agreement are consistent with the 
General Plan, as well as all other applicable plans, policies and regulations of City, including 
existing development regulations is in the best interests of the health, safety, and general welfare 
of City, its residents, and the public; is entered into pursuant to, and constitutes a present exercise 
of, City's police power; and is entered into pursuant to, and in compliance with, the requirements 
of Government Code section 65867 ; and (b) adopted Ordinance No. approving and 
authorizing the execution of this Agreement effective on , 2018. 

2. DEFINITIONS 

In this Agreement, unless the context otherwise requires: 

2.1 "Agreement" means this Development Agreement. 

2.2 "CEQA" means the California Environmental Quality Act. 

2.3 "City" means the City of Selma, California. 

2.4 "City Manager" means the person holding the office of City Manager of City. 

2.5 "Conditions of Approval" means all conditions attached to the Project Approvals 
and Subsequent Approvals. 

2.6 "Default" has the meaning given in Section 11.1. 

2.7 "Developer" means the person, persons or entity(ies) having a legal or equitable 
interest in the Real Property as described in Exhibit A and includes the Developer's successors in 
interest. 

2.8 "Development Agreement Statute" has the meaning given in Section 1.1. 
{00016436.DOCX;1 } 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 33

1.6 City's Position. City, by electing to enter into contractual agreements such as this 
one, acknowledges that the obligations of City shall survive beyond the term or terms of the present 
City Council members, that such action will serve to bind City and future Councils to the 
obligations thereby undertaken, and this Agreement shall limit the future exercise of certain 
governmental and proprietary powers of City. By approving this Agreement, the City Council has 
elected to exercise certain governmental powers at the time of entering into this Agreement, rather 
than deferring its actions to some undetermined future date. The terms and conditions of this 
Agreement have undergone extensive review by City and its Council and have been found to be 
fair, just, and reasonable. City has concluded that the pursuit of the Project will serve the best 
interests of its citizens and the public health, safety and welfare will be served best by entering 
into this obligation. City acknowledges that Developer would not consider or engage in the Project 
without the assurances this Agreement provides. 

1.7 City Council Actions. On , 2018, the City Council, after providing 
public notice as required by law, held a public hearing on the Project Approvals and took the 
following actions: (a) made findings that the provisions of this Agreement are consistent with the 
General Plan, as well as all other applicable plans, policies and regulations of City, including 
existing development regulations is in the best interests of the health, safety, and general welfare 
of City, its residents, and the public; is entered into pursuant to, and constitutes a present exercise 
of, City's police power; and is entered into pursuant to, and in compliance with, the requirements 
of Government Code section 65867 ; and (b) adopted Ordinance No. approving and 
authorizing the execution of this Agreement effective on 2018. 

2. DEFINITIONS 

In this Agreement, unless the context otherwise requires: 

2.1 "Agreement" means this Development Agreement. 

2.2 "CEQA" means the California Environmental Quality Act. 

2.3 "City" means the City of Selma, California. 

2.4 "City Manager" means the person holding the office of City Manager of City. 

2.5 "Conditions of Approval" means all conditions attached to the Project Approvals 
and Subsequent Approvals. 

2.6 "Default" has the meaning given in Section 11.1. 

2.7 "Developer" means the person, persons or entity(ies) having a legal or equitable 
interest in the Real Property as described in Exhibit A and includes the Developer's successors in 
interest. 

2.8 "Development Agreement Statute" has the meaning given in Section 1.1. 
{00016436.DOCX;1 } 



2.9 "Effective Date" has the meaning given in Section 4.1. 

2.10 "Events of Default" means an event of default under this Agreement, as defined in 
Section 11.1 hereof. 

2.11 "Project" has the meaning given in Section 1.4. 

2.12 "Project Approvals" means Resolution No. 2006-14R and all other approvals 
received or required by the Rules, Regulations and Official Policies. 

2.13 "Real Property" means that real property as more particularly described In 

Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference. 

2.14 "Rules, Regulations and Official Policies" has the meaning set forth in Section 7.6. 

2.15 "Subsequent Approvals" has the meaning set forth in Section 7.2. 

3. EXHIBITS 

The following documents are referred to in this Agreement, and are incorporated herein as 
though set forth in full: 

Designation Descriptions 

Exhibit A Legal Description of the Real Property 

Exhibit B City of Selma Resolution No. 2006-14R 

Exhibit C Fee Schedule 

4. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

4.1 Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective upon the date the ordinance 
approving this Agreement becomes effective ("Effective Date"). 

4.2 Property Subject to the Agreement. This Agreement applies to and governs the 
development of the Real Property. 

4.3 Duration of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the 
Effective Date and shall expire on the second (2nd) anniversary of the Effective Date, unless 
extended by written mutual agreement ofthe parties. Expiration of this Agreement shall not affect 
any rights of Developer arising from the Project Approvals, Subsequent Approvals or other permits 
and entitlements granted by City prior to, concurrently with, or subsequent to the Effective Date 
of this Agreement. 

{00016436.DOCX;1 } 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 34

2.9 "Effective Date" has the meaning given in Section 4.1. 

2.10 "Events of Default" means an event of default under this Agreement, as defined in 
Section 11.1 hereof. 

2.11 "Project" has the meaning given in Section 1.4. 

2.12 "Project Approvals" means Resolution No. 2006-14R and all other approvals 
received or required by the Rules, Regulations and Official Policies. 

2.13 "Real Property" means that real property as more particularly described In 

Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference. 

2.14 "Rules, Regulations and Official Policies" has the meaning set forth in Section 7.6. 

2.15 "Subsequent Approvals" has the meaning set forth in Section 7.2. 

3. EXHIBITS 

The following documents are referred to in this Agreement, and are incorporated herein as 
though set forth in full: 

Designation Descriptions 

Exhibit A Legal Description of the Real Property 

Exhibit B City of Selma Resolution No. 2006-14R 

Exhibit C Fee Schedule 

4. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

4.1 Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective upon the date the ordinance 
approving this Agreement becomes effective ("Effective Date"). 

4.2 Property Subject to the Agreement. This Agreement applies to and governs the 
development of the Real Property. 

4.3 Duration of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the 
Effective Date and shall expire on the second (2nd) anniversary of the Effective Date, unless 
extended by written mutual agreement of the parties. Expiration of this Agreement shall not affect 
any rights of Developer arising from the Project Approvals, Subsequent Approvals or other permits 
and entitlements granted by City prior to, concurrently with, or subsequent to the Effective Date 
of this Agreement. 

{00016436.DOCX;1} 



4.4 Burden on Real Property. The parties agree that this Agreement is a burden on and 
runs with title to the Real Property. All of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall be 
binding upon the parties and their respective heirs, successors and assigns, representatives, lessees, 
and all other persons acquiring all or a portion of the Project, or any interest therein, whether it by 
operation of law or any manner whatsoever. All of the provisions contained in this Agreement 
shall be enforceable as equitable servitudes and shall constitute covenants running with the land 
pursuant to California law including, without limitations, California Civil Code §1468. This 
Agreement shall be recorded with the Fresno County Recorder. 

4.5 Prohibition Against Assignment and Change in Ownership Management and 
Control of the Developer. No voluntary or involuntary successor in interest or assignee of 
Developer or of its constituent members shall acquire any rights or powers under this Agreement 
except as expressly set forth herein. The rights and obligations of Developer under this Agreement 
may not be transferred or assigned without the consent of City, as is more fully set forth in 
Section 4.5.1, except as is set forth in Section 4.5.2. Any transfer or assignment shall be subject 
to the provisions of this Agreement. During the term of this Agreement, for any transfer or 
assignment approved by City under the terms of Section 4.5.1 and for any transfer or assignment 
for which the City's consent is not required under the terms of Section 4.5.2, any assignee or 
transferee shall observe and perform all of the duties and obligations of Developer contained in 
this Agreement insofar as such duties may be transferred or assigned to another party and insofar 
as such duties relate to the development of the Real Property acquired by the assignee or transferee. 

4.5.1 The qualifications and identities comprising Developer are of particular 
concern to City. It is because of these qualifications and identities that City has entered into this 
Agreement with Developer. Except as expressly provided in Section 4.5.2 and other sections of 
this Agreement, Developer shall not assign all or any part of this Agreement without the prior 
written approval of City, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. City shall make a 
determination as to whether it consents to such a change in ownership or assignment within sixty 
(60) days of the request being made by Developer, so long as Developer and the prospective 
transferee or assignee provide the information requested by City upon which to base such a 
decision within the first fifteen (15) days of the sixty (60) day time period. The scope of review 
by City for City's approval is limited to financial capacity and experience to assure ability to meet 
the requirements of this Agreement. 

4.5.2 Prior consent of City is not necessary for the voluntary assignment or 
transfer of the benefits of this Agreement as follows: 

(a) A transfer to a limited partnership of which Developer is a general 
partner, a subsidiary corporation controlled by Developer, or a parent corporation which owns a 
controlling interest in Developer. 

(b) A transfer or assignment made as a part of the transfer, assignment, 
or sale of a completed residential unit. For the purposes of this section, the term "completed 
residential unit" shall mean a lot which is fully developed, habitable and has had an occupancy 
permit issued by City. 

{00016436.DOCX; I} 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 35

4.4 Burden on Real Property. The parties agree that this Agreement is a burden on and 
runs with title to the Real Property. All of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall be 
binding upon the parties and their respective heirs, successors and assigns, representatives, lessees, 
and all other persons acquiring all or a portion of the Project, or any interest therein, whether it by 
operation of law or any manner whatsoever. All of the provisions contained in this Agreement 
shall be enforceable as equitable servitudes and shall constitute covenants running with the land 
pursuant to California law including, without limitations, California Civil Code §1468. This 
Agreement shall be recorded with the Fresno County Recorder. 

4.5 Prohibition Against Assignment and Change in Ownership Management and 
Control of the Developer. No voluntary or involuntary successor in interest or assignee of 
Developer or of its constituent members shall acquire any rights or powers under this Agreement 
except as expressly set forth herein. The rights and obligations of Developer under this Agreement 
may not be transferred or assigned without the consent of City, as is more fully set forth in 
Section 4.5.1, except as is set forth in Section 4.5.2. Any transfer or assignment shall be subject 
to the provisions of this Agreement. During the term of this Agreement, for any transfer or 
assignment approved by City under the terms of Section 4.5.1 and for any transfer or assignment 
for which the City's consent is not required under the terms of Section 4.5.2, any assignee or 
transferee shall observe and perform all of the duties and obligations of Developer contained in 
this Agreement insofar as such duties may be transferred or assigned to another party and insofar 
as such duties relate to the development of the Real Property acquired by the assignee or transferee. 

4.5.1 The qualifications and identities comprising Developer are of particular 
concern to City. It is because of these qualifications and identities that City has entered into this 
Agreement with Developer. Except as expressly provided in Section 4.5.2 and other sections of 
this Agreement, Developer shall not assign all or any part of this Agreement without the prior 
written approval of City, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. City shall make a 
determination as to whether it consents to such a change in ownership or assignment within sixty 
(60) days of the request being made by Developer, so long as Developer and the prospective 
transferee or assignee provide the information requested by City upon which to base such a 
decision within the first fifteen (15) days of the sixty (60) day time period. The scope of review 
by City for City's approval is limited to financial capacity and experience to assure ability to meet 
the requirements of this Agreement. 

4.5.2 Prior consent of City is not necessary for the voluntary assignment or 
transfer of the benefits of this Agreement as follows: 

(a) A transfer to a limited partnership of which Developer is a general 
partner, a subsidiary corporation controlled by Developer, or a parent corporation which owns a 
controlling interest in Developer. 

(b) A transfer or assignment made as a part of the transfer, assignment, 
or sale of a completed residential unit. For the purposes of this section, the term "completed 
residential unit" shall mean a lot which is fully developed, habitable and has had an occupancy 
permit issued by City. 

{00016436.DOCX; I} 



4.5.3 Developer and any proposed successor in interest shall cooperate with City 
in providing information necessary for review hereunder. Developer shall promptly notify City of 
any and all changes in the identity of the parties in control of Developer or the degree thereof, of 
which it or any of its members have been notified or otherwise have knowledge or information. 
This Agreement may be terminated by City if there is any "significant change" (voluntary or 
involuntary) in membership or control of Developer (other than such changes occasioned by the 
death or incapacity of any individual) prior to expiration of this Agreement, other than a change in 
ownership, assignment or transfer for which the City's prior consent was obtained pursuant to 
Section 4.5.1, or which is exempt from the consent requirement by virtue of Section 4.5.2. A 
change shall be considered to be a "significant change" for the purposes of interpreting this 
Agreement if it results in a change in ownership of forty-nine percent (49%) or more of Developer, 
particularly if it results in forty-nine percent (49%) or more of Developer being owned by someone 
who is not an owner of any part of Developer on the Effective Date of this Agreement. 

4.5.4 For any transfer or conveyance approved by City or for which City's 
approval is not necessary, the transferee shall succeed to all of Developer's rights and obligations 
under this Agreement, and upon recordation of the deed conveying title to the transferred property 
subject to this Agreement, Developer shall have no further rights or obligations under this 
Agreement, except for any such rights and obligations that accrued prior to the recordation of the 
deed. Developer shall provide City with written notification of the transfer and a copy of the deed 
within ten (10) days ofthe recordation ofthe deed. 

5. AMENDMENT OR CANCELLATION OF AGREEMENT 

5.1 This Agreement may be amended from time to time by the mutual consent of the 
parties hereto but only in the same manner as its adoption by an ordinance as set forth in 
Government Code sections 65867, 65867.5 and 65868. The term "this Agreement" or 
"Development Agreement" used herein shall include any such amendment properly approved and 
executed. 

5.1.1 Any amendment to this Agreement which does not relate to the term, 
permitted uses, provisions for reservation and dedication ofland, or conditions, terms, restrictions 
and requirements relating to subsequent discretionary actions, monetary contributions by 
Developer or any conditions or covenants relating to the use of the Real Property shall not require 
notice or public hearing pursuant to Government Code sections 65867, 65867.5 and 65868. 

5.1.2 The parties acknowledge that this Agreement, like all agreements, may be 
subject to interpretation. The City Manager (with the advice and consent of the City Attorney's 
office) may issue written interpretations of this Agreement without the necessity of prior 
consultation with the City Council. A copy of any written interpretation shall be given to both 
Developer and the City Council. If Developer disagrees with any interpretation, Developer may 
appeal that interpretation to the City Council, by means of a notice in writing to the City Council 
specifying the basis of Developer's disagreement with the interpretation. Within thirty (30) days 
after receipt of Developer's written appeal of an interpretation, the Council shall schedule the 
matter for hearing at the next regularly scheduled Council meeting or, if the Council deems it 
appropriate, at the next regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting. If the Council refers 
{00016436.DOCX;1} 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 36

4.5.3 Developer and any proposed successor in interest shall cooperate with City 
in providing information necessary for review hereunder. Developer shall promptly notify City of 
any and all changes in the identity of the parties in control of Developer or the degree thereof, of 
which it or any of its members have been notified or otherwise have knowledge or information. 
This Agreement may be terminated by City if there is any "significant change" (voluntary or 
involuntary) in membership or control of Developer (other than such changes occasioned by the 
death or incapacity of any individual) prior to expiration of this Agreement, other than a change in 
ownership, assignment or transfer for which the City's prior consent was obtained pursuant to 
Section 4.5.1, or which is exempt from the consent requirement by virtue of Section 4.5.2. A 
change shall be considered to be a "significant change" for the purposes of interpreting this 
Agreement if it results in a change in ownership of forty-nine percent (49%) or more of Developer, 
particularly if it results in forty-nine percent (49%) or more of Developer being owned by someone 
who is not an owner of any part of Developer on the Effective Date of this Agreement. 

4.5.4 For any transfer or conveyance approved by City or for which City's 
approval is not necessary, the transferee shall succeed to all of Developer's rights and obligations 
under this Agreement, and upon recordation of the deed conveying title to the transferred property 
subject to this Agreement, Developer shall have no further rights or obligations under this 
Agreement, except for any such rights and obligations that accrued prior to the recordation of the 
deed. Developer shall provide City with written notification of the transfer and a copy of the deed 
within ten (10) days ofthe recordation ofthe deed. 

5. AMENDMENT OR CANCELLATION OF AGREEMENT 

5.1 This Agreement may be amended from time to time by the mutual consent of the 
parties hereto but only in the same manner as its adoption by an ordinance as set forth in 
Government Code sections 65867, 65867.5 and 65868. The term "this Agreement" or 
"Development Agreement" used herein shall include any such amendment properly approved and 
executed. 

5.1.1 Any amendment to this Agreement which does not relate to the term, 
permitted uses, provisions for reservation and dedication ofland, or conditions, terms, restrictions 
and requirements relating to subsequent discretionary actions, monetary contributions by 
Developer or any conditions or covenants relating to the use of the Real Property shall not require 
notice or public hearing pursuant to Government Code sections 65867, 65867.5 and 65868. 

5.1.2 The parties acknowledge that this Agreement, like all agreements, may be 
subject to interpretation. The City Manager (with the advice and consent of the City Attorney's 
office) may issue written interpretations of this Agreement without the necessity of prior 
consultation with the City Council. A copy of any written interpretation shall be given to both 
Developer and the City Council. If Developer disagrees with any interpretation, Developer may 
appeal that interpretation to the City Council, by means of a notice in writing to the City Council 
specifying the basis of Developer's disagreement with the interpretation. Within thirty (30) days 
after receipt of Developer's written appeal of an interpretation, the Council shall schedule the 
matter for hearing at the next regularly scheduled Council meeting or, if the Council deems it 
appropriate, at the next regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting. If the Council refers 
{00016436.DOCX;1} 



the matter to the Planning Commission, the Commission shall make a recommendation to the 
Council within ten (10) days of the Planning Commission hearing. The Council shall then 
determine, within thirty (30) days of its receipt of the Planning Commission's recommendation, 
whether the Council agrees with the interpretation by the City Manager or if it deems it appropriate 
to modify or withdraw the interpretation of the City Manager. The Council may, on its own 
motion, take up an interpretation of the City Manager and at the next regularly scheduled Council 
meeting the Council shall decide whether it agrees with the interpretation or if it deems it 
appropriate to modify or withdraw the City Manager's interpretation. The decision ofthe Council 
as to an interpretation shall be considered a final determination of the issue and, therefore, an 
exhaustion of administrative remedies. 

5.1.3 Any amendment of the Project Approvals by either the City Manager or 
City, whichever is applicable, pursuant to Section 5.2 of this Agreement, shall not require an 
amendment to this Agreement. Subsequent Approvals which are consistent with the Rules, 
Regulation and Official Policies shall also not require an amendment to this Agreement. Such 
Subsequent Approvals shall be incorporated into this Agreement with new exhibits, and shall be 
an integral part hereof. 

5.1.4 City shall not impose, as a condition to any amendment to this Agreement, 
any new fee, exaction, dedication or other imposition not otherwise permitted under this 
Agreement, except to the extent the amendment will directly result in new burdens or impacts 
requiring additional mitigation or insofar as such amendment results in new or additional 
unmitigated significant environmental impacts. Exactions or fees imposed as a condition of any 
amendment pursuant to this Section shall be in accordance with the City laws, rules, ordinances or 
other regulations in effect at the time the amendment is made. 

5.1.5 This Agreement may be canceled at any time by mutual written consent of 
the parties. 

5.2 Amendment of Proiect Approvals. Upon the written request of Developer for an 
amendment or modification to the Project Approvals, the City Manager shall determine whether 
the requested amendment or modification is a minor amendment or modification. If the City 
Manager finds that the proposed amendment is a minor amendment or modification, the City 
Manager may approve the proposed amendment without notice or public hearing. 

5.2.1 The term "minor amendment or modification" shall include but not be 
limited to each of the following: (a) the location of buildings, streets and roadways and other 
physical facilities, or (b) the configuration of particular parcels, lots or development areas. For 
purposes of this Agreement, the determination whether such amendment or modification is minor 
shall be made by reference to whether the amendment or modification is minor in the context of 
the overall Project. 

5.2.2 In no case may any changes be made which, singularly or cumulatively, 
substantively alter the Project Approvals, as originally approved, without notice, hearing and 
approval by the City Council and, insofar as it is required by State law, the City's Planning 
Commission. For purposes of this Agreement, and notwithstanding any City ordinance or 
{OOOl6436.DOCX;1} 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 37

the matter to the Planning Commission, the Commission shall make a recommendation to the 
Council within ten (10) days of the Planning Commission hearing. The Council shall then 
determine, within thirty (30) days of its receipt of the Planning Commission's recommendation, 
whether the Council agrees with the interpretation by the City Manager or if it deems it appropriate 
to modify or withdraw the interpretation of the City Manager. The Council may, on its own 
motion, take up an interpretation of the City Manager and at the next regularly scheduled Council 
meeting the Council shall decide whether it agrees with the interpretation or if it deems it 
appropriate to modify or withdraw the City Manager's interpretation. The decision ofthe Council 
as to an interpretation shall be considered a final determination of the issue and, therefore, an 
exhaustion of administrative remedies. 

5.1.3 Any amendment of the Project Approvals by either the City Manager or 
City, whichever is applicable, pursuant to Section 5.2 of this Agreement, shall not require an 
amendment to this Agreement. Subsequent Approvals which are consistent with the Rules, 
Regulation and Official Policies shall also not require an amendment to this Agreement. Such 
Subsequent Approvals shall be incorporated into this Agreement with new exhibits, and shall be 
an integral part hereof. 

5.1.4 City shall not impose, as a condition to any amendment to this Agreement, 
any new fee, exaction, dedication or other imposition not otherwise permitted under this 
Agreement, except to the extent the amendment will directly result in new burdens or impacts 
requiring additional mitigation or insofar as such amendment results in new or additional 
unmitigated significant environmental impacts. Exactions or fees imposed as a condition of any 
amendment pursuant to this Section shall be in accordance with the City laws, rules, ordinances or 
other regulations in effect at the time the amendment is made. 

5.1.5 This Agreement may be canceled at any time by mutual written consent of 
the parties. 

5.2 Amendment of Proiect Approvals. Upon the written request of Developer for an 
amendment or modification to the Project Approvals, the City Manager shall determine whether 
the requested amendment or modification is a minor amendment or modification. If the City 
Manager finds that the proposed amendment is a minor amendment or modification, the City 
Manager may approve the proposed amendment without notice or public hearing. 

5.2.1 The term "minor amendment or modification" shall include but not be 
limited to each of the following: (a) the location of buildings, streets and roadways and other 
physical facilities, or (b) the configuration of particular parcels, lots or development areas. For 
purposes of this Agreement, the determination whether such amendment or modification is minor 
shall be made by reference to whether the amendment or modification is minor in the context of 
the overall Project. 

5.2.2 In no case may any changes be made which, singularly or cumulatively, 
substantively alter the Project Approvals, as originally approved, without notice, hearing and 
approval by the City Council and, insofar as it is required by State law, the City's Planning 
Commission. For purposes of this Agreement, and notwithstanding any City ordinance or 
{OOOl6436.DOCX;1} 



resolution to the contrary, lot line adjustments (consistent with the provisions of Section 66412(d) 
of the Government Code and any applicable section of the Municipal Code of the City of Selma), 
not increasing or reducing density shall be deemed minor amendments or modifications. 

5.3 Binding Effect of Agreement. The provisions of this Agreement shall constitute 
covenants or servitudes which shall run with the land comprising the Real Property, and the 
burdens and benefits hereof shall bind and inure to the benefit of all estates and interests in the 
Real Property and all successors in interest of the parties hereto. 

5.4 Notices. All notices, demands and correspondence required or provided for under 
this Agreement shall be in writing and delivered in person or dispatched by certified mail, postage 
prepaid. Notice required to be given to City shall be addressed as follows: 

City of Selma 
City Hall 
1710 Tucker Street 
Selma, CA 93662 
Attention: City Manager 

Notice required to be given to Developer shall be addressed as follows: 

A party may change its address by giving notice in writing to the other party. Thereafter, 
notices, demands and other pertinent correspondence shall be addressed and transmitted to the new 
address. 

6. CONFLICTS OF LAW 

6.1 Conflict of City and State or Federal Laws. In the event that State or federal laws 
or regulations enacted after the Effective Date of this Agreement prevent or preclude compliance 
with one or more provisions of this Agreement or require changes in plans, maps or permits 
approved by City, each party shall provide the other party with written notice of such State or 
federal restriction, a copy of such regulation or policy and a statement concerning the conflict with 
the provisions of this Agreement. The parties shall, within thirty (30) days after the dispatch of 
such notice, meet and confer in good faith in a reasonable attempt to modify this Agreement to 
comply with such federal or State law or regulation. 

6.2 Council Hearing. After the parties have met and conferred pursuant to Section 6.1 
hereof, regardless of whether the parties have reached an agreement on the effect of the change in 
the federal or State law or regulation upon this Agreement, the matter shall be scheduled for 
hearing before the Council. Written notice of such hearing shall be given pursuant to Government 
Code section 65867 or the then applicable statute. The Council, at such hearing, shall determine 
the exact modification or suspension necessitated by such federal or State law or regulation. 
Developer, at the hearing, shall have the right to offer oral and written testimony. 
{00016436.DOCX;1} 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 38

resolution to the contrary, lot line adjustments (consistent with the provisions of Section 66412(d) 
of the Government Code and any applicable section of the Municipal Code of the City of Selma), 
not increasing or reducing density shall be deemed minor amendments or modifications. 

5.3 Binding Effect of Agreement. The provisions of this Agreement shall constitute 
covenants or servitudes which shall run with the land comprising the Real Property, and the 
burdens and benefits hereof shall bind and inure to the benefit of all estates and interests in the 
Real Property and all successors in interest of the parties hereto. 

5.4 Notices. All notices, demands and correspondence required or provided for under 
this Agreement shall be in writing and delivered in person or dispatched by certified mail, postage 
prepaid. Notice required to be given to City shall be addressed as follows: 

City of Selma 
City Hall 
1710 Tucker Street 
Selma, CA 93662 
Attention: City Manager 

Notice required to be given to Developer shall be addressed as follows: 

A party may change its address by giving notice in writing to the other party. Thereafter, 
notices, demands and other pertinent correspondence shall be addressed and transmitted to the new 
address. 

6. CONFLICTS OF LAW 

6.1 Conflict of City and State or Federal Laws. In the event that State or federal laws 
or regulations enacted after the Effective Date of this Agreement prevent or preclude compliance 
with one or more provisions of this Agreement or require changes in plans, maps or permits 
approved by City, each party shall provide the other party with written notice of such State or 
federal restriction, a copy of such regulation or policy and a statement concerning the conflict with 
the provisions of this Agreement. The parties shall, within thirty (30) days after the dispatch of 
such notice, meet and confer in good faith in a reasonable attempt to modify this Agreement to 
comply with such federal or State law or regulation. 

6.2 Council Hearing. After the parties have met and conferred pursuant to Section 6.1 
hereof, regardless of whether the parties have reached an agreement on the effect of the change in 
the federal or State law or regulation upon this Agreement, the matter shall be scheduled for 
hearing before the Council. Written notice of such hearing shall be given pursuant to Government 
Code section 65867 or the then applicable statute. The Council, at such hearing, shall determine 
the exact modification or suspension necessitated by such federal or State law or regulation. 
Developer, at the hearing, shall have the right to offer oral and written testimony. 
{00016436.DOCX;1} 



6.3 Cooperation in Securing Permits. City shall cooperate with Developer in the 
securing of any permits or approvals which may be required as a result of such modification or 
suspensions made pursuant to Section 6.2 hereof. Such cooperation does not include any financial 
participation or cost to the City other than financial participation or cost which is fully reimbursed 
to City by Developer. 

7. DEVELOPMENT OF REAL PROPERTY 

7.1 Permitted Uses. The Real Property shall be used in accordance with the Project 
Approvals and for such other uses that may be mutually agreed upon by the parties hereto in 
compliance with the applicable provisions of Section 5 relating to the amendment of this 
Agreement. Said uses and development standards, including, the maximum height, setback, 
parking, and other standards (collectively, "Development Standards") that shall apply to the 
development of the Real Property are more particularly described in the Selma Municipal Code, 
the Rules, Regulations and Official Policies and in the Project Approvals. 

7.2 Subsequent Approvals. The Project Approvals may include, without limitation to, 
additional development entitlements and permits, including, multiple vesting or non-vesting 
tentative subdivision maps, final vesting map(s), site plan approvals, multiple planned 
development zoning district approvals, use and grading permits, lot line adjustments, sewer and 
water connections, design review, building permits and certificates of occupancy or other 
approvals (collectively, "Subsequent Approvals") to accomplish the goals, objectives, policies and 
plans of the Project Approvals, as they may be amended pursuant to this Agreement. City intends 
to exercise a reasonable right of review to insure compliance with this Agreement before approval 
and issuance of any Subsequent Approvals. Subsequent Approvals shall be reviewed by City on 
a timely basis in accordance with Section 8.2 and approved by City only if the Subsequent 
Approvals are consistent with the plans, goals and policies of the Project Approvals and with the 
Rules, Regulations and Official Policies. References to the Subsequent Approvals shall include 
all conditions of approval imposed in connection therewith. 

7.3 Permitted Density of Development. The Real Property shall be developed to no 
greater density or level of intensity than indicated in the approved maps, plans, permits or other 
regulatory devices constituting the Project Approvals. 

7.4 Maximum Height and Size of Structures. The maximum height and size of 
structures to be constructed upon the Real Property shall be governed by the approved map, site 
plans, permits or other regulatory devices constituting the Project Approvals. 

7.5 Vested Right to Develop. Developer shall have the vested right to develop the 
Project in accordance with the Project Approvals and the Rules, Regulations and Official Policies. 

7.6 Rules, Regulations, Official Policies. "Rules, Regulations and Official Policies" 
shall mean and include (a) those City rules, regulation and policies, including without limitation, 
the City of Selma Municipal Code and Selma General Plan, that are operative and in force and 
{00016436.DOCX;1} 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 39

6.3 Cooperation in Securing Permits. City shall cooperate with Developer in the 
securing of any permits or approvals which may be required as a result of such modification or 
suspensions made pursuant to Section 6.2 hereof. Such cooperation does not include any financial 
participation or cost to the City other than financial participation or cost which is fully reimbursed 
to City by Developer. 

7. DEVELOPMENT OF REAL PROPERTY 

7.1 Permitted Uses. The Real Property shall be used in accordance with the Project 
Approvals and for such other uses that may be mutually agreed upon by the parties hereto in 
compliance with the applicable provisions of Section 5 relating to the amendment of this 
Agreement. Said uses and development standards, including, the maximum height, setback, 
parking, and other standards (collectively, "Development Standards") that shall apply to the 
development of the Real Property are more particularly described in the Selma Municipal Code, 
the Rules, Regulations and Official Policies and in the Project Approvals. 

7.2 Subsequent Approvals. The Project Approvals may include, without limitation to, 
additional development entitlements and permits, including, multiple vesting or non-vesting 
tentative subdivision maps, final vesting map(s), site plan approvals, multiple planned 
development zoning district approvals, use and grading permits, lot line adjustments, sewer and 
water connections, design review, building permits and certificates of occupancy or other 
approvals (collectively, "Subsequent Approvals") to accomplish the goals, objectives, policies and 
plans of the Project Approvals, as they may be amended pursuant to this Agreement. City intends 
to exercise a reasonable right of review to insure compliance with this Agreement before approval 
and issuance of any Subsequent Approvals. Subsequent Approvals shall be reviewed by City on 
a timely basis in accordance with Section 8.2 and approved by City only if the Subsequent 
Approvals are consistent with the plans, goals and policies of the Project Approvals and with the 
Rules, Regulations and Official Policies. References to the Subsequent Approvals shall include 
all conditions of approval imposed in connection therewith. 

7.3 Permitted Density of Development. The Real Property shall be developed to no 
greater density or level of intensity than indicated in the approved maps, plans, permits or other 
regulatory devices constituting the Project Approvals. 

7.4 Maximum Height and Size of Structures. The maximum height and size of 
structures to be constructed upon the Real Property shall be governed by the approved map, site 
plans, permits or other regulatory devices constituting the Project Approvals. 

7.5 Vested Right to Develop. Developer shall have the vested right to develop the 
Project in accordance with the Project Approvals and the Rules, Regulations and Official Policies. 

7.6 Rules, Regulations, Official Policies. "Rules, Regulations and Official Policies" 
shall mean and include (a) those City rules, regulation and policies, including without limitation, 
the City of Selma Municipal Code and Selma General Plan, that are operative and in force and 
{00016436.DOCX;1} 



effect as of the Effective Date and are consistent with this Agreement; (b) the Project Approvals 
and any Subsequent Approvals; (c) the rights and obligations contained in this Agreement; (d) 
current Uniform Building Code and other uniform construction codes, but only to the extent such 
codes are in effect on a City-wide basis and are applied to all similarly-situated development in 
the City; (e) the fees attached as Exhibit C; and (f) City Laws adopted by City after the Effective 
Date, or by the voters of the City after the Effective Date through their referendum and initiative 
powers (collectively, "New City Laws"). 

7.7 Fees and Dedications. Developer shall make only those contributions and 
dedications and pay only those fees expressly prescribed in this Agreement or in force and 
applicable to the Project as ofthe Effective Date ofthis Agreement and the following: 

(a) Processing Fees. City may charge processing fees for land use approvals, 
building permits and other similar permits and entitlements which fees are in force and effect on a 
City-wide basis at the time Developer applies for and except as provided to the contrary in this 
Agreement. Such fees shall not be increased after submission of the application unless justified 
by an increase in the estimated reasonable cost to City for performing the work for which the 
particular fee is paid, and limited to an amount which will compensate City for the estimated 
reasonable cost and increases incurred, as permitted pursuant to Government Code sections 54990, 
et seq. 

(b) Taxing Power. City may impose additional fees, dedications or exactions 
("Additional Fees") which meet one of the following definitions: (1) they are directly imposed by 
another governmental agency; or (2) they are uniformly imposed on all comparable development 
projects within City and are required solely to provide capital infrastructure facilities or 
improvements needed for health and safety reasons, which the City could not have been aware of 
on the Effective Date, (ii) are a direct result of the Project, and (iii) are otherwise consistent with 
Government Code section 66000, et seq. Additional Fees shall in no event include fees, 
dedications or exactions relating to child care, public art, parks and recreation or other similar fees, 
dedications or exactions. Furthermore, the conditions, exactions, dedications, fees or regulations 
applicable to the Project as provided in the Project Approvals (including this Agreement), shall 
not be subject to modifications or renegotiation by City whether as a result of an amendment to 
any of the Project Approvals, the granting of a Subsequent Approval or as a result of the filing of 
any new subdivision map or parcel map, or any resubdivision ofthe Property (including a merger 
or lot line adjustment, as defined in Section 5.2.3 above, or the creation of new lots within a 
designated remainder parcel) or otherwise. Provided, however, that if the new map or 
resubdivision ofthe Property increases the overall density ofthe Project or requires a General Plan 
change, City may impose additional fees on the new units added by the new map or resubdivision. 

(c) Increases. Fees, dedications or exactions authorized under this Agreement 
may be increased from time to time as otherwise permitted by law to account for inflation and 
increased costs. If required by State or federal law in order to update fees, then such fees may be 
increased from time to time using construction cost estimates, provided that such increases are 
uniformly applicable to all comparable residential development projects within City. 

{OOOl6436.DOCX;1} 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 40

effect as of the Effective Date and are consistent with this Agreement; (b) the Project Approvals 
and any Subsequent Approvals; (c) the rights and obligations contained in this Agreement; (d) 
current Uniform Building Code and other uniform construction codes, but only to the extent such 
codes are in effect on a City-wide basis and are applied to all similarly-situated development in 
the City; (e) the fees attached as Exhibit C; and (f) City Laws adopted by City after the Effective 
Date, or by the voters of the City after the Effective Date through their referendum and initiative 
powers (collectively, "New City Laws"). 

7.7 Fees and Dedications. Developer shall make only those contributions and 
dedications and pay only those fees expressly prescribed in this Agreement or in force and 
applicable to the Project as ofthe Effective Date ofthis Agreement and the following: 

(a) Processing Fees. City may charge processing fees for land use approvals, 
building permits and other similar permits and entitlements which fees are in force and effect on a 
City-wide basis at the time Developer applies for and except as provided to the contrary in this 
Agreement. Such fees shall not be increased after submission of the application unless justified 
by an increase in the estimated reasonable cost to City for performing the work for which the 
particular fee is paid, and limited to an amount which will compensate City for the estimated 
reasonable cost and increases incurred, as permitted pursuant to Government Code sections 54990, 
et seq. 

(b) Taxing Power. City may impose additional fees, dedications or exactions 
("Additional Fees") which meet one of the following definitions: (1) they are directly imposed by 
another governmental agency; or (2) they are uniformly imposed on all comparable development 
projects within City and are required solely to provide capital infrastructure facilities or 
improvements needed for health and safety reasons, which the City could not have been aware of 
on the Effective Date, (ii) are a direct result of the Project, and (iii) are otherwise consistent with 
Government Code section 66000, et seq. Additional Fees shall in no event include fees, 
dedications or exactions relating to child care, public art, parks and recreation or other similar fees, 
dedications or exactions. Furthermore, the conditions, exactions, dedications, fees or regulations 
applicable to the Project as provided in the Project Approvals (including this Agreement), shall 
not be subject to modifications or renegotiation by City whether as a result of an amendment to 
any of the Project Approvals, the granting of a Subsequent Approval or as a result of the filing of 
any new subdivision map or parcel map, or any resubdivision ofthe Property (including a merger 
or lot line adjustment, as defined in Section 5.2.3 above, or the creation of new lots within a 
designated remainder parcel) or otherwise. Provided, however, that if the new map or 
resubdivision ofthe Property increases the overall density ofthe Project or requires a General Plan 
change, City may impose additional fees on the new units added by the new map or resubdivision. 

(c) Increases. Fees, dedications or exactions authorized under this Agreement 
may be increased from time to time as otherwise permitted by law to account for inflation and 
increased costs. If required by State or federal law in order to update fees, then such fees may be 
increased from time to time using construction cost estimates, provided that such increases are 
uniformly applicable to all comparable residential development projects within City. 

{OOOl6436.DOCX;1} 



(d) Taxes and Assessments. City shall not subject the Real Property, or any 
part thereof, to any special taxes, liens or assessments not applicable to the residents of City as a 
whole, over the protest ofthe owners of a majority of the Real Property. City shall give Developer 
notice of any proposal to impose such a special tax, lien or assessment, and an opportunity to be 
heard. City shall not subject the Real Property, or any part thereof to any special tax, lien or 
assessment not Generally Applicable to the residents of City as a whole, over the protest of 
Developer. For purposes ofthis subsection 7.7(d). 

(i) "Generally Applicable" is defined to mean that the Real Property 
shall not carry a greater proportionate share of the special tax, lien or assessment than property 
with similar zoning elsewhere in City. 

8. ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE 

8.1.1 In exercising its legislative discretion to enter into this Agreement, City has 
reviewed and certified the Project Negative Declaration as adequate to support approval of this 
Agreement. 

8.1.2 Environmental Findings. 

(a) City has reviewed and considered the potential adverse 
environmental impacts related to all aspects of the contemplated Project, including, without 
limitation, the potential demands the Project will make on local and regional streets, highways, 
parks and recreation areas, water capacity and water lines, sewer capacity and sewer lines, flood 
and storm drain systems, and energy conservation, and the effect on school capacity, traffic, 
pedestrian safety, noise and air quality impacts. City has further reviewed and considered a variety 
of assumptions, the projected future regional and cumulative environmental demands that will 
compete with the Project for available capacities and cumulatively add to potential adverse 
impacts. In so doing, City has considered, among other things, the possibilities that: 

(i) Federal, local, regional and State plans, if any, for provision 
of new infrastructure systems or expansion of existing infrastructure system may be delayed, 
modified; or 

(ii) The types, intensities, and amount of future regional 
development may exceed or otherwise be different from that currently being planned by City and 
other local agencies; and 

(iii) Regional and development generated demands on 
infrastructure and utility improvements to be constructed as a part of the Project may exceed in 
either the short run, or the long run, the allocated capacities for such demands. 

(iv) City has determined that completion of the Project in the 
manner contemplated will itself provide the mitigation measure needed to alleviate short run and 
long run potential adverse environmental impacts, and that the public benefits of the Project 
{00016436.DOCX; I} 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 41

(d) Taxes and Assessments. City shall not subject the Real Property, or any 
part thereof, to any special taxes, liens or assessments not applicable to the residents of City as a 
whole, over the protest ofthe owners of a majority of the Real Property. City shall give Developer 
notice of any proposal to impose such a special tax, lien or assessment, and an opportunity to be 
heard. City shall not subject the Real Property, or any part thereof to any special tax, lien or 
assessment not Generally Applicable to the residents of City as a whole, over the protest of 
Developer. For purposes ofthis subsection 7.7(d). 

(i) "Generally Applicable" is defined to mean that the Real Property 
shall not carry a greater proportionate share of the special tax, lien or assessment than property 
with similar zoning elsewhere in City. 

8. ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE 

8.1.1 In exercising its legislative discretion to enter into this Agreement, City has 
reviewed and certified the Project Negative Declaration as adequate to support approval of this 
Agreement. 

8.1.2 Environm.ental Findings. 

(a) City has reviewed and considered the potential adverse 
environmental impacts related to all aspects of the contemplated Project, including, without 
limitation, the potential demands the Project will make on local and regional streets, highways, 
parks and recreation areas, water capacity and water lines, sewer capacity and sewer lines, flood 
and storm drain systems, and energy conservation, and the effect on school capacity, traffic, 
pedestrian safety, noise and air quality impacts. City has further reviewed and considered a variety 
of assumptions, the projected future regional and cumulative environmental demands that will 
compete with the Project for available capacities and cumulatively add to potential adverse 
impacts. In so doing, City has considered, among other things, the possibilities that: 

(i) Federal, local, regional and State plans, if any, for provision 
of new infrastructure systems or expansion of existing infrastructure system may be delayed, 
modified; or 

(ii) The types, intensities, and amount of future regional 
development may exceed or otherwise be different from that currently being planned by City and 
other local agencies; and 

(iii) Regional and development generated demands on 
infrastructure and utility improvements to be constructed as a part of the Project may exceed in 
either the short run, or the long run, the allocated capacities for such demands. 

(iv) City has determined that completion of the Project in the 
manner contemplated will itself provide the mitigation measure needed to alleviate short run and 
long run potential adverse environmental impacts, and that the public benefits of the Project 
{00016436.DOCX; I} 



override any potential adverse environmental impacts which may arise during the development 
period. 

8.1.3 Subsequent Environmental Review. In connection with its processing of 
Developer's applications for any Subsequent Approvals pursuant to CEQA, City shall not require 
an environmental impact report except as may be required by Section 21166 of the California 
Public Resources Code and City shall: utilize the existing environmental impact report for the 
General Plan and the Project Negative Declaration to the fullest extent permitted by law; promptly 
commence and process any and all initial studies and assessments required by CEQA, if any; use 
all reasonable means to ensure that the Project and/or any Subsequent Approvals that constitute a 
"project" under CEQA shall be allowed to proceed pursuant to an exemption under CEQA or 
pursuant to a negative declaration; shall not require an initial study or negative declaration for any 
portion ofthe Project that is in substantial conformance with the General Plan; and shall not impose 
or require any environmental alternatives or mitigation measures ("Restrictive Measures") that 
would prevent or impede development of the Project, make the Project more expensive to carry 
out, or require an increase or reduction in the density or intensity of the Project. City has 
determined that development of the Project will provide specific economic, social and other 
community benefits that outweigh and override any environmental impacts and make infeasible 
any such Restrictive Measures; accordingly, to the maximum extent legally permissible, the City 
shall reject such Restrictive Measures as infeasible on the basis that, among other things, 
Government Code § 65866 and this Agreement legally bar the implementation of such measures 
and that the Project provides specific economic, social and other community benefits which 
outweigh, override and make infeasible any such Restrictive Measures. 

8.1.4 Cumulative Impacts. To the extent that development other than the Project 
("New Development") is proposed within the jurisdictional limits of City during the term of this 
Agreement, City agrees that any environmental document prepared for the New Development 
pursuant to CEQA will consider the entire buildout ofthe Project as part of any cumulative impacts 
analysis for the New Development. The parties intend the foregoing provisions of this Section 
8.1.4 to be a summary ofthe present requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act in 
regard to cumulative impacts. 

8.1.5 Duty to Hold Harmless, Indemnify, Defend. The Developer shall 
indemnify, hold harmless and defend City and each of its officers, officials and employees from 
any and all liability, loss, debts, costs, and damages (whether in mandamus, breach of the 
California Environmental Quality Act or breach of any other related law, whether sounding in 
contract, tort or strict liability including but not limited to attorney's fees, court costs, damage and 
damages for breach of contract, tort or statutory penalties) incurred by City and from any and all 
claims, demands, actions and proceedings in law or equity (whether or not well founded) brought 
by another public agency or any other person, not a party to this Agreement, arising directly or 
indirectly out of the City's agreement to require no additional studies, investigations, reports or 
mitigation measures to comply with CEQA, other than those set forth in this Agreement. The 
preceding sentence shall not apply to any liability, loss, debts, costs or damages caused by the 
negligence or willful misconduct of City. This duty of Developer is separate and apart from and 

{00016436.DOCX;1 } 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 42

override any potential adverse environmental impacts which may arise during the development 
period. 

8.1.3 Subsequent Environmental Review. In connection with its processing of 
Developer's applications for any Subsequent Approvals pursuant to CEQA, City shall not require 
an environmental impact report except as may be required by Section 21166 of the California 
Public Resources Code and City shall: utilize the existing environmental impact report for the 
General Plan and the Project Negative Declaration to the fullest extent permitted by law; promptly 
commence and process any and all initial studies and assessments required by CEQA, if any; use 
all reasonable means to ensure that the Project and/or any Subsequent Approvals that constitute a 
"project" under CEQA shall be allowed to proceed pursuant to an exemption under CEQA or 
pursuant to a negative declaration; shall not require an initial study or negative declaration for any 
portion ofthe Project that is in substantial conformance with the General Plan; and shall not impose 
or require any environmental alternatives or mitigation measures ("Restrictive Measures") that 
would prevent or impede development of the Project, make the Project more expensive to carry 
out, or require an increase or reduction in the density or intensity of the Project. City has 
determined that development of the Project will provide specific economic, social and other 
community benefits that outweigh and override any environmental impacts and make infeasible 
any such Restrictive Measures; accordingly, to the maximum extent legally permissible, the City 
shall reject such Restrictive Measures as infeasible on the basis that, among other things, 
Government Code § 65866 and this Agreement legally bar the implementation of such measures 
and that the Project provides specific economic, social and other community benefits which 
outweigh, override and make infeasible any such Restrictive Measures. 

8.1.4 Cumulative Impacts. To the extent that development other than the Project 
("New Development") is proposed within the jurisdictional limits of City during the term of this 
Agreement, City agrees that any environmental document prepared for the New Development 
pursuant to CEQA will consider the entire buildout ofthe Project as part of any cumulative impacts 
analysis for the New Development. The parties intend the foregoing provisions of this Section 
8.1.4 to be a summary ofthe present requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act in 
regard to cumulative impacts. 

8.1.5 Duty to Hold Harmless, Indemnify, Defend. The Developer shall 
indemnify, hold harmless and defend City and each of its officers, officials and employees from 
any and all liability, loss, debts, costs, and damages (whether in mandamus, breach of the 
California Environmental Quality Act or breach of any other related law, whether sounding in 
contract, tort or strict liability including but not limited to attorney's fees, court costs, damage and 
damages for breach of contract, tort or statutory penalties) incurred by City and from any and all 
claims, demands, actions and proceedings in law or equity (whether or not well founded) brought 
by another public agency or any other person, not a party to this Agreement, arising directly or 
indirectly out of the City's agreement to require no additional studies, investigations, reports or 
mitigation measures to comply with CEQA, other than those set forth in this Agreement. The 
preceding sentence shall not apply to any liability, loss, debts, costs or damages caused by the 
negligence or willful misconduct of City. This duty of Developer is separate and apart from and 

{00016436.DOCX;1 } 



in addition to any similar obligation of Developer arising under other provisions of this Agreement. 
This duty shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

8.2 Cooperation-lmplementation. 

8.2.1 Processing. If necessary or required, upon satisfactory completion by 
Developer of all required preliminary actions and payments of appropriate processing fees, if any, 

(a) City shall promptly commence and diligently proceed to complete 
all steps required or necessary for the implementation of this Agreement and the development by 
Developer of the Real Property in accordance with the Project Approvals, including but not limited 
to: 

(i) the scheduling, convening and concluding of all required 
public hearings in an expeditious manner consistent with applicable laws and regulations in force 
as of the date of the application; and 

(ii) processing and issuing a decision as to whether City 
approves, conditionally approves or disapproves, in an expeditious manner, all maps, plans, land 
use permits, building plans and specifications and other plans relating to the development of the 
Real Property filed by Developer which are complete and meet the statutory requirements, 
including but not limited to all zoning, preliminary and final development plans, tentative maps, 
parcel maps, final maps, resubdivisions, amendments to maps, subdivision improvement 
agreements, lot line adjustments, encroachments, grading and building permits, associated zoning 
actions and related matters as necessary for the completion of the development of all lots and 
parcels comprising the Project, that are in conformance with the General Plan, including reliance 
upon the Negative Declaration as certified on February 21,2006, or as amended, to the maximum 
extent possible in reviewing and approving all such applications relating to the Real Property 
described in Exhibit A. 

(b) Developer shall, in a timely manner, provide City with all 
documents, applications, plans and other information necessary for City to carry out its obligations 
hereunder and shall cause Developer's planners, engineers, and all other consultants to submit in a 
timely manner all required materials and documents therefor. 

(c) It is the express intent of the parties to cooperate and diligently work 
to implement any zoning, final development plan and/or other land use, vesting final map(s), 
grading or building permits or approvals, which are necessary or desirable in connection with the 
development ofthe Project. 

(d) If mutually agreed, and if paid for by Developer, City will engage 
outside consultants, of City's choice, if deemed necessary by City in order to comply with this 
Section (8). 

{00016436.DOCX;1} 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 43

in addition to any similar obligation of Developer arising under other provisions of this Agreement. 
This duty shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

8.2 Cooperation-lmplementation. 

8.2.1 Processing. If necessary or required, upon satisfactory completion by 
Developer of all required preliminary actions and payments of appropriate processing fees, if any, 

(a) City shall promptly commence and diligently proceed to complete 
all steps required or necessary for the implementation of this Agreement and the development by 
Developer of the Real Property in accordance with the Project Approvals, including but not limited 
to: 

(i) the scheduling, convening and concluding of all required 
public hearings in an expeditious manner consistent with applicable laws and regulations in force 
as of the date of the application; and 

(ii) processing and issuing a decision as to whether City 
approves, conditionally approves or disapproves, in an expeditious manner, all maps, plans, land 
use permits, building plans and specifications and other plans relating to the development of the 
Real Property filed by Developer which are complete and meet the statutory requirements, 
including but not limited to all zoning, preliminary and final development plans, tentative maps, 
parcel maps, final maps, resubdivisions, amendments to maps, subdivision improvement 
agreements, lot line adjustments, encroachments, grading and building permits, associated zoning 
actions and related matters as necessary for the completion of the development of all lots and 
parcels comprising the Project, that are in conformance with the General Plan, including reliance 
upon the Negative Declaration as certified on February 21,2006, or as amended, to the maximum 
extent possible in reviewing and approving all such applications relating to the Real Property 
described in Exhibit A. 

(b) Developer shall, in a timely manner, provide City with all 
documents, applications, plans and other information necessary for City to carry out its obligations 
hereunder and shall cause Developer's planners, engineers, and all other consultants to submit in a 
timely manner all required materials and documents therefor. 

(c) It is the express intent of the parties to cooperate and diligently work 
to implement any zoning, final development plan and/or other land use, vesting final map(s), 
grading or building permits or approvals, which are necessary or desirable in connection with the 
development ofthe Project. 

(d) If mutually agreed, and if paid for by Developer, City will engage 
outside consultants, of City's choice, if deemed necessary by City in order to comply with this 
Section (8). 

{00016436.DOCX;1} 



8.2.2 Cooperation in the Event of Legal Challenge. In the event of any legal or 
equitable action or other proceeding instituted by a third party, other governmental entity or official 
challenging the validity of any provision of this Agreement, Developer shall indemnify, hold 
harmless and defend City and each of its officers, officials and employees from any and all liability, 
loss, debts, costs, and damages incurred by City and from any and all claims, demands, actions 
and proceedings in law or equity (whether or not well founded) arising directly or indirectly out 
of this Agreement. The preceding sentence shall not apply to any liability, loss, debts, costs or 
damages caused solely by the negligence or willful misconduct of City. The parties hereby agree 
to cooperate in defending said action or proceeding. 

8.3 Annual Review. Each year during the term of this Agreement beginning on the 
first (1st) anniversary of the Effective Date, the City Manager shall conduct a review meeting to 
review the extent of good faith compliance by Developer with the terms of this Agreement. City 
shall not impose any fees or other exactions as a condition to a finding of good faith compliance 
with the terms ofthis Agreement, except for the requirement which is City's current ordinance that 
Developer reimburse City its administrative costs, including but not limited to the cost of in-house 
City staff, the cost of any time spent by the City Attorney, the City Engineer and/or the City 
Planning Consultant. Such periodic review shall be limited in scope to compliance with the terms 
of this Agreement pursuant to Government Code section 65865.1 and pursuant to the provisions 
of City's ordinance on the subject. 

8.3.1 Burden of Proof. At such review meeting, Developer shall be required to 
demonstrate good faith compliance with the terms of this Agreement pursuant to Government 
Code section 65865.1 and the applicable City ordinance. 

8.3.2 Duty to Disclose. In the manner prescribed in Section 5.4 hereof, City shall 
deposit in the mail to Developer a copy of all public staff reports, documents and related exhibits 
concerning Developer's performance hereunder at least ten (10) days prior to any such periodic 
reVIew. 

8.3.3 Deemed Approval. In the event City fails to either (1) hold the annual 
review meeting; or (2) notify Developer in writing within 30 days following the scheduled date of 
the review meeting of City's determination as to compliance or noncompliance with the terms of 
this Agreement, such failure shall be deemed an approval by City of Developer's good faith 
compliance with the terms of this Agreement. 

9. DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

9.1 Public Improvement Facilities and Services. Developer and its successors in 
interest agree to provide the public improvements, facilities and services required by the Project 
Approvals for the Project. 

10. FEES/REIMBURSEMENT 

{OOOl6436.DOCX;1} 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 44

8.2.2 Cooperation in the Event of Legal Challenge. In the event of any legal or 
equitable action or other proceeding instituted by a third party, other governmental entity or official 
challenging the validity of any provision of this Agreement, Developer shall indemnify, hold 
harmless and defend City and each of its officers, officials and employees from any and all liability, 
loss, debts, costs, and damages incurred by City and from any and all claims, demands, actions 
and proceedings in law or equity (whether or not well founded) arising directly or indirectly out 
of this Agreement. The preceding sentence shall not apply to any liability, loss, debts, costs or 
damages caused solely by the negligence or willful misconduct of City. The parties hereby agree 
to cooperate in defending said action or proceeding. 

8.3 Annual Review. Each year during the term of this Agreement beginning on the 
first (1st) anniversary of the Effective Date, the City Manager shall conduct a review meeting to 
review the extent of good faith compliance by Developer with the terms of this Agreement. City 
shall not impose any fees or other exactions as a condition to a finding of good faith compliance 
with the terms ofthis Agreement, except for the requirement which is City's current ordinance that 
Developer reimburse City its administrative costs, including but not limited to the cost of in-house 
City staff, the cost of any time spent by the City Attorney, the City Engineer and/or the City 
Planning Consultant. Such periodic review shall be limited in scope to compliance with the terms 
of this Agreement pursuant to Government Code section 65865.1 and pursuant to the provisions 
of City's ordinance on the subject. 

8.3.1 Burden of Proof. At such review meeting, Developer shall be required to 
demonstrate good faith compliance with the terms of this Agreement pursuant to Government 
Code section 65865.1 and the applicable City ordinance. 

8.3.2 Duty to Disclose. In the manner prescribed in Section 5.4 hereof, City shall 
deposit in the mail to Developer a copy of all public staff reports, documents and related exhibits 
concerning Developer's performance hereunder at least ten (10) days prior to any such periodic 
reVIew. 

8.3.3 Deemed Approval. In the event City fails to either (1) hold the annual 
review meeting; or (2) notify Developer in writing within 30 days following the scheduled date of 
the review meeting of City's determination as to compliance or noncompliance with the terms of 
this Agreement, such failure shall be deemed an approval by City of Developer's good faith 
compliance with the terms of this Agreement. 

9. DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

9.1 Public Improvement Facilities and Services. Developer and its successors in 
interest agree to provide the public improvements, facilities and services required by the Project 
Approvals for the Project. 

10. FEES/REIMBURSEMENT 

{OOOl6436.DOCX;1} 



10.1 Miscellaneous Fees. Any development fees not already specified in this Agreement 
shall not be levied or collected unless and until a building permit is issued for that lot. The amount 
of such fees shall be determined in accordance with the Rules, Regulations and Official Policies 
in effect on the Effective Date of this Agreement. 

10.1.1 Developer shall pay City's reasonable costs and fees associated with City's 
inspection of all improvements constructed by Developer as part of the Project including, but not 
limited to, all water systems, sewer systems, storm drainage, streets, alleys and grading. Said fees 
shall be paid in accordance with City's standard policies in effect as of the effective date of this 
Agreement. 

11. DEFAULT, REMEDIES AND TERMINATION 

11.1 Events of Default Defined. The following shall be "events of default" under this 
Agreement, and the terms "Events of Default" and "Default" shall mean, whenever they are used 
in this Agreement, with respect to the Project, anyone or more ofthe following events: 

11.1.1 Failure by Developer to observe and perform any covenant, condition or 
agreement on its part to be observed or performed under this Agreement or conditions of approval 
for any of the Project Approvals, for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice specifying 
such failure and requesting that it be remedied has been given to Developer by City; provided, 
however, if the failure stated in the notice can be corrected, but not reasonably within such thirty 
(30) day period, City shall not unreasonably withhold its consent to an extension of such time if 
corrective action is instituted by the Developer within the thirty (30) day period and diligently 
pursued until the failure is corrected. City Staff may, but is not required, under such circumstances, 
to extend the time period for completion ofthe corrective action to a total time not to exceed ninety 
(90) days. Any extension oftime beyond the ninety (90) day time period would require the consent 
of the City Council after a noticed public hearing. 

11.1.2 The filing by Developer or any assignee or successor in interest, of a 
voluntary petition in bankruptcy, or failure by Developer promptly to lift any execution or 
attachment on any part of the Project (other than disputed mechanic's liens), or adjudication of 
Developer as a bankrupt, or assignment by Developer for the benefit of creditors, or the entry by 
Developer into an agreement of composition with creditors, or the approval by a court of competent 
jurisdiction of a petition applicable to Developer in any proceedings instituted under the provisions 
of the Federal Bankruptcy Act, as amended, or under any similar acts which may hereafter be 
enacted. 

11.1.3 Failure by City to observe and perform any covenant, condition or 
agreement on its part to be observed or performed under this Agreement on its part to be observed 
or performed under this Agreement or conditions of approval for any Project Approval, for a period 
of thirty (30) days after written notice specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied 
has been given to City by Developer; provided, however, if the failure stated in the notice can be 
corrected, but not within such thirty (30) day period, Developer shall not unreasonably withhold 
its consent to an extension of such time if corrective action is instituted by City within the thirty 
{OOOl6436.DOCX; I} 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 45

10.1 Miscellaneous Fees. Any development fees not already specified in this Agreement 
shall not be levied or collected unless and until a building permit is issued for that lot. The amount 
of such fees shall be determined in accordance with the Rules, Regulations and Official Policies 
in effect on the Effective Date of this Agreement. 

10.1.1 Developer shall pay City's reasonable costs and fees associated with City's 
inspection of all improvements constructed by Developer as part of the Project including, but not 
limited to, all water systems, sewer systems, storm drainage, streets, alleys and grading. Said fees 
shall be paid in accordance with City's standard policies in effect as of the effective date of this 
Agreement. 

11. DEFAULT, REMEDIES AND TERMINATION 

11.1 Events of Default Defined. The following shall be "events of default" under this 
Agreement, and the terms "Events of Default" and "Default" shall mean, whenever they are used 
in this Agreement, with respect to the Project, anyone or more ofthe following events: 

11.1.1 Failure by Developer to observe and perform any covenant, condition or 
agreement on its part to be observed or performed under this Agreement or conditions of approval 
for any of the Project Approvals, for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice specifying 
such failure and requesting that it be remedied has been given to Developer by City; provided, 
however, if the failure stated in the notice can be corrected, but not reasonably within such thirty 
(30) day period, City shall not unreasonably withhold its consent to an extension of such time if 
corrective action is instituted by the Developer within the thirty (30) day period and diligently 
pursued until the failure is corrected. City Staff may, but is not required, under such circumstances, 
to extend the time period for completion ofthe corrective action to a total time not to exceed ninety 
(90) days. Any extension oftime beyond the ninety (90) day time period would require the consent 
of the City Council after a noticed public hearing. 

11.1.2 The filing by Developer or any assignee or successor in interest, of a 
voluntary petition in bankruptcy, or failure by Developer promptly to lift any execution or 
attachment on any part of the Project (other than disputed mechanic's liens), or adjudication of 
Developer as a bankrupt, or assignment by Developer for the benefit of creditors, or the entry by 
Developer into an agreement of composition with creditors, or the approval by a court of competent 
jurisdiction of a petition applicable to Developer in any proceedings instituted under the provisions 
of the Federal Bankruptcy Act, as amended, or under any similar acts which may hereafter be 
enacted. 

11.1.3 Failure by City to observe and perform any covenant, condition or 
agreement on its part to be observed or performed under this Agreement on its part to be observed 
or performed under this Agreement or conditions of approval for any Project Approval, for a period 
of thirty (30) days after written notice specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied 
has been given to City by Developer; provided, however, if the failure stated in the notice can be 
corrected, but not within such thirty (30) day period, Developer shall not unreasonably withhold 
its consent to an extension of such time if corrective action is instituted by City within the thirty 
{OOOl6436.DOCX; I} 



(30) day period and diligently pursued until the failure is corrected. In the event of a default by 
City resulting in delays in Developer's perfonnance, such default shall serve to excuse a delay of 
the same period of time in perfonnance by Developer under this Agreement, but shall not constitute 
grounds for tennination or cancellation of this Agreement. 

11.2 General Provisions. In the event of default or breach of this Agreement, other than 
as detennined in Section 8.3 hereof, or of its tenns or conditions, the party alleging such default 
or breach shall give the breaching party not less than thirty (30) days Notice of Default in writing, 
unless the parties extend such time by mutual consent in writing. The time of notice shall be 
measured from the date of certified mailing. The Notice of Default shall specify the nature ofthe 
alleged default, and, where appropriate, the manner and period of time in which said default may 
be satisfactorily cured. Developer shall be given ninety (90) days from the date of notice in which 
to cure the specified default. If the nature of the alleged default is such that it cannot reasonably 
be cured within such ninety (90) day period, the commencement of the cure within such time 
period and the diligent prosecution to completion of the cure shall be deemed a cure within such 
period. During any period of curing, the party charged shall not be considered in default for the 
purposes of tennination or institution of legal proceedings. If the default is cured, then no default 
shall exist and the noticing party shall take no further action. 

11.2.1 Option to Institute Legal Proceedings or to Terminate. After proper notice 
and the expiration of said cure period, the noticing party to this Agreement, at its option, may 
institute legal proceedings or give notice of intent to tenninate this Agreement pursuant to 
Government Code section 65868. Following notice of intent to tenninate, the matter shall then be 
scheduled for consideration and review by the City Council, within thirty (30) days, in the manner 
set forth in Government Code sections 65865, 65867 and 65868, as amended. 

11.2.2 Notice of Tennination. Following consideration of the evidence presented 
before the City Council, either party alleging a default by the other party may, at its option, give 
written notice oftennination ofthis Agreement to the other party by certified mail. Written notice 
of tennination of this Agreement shall be effective immediately upon certified mailing to the 
defaulting party. 

11.2.3 Waiver. Failure to give or delay in giving notice of default pursuant to this 
section shall not constitute a waiver of any default. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this 
Agreement, any failure or delay by the other party in asserting any of its rights or remedies as to 
any default shall not operate as a waiver of any default of such rights or remedies or deprive such 
party of its right to institute and maintain any actions or proceedings which it may deem necessary 
to protect, assert or enforce any such rights or remedies. 

11.3 Default by Developer. Government Code section 65865.1, as amended, requires 
the Developer to demonstrate its good faith compliance with the tenns of this Agreement at least 
annually. Such a periodic review may result in tennination or an agreement to amend this 
Agreement, provided a default has been established under the tenns of this Agreement. City shall 
not impose any fees or other exactions as a condition to a finding of good faith compliance with 
the tenns of this Agreement. 
{OOOl6436.DOCX;1} 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 46

(30) day period and diligently pursued until the failure is corrected. In the event of a default by 
City resulting in delays in Developer's perfonnance, such default shall serve to excuse a delay of 
the same period of time in perfonnance by Developer under this Agreement, but shall not constitute 
grounds for tennination or cancellation of this Agreement. 

11.2 General Provisions. In the event of default or breach of this Agreement, other than 
as detennined in Section 8.3 hereof, or of its tenns or conditions, the party alleging such default 
or breach shall give the breaching party not less than thirty (30) days Notice of Default in writing, 
unless the parties extend such time by mutual consent in writing. The time of notice shall be 
measured from the date of certified mailing. The Notice of Default shall specify the nature ofthe 
alleged default, and, where appropriate, the manner and period of time in which said default may 
be satisfactorily cured. Developer shall be given ninety (90) days from the date of notice in which 
to cure the specified default. If the nature of the alleged default is such that it cannot reasonably 
be cured within such ninety (90) day period, the commencement of the cure within such time 
period and the diligent prosecution to completion of the cure shall be deemed a cure within such 
period. During any period of curing, the party charged shall not be considered in default for the 
purposes of tennination or institution of legal proceedings. If the default is cured, then no default 
shall exist and the noticing party shall take no further action. 

11.2.1 Option to Institute Legal Proceedings or to Terminate. After proper notice 
and the expiration of said cure period, the noticing party to this Agreement, at its option, may 
institute legal proceedings or give notice of intent to tenninate this Agreement pursuant to 
Government Code section 65868. Following notice of intent to tenninate, the matter shall then be 
scheduled for consideration and review by the City Council, within thirty (30) days, in the manner 
set forth in Government Code sections 65865, 65867 and 65868, as amended. 

11.2.2 Notice of Tennination. Following consideration of the evidence presented 
before the City Council, either party alleging a default by the other party may, at its option, give 
written notice oftennination ofthis Agreement to the other party by certified mail. Written notice 
of tennination of this Agreement shall be effective immediately upon certified mailing to the 
defaulting party. 

11.2.3 Waiver. Failure to give or delay in giving notice of default pursuant to this 
section shall not constitute a waiver of any default. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this 
Agreement, any failure or delay by the other party in asserting any of its rights or remedies as to 
any default shall not operate as a waiver of any default of such rights or remedies or deprive such 
party of its right to institute and maintain any actions or proceedings which it may deem necessary 
to protect, assert or enforce any such rights or remedies. 

11.3 Default by Developer. Government Code section 65865.1, as amended, requires 
the Developer to demonstrate its good faith compliance with the tenns of this Agreement at least 
annually. Such a periodic review may result in tennination or an agreement to amend this 
Agreement, provided a default has been established under the tenns of this Agreement. City shall 
not impose any fees or other exactions as a condition to a finding of good faith compliance with 
the tenns of this Agreement. 
{OOOl6436.DOCX;1} 



11.4 Enforced Delay, Extension of Time of Performance. In addition to specific 
provisions of this Agreement, performance by either party hereunder shall not be deemed to be in 
default, where delays or defaults are due to war, insurrection, strikes, walkouts, riots, floods, 
earthquakes, fires, casualties, acts of God, governmental restrictions imposed or mandated by other 
governmental entities, enactment of conflicting State or federal laws or regulations, new or 
supplementary environmental regulations, litigation, or similar bases for excused performance. At 
the request of any party, an extension of time for such cause shall be granted in writing for the 
period of the enforced delay, or longer as may be mutually agreed upon. 

11.5 Institution of Legal Action. In addition to any other rights or remedies, either party 
may institute legal action to cure, correct or remedy any default, to enforce any covenants or 
agreements herein or to enjoin any threatened or attempted violation thereof; to recover damages 
for any default; or to obtain any remedies consistent with the purpose of this Agreement. In the 
event of such action, the prevailing Party shall be entitled to and shall recover from the other Party 
including but not limited to all costs of litigation including expert witness fees and reasonable 
attorney fees. 

11.6 Applicable Laws. 

11.6.1 This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the 
laws of the State of California. 

11.6.2 It is further understood that Developer is responsible for compliance with 
all applicable laws including, but not limited to, the Labor Code, Public Contract Code and 
Government Code of the State of California. City makes no representation as to the applicability 
of any laws regarding contracts, and especially public improvements, thereunder. Developer will 
not hold or seek to hold City liable for any failure by Developer to comply with any such laws 
without regard to whether City knew, could have known, or should have known as to the necessity 
of such compliance. The preceding section shall apply in regard to any enforcement action, 
whether public or private, and whether brought by a public enforcement agency or by private civil 
litigation, against City with regard to the content ofthis section. 

11.7 Indemnity. Developer shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend City and each of 
its officers, officials and employees from any and all liability, loss, debts, costs, and damages 
(whether in contract, tort or strict liability, including but not limited to personal injury, death at 
any time, property damage and damages for breach of contract or warranty) incurred by City, 
Developer or any other person, and from any and all claims, demands, actions or proceedings in 
law or equity (whether or not well founded) brought by Developer or any other person, arising 
directly or indirectly out of any act, omission or contract of Developer or any of its contractors, 
subcontractors, materialmen or employees in connection with construction of any of the facilities, 
work or improvements. The preceding sentence shall not apply to any liability, loss, debts, costs 
or damages caused solely by the negligence or willful misconduct of City. This duty shall survive 
the termination of this Agreement. 

{OOO 164 36.DOCX; 1 } 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 47

11.4 Enforced Delay, Extension of Time of Performance. In addition to specific 
provisions of this Agreement, performance by either party hereunder shall not be deemed to be in 
default, where delays or defaults are due to war, insurrection, strikes, walkouts, riots, floods, 
earthquakes, fires, casualties, acts of God, governmental restrictions imposed or mandated by other 
governmental entities, enactment of conflicting State or federal laws or regulations, new or 
supplementary environmental regulations, litigation, or similar bases for excused performance. At 
the request of any party, an extension of time for such cause shall be granted in writing for the 
period of the enforced delay, or longer as may be mutually agreed upon. 

11.5 Institution of Legal Action. In addition to any other rights or remedies, either party 
may institute legal action to cure, correct or remedy any default, to enforce any covenants or 
agreements herein or to enjoin any threatened or attempted violation thereof; to recover damages 
for any default; or to obtain any remedies consistent with the purpose of this Agreement. In the 
event of such action, the prevailing Party shall be entitled to and shall recover from the other Party 
including but not limited to all costs of litigation including expert witness fees and reasonable 
attorney fees. 

11.6 Applicable Laws. 

11.6.1 This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the 
laws of the State of California. 

11.6.2 It is further understood that Developer is responsible for compliance with 
all applicable laws including, but not limited to, the Labor Code, Public Contract Code and 
Government Code of the State of California. City makes no representation as to the applicability 
of any laws regarding contracts, and especially public improvements, thereunder. Developer will 
not hold or seek to hold City liable for any failure by Developer to comply with any such laws 
without regard to whether City knew, could have known, or should have known as to the necessity 
of such compliance. The preceding section shall apply in regard to any enforcement action, 
whether public or private, and whether brought by a public enforcement agency or by private civil 
litigation, against City with regard to the content ofthis section. 

11.7 Indemnity. Developer shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend City and each of 
its officers, officials and employees from any and all liability, loss, debts, costs, and damages 
(whether in contract, tort or strict liability, including but not limited to personal injury, death at 
any time, property damage and damages for breach of contract or warranty) incurred by City, 
Developer or any other person, and from any and all claims, demands, actions or proceedings in 
law or equity (whether or not well founded) brought by Developer or any other person, arising 
directly or indirectly out of any act, omission or contract of Developer or any of its contractors, 
subcontractors, materialmen or employees in connection with construction of any of the facilities, 
work or improvements. The preceding sentence shall not apply to any liability, loss, debts, costs 
or damages caused solely by the negligence or willful misconduct of City. This duty shall survive 
the termination of this Agreement. 

{OOO 164 36.DOCX; 1 } 



12. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

12.1 Rules of Construction. The singular includes the plural; the masculine gender 
includes the feminine; "shall" and "will" are mandatory; and "may" is permissive. 

12.2 Severability. The parties hereto agree that the provisions are severable. If any 
provision of this Agreement is held invalid, the remainder ofthis Agreement shall be effective and 
shall remain in full force and effect unless amended or modified by mutual consent of the parties. 

12.3 Entire Agreement, Waivers, Amendment -- Superseding. This Agreement 
constitutes the entire understanding and agreement of the parties. This Agreement integrates all 
of the terms and conditions mentioned herein or incidental hereto, and supersedes all negotiation 
or previous agreements between the parties with respect to all or any part of the subject matter 
hereof. To the extent there are conflicts or inconsistencies between this Agreement and any prior 
agreement, map approval permit or conditions of approval, the provisions of this Agreement shall 
prevail. All waivers of the provisions of this Agreement must be in writing and signed by the 
appropriate authorities of City or of Developer. All amendments which are authorized in the 
manner provided by law must be in writing, signed by the appropriate authorities of City and 
Developer, in a form suitable for recording in the Office of the Recorder, County of Fresno. Any 
such amendments shall be promptly recorded. Upon the completion of performance of this 
Agreement or its earlier revocation and termination, a statement evidencing said completion or 
revocation signed by the appropriate agents of Developer and City shall be recorded in the Official 
Records of Fresno County, California. 

12.4 Project is a Private Undertaking. It is specifically understood and agreed to by and 
between the parties hereto that: (1) the Project is a private development; (2) City has no interest 
or responsibilities for or duty to third parties concerning any improvements until such time and 
only until such time that City accepts the same pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement or in 
connection with various subdivision map approvals; (3) Developer shall have full power over and 
exclusive control of Developer under this Agreement; and (4) the contractual relationship between 
City and Developer is such that Developer is an independent contractor and not an agent of City. 

12.5 Findings of Support. City hereby finds and determines that execution of this 
Agreement is in the best interest of the public health, safety and general welfare and that the 
provisions of this Agreement are consistent with the General Plan, as amended. 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

{00016436.DOCX; I} 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 48

12. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

12.1 Rules of Construction. The singular includes the plural; the masculine gender 
includes the feminine; "shall" and "will" are mandatory; and "may" is permissive. 

12.2 Severability. The parties hereto agree that the provisions are severable. If any 
provision of this Agreement is held invalid, the remainder ofthis Agreement shall be effective and 
shall remain in full force and effect unless amended or modified by mutual consent of the parties. 

12.3 Entire Agreement, Waivers, Amendment -- Superseding. This Agreement 
constitutes the entire understanding and agreement of the parties. This Agreement integrates all 
of the terms and conditions mentioned herein or incidental hereto, and supersedes all negotiation 
or previous agreements between the parties with respect to all or any part of the subject matter 
hereof. To the extent there are conflicts or inconsistencies between this Agreement and any prior 
agreement, map approval permit or conditions of approval, the provisions of this Agreement shall 
prevail. All waivers of the provisions of this Agreement must be in writing and signed by the 
appropriate authorities of City or of Developer. All amendments which are authorized in the 
manner provided by law must be in writing, signed by the appropriate authorities of City and 
Developer, in a form suitable for recording in the Office of the Recorder, County of Fresno. Any 
such amendments shall be promptly recorded. Upon the completion of performance of this 
Agreement or its earlier revocation and termination, a statement evidencing said completion or 
revocation signed by the appropriate agents of Developer and City shall be recorded in the Official 
Records of Fresno County, California. 

12.4 Project is a Private Undertaking. It is specifically understood and agreed to by and 
between the parties hereto that: (1) the Project is a private development; (2) City has no interest 
or responsibilities for or duty to third parties concerning any improvements until such time and 
only until such time that City accepts the same pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement or in 
connection with various subdivision map approvals; (3) Developer shall have full power over and 
exclusive control of Developer under this Agreement; and (4) the contractual relationship between 
City and Developer is such that Developer is an independent contractor and not an agent of City. 

12.5 Findings of Support. City hereby finds and determines that execution of this 
Agreement is in the best interest of the public health, safety and general welfare and that the 
provisions of this Agreement are consistent with the General Plan, as amended. 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

{00016436.DOCX; I} 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties on the day 
and year first above written, as authorized by Ordinance No. ofthe City Council. 

CITY: 

CITY OF Selma, 
A Municipal Corporation 

By: _____________ _ 
Mayor of the City of Selma 

ATTEST: 

By: _______________________ _ 
City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: __________________________ _ 
Neal E. Costanzo 
City Attorney 

{ODD 16436.DOCX; I} 

DEVELOPER: 

Karamjit singh Nijjar 

By: _____________ __ 

By: ______________ _ 

Attorney for _____ _ 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 49

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties on the day 
and year first above written, as authorized by Ordinance No. ofthe City Council. 

CITY: 

CITY OF Selma, 
A Municipal Corporation 

By: __________________________ _ 
Mayor of the City of Selma 

ATTEST: 

By: __________________________ __ 
City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: __________________________ __ 
Neal E. Costanzo 
City Attorney 

{ODD 16436.DOCX; I} 

DEVELOPER: 

Karamjit singh Nijjar 

By: __________________________ __ 

By: __________________________ _ 

Attorney for __________ _ 



EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE REAL PROPERTY 

00016420. WPD; 1 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 50

EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE REAL PROPERTY 

00016420. WPD; 1 



SUBJECT PROPERTY 

Submittal No. 2005-0045 

Environmental Assessment 
Zone Change, Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5519 

East of Highland-North of Nebraska Reorganization-Annexation 
(Dee Neece Esraelian) 

CITY OF SEIMA 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

N 

~. February 20, 2018 Council Packet 51

SUBJECT PROPERTY 

Submittal No. 2005-0045 

Environmental Assessment 
Zone Change, Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5519 

East of Highland-North of Nebraska Reorganization-Annexation 
(Dee Neece Esraelian) 

CITY OF SEIMA 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

N 

~. 



I~ I! 

>
' II
 

I I 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

0,
 2

01
8 

C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t

52

LBEO 
M ~~C.dlCJII: 

... 

(R-I) 

~C)JNTYRECIRl 

""""""""" HOW 0FrnlED Fa! DEIlICAlIOH FOR FUl..lC 
STREETANJIJIIIJITF\&'Q!i£5 
~YDEDlCATm ~1'UI..lC 
ST1£ET NIO IJ1'lJTY PERR- . 
-oora~f'.IfICIl.~. 

"""""""""' UIOE --."""" ..... 
DJ.TAAECCAOP£RrRlCTS217 
R£CORDEDIN~lliIE n ,l,T 
PACES :ZJ- 25, !C.e.R 

ru!I'E TAIl.E 

II'" ,. .. "" • ::::::Rl 

Iv 

., '-1-~ 
SI'Xf"" - ,,.. 

TRACT 5519 
NIJJAR ESTATES 

IN THE COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 
SHEET 3 OF 3 

!Io4.' WlJERlQiTCf"WAY 
ltl CN.JRNC5P£RDOC. 

... __ ~"""'~' . o ... c 
~~UI'.c. . EWE <F IEAIWE (ft-1l 

lJD7.47' NOCI'~~4.". 

- - --.-- -- - ~~_; -A~- rn1rY 43) -.:.. r- ---G---... ~- ; -1 -!~ -------- - -- - - - - -
~ , \ \ 'l(,; ~~' r 7!.'" ~ ...... 1...... _14.00. ...,. ... ., ·1, """ " .... ( i . 
l.\\ \ '% ,~~ ~~c-' ~ i ~ s;; i ~ i. h j i, ~ I ' i ~ ~ i 
\. . , ~ .. ~ ., ~l ... ~;t :I Ia ~.g ~ ~ h ~.!i;) ~ -= ~ ~\\ \ "'=~ ... ~'.~ I - 33 I - :)t ' - sl l - ao - 29 1 - 24 - 211 - 20. -25 -,-~. ~ \\. ~~, ~"'~~\" ,"", ~,,_ ' ." """ ........ ~ i "". '"" ' ) ~ "' ~ t. . f ~~-- - \;, - - - -~, 1'Ut" M#" .M.D~'. .... _ -e4.9f' ---KJ.. --I4..D1:'~ -N I' "001' ~ ~ 

,
,.- l'_ _ ----=- L J , -..~ --=: J "r1O'O'r..~ -:. ' .').EQUOIA STREET 
-;;- j :;;;>' ~-, ...... '''". - ~ • --~ , ... 'Ii..... -.....- SEQuorA STREET ] _ ....... 

J J. 7D.G1 ' ~ ,<>,q,.....- ~. -"'-,,.. ~- ~' Q,t'I ' .lUft2..CIr.,.- .. .a:r ... ...ut:t--G.OO'>-- ctW --tuI2'- . ...... ~~ ... 0. I .... ....,.... - , .--... ... ... r1 • • ; ; • • ~ • ; G • ; • • , ~ I>l 

. .! "1 52 ; $1; i: ~" ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~! ~ ~ h ~ 9 ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ !! ~ f .'- I -",': 'li1 
I ~ ~,=.PJt ~ 'J !~ ;I~.!'.J "~ ~~li..,S6"'~,J?I~"~o.l ~o)\ .. ~O I ~,,!I I =-,,,Il;2!:: as,~;~J= 05. ~ . J\8, ' ~ !7 J =_U i ::: Iii 

z , ~ 2 q • ~il" """ ..... l ~., .. .,. ;u.r """ "... II ... !I II.... II.... ...... I2.CXI' .... "CO' ...., ...... ,.,. h~ _ 
~ I: ..oa~w s ;~ ~ 11000 lII.OO" I!IO.QO' IDJIO' GG7 ea.mr IID.OO' BD.CIO' 111.00' C.\IO' 1II.tIO" IID.OO' 110.00' ta:lI:t 111.00' 8D.OO' l!5,n ' _. V 
:<l I . ~- I . ~ p • • • • • • • ,. • ,. • • • • ~ I ,< > ~ ''3 '' " ;:..l 61 '> ~ , ~ , II ~ a '1 'l Ii ~ ~ !l 8 '> 11 !l ~ , II !l Ii = !l !l II ~ !l!l r. ..... .1;' '" . « 0 - " ~ iI ~ iI ~ ~II ~ k l! il li 2~2 1!i! ~H j! ~ ~ 1! ~ i!~ lis! _ ~ " ... "..,.. ' It" -t • - 50 ' - 49 1- ~ ' - 47 1 ; 46 1 -45 1 -44 I - 43 1 -.~ . -.d "40 I '"39.) ~ ~ ~ ; ~3,U .~vl -...~4. J.) ..... 

t 'lo.t1l'~ ~ l IJ:;:;:;:" .~~ '!/ ~ 'IT Vol 'I 'W,. 12"Q SI ; "" Y#f¥, s~ noo LPlf'f" ~ r r-t- 1':1;. i7"" 
> . ~ __ ."1 ~j i -......w. IUO' ... - ID.OO'- CLDIT-~- ...-.a:r -ID.m' -ID.OCI' IlO'l" II8.OD'--- -.erG'!....-o::r ......... -89.ocr IIDJlO!- 1l:llI' ")J. 
< I ~.",,, , ~ ~JJ.! '- .b ~ . ...... I - _ O . ~ tj \W,f'II __ . iICIO'_ 'll~ _ _ S C"I 
c:: "",;ucr ' t. .,- , SINGH STREET ,,,,.., ? -.... ~ 

»f#-" .... t · . 1 !II " . .. ; G ; S ; t ~ ; ' a' PU[...J 0 a 
I ~ ,, ~ , f ~ . - ~ i 9 ~ ~ ~ ~ i = ~» ~ ~ i J ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ -» l! ~ i I II ~ B ~ ~ ~ p..- 0 % 

I 

f

" " Q 
f
II 

; 

to:! I r ' ~r.~,-""' - "'''''''''' -- --.... -..... . - - 1- - ....,. ..... . ...- -...... ~ -~ _____ @z. 

I r ' /J '} '~ ~~ ~ 7 ~» - ell- tl - t O ' - t1 I - '2 1 - '3 1 - 14 ' - '5 t- ie ~1~ '? ' -Jo ' :',\.I 1_ ~o l_. 21.1 ~ !?,; :;'23 I _, ~,- ~ !~ -r. I I yi i I 6~~} E , ~ oc ·~o': - "XICI :It ,- 5, ~M. 1)00., 7100 '~ .JW., t:". 7,00 ,1 _. rrr:- '.' r~ ~ . , ~ , J " Q:: \~ 
ctI.:II:r OGP' "1fim 8O.oD' eo.oo' liMO' ew IIOb:I' Ir).(I)' IIO.DD' Il10.00' IIII1fq" lWI7 III.DO' MLIJJ' c.ocr too:' IIIUlO' eo.DO' eu2' ~t; cr.. Vn I 

fl\=- ".., -T"'- .... .,. ... , ,"".,. ....... ~ ~ - ~ ,1- . r l - l . X--<'1 );- -X-~ )( ".( '( - x--x--x - -- x -> x):, ) Y X ' -I )- X - X )( X -

r 
--I I t)' '""0 17 

I ~ I ~ &: "y~ I ~ " I , .. 
. I . I ~ Ul 

I - I \ ~ KaII)l& I ' tll ,::=. 
' . ~ 7~ CD RUm MASS eN' MOIUENT, f'I..lSof, . c:::P ...-, 
\" . ST.QIIEDlS7IIIOP£R(R-1) ~ ___ 

I \\ " "):I , '\~ I \.' 0 I 01 'Y 

I 
~. I '\ \ " , ~ <2". 

~ .. \ '\ \ I ~"\. -:z. a ~~ 00 ' ~. 
~: I -:- ~ 
I % 



.. ' 

~I'''' *020-04 
~90-

~I'''' *020-47 
~90-

~I'''' *20-48 
~90-0 

~I'''' *20-5~ 
390-0 

LEGEND 

I . ,. , .. ... ... . . 

1 

: I ~ • • • , • , , I • 

I' I . . . .. _O~0- ' 4 1 
, . 1 .• .. . "'. H 388 .• . . I ' I' :' .. ~.I'. . I 
I
·:· , . .. 
. : .,' .' .' . I. :. . . 

I I ' .•• 

I· :· ! .. 
' 1 ' . •• 

I ' ;. I 

EXISTING CITY AREA 

AREA TO BE DETACHED FROM THE NORTH 
CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, KINGS 
RIVER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, AND 
ANNEXED TO THE CITY OF SELMA. 

PREPARED BY: 

•.. . 'O~O- 6 ' 
. ".P .t-l. H 388- . . 

PREPARED FOR : 

SYNERGY LAND GROUP 
P.O. BOX 720 

SCALE: 

I 

" ,~ ....... 

1" = 220' 

I I 
YAMABE & HORN ENGINEERING, INC. 

1300 EAST SHAW AVE ., SUITE 176 
FRESNO, CA 93710 

(559) 244-3123 
TEMPLETON. CA 93465 I 

(805) 237-0085 0 110 220 440 

RES. NO. ADOPTED: 
NEBRASKA - HIGHLAND 

REORGANIZATION 
PORTIONS OF SECTION 6, T. 16 S., R. 22 E., M.D.B.&M. 

TO BE ANNEXED TO THE CITY OF SELMA AND DETACHED FROM THE MID VALLEY fJRE _ 
PROTECTION DISTRICT, THE KINGS RIVER CONSERVATION DISTRICT AND CONSOLIDATED 

IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

ALLOCATED TO COUNCIL DISTRIC T NO. ____ ________ _ AS PER 

COUN CIL DISTRICT MAP. 

FILE NO. 

ANNE X. NO. 

ACRES 22.87± 

COUNCIL DI STRICT NO. 

DRA WN BY: .:.:JC'---__ REVISED: 

DATE: 02 (1 6 ( 06 

SCALE: AS NOTED 

05-16" .. . 0516,,"NNEX2.DWC 

21,..· February 20, 2018 Council Packet 53

... 

~PN *20-47 
~90-0 

~PN *20-48 
~90-0 

~PN * no-5~ 
390-04 

LEGEND 

' . ,. I : , .......... . 
I' I . , , " 030-\4 , . 

. ' ... . . N' H 388,. •.. I ' • 
:. . . ~.p. ' I 

. 1 . 1 • .. 

. ! .,' . '. '. :. .. 
I ' •• • 

:' ! .. 
' 1 ' . .. 

:· 1 .. 

EXISTING CITY AREA 

AREA TO BE DETACHED FROM THE NORTH 
CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, KINGS 
RIVER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, AND 
ANNEXED TO THE CITY OF SELMA. 

PREPARED BY: PREPARED FOR : 

SYNERGY LAND GROUP 
P,O. BOX 720 

<> oli: o ••• 

" 
• I 

I 

SCALE: ," = 220' 

I I I 
YAM ABE & HORN ENGINEERING, INC. 

1300 EAST SHAW AVE ., SUITE 176 
FRESNO, CA 93710 

(559) 244-3123 
TEMPLETON, CA 93465 I 

(805) 237-0085 0 110 220 440 

RES. NO. ADOPTED: 
NEBRASKA - HIGHLAND 

REORGANIZATION 
PORTIONS OF SECTION 6, T. 16 S., R. 22 E., M.D.B.&M. 

TO BE ANNEXED TO THE CITY OF SELMA AND DETACHED FROM THE MID VALLEY fJRE _ 
PROTECTION DISTRICT, THE KINGS RIVER CONSERVATION DISTRICT AND CONSOLIDATED 

IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

ALLOCATED TO COUNCIL DISTRICT NO. ___________ _ _ AS PER 

COUNCIL DISTRICT MAP, 

FILE NO. 

ANNEX. NO. 

ACRES 22.87± 

COUNCil DISTRICT NO. 

ORAWN BY: .::.:JC'---__ REVISED: 

OATE: 02(16(06 

SCALE: AS NOTED 

05-16J ... 0516J f..NIIIE X2. DWC 

21,..· 



ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY AT HIGHLAND & NEBRASKA 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

AREA TO DETACH FROM THE NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION 
DISTRICT AND THE KINGS RIVER CONSER V A TION DISTRICT AND ANNEXED 
TO THE CITY OF SELMA. 

THE WEST ~ OF THE SOUTHWEST Y4 OF THE SOUTHWEST Y4 OF SECTION 6, 
TOWNSHIP 16 SOUTH, RANGE 22 EAST, MOUNT DIABLO BASE AND 
MERIDIAN, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF FRESNO; 

_ _ • J 

2.? February 20, 2018 Council Packet 54

ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY AT HIGHLAND & NEBRASKA 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

AREA TO DETACH FROM THE NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION 
DISTRICT AND THE KINGS RIVER CONSER V A TION DISTRICT AND ANNEXED 
TO THE CITY OF SELMA. 

THE WEST ~ OF THE SOUTHWEST Y4 OF THE SOUTHWEST Y4 OF SECTION 6, 
TOWNSHIP 16 SOUTH, RANGE 22 EAST, MOUNT DIABLO BASE AND 
MERIDIAN, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF FRESNO; 

- - ." 

2.? 



EXHIBIT B 

CITY OF SELMA RESOLUTION NO. 2006-14R 

{ODD 16436.DOCX; I} 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 55

EXHIBIT B 

CITY OF SELMA RESOLUTION NO. 2006-14R 

{ODD 16436.DOCX; I} 



RESOLUTION NO. 2006-14R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SELMA CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELMA 
APPROVING VESTING TENTATIVE TRACT MAP NO. 5519 

WITH FINDINGS AND CONDITIONS, 
AND ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT NO. 2005-0045 

WHEREAS, on February 21, 2006, the Selma City Council, at a regularly scheduled 
meeting, considered a request by Synergy Land Group, LLC, on behalf of Dee Neece Esraelian for 
approximately 66 residential lots in the R-I-7 district. The Vesting Tentative Tract Map was a part of 
Submittal No. 2005-0045, which also included other applications. The vesting tentative tract map and 
applications for other entitlements are for approximately twenty (20) acres of property located on 
northeast comer of Nebraska Avenue and Highland Avenue (SH 43) (APN 388-030-11,22,24, 
26), pending annexation; and 

WHEREAS, the concurrent application that was considered with VTTM No. 5519 
included a Zone Change to prezone the entire project property to the R-I-? zone district and C-l 
zone districts, and reorganization/annexation; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a public hearing, noticed in accordance 
with all applicable state and local laws, and considered the proposal and the staffreport and 
recommendations together with all public testimony of interested parties; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council considered the scope of the proposal, reviewed the 
evidence and determined that Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5519 will not have a significant 
impact on the environment; and 

WHEREAS, per the Public Resources Code, Section 21080.1, Division 13, 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the City of Selma is responsible for determining whether an 
environmental impact report, a negative declaration, or a mitigated negative declaration shall be 
required; and 

WHEREAS, based on substantial evidence provided in the Initial Study and the 
whole record before the Planning Commission for Environmental Assessment No. 2005-0045, it has 
been detennined that there is no possibility this project may have any significant effects on the 
environment. The City Council certifies the adequacy of the document and adopts the Negative 
Declaration; and . 

WHEREAS, the City Council detemiines that the following findings of fact for 
approval listed and included in this Resolution can be made based on the reports, evidence and verbal 
presentations, subject to annexation: 

1. The proposed map is consistent with applicable general plans. 

2. The proposed vesting tentative tract map design and improvements are consistent with the 
Selma General Plan and any applicable specific plans because the design complies with the 
implementation and policies set in the General Plan document. 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 56

RESOLUTION NO. 2006-14R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SELMA CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELMA 
APPROVING VESTING TENTATIVE TRACT MAP NO. 5519 

WITH FINDINGS AND CONDITIONS, 
AND ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT NO. 2005-0045 

WHEREAS, on February 21, 2006, the Selma City Council, at a regularly scheduled 
meeting, considered a request by Synergy Land Group, LLC, on behalf of Dee Neece Esraelian for 
approximately 66 residential lots in the R-1-7 district. The Vesting Tentative Tract Map was a part of 
Submittal No. 2005-0045, which also included other applications. The vesting tentative tract map and 
applications for other entitlements are for approximately twenty (20) acres of property located on 
northeast comer of Nebraska Avenue and Highland Avenue (SH 43) (APN 388-030-11, 22, 24, 
26), pending annexation; and 

WHEREAS, the concurrent application that was considered with VTTM No. 5519 
included a Zone Change to prezone the entire project property to the R-1-7 zone district and C-l 
zone districts, and reorganization/annexation; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a public hearing, noticed in accordance 
with all applicable state and local laws, and considered the proposal and the staffreport and 
recommendations together with all public testimony of interested parties; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council considered the scope of the proposal, reviewed the 
evidence and determined that Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5519 will not have a significant 
impact on the environment; and 

WHEREAS, per the Public Resources Code, Section 21080.1, Division 13, 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the City of Selma is responsible for determining whether an 
environmental impact report, a negative declaration, or a mitigated negative declaration shall be 
required; and 

WHEREAS, based on substantial evidence provided in the Initial Study and the 
whole record before the Planning Commission for Environmental Assessment No. 2005-0045, it has 
been determined that there is no possibility this project may have any significant effects on the 
environment. The City Council certifies the adequacy of the document and adopts the Negative 
Declaration; and r 

WHEREAS, the City Council detemiines that the following findings of fact for 
approval listed and included in this Resolution can be made based on the reports, evidence and verbal 
presentations, subject to annexation: 

1. The proposed map is consistent with applicable general plans. 

2. The proposed vesting tentative tract map design and improvements are consistent with the 
Selma General Plan and any applicable specific plans because the design complies with the 
implementation and policies set in the General Plan document. 



3. The site is physically suitable for this type of development. 

4. The site is physically suitable for the proposed density of this development. 

5. The design ofthe subdivision or the proposed improvements are not likely to cause substantial 
environmental damage or substantially and unavoidably injure fish or wildlife or their habitat. 

6. The design of the subdivision or type of improvements are not likely to cause serious public 
health problems. 

7. The design ofthe subdivision or the type of improvements will not conflict with easements, 
acquired by the public at large, for access through or use of property within the proposed 
subdivision. 

8. All conditions of approval related to dedications, street improvements, the installation of 
infrastructure such as sewer and water lines, storm drain facilities, and other public 
improvements have been evaluated and it has been confirmed that a rough proportionality 
andlor a required degree of connection exists between the dedication imposed or public 
improvement required and the proposed development; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council, having made its findings of fact, was of the opinion that 
Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5519, subject to annexation, should be approved subject to the 
following certain conditions of approval to be listed and made a part of the Resolution: 

Planning Division 

1. Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5519 is approved subject to the conditions as developed. 

2. Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5519 shall be valid for two (2) years from the date of 
approval, unless extended in accordance with the Selma Municipal Code. If a Final Tract Map 
(the 'Tract Map') is not filed and approved prior to the end of the two-year life of the Vesting 
Tentative Tract Map approval, the Vesting Tentative Tract Map approval shall expire and 
become null and void. 

3. The design improvements of the subdivision shall be consistent with the Selma General Plan 
and the appropriate residential zone classification. The design and improvements ofthe Tract 
Map shall conform to the Selma City Zoning Ordinance or as otherwise permitted by this 
approval. 

4. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall relay all Conditions of Approval for this 
Vesting Tentative Tract Map to all subsequent purchasers of individual lots if applicable 
andlor to subsequent purchasers of this entire Tract Map development. 

5. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall contact and comply with the requirements of 
the United States Postal Service - Selma Office - for the cost, location and type of mailbox 
to be installed if one is to be utilized on-site. The location of the facilities shall be approved 
by the Engineer prior to approval of improvement plans or any construction. Cluster boxes, 
when required, shall be installed at the Subdivider's cost by the Subdivider. 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 57

3. The site is physically suitable for this type of development. 

4. The site is physically suitable for the proposed density of this development. 

5. The design ofthe subdivision or the proposed improvements are not likely to cause substantial 
environmental damage or substantially and unavoidably injure fish or wildlife or their habitat. 

6. The design of the subdivision or type of improvements are not likely to cause serious public 
health problems. 

7. The design ofthe subdivision or the type of improvements will not conflict with easements, 
acquired by the public at large, for access through or use of property within the proposed 
subdivision. 

8. All conditions of approval related to dedications, street improvements, the installation of 
infrastructure such as sewer and water lines, storm drain facilities, and other public 
improvements have been evaluated and it has been confinned that a rough proportionality 
and/or a required degree of connection exists between the dedication imposed or public 
improvement required and the proposed development; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council, having made its findings offact, was of the opinion that 
Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5519, subject to annexation, should be approved subject to the 
following certain conditions of approval to be listed and made a part of the Resolution: 

Planning Division 

1. Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5519 is approved subject to the conditions as developed. 

2. Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5519 shall be valid for two (2) years from the date of 
approval, unless extended in accordance with the Selma Municipal Code. If a Final Tract Map 
(the 'Tract Map') is not filed and approved prior to the end of the two-year life of the Vesting 
Tentative Tract Map approval, the Vesting Tentative Tract Map approval shall expire and 
become null and void. 

3. The design improvements of the subdivision shall be consistent with the Selma General Plan 
and the appropriate residential zone classification. The design and improvements ofthe Tract 
Map shall conform to the Selma City Zoning Ordinance or as otherwise permitted by this 
approval. 

4. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall relay all Conditions of Approval for this 
Vesting Tentative Tract Map to all subsequent purchasers of individual lots if applicable 
and/or to subsequent purchasers of this entire Tract Map development. 

5. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall contact and comply with the requirements of 
the United States Postal Service - Selma Office - for the cost, location and type of mailbox 
to be installed if one is to be utilized on-site. The location of the facilities shall be approved 
by the Engineer prior to approval of improvement plans or any construction. Cluster boxes, 
when required, shall be installed at the Subdivider's cost by the Subdivider. 



6. The Subdivider or uccess I' In mterest hall obtain City approval in advance for temporary 
and permanent signs through a Master Signage Plan in a separate sign review consistent 
with thl! I velopment criteri a of the Selma Municipal Code Sign Ordinance. Signs require 
the submittal of a sign application, fees and approval by the Community Development 
Department prior to installation. 

7. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall provide landscaping and irrigation plans for all 
proposed landscape areas as indicated on the Tract Map for review and approval by the 
Community Development Department. All irrigation systems shall be operated by an 
electric timer. No battery operated timers shall be permitted. 

8. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall plant two trees in the front yard setbacks of 
each single family residential lot. The trees shall be located outside of the ten (10) foot 
public right-of-way as measured from the face ofthe street curb. The trees within the front 
yard shall be selected by the lot owner from a list approved by the Community Development 
Department. 

9. All required trees shall be double-staked and tied with durable materials. Planting details 
shall be clearly shown on the submitted plans. Species of street trees to be planted shall be 
approved by the Community Development Department. All trees shall be of a fifteen-gallon 
container size or larger and not less than two inches in diameter, measured four and one half 
feet from the root ball. The trees must be planted prior to occupancy. 

10. Root barriers shall be installed in accordance with City standards for all trees planted within 
five (5) feet of a sidewalk, curb or masonry/other wall. Landscaping shall be provided on 
the street side yards of all comer lots. 

11 . The Tract Map shall show all landscape frontages along streets adjacent to the subject site. 

12. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall provide landscaping and irrigation in the area 
reserved for landscaping within the Caltrans ultimate right-of-way. The planting and trees 
shall be picked from an approved Caltrans listing of trees and shrubs. 

13. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall request annexation of landscaped areas in 
public rights-of-way [Nebraska, Highland (SH 43), Fig] pursuant to the requirements ofthe 
City Engineer. These landscape areas shall be maintained by the developer for 120 days from 
the day of the Notice of Completion approval and prior to the district formation. The 
maintenance agreement shall be reviewed and approved by the City Engineer, Caltrans, and the 
City Attorney. 

14. All landscape improvements shall be installed and accepted for maintenance by the City 
prior to issuance of20% of the Tract's building permits. 

15. The street names designated on the Tract Map are not approved street names. Street names 
shall be reviewed and approved by the Community Development Department prior to the 
submission ofthe Final Map. 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 58

6. The Subdivider or uccess r in interest hall obtain City approval in advance for temporary 
and permanent signs through a Master Signage Plan in a separate sign review consistent 
with the cI ve lopment criteria of the Selma Municipal Code Sign Ordinance. Signs require 
the submittal of a sign application, fees and approval by the Community Development 
Department prior to installation. 

7. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall provide landscaping and irrigation plans for all 
proposed landscape areas as indicated on the Tract Map for review and approval by the 
Community Development Department. All irrigation systems shall be operated by an 
electric timer. No battery operated timers shall be permitted. 

8. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall plant two trees in the front yard setbacks of 
each single family residential lot. The trees shall be located outside of the ten (10) foot 
public right-of-way as measured from the face ofthe street curb. The trees within the front 
yard shall be selected by the lot owner from a list approved by the Community Development 
Department. 

9. All required trees shall be double-staked and tied with durable materials. Planting details 
shall be clearly shown on the submitted plans. Species of street trees to be planted shall be 
approved by the Community Development Department. All trees shall be of a fifteen-gallon 
container size or larger and not less than two inches in diameter, measured four and one half 
feet from the root ball. The trees must be planted prior to occupancy. 

10. Root barriers shall be installed in accordance with City standards for all trees planted within 
five (5) feet of a sidewalk, curb or masonry/other wall. Landscaping shall be provided on 
the street side yards of all comer lots. 

11 . The Tract Map shall show all landscape frontages along streets adjacent to the subject site. 

12. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall provide landscaping and irrigation in the area 
reserved for landscaping within the Caltrans ultimate right-of-way. The planting and trees 
shall be picked from an approved Caltrans listing of trees and shrubs. 

13. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall request annexation oflandscaped areas in 
public rights-of-way [Nebraska, Highland (SH 43), Fig] pursuant to the requirements ofthe 
City Engineer. These landscape areas shall be maintained by the developer for 120 days from 
the day of the Notice of Completion approval and prior to the district formation. The 
maintenance agreement shall be reviewed and approved by the City Engineer, Caltrans, and the 
City Attorney. 

14. All landscape improvements shall be installed and accepted for maintenance by the City 
prior to issuance of20% of the Tract's building permits. 

15. The street names designated on the Tract Map are not approved street names. Street names 
shall be reviewed and approved by the Community Development Department prior to the 
submission of the Final Map. 



16. The proposed subdivision shall meet or exceed all R-1-7 (R-1) Residential Lot Standards, 
including, but not limited to, lot area, buildable area, dimension and setback requirements, 
of the City Municipal Code in effect at the time of tentative tract map approval. 

17. The Conditions, Covenants and Regulations that are created by the Subdivider or successor 
in interest shall clearly provide that each single-family dwelling shall project the sense of an 
individually designed custom home. Each dwelling'S front elevation shall be sufficiently 
unique to preven1 the appearance and/or perception of sameness associated with tract homes. 
Sufficient changes to the roof line, over-hangs, and materials shall be provided as needed to 
provide such unique appearance for each dwelling. The determination as to satisfaction of 
this condition of approval is within the discretion of the Building Official, which 
determination shall not be unreasonably withheld, prior to issuance of each building permit. 
Such determination may be appealed to the Conununity Development Director ofthe City. 

Building Division 

18. All private domestic or agriculture water wells and existing sewage disposal systems shall 
be safely and properly destroyed under permit and inspection in accordance with Fresno 
County Health Department standards and Wlder the direction of the Building Official. 

19. All necessary building plans shall be subrnitted for review and approval by the Building 
Official. All required building permits and inspections shall be obtained prior to the issuance of 
a Certificate of Occupancy and conunencement of operations. 

20. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with the most currently adopted version of 
all California Uniform Codes and regulations as required. 

Engineering Division 

21. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall have a Final Tract Map (the 'Tract Map') 
prepared in the form prescribed by the Subdivision Map Act and City of Selma Municipal 
Code. The Tract Map shall be submitted to the Engineer, and should include, but not be 
limited to, Tract Map, the current filing fee, closure calculations, current preliminary title 
report, legal descriptions and drawings of required dedications. 

22. The Tract Map shall include a "Right to Farm" covenant statement acknowledged by 
separate recorded instrument to ensure that normal farming operations may continue on 
adjacent and nearby agricultural uses and properties. 

23. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall submit to the Engineer, a set of construction 
plans on 24" x 36" sheets with City standard title block for all required improvements (the 
'Improvement Plans'). The Improvement Plans shall be prepared by a registered civil 
engineer, and shall include a site grading and drainage plan and an overall site utility plan 
showing locations and sizes of sewer, water, irrigation, and storm drain mains, laterals, 
manholes, meters, valves, hydrants, other facilities, such as medians and stamped concrete, 
etc. Plan check and inspection fees per City of Selma shall be paid with the first submittal 
of said Improvement Plans. All hnprovement Plans shall be approved by the City and all 
other involved agencies prior to the release of any development permits. 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 59

16. The proposed subdivision shall meet or exceed all R-I-7 (R-l) Residential Lot Standards, 
including, but not limited to, lot area, buildable area, dimension and setback requirements, 
of the City Municipal Code in effect at the time of tentative tract map approval. 

17. The Conditions, Covenants and Regulations that are created by the Subdivider or successor 
in interest shall clearly provide that each single-family dwelling shall project the sense of an 
individually designed custom home. Each dwelling's front elevation shall be sufficiently 
unique to prevent the appearance and/or perception of sameness associated with tract homes. 
Sufficient changes to the roof line, over-hangs, and materials shall be provided as needed to 
provide such unique appearance for each dwelling. The determination as to satisfaction of 
this condition of approval is within the discretion of the Building Official, which 
determination shall not be unreasonably withheld, prior to issuance of each building permit. 
Such determination may be appealed to the Conununity Development Director ofthe City. 

Building Division 

18. All private domestic or agriculture water wells and existing sewage disposal systems shall 
be safely and properly destroyed under permit and inspection in accordance with Fresno 
County Health Department standards and Wlder the direction of the Building Official. 

19. All necessary building plans shall be subrnitted for review and approval by the Building 
Official. All required building permits and inspections shall be obtained prior to the issuance of 
a Certificate of Occupancy and conunencement of operations. 

20. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with the most currently adopted version of 
all California Uniform Codes and regulations as required. 

Engineering Division 

21. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall have a Final Tract Map (the 'Tract Map') 
prepared in the form prescribed by the Subdivision Map Act and City of Selma Municipal 
Code. The Tract Map shall be submitted to the Engineer, and should include, but not be 
limited to, Tract Map, the current filing fee, closure calculations, current preliminary title 
report, legal descriptions and drawings of required dedications. 

22. The Tract Map shall include a "Right to Farm" covenant statement acknowledged by 
separate recorded instrument to ensure that normal farming operations may continue on 
adjacent and nearby agricultural uses and properties. 

23. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall submit to the Engineer, a set of construction 
plans on 24" x 36" sheets with City standard title block for all required improvements (the 
'Improvement Plans'). The Improvement Plans shall be prepared by a registered civil 
engineer, and shall include a site grading and drainage plan and an overall site utility plan 
showing locations and sizes of sewer, water, irrigation, and storm drain mains, laterals, 
manholes, meters, valves, hydrants, other facilities, such as medians and stamped concrete, 
etc. Plan check and inspection fees per City of Selma shall be paid with the first submittal 
of said Improvement Plans. All Improvement Plans shall be approved by the City and all 
other involved agencies prior to the release of any development permits. 



24. The design and construction of all off-site improvements shall be in accordanc with City 
standards and constmction specifications. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall 
furnish to the City acceptable secU1ity to guarantee the construction ofthe off-site street 
improvements in accordance with the Subdivision Map Act. 

25. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with, and be responsible for obtaining 
encroachment permits from the City of Selma for all work performed within the City's right
of-way. 

26. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall agree to pay all applicable updated Community 
Development Fees prior to Final Map approval by Council. 

27. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall provide a dedication for a ten (10) foot public 
utility easement along all frontages of a1110ts as approved by the Engineer and the public 
utilities companies. No public utility easements (electric, gas, cable, telephone, sewer, 
water) shall be permitted in rear lot setback areas. 

28. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with the requirements ofthe Pacific, 
Gas and Electric Company (PG&E), SBC, Com Cast). The City shall not accept first 
submittals without proof that the Subdivider has paid the appropriate PG&E engineering 
fees and provided PG&E with a set of plans showing proposed electrical vaults and 
proposed sidewalk and curb grades adj acent to the vaults. All PG&E vaults in which lids 
can not be sloped to match the proposed finished grading shall be located in sidewalk areas 
with pedestrian lids so the lid slope matches sidewalk cross slope. 

29. No above-ground transformer is pennitted on the required sidewalk within the public right
of-way. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall utilize screening techniques 
recommended pursuant to PG&E design descriptions and City Engineer approval. 

30. All existing overhead and new utility facilities located on-site, or within the street rights-of -
way adjacent to this subdivision shall be under grounded. 

31. All underground utilities installed under streets shall be backfilled, compacted, tested and 
approved by the Engineer prior to placement of any aggregate base or asphalt concrete 
surfacing. Easements for utilities, including water, gas, telephone, electricity, sewage, 
pedestrian access, fire access, storm drainage, and irrigation facilities shall be provided, as 
required. 

32. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall install street lights on metal poles to local 
utility providers' and/or City standards at the locations designated by the Engineer. Street 
light locations shall be shown on the utility plans submitted with the final map for approval. 
Proof of local utility provider's approval shall be provided. The design and type of metal 
poles shall be reviewed and approved by the City Engineer. 

33 . Drainage, grading, on-site and utility improvements shaH be in accordance with plans 
reviewed and approved by the Engineer. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall be 
responsible for the preparation of plans prior to the approval of the Final Map. The applicant 
shall construct storm drainage facilities as deemed necessary by the Engineer to service the 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 60

24. The design and construction of all off-site improvements shall be in accordanc with City 
standards and constmction specifications. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall 
furnish to the City acceptable secUlity to guarantee the construction ofthe off-site street 
improvements in accordance with the Subdivision Map Act. 

25. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with, and be responsible for obtaining 
encroachment permits from the City of Selma for all work performed within the City's right
of-way. 

26. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall agree to pay all applicable updated Community 
Development Fees prior to Final Map approval by Council. 

27. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall provide a dedication for a ten (10) foot public 
utility easement along all frontages of al1lots as approved by the Engineer and the public 
utilities companies. No public utility easements (electric, gas, cable, telephone, sewer, 
water) shall be pennitted in rear lot setback areas. 

28. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with the requirements ofthe Pacific, 
Gas and Electric Company (PG&E), SBC, Com Cast). The City shall not accept first 
submittals without proof that the Subdivider has paid the appropriate PG&E engineering 
fees and provided PG&E with a set of plans showing proposed electrical vaults and 
proposed sidewalk and curb grades adj acent to the vaults. All PG&E vaults in which lids 
can not be sloped to match the proposed finished grading shall be located in sidewalk areas 
with pedestrian lids so the lid stope matches sidewalk cross slope. 

29. No above-ground transfonner is pennitted on the required sidewalk within the public right
of-way. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall utilize screening techniques 
recommended pursuant to PG&E design descriptions and City Engineer approval. 

30. All existing overhead and new utility facilities located on-site, or within the street rights-of -
way adjacent to this subdivision shall be Wlder groWlded. 

31 . All Wlderground utilities installed Wlder streets shall be backfilled, compacted, tested and 
approved by the Engineer prior to placement of any aggregate base or asphalt concrete 
surfacing. Easements for utilities, including water, gas, telephone, electricity, sewage, 
pedestrian access, fire access, storm drainage, and irrigation facilities shall be provided, as 
required. 

32. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall install street lights on metal poles to local 
utility providers' and/or City standards at the locations designated by the Engineer. Street 
light locations shall be shown on the utility plans submitted with the final map for approval. 
Proof of local utility provider's approval shall be provided. The design and type of metal 
poles shall be reviewed and approved by the City Engineer. 

33 . Drainage, grading, on-site and utility improvements shall be in accordance with plans 
reviewed and approved by the Engineer. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall be 
responsible for the preparation of plans prior to the approval of the Final Map. The applicant 
shall construct storm drainage facilities as deemed necessary by the Engineer to service the 



project site. The Final Map shall not be approved prior to the development of stonn drainage 
master plans for the subject site and tributary areas. 

34. Grade differentials between lots and adjacent properties shall be adequately shown on the 
grading plan and shall be treated in a manner in conformance with City of Selma standards (i.e. 
retaining walls). 

35; Design and construction of all street cross sections and required off-site improvements shall be 
in accordance with City specifications and as approved by the Engineer. 

36. The ultimate width of Nebraska Avenue public right-of-way, an arterial street, is 94 feet. 
Constructed improvements for Nebraska Avenue from west to east shall be consistent with 
the improvements required for Nebraska Avenue and continued in like manner. 

37. All other interior streets shall be constructed as ultimate sixty (60) foot rights-of-way, 
including standard curb, gutter, park landscape strips, sidewalk, handicap ramps, street 
lighting and full width permanent paving (40' permanent), pavement marking and signage, 
pursuant to review and approval by the City Engineer. As noted, the City may require park 
landscape strips between the curb and sidewalk, within the public right-of-way pursuant to 
the review and approval by the City Engineer. 

38. Traffic and road signs shall be installed in conformance to requirements and as approved by 
the Engineer. 

39. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall enter into a Subdivision Agreement in accordance 
with the City of Selma Municipal Code prior to approval of the Final Map. 

40. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall not install any fences, temporary or permanent in 
the public right-of-way. 

41. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall construct a solid a decorative six (6) foot masonry 
block wall along the entire length of Nebraska Avenue and Highland Avenue adjacent to the 
tract map, Fig Street adjacent to lots 23, 24,57,58, and access street on Nebraska Avenue 
adjacent to lots 2 and 3. Design and structural details for the type and style of the wall shall be 
submitted to the Community Development Department and the Engineer for review and 
approval by the City Council prior to the approval of the Final Map. The wall shall be a 
minimum of six feet from the interior of the lots and shall include constructed pilaster columns 
with a maximum spacing of twenty feet (20') o.c. The materials shall be of decorative block 
such as brick or split faced concrete block with textured block accents. 

42. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall construct a solid six (6) foot masonry block walls 
between C-l (Neighborhood Commercial) area and tract map. Design details for the type and 
style of the wall shall be submitted to the Community Development Department and the 
Engineer for review and approval prior to the approval ofthe Final Map and Subdivision 
Agreement. 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 61

project site. The Final Map shall not be approved prior to the development of storm drainage 
master plans for the subject site and tributary areas. 

34. Grade differentials between lots and adjacent properties shall be adequately shown on the 
grading plan and shall be treated in a manner in conformance with City of Selma standards (i.e. 
retaining walls). 

35; Design and construction of all street cross sections and required off-site improvements shall be 
in accordance with City specifications and as approved by the Engineer. 

36. The ultimate width of Nebraska Avenue public right-of-way, an arterial street, is 94 feet. 
Constructed improvements for Nebraska Avenue from west to east shall be consistent with 
the improvements required for Nebraska Avenue and continued in like manner. 

37. All other interior streets shall be constructed as ultimate sixty (60) foot rights-of-way, 
including standard curb, gutter, park landscape strips, sidewalk, handicap ramps, street 
lighting and full width permanent paving (40' permanent), pavement marking and signage, 
pursuant to review and approval by the City Engineer. As noted, the City may require park 
landscape strips between the curb and sidewalk, within the public right-of-way pursuant to 
the review and approval by the City Engineer. 

38. Traffic and road signs shall be installed in conformance to requirements and as approved by 
the Engineer. 

39. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall enter into a Subdivision Agreement in accordance 
with the City of Selma Municipal Code prior to approval of the Final Map. 

40. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall not install any fences, temporary or permanent in 
the public right-of-way. 

41. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall construct a solid a decorative six (6) foot masonry 
block wall along the entire length of Nebraska Avenue and Highland Avenue adjacent to the 
tract map, Fig Street adjacent to lots 23, 24, 57, 58, and access street on Nebraska Avenue 
adjacent to lots 2 and 3. Design and structural details for the type and style of the wall shall be 
submitted to the Community Development Department and the Engineer for review and 
approval by the City Council prior to the approval of the Final Map. The wall shall be a 
minimwn of six feet from the interior of the lots and shall include constructed pilaster columns 
with a maximwn spacing of twenty feet (20') o.c. The materials shall be of decorative block 
such as brick or split faced concrete block with textured block accents. 

42. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall construct a solid six (6) foot masonry block walls 
between C-l (Neighborhood Commercial) area and tract map. Design details for the type and 
style of the wall shall be submitted to the Community Development Department and the 
Engineer for review and approval prior to the approval ofthe Final Map and Subdivision 
Agreement. 



43. After all improvements have been constructed and accepted by the City, the Subdivider shall 
submit to the Engineering, one blue line copy of the approved set of construction plans revised 
to reflect all field revisions and marked "AS-BUILT" for review and approval. 

44. Upon approval of the "AS-BUILTS" by the City, the Subdivider shall provide (1) reproducible 
and (1) copy of the "AS-BDILTSII to the City, and one (1) copy on diskette, CD or similar 
digital storage media in pdf or tif format. 

45. The Subdivider shall provide the City with original improvement plans and Auto CAD files 
of the Final Map, improvement plans, and all drawings prepared on Auto CAD. 

Fire Department 

46. Fire hydrants and water supply systems of Cali fomi a Water Company shall be provided in 
accordance with the specifications of and at locations designated by the Selma Fire Chief. 
All fire hydrants and mains are to meet City standards and specifications. 

47. All weather access shall be provided to all areas of the development during construction to 
the satisfaction of the Fire Department. 

48. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with all applicable requirements of the 
most recent Uniform Fire Codes and local fire ordinances. 

Selma Unified School District 

49. The Subdivider or successor in interest must contact Selma Unified School District and pay 
all applicable fees at the time of building pennit issuance. 

Selma-Kingsburg-Fowler County Sanitation District 

50. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall connect to S-K-F and comply with all applicable 
regulations, standards and specifications of the District. 

51. The Subdivider or successor in interest is responsible for arranging a pre-design meeting with 
District staff and the City of Sehna in order to review the sewer improvements required to serve 
this project's needs. 

California Water Service Company 

52. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall connect to the Company and comply with all 
regulations, standards and specifications ofthe Company. 

53. California Water Service Company will extend its mains to serve this development in 
accordance with the main extension rules of the Public Utilities Commission of the State of 
California. If and when the Subdivider or the successor in interest has entered into an 
agreement with the Company and has deposited the estimated cost of making the extension, the 
Company will install the necessary water mains and serve the project with water at the rates 
and in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Corrunission. 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 62

43. After all improvements have been constructed and accepted by the City, the Subdivider shall 
submit to the Engineering, one blue line copy of the approved set of construction plans revised 
to reflect all field revisions and marked "AS-BUILT" for review and approval. 

44. Upon approval of the "AS-BUILTS" by the City, the Subdivider shall provide (1) reproducible 
and (1) copy of the "AS-BVILTSII to the City, and one (1) copy on diskette, CD or similar 
digital storage media in pdf or tif fomlat. 

45. The Subdivider shall provide the City with original improvement plans and Auto CAD files 
of the Final Map, improvement plans, and all drawings prepared on Auto CAD. 

Fire Department 

46. Fire hydrants and water supply systems of Cali fomi a Water Company shall be provided in 
accordance with the specifications of and at locations designated by the Selma Fire Chief. 
All fire hydrants and mains are to meet City standards and specifications. 

47. All weather access shall be provided to all areas of the development during construction to 
the satisfaction of the Fire Department. 

48. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with all applicable requirements of the 
most recent Uniform Fire Codes and local fire ordinances. 

Selma Unified School District 

49. The Subdivider or successor in interest must contact Selma Unified School District and pay 
all applicable fees at the time of building pennit issuance. 

Selma-Kingsburg-Fowler County Sanitation District 

50. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall connect to S-K-F and comply with all applicable 
regulations, standards and specifications of the District. 

51. The Subdivider or successor in interest is responsible for arranging a pre-design meeting with 
District staff and the City of Sehna in order to review the sewer improvements required to serve 
this project's needs. 

California Water Service Company 

52. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall connect to the Company and comply with all 
regulations, standards and specifications ofthe Company. 

53. California Water Service Company will extend its mains to serve this development in 
accordance with the main extension rules of the Public Utilities Commission of the State of 
California. If and when the Subdivider or the successor in interest has entered into an 
agreement with the Company and has deposited the estimated cost of making the extension, the 
Company will install the necessary water mains and serve the project with water at the rates 
and in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Commission. 



Caltrans 

54. The applicant shall comply with all of the following Caltrans requirements: 
a. According to Caltrans Transportation Concept Report, this segment of SH 43 in the 
vicinity of the proposed project is planned for 146 feet. This needs to be shown on a revised 
site plan and forwarded to Caltrans office for review. 

b. Curb, gutter and sidewalk need to be installed along the frontage of the development 
along SR 43. Improvement plans for work within State right-of-way need to be reviewed prior 
to submitting an encroachment pennit application. 

c. Proposed landscaping improvements along SR 43 will need to be reviewed and 
approved by the Caltrans Office of Landscape Architecture. 

d. An Encroachment Permit must be obtained from Caltrans for any work within the State 
right-of-way. Engineering drawings of all work are to be submitted according to Caltrans 
preferred method. Work planned within the State right-of-way will be perfonned to State 
standards and specifications at no cost to the State. 

e. Project-related impact on the State highway system and the pro-rata share towards area 
wide circulation improvements were assessed upon review of the proposed tentative tract map. 
The applicant shall comply with all applicable improvements, upgrades, and fees as per the 
rules and regulations of the District. The applicant needs to contribute its pro rata fair share of 
$ 27, 687, towards the signalization of SR 431R0se intersection, as calculated by Caltrans. 
Upon this Pro-Rate Share being made a condition of approval for this proj ect, Caltrans will 
enter into a Pro-Rata Share Agreement with the project proponent for the future specified 
improvements. 

San Joaquin Valley Unified Air Pollution Control District 

55. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall refer to the SN APCD suggested rules and 
mitigation measures to reduce pollutants. 

Consolidated Irrigation District 

56. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with all applicable improvements and 
upgrades as per the rules and regulations of the Consolidated Irrigation District. No 
Consolidated Irrigation District structures are pennitted on private property. All Consolidated 
Irrigation District structure will be under grounded and properly concealed. 

Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District 

57. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with all applicable improvements and 
upgrades as per the rules and regulations of the Consolidated Irrigation District. 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 63

Caltrans 

54. The applicant shall comply with all of the following Caltrans requirements: 
a. According to Caltrans Transportation Concept Report, this segment of SH 43 in the 
vicinity ofthe proposed project is planned for 146 feet. This needs to be shown on a revised 
site plan and forwarded to Caltrans office for review. 

b. Curb, gutter and sidewalk need to be installed along the frontage of the development 
along SR 43. hnprovement plans for work within State right-of-way need to be reviewed prior 
to submitting an encroachment permit application. 

c. Proposed landscaping improvements along SR 43 will need to be reviewed and 
approved by the Caltrans Office of Landscape Architecture. 

d. An Encroachment Permit must be obtained from Caltrans for any work within the State 
right-of-way. Engineering drawings of all work are to be submitted according to Caltrans 
preferred method. Work planned within the State right-of-way will be performed to State 
standards and specifications at no cost to the State. 

e. Project-related impact on the State highway system and the pro-rata share towards area 
wide circulation improvements were assessed upon review of the proposed tentative tract map. 
The applicant shall comply with all applicable improvements, upgrades, and fees as per the 
rules and regulations of the District. The applicant needs to contribute its pro rata fair share of 
$ 27, 687, towards the signalization of SR 431R0se intersection, as calculated by Caltrans. 
Upon this Pro-Rate Share being made a condition of approval for this proj ect, Caltrans will 
enter into a Pro-Rata Share Agreement with the project proponent for the future specified 
improvements. 

San Joaquin Valley Unified Air Pollution Control District 

55. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall refer to the SN APCD suggested rules and 
mitigation measures to reduce pollutants. 

Consolidated Irrigation District 

56. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with all applicable improvements and 
upgrades as per the rules and regulations of the Consolidated Irrigation District. No 
Consolidated Irrigation District structures are permitted on private property. All Consolidated 
Irrigation District structure will be under grounded and properly concealed. 

Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District 

57. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with all applicable improvements and 
upgrades as per the rules and regulations of the Consolidated Irrigation District. 



County of Fresno Human Health System - Environmental Health 

58. All existing agricultural wells and irrigation systems must be safely and properly destroyed. 
The Subdivider or successor in interest shall obtain approval from the County of Fresno 
prior to the removal of any wells and irrigation systems. Well-head installations and 
abandonrnents shall be performed exclusively by licensed C-57 Specialty Contractors 
pursuant to the California State Contractor's Licensing Law. 

59. All construction equipment must be maintained according to the manufacturers' 
specifications, and noise generating construction equipment must be equipped with mufflers. 
Noise-generation construction activities shall be limited to daytime hours. 

60. Any construction materials deemed hazardous as identified in the demolition process must 
be characterized and disposed of in accordance with current federal, State, and local 
requirements. 

61. Should any underground storage tank( s) be found on the premises, the Subdivider or 
successor in interest shall apply for and secure and Underground Storage Tank Removal 
Permit from the Fresno County Department of Community Health, Environmental Health 
System (559) 445-3271. 

California Regional Water Quality Control Board 

62. The Subdivider or successor in interest is required to comply with the State of California 
Water Resource Control Board requirements specifically related to the National Pollution 
Elimination System permit process. 

63. The Subdivider or successor interest shall contact the Regional Water Quality Board and 
comply with all requirements, prior to the release of any development permits. 

CITY ATTORNEY - Defense and Indemnification Provisions: 

64. The City shall not be liable to the Subdivider or to any other person, firm, or corporation 
whatsoever, for any injury or damage that may result to any person or property by or from 
any cause whatsoever in, on, or about the subdivision of said land covered by this 
Agreement, or any part thereof. The preceding sentence shall not apply to any liability, loss, 
cost of damages caused solely by the negligence (active or passive) or willful misconduct of 
the City or its agents. 

65. The Subdivider hereby releases and agrees to indemnify and hold the City Engineer, and its 
officers, agents, employees and volunteers harmless from and against any and all injuries to 
and deaths of persons or injuries to property, and all claims, demands, costs, loss, damage 
and liability, howsoever the same may be caused and whensoever the same may appear, 
reSUlting directly or indirectly from the performance or nonperformance of any or all work 
to be done in said subdivision including but not limited to the street lights of way in said 
Subdivision and upon the premises adjacent thereto pursuant to this Agreement, and also 
from any and all injuries to and deaths of persons and injuries to property or other interests, 
and all claims, demands, costs, loss, damage, and liability, howsoever same may be caused 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 64

County of Fresno Human Health System - Environmental Health 

58. All existing agricultural wells and irrigation systems must be safely and properly destroyed. 
The Subdivider or successor in interest shall obtain approval from the County of Fresno 
prior to the removal of any wells and irrigation systems. Well-head installations and 
abandonments shall be performed exclusively by licensed C-57 Specialty Contractors 
pursuant to the California State Contractor's Licensing Law. 

59. All construction equipment must be maintained according to the manufacturers' 
specifications, and noise generating construction equipment must be equipped with mufflers. 
Noise-generation construction activities shall be limited to daytime hours. 

60. Any construction materials deemed hazardous as identified in the demolition process must 
be characterized and disposed of in accordance with current federal, State, and local 
requirements. 

61. Should any underground storage tank( s) be found on the premises, the Subdivider or 
successor in interest shall apply for and secure and Underground Storage Tank Removal 
Permit from the Fresno County Department of Community Health, Environmental Health 
System (559) 445-3271. 

California Regional Water Quality Control Board 

62. The Subdivider or successor in interest is required to comply with the State of California 
Water Resource Control Board requirements specifically related to the National Pollution 
Elimination System permit process. 

63. The Subdivider or successor interest shall contact the Regional Water Quality Board and 
comply with all requirements, prior to the release of any development permits. 

CITY ATTORNEY - Defense and Indemnification Provisions: 

64. The City shall not be liable to the Subdivider or to any other person, firm, or corporation 
whatsoever, for any injury or damage that may result to any person or property by or from 
any cause whatsoever in, on, or about the subdivision of said land covered by this 
Agreement, or any part thereof. The preceding sentence shall not apply to any liability, loss, 
cost of damages caused solely by the negligence (active or passive) or willful misconduct of 
the City or its agents. 

65. The Subdivider hereby releases and agrees to indemnify and hold the City Engineer, and its 
officers, agents, employees and volunteers harmless from and against any and all injuries to 
and deaths of persons or injuries to property, and all claims, demands, costs, loss, damage 
and liability, howsoever the same may be caused and whensoever the same may appear, 
reSUlting directly or indirectly from the performance or nonperformance of any or all work 
to be done in said subdivision including but not limited to the street lights of way in said 
Subdivision and upon the premises adjacent thereto pursuant to this Agreement, and also 
from any and all injuries to and deaths of persons and injuries to property or other interests, 
and all claims, demands, costs, loss, damage, and liability, howsoever same may be caused 



and whensoever same may appear, either directly or indirectly made or suffered by the 
Subdivider, the Subdivider's agents, employees, and subcontractors, while engaged in the 
performance of said work. The preceding sentence shall not apply to any liability, loss, cost, 
damage and liability caused solely by the negligence (active or passive) or willful 
misconduct of the City or its agents. 

Additional General Conditions: 

66. A solid block wall is to be installed on all exterior fence lines. It will include the eastern 
most, western most and southern most boundaries of the project. The solid block wall 
construction is to include all side yard fence lines facing a public right of way. All solid 
block walls are to follow the standards as was previously specified in the engineering 
section. 

67. All mechanical equipment (air conditioners or dual pact) will be located in the attic or on the 
ground on foundations. 

68. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall notify and disclose to all potential property 
owners that they are located adjacent to a public active lighted soccer field with evening 
operational hours. 

69. The Subdivider or successor in interest is responsible to COMect to and pay all the necessary 
fees subject to the new storm drain master plans upon its approval. 

70. Fences shall be set with a 12 inch wide concrete mow strip with post construction of 
masonry or stee1. Pressure treated wood posts are allowed. -

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the CityofSehna City Council 
hereby fmds and takes the following actions: 

1. The above facts are true and correct. 

2. The City Council approves the Negative Declaration (Environmental Assessment No. 2005-
0045) for the project and approves Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5519 subject to 
annexation, and subject to the Findings for Approval and Conditions of Approval made part 
of this Resolution. 

* * * * * 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 65

and whensoever same may appear, either directly or indirectly made or suffered by the 
Subdivider, the Subdivider's agents, employees, and subcontractors, while engaged in the 
performance of said work. The preceding sentence shall not apply to any liability, loss, cost, 
damage and liability caused solely by the negligence (active or passive) or willful 
misconduct of the City or its agents. 

Additional General Conditions: 

66. A solid block wall is to be installed on all exterior fence lines. It will include the eastern 
most, western most and southern most boundaries of the project. The solid block wall 
construction is to include all side yard fence lines facing a public right of way. All solid 
block walls are to follow the standards as was previously specified in the engineering 
section. 

67. All mechanical equipment (air conditioners or dual pact) will be located in the attic or on the 
ground on foundations. 

68. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall notify and disclose to all potential property 
owners that they are located adjacent to a public active lighted soccer field with evening 
operational hours. 

69. The Subdivider or successor in interest is responsible to COIlllect to and pay all the necessary 
fees subject to the new storm drain master plans upon its approval. 

70. Fences shall be set with a 12 inch wide concrete mow strip with post construction of 
masonry or stee1. Pressure treated wood posts are allowed. -

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the CityofSehna City Council 
hereby fmds and takes the following actions: 

1. The above facts are true and correct. 

2. The City Council approves the Negative Declaration (Environmental Assessment No. 2005-
0045) for the project and approves Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5519 subject to 
annexation, and subject to the Findings for Approval and Conditions of Approval made part 
of this Resolution. 

* * * * * 



The foregoing Resolution No. 2006-14R is hereby approved the 21st day of February 
2006 by the following vote, to wit: 

AYES: 5 COUNCIL MEMBERS: Lujan, Derr, Avalos, Niswander, Tow 

NOES: 0 COUNCIL MEMBERS: None 

ABSTAIN: 0 COUNCIL MEMBERS: None 

ABSENT: 0 COUNCIL MEMBERS: None 

ATIEST: 

1'Qu1 ~ ) a. Co.Jt:UA) 
Melanie A. Carter, CMC 
City Clerk 

I Don Tow 
Mayor of the City of Selma 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 66

The foregoing Resolution No. 2006-14R is hereby approved the 21 st day of February 
2006 by the following vote, to wit: 

AYES: 5 COUNCIL MEMBERS: Lujan, Derr, Avalos, Niswander, Tow 

NOES: 0 COUNCIL MEMBERS: None 

ABSTAIN: 0 COUNCIL MEMBERS: None 

ABSENT: 0 COUNCIL MEMBERS: None 

ATIEST: 

1'CW~ ) a. Cevt:t.W 
Melanie A. Carter, CMC 
City Clerk 

I 
Don Tow 
Mayor of the City of Selma 



EXHIBITC 

FEE SCHEDULE 

00016420.WPD;1 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 67

EXHIBITC 

FEE SCHEDULE 

OOOI6420.WPD;1 



ENR Construction Index, Monthly 

2003 6,580.54 6,640.06 6,627.39 6,635.49 6,641.98 6,693.94 6,695.57 6,732.81 6,741.03 6,770.96 6,794.25 6,781.86 6,694.64 

2004 6,824.90 6,861.10 6,956.53 7,016.91 7,064.14 7,109.40 7,125.96 7,187.62 7,298.25 7,313.88 7,311.63 7,308.30 7,114.89 6.28% 
2005 7,297.24 7,297.58 7,308.75 7,355.38 7,398.03 7,414.97 7,421.57 7,478.15 7,518.28 7,562.50 7,631.58 7,646.87 7,445.98 4.65% 
2006 7,660.29 7,688.90 7,691.72 7,694.40 7,690.72 7,699.59 7,700.00 7,722.66 7,763.15 7,882.53 7,910,81 7,887.62 7,749.37 4.07% 
2007 7,879.58 7,879.54 7,856.27 7,862.58 7,942.00 7,983.58 7,959.17 8,007.48 8,049.65 8,045.14 8,091.81 8,089.45 7,970.52 2.85% 
2008 8,090.06 8,094.28 8,109.00 8,126.30 8,140.61 8,184.94 8,293.05 8,361.74 8,556.72 8,623.22 8,602.45 8,551.32 8,311.14 4.27% 
2009 8,549.06 8,532.73 8,534.05 8,528.39 8,573.87 8,578.28 8,566.14 8,563.80 8,585.71 8,596.31 8,591 .79 8,641.45 8,570.13 3.12% 
2010 8,660.08 8,671.00 8,671.07 8,676.68 8,761.47 8,804.79 8,864.72 8,837.37 8,857.70 8,920.54 8,950.64 8,952.40 8,800.66 2.69% 
2011 8,938.30 8,998.02 9,010.80 9,027.23 9,034.67 9,052.64 9,080.15 9,088.24 9,115.95 9,146.95 9,173.21 9,171.73 9,096.82 3.37% 
2012 9,171.73 9,198.29 9,267.57 9,272.95 9,289.65 9,290.00 9,323.58 9,350.99 9,341.03 9,375.52 9,398.41 9,412.25 9,307.66 2.32% 
2013 9,437.27 9,453.02 9,455,98 9,483.70 9,515.86 9,542.33 9,551.78 9,545.33 9,551.58 9,688.86 9,666.46 9,667.77 9,546.66 2.57% 
2014 9,664.45 9,681 .11 9,701.96 9,749.51 9,795.92 9,800.38 9,834.63 9,845.59 9,870.12 9,886.06 9,912.01 9,936.44 9,806.52 2.72% 
2015 9,971.96 9,961 .75 9,972.38 9,992.34 9,979.00 10,036.38 10,037.40 10,038.79 10,065.09 10,128.32 10,092,38 10,135.00 10,034.23 2.32% 

2016 10,132.55 10,181 .92 10,242.09 10,279.94 10,315.44 10,337.05 10,379.26 10,385.65 10,403.43 10,434.56 10,442.61 10,442.61 10,331.43 2.96% 

2017 10,542.01 10,558.63 10,667.39 10,678.15 10,692.17 10,702.81 10,789.41 10,826.31 10,822.92 10,817.11 10,870.06 10,873.46 10,736.70 3.92% 

http.llwww.nrcs.usda.qov/wos/portal/nrcs/main/natlonalltechnical/econlpricesl 

As of Jan. 2018, Use ENR report dated 01-01-XXXX for inflation rate. 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 68

ENR Construction Index, Monthly 

YEAR JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JlJN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC ANN 

2003 6,580.54 6,640.06 6,627.39 6,635.49 6,641.98 6,693.94 6,695.57 6,732.81 6,741.03 6,770.96 6,794.25 6,781.86 6,694.64 

2004 6,824.90 6,861.10 6,956.53 7,016.91 7,064.14 7,109.40 7,125.96 7,187.62 7,298.25 7,313.88 7,311.63 7,308.30 7,114.89 

2005 7,297.24 7,297.58 7,308.75 7,355.38 7,398.03 7,414.97 7,421.57 7,478.15 7,518.28 7,562.50 7,631.58 7,646.87 7,445.98 

2006 7,660.29 7,688.90 7,691.72 7,694.40 7,690.72 7,699.59 7,700.00 7,722.66 7,763.15 7,882.53 7,910,81 7,887.62 7,749.37 

2007 7,879.58 7,879.54 7,856.27 7,862.58 7,942.00 7,983.58 7,959.17 8,007.48 8,049,65 8,045.14 8,091.81 8,089.45 7,970.52 

2008 8,090.06 8,094.28 8,109.00 8,126.30 8,140.61 8,184.94 8,293.05 8,361.74 8,556.72 8,623.22 8,602.45 8,551.32 8,311.14 

2009 8,549.06 8,532.73 8,534.05 8,528.39 8,573.87 8,578.28 8,566.14 8,563.80 8,585.71 8,596.31 8,591 ,79 8,641.45 8,570.13 

2010 8,660.08 8,671.00 8,671.07 8,676.68 8,761.47 8,804.79 8,864.72 8,837.37 8,857.70 8,920.54 8,950.64 8,952.40 8,800.66 

2011 8,938.30 8,998.02 9,010.80 9,027.23 9,034.67 9,052.64 9,080.15 9,088.24 9,115.95 9,146.95 9,173.21 9,171.73 9,096.82 

2012 9,171.73 9,198.29 9,267.57 9,272.95 9,289.65 9,290.00 9,323.58 9,350.99 9,341.03 9,375.52 9,398.41 9,412.25 9,307.66 

2013 9,437.27 9,453.02 9,455,98 9,483.70 9,515.86 9,542.33 9,551.78 9,545.33 9,551.58 9,688.86 9,666.46 9,667.77 9,546.66 

2014 9,664.45 9,681 .11 9,701.96 9,749.51 9,795.92 9,800.38 9,834.63 9,845.59 9,870.12 9,886.06 9,912.01 9,936.44 9,806.52 

2015 9,971.96 9,961.75 9,972.38 9,992.34 9,979.00 10,036.38 10,037.40 10,038.79 10,065.09 10,128.32 10,092,38 10,135.00 10,034.23 

2016 10,132.55 10,181 .92 10,242.09 10,279.94 10,315.44 10,337.05 10,379.26 10,385.65 10,403.43 10,434.56 10,442.61 10,442.61 10,331.43 

2017 10,542.01 10,558.63 10,667.39 10,678.15 10,692.17 10,702.81 10,789.41 10,826.31 10,822.92 10,817.11 10,870.06 10,873.46 10,736.70 

htto.llwww. nres. usda.qov/wos/portal/nres/main/nationalltechnical/econIpricesl 

As of Jan. 2018, Use ENR report dated 01-01-XXXX for inflation rate. 

Annual 
Increase 

6.28% 
4.65% 
4.07% 
2.85% 
4.27% 
3.12% 
2.69% 
3.37% 
2.32% 
2.57% 
2.72% 
2.32% 
2.96% 
3.92% 



SCHEDULE OF DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES 
FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT FACILITIES, VEHICLES 

AND EQUIPMENT 
Resolution No. 2004-9R Schedule Year 2018 

INFLATION RATE USED FOR 2017 AT 3.92 

The Development Impact Fee for Law Enforcement Facilities, Vehicles and Equipment for the City of Selma is hereby 
revised as follows: 

Zone District Fee 
2017 Increase 2018 

Single Family Residential R-1 $ 528.15 3.92% $ 548.86 Per Dwelling Unit 
Duplex and Multi Family Residential R-2, R-3, R-4 $ 395.30 3.92% $ 410.79 Per Dwelling Unit 
Commercial Office/Business $ 0.299 3.92% $ 0.310 Per Square Foot 
Commercail Retail $ 0.299 3.92% $ 0.310 Per Square Foot 
Industrial Light Manufacturing M-1 $ 0.011 3.92% $ 0.012 Per Square Foot 
Industrial Heavy Manufacturing M-2 $ 0.011 3.92% $ 0.012 Per Square Foot 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 69

SCHEDULE OF DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES 
FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT FACILITIES, VEHICLES 

AND EQUIPMENT 
Resolution No. 2004-9R Schedule Year 2018 

INFLATION RATE USED FOR 2017 AT 3.92 

The Development Impact Fee for Law Enforcement Facilities, Vehicles and Equipment for the City of Selma is hereby 
revised as follows: 

Zone District Fee 
2017 Increase 2018 

Single Family Residential R-1 $ 528.15 3.92% $ 548.86 Per Dwelling Unit 
Duplex and Multi Family Residential R-2, R-3, R-4 $ 395.30 3.92% $ 410.79 Per Dwelling Unit 
Commercial Office/Business $ 0.299 3.92% $ 0.310 Per Square Foot 
Commercail Retail $ 0.299 3.92% $ 0.310 Per Square Foot 
Industrial Light Manufacturing M-1 $ 0.011 3.92% $ 0.012 Per Square Foot 
Industrial Heavy Manufacturing M-2 $ 0.011 3.92% $ 0.012 Per Square Foot 



SCHEDULE OF DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES 
FOR FIRE SUPPRESSION/MEDIC FACILITIES, 

VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT 
Resolution No. 2004-9R Schedule Year 2018 

INFLATION RATE USED FOR 2017 AT 3.92 

The Development Impact Fee for Fire Supression/Medic Facilities, Vehicles and Equipment for the City of Selma 
is hereby revised as follows: 

Zone District Fee 
2017 Increase 2018 

Single Family Residential R-1 $ 569.48 3.92% $ 591.80 Per Dwelling Unit 
Duplex and Multi Family Residential R-2, R-3, R-4 $ 779.37 3.92% $ 809.92 Per Dwelling Unit 
Commercial Office/Business $ 0.434 3.92% $ 0.451 Per Square Foot 
Commercail Retail $ 0.398 3.92% $ 0.414 Per Square Foot 
Industrial Light Manufacturing M-1 $ 0.091 3.92% $ 0.095 Per Square Foot 
Industrial Heavy Manufacturing M-2 $ 0.145 3.92% $ 0.151 Per Square Foot 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 70

SCHEDULE OF DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES 
FOR FIRE SUPPRESSION/MEDIC FACILITIES, 

VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT 
Resolution No. 2004-9R Schedule Year 2018 

INFLATION RATE USED FOR 2017 AT 3.92 

The Development Impact Fee for Fire Supression/Medic Facilities, Vehicles and Equipment for the City of Selma 
is hereby revised as follows: 

Zone District Fee 
2017 Increase 2018 

Single Family Residential R-1 $ 569.48 3.92% $ 591.80 Per Dwelling Unit 
Duplex and Multi Family Residential R-2, R-3, R-4 $ 779.37 3.92% $ 809.92 Per Dwelling Unit 
Commercial Office/Business $ 0.434 3.92% $ 0.451 Per Square Foot 
Commercail Retail $ 0.398 3.92% $ 0.414 Per Square Foot 
Industrial Light Manufacturing M-1 $ 0.091 3.92% $ 0.095 Per Square Foot 
Industrial Heavy Manufacturing M-2 $ 0.145 3.92% $ 0.151 Per Square Foot 



SCHEDULE OF DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES 
FOR GENERAL FACILITIES, VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT 

Resolution No. 2004·9R Schedule Year 2018 
INFLATION RATE USED FOR 2017 AT 3.92 

To provide funds to mitigate the impact of new development in the community on the general city facilities and 
equipment (i.e .. , public works, administration) used to provide those services. 

Zone District Fee 
2017 Increase 2018 

Single Family Residential R-1 $ 1,535.59 3.92% $ 1,595.79 Per Dwelling Unit 
Duplex and Multi Family Residential R-2, R-3, R-4 $ 1,535.59 3.92% $ 1,595.79 Per Dwelling Unit 
Commercial Office/Business $ 0.628 3.92% $ 0.653 Per Square Foot 
Commercail Retail $ 0.628 3.92% $ 0.653 Per Square Foot 
Industrial Light Manufacturing M-1 $ 0.628 3.92% $ 0.653 Per Square Foot 
Industrial Heavy Manufacturing M-2 $ 0.628 3.92% $ 0.653 Per Square Foot 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 71

SCHEDULE OF DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES 
FOR GENERAL FACILITIES, VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT 

Resolution No. 2004·9R Schedule Year 2018 
INFLATION RATE USED FOR 2017 AT 3.92 

To provide funds to mitigate the impact of new development in the community on the general city facilities and 
equipment (i.e .. , public works, administration) used to provide those services. 

Zone District Fee 
2017 Increase 2018 

Single Family Residential R-1 $ 1,535.59 3.92% $ 1,595.79 Per Dwelling Unit 
Duplex and Multi Family Residential R-2, R-3, R-4 $ 1,535.59 3.92% $ 1,595.79 Per Dwelling Unit 
Commercial Office/Business $ 0.628 3.92% $ 0.653 Per Square Foot 
Commercail Retail $ 0.628 3.92% $ 0.653 Per Square Foot 
Industrial Light Manufacturing M-1 $ 0.628 3.92% $ 0.653 Per Square Foot 
Industrial Heavy Manufacturing M-2 $ 0.628 3.92% $ 0.653 Per Square Foot 



SCHEDULE OF DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES 
FOR STORM DRAINAGE FACILITIES 

Resolution No. 2004-9R Schedule Year 2018 
INFLATION RATE USED FOR 2017 AT 3.92 

To provide for appropriate flood control and storm drainage facilities for the community due to the impact of new 
residential development. 

Zone District Fee 
2017 Increase 2018 

Single Family Residential R-1 $ 6,066.75 3.92% $ 6,304.57 Per Acre 
Duplex and Multi Family Residential R-2, R-3, R-4 $ 10,111.76 3.92% $ 10,508.14 Per Acre 
Commercial Office/Business $ 16,176.968 3.92% $ 16,811.11 Per Acre 
Commercail Retail $ 16,176.968 3.92% $ 16,811.11 Per Acre 
Industrial Light Manufacturing M-1 $ 14,155.233 3.92% $ 14,710.12 Per Acre 
Industrial Heavy Manufacturing M-2 $ 14,155.233 3.92% $ 14,710.12 Per Acre 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 72

SCHEDULE OF DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES 
FOR STORM DRAINAGE FACILITIES 

Resolution No. 2004-9R Schedule Year 2018 
INFLATION RATE USED FOR 2017 AT 3.92 

To provide for appropriate flood control and storm drainage facilities for the community due to the impact of new 
residential development. 

Zone District Fee 
2017 Increase 2018 

Single Family Residential R-1 $ 6,066.75 3.92% $ 6,304.57 Per Acre 
Duplex and Multi Family Residential R-2, R-3, R-4 $ 10,111.76 3.92% $ 10,508.14 Per Acre 
Commercial Office/Business $ 16,176.968 3.92% $ 16,811.11 Per Acre 
Commercail Retail $ 16,176.968 3.92% $ 16,811.11 Per Acre 
Industrial Light Manufacturing M-1 $ 14,155.233 3.92% $ 14,710.12 Per Acre 
Industrial Heavy Manufacturing M-2 $ 14,155.233 3.92% $ 14,710.12 Per Acre 



SCHEDULE OF DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES 
FOR CIRCULATION SYSTEM (STREETS, SIGNALS AND BRIDGES) 

Resolution No. 2004-9R Schedule Year 2018 
INFLATION RATE USED FOR 2017 AT 3.92 

To provide funds to mitigate the impact of new development in the community on the streets and traffic signals used to provide those services. 

Land Use 

Residential Land Uses 
Single Family Detached 

Apartment 

Mobile Home 

Residential Condominium 
Assisted Care Facility 

Resort/Tourist 
Hotel 

Motel 

Industr1al 
General Light Industrial 

Heavy I nd ustria I 

Manufacturing 

Warehouse 
Commercial 
Office Park 
Research Park 

Business Park 

Bldg. Materials/Lumber Store 

Specialty Retail Center 

Garden Center 

Movie Theater 

Church 

Cemetary 

Medical-Dental Office 

General Office Building 

Shopping Center 

Hospital 

Discount Center (Big Box) 
High-Turnover (Sit-Down) Restaurant 

Fast Food w/drive thru 

Drinking Place (Bar) 

Gasoline/Service Station w/mk 

Convenience Market 

Recreation Community Center 

Walk·ln Bank 

ADT Rate Per Seat 

Room, KSF, or Unit (1) 

14.74 
9.37 
7 .42 
9.04 

33.18 

13.43 
15 .73 

10.76 
15.05 

5.94 
7.53 

17.62 
11.88 
22.18 
47.16 
62.77 
55.68 

0.09 

14.38 
6.42 

52.73 
25.59 
60 .03 

25.85 
108.23 

316.93 
825.75 

17.81 

251.22 
119.88 

35.31 
217.00 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Room 

Room 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

Seat 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

lsland 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

2017 
Cost Per 

Trip Mile 

498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 

498.38 
498.38 

498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 

498.38 

498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 

498.38 

ADTCost Per 

Room, KSF or Unit 

4759.54 
3025.18 

2397.21 
2920.51 

10715.20 

4335.91 
5078.51 

3.474 
4.860 

1.918 
2.432 

5.692 
3.838 
7.162 

15.231 
20.270 

17.981 
29.903 

4.645 
2.073 

17.030 

8.263 
19.387 

8.348 
34.951 

102.348 

266.659 
5.752 

81126.440 

38.714 

11.404 

70.077 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Room 

Room 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Seat 
Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq . Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq . Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq . Ft 

Sq . Ft 

Island 

Sq . Ft 

Sq . Ft 

Sq . Ft 

3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 

3.92% 
3.92% 

3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 

3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 

ADT Rate Per Seat 

Room, KSF, or Unit (1) 

15.32 
9.74 
7.71 
9.40 

34.48 

13.95 
16.34 

11.18 
15.64 

6.17 
7.83 

18.32 
12.35 

23.05 

49.01 

65.23 
57.87 

0.10 

14.95 
6.67 

54.80 

26.59 
62.39 
26.86 

112.47 
329.36 
858.12 

18.51 
261.07 

124.58 
36.70 

225.51 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Room 

Room 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 
KSF 

Seat 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

Island 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

2018 
Cost Per 

Trip Mile 

517.92 

517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 

517.92 

517.92 

517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 

517.92 
517.92 
517.92 

517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 

517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 

517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 

ADTCost Per 

Room, KSF or Unit 

4946.11 
3143.77 

2491.18 
3035.00 

11135.23 

4505.88 

5277.58 

3.61 

5.05 

1.99 
2.53 

5.91 
3.99 
7.44 

15.83 

21.06 
18.69 
31.08 

4.83 

2.15 
17.70 

8.59 
20.15 

8.67 
36.32 

106.36 

277.11 
5.98 

84306.60 

40.23 

11.85 
72.82 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Room 

Room 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq . Ft 

Sq. Ft 
Sq. Ft 

Sq . Ft 
Seat 

Sq. Ft 
Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 
Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Island 
Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 73

SCHEDULE OF DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES 
FOR CIRCULATION SYSTEM (STREETS, SIGNALS AND BRIDGES) 

Resolution No. 2004-9R Schedule Year 2018 
INFLATION RATE USED FOR 2017 AT 3.92 

To provide funds to mitigate the impact of new development in the community on the streets and traffic signals used to provide those services. 

Land Use 

Residential Land Uses 
Single Family Detached 

Apartment 

Mobile Home 

Residential Condominium 
Assisted Care Facility 

Resort/Tourist 
Hotel 

Motel 

Industr1al 
General Light Industrial 

Heavy I nd ustria I 

Manufacturing 

Warehouse 
Commercial 
Office Park 
Research Park 

Business Park 

Bldg. Materials/Lumber Store 

Specialty Retail Center 

Garden Center 

Movie Theater 

Church 

Cemetary 

Medical-Dental Office 

General Office Building 

Shopping Center 

Hospital 

Discount Center (Big Box) 
High-Turnover (Sit-Down) Restaurant 

Fast Food w/drive thru 

Drinking Place (Bar) 

Gasoline/Service Station w/mk 

Convenience Market 

Recreation Community Center 
Walk-In Bank 

ADT Rate Per Seat 

Room, KSF, or Unit (1) 

14.74 
9.37 
7 .42 
9.04 

33.18 

13.43 
15 .73 

10.76 
15.05 

5.94 
7.53 

17.62 
11.88 
22.18 
47.16 
62.77 
55.68 

0.09 
14.38 

6.42 
52.73 
25.59 
60 .03 

25.85 
108.23 
316.93 
825.75 

17.81 

251.22 
119.88 

35.31 
217.00 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Room 

Room 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

Seat 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

Island 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

2017 
Cost Per 

Trip Mile 

498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 

498.38 
498.38 

498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 

498.38 

498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 

498.38 

ADTCost Per 

Room, KSF or Unit 

4759.54 
3025.18 
2397.21 
2920.51 

10715.20 

4335.91 
5078.51 

3.474 
4.860 
1.918 
2.432 

5.692 
3.838 
7.162 

15.231 
20.270 
17.981 
29.903 

4.645 
2.073 

17.030 
8_263 

19.387 
8.348 

34.951 
102.348 
266.659 

5.752 
81126.440 

38.714 

11.404 
70.077 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Room 

Room 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Seat 
Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq . Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq . Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq . Ft 

Sq . Ft 

Island 
Sq . Ft 

Sq . Ft 

Sq . Ft 

3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 

3.92% 
3.92% 

3.92% 
3.92% 
3,92% 
3.92% 

3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 

ADT Rate Per Seat 

Room, KSF, or Unit (1) 

15.32 
9.74 
7.71 
9.40 

34.48 

13.95 
16.34 

11.18 
15.64 

6.17 
7.83 

18.32 
12.35 

23.05 
49.01 
65.23 
57.87 

0.10 
14.95 

6.67 
54.80 
26.59 
62.39 
26.86 

112.47 
329.36 
858.12 

18.51 
261.07 
124.58 

36.70 
225.51 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Room 

Room 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 
KSF 

Seat 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

Island 

KSF 

KSF 

KSF 

2018 
Cost Per 

Trip Mile 

517.92 

517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 

517.92 

517.92 

517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 

517.92 
517.92 
517.92 

517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 

517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 

517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 

ADTCost Per 

Room, KSF or Unit 

4946.11 
3143.77 

2491.18 
3035.00 

11135.23 

4505.88 

5277.58 

3.61 

5.05 
1.99 
2.53 

5.91 
3.99 
7.44 

15.83 

21.06 
18.69 
31.08 

4.83 

2.15 
17.70 

8.59 
20.15 
8.67 

36.32 

106.36 
277.11 

5.98 
84306.60 

40.23 
11.85 
72.82 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Room 

Room 

Sq. Ft 
Sq_ Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq . Ft 

Seat 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 
Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Island 
Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 



SCHEDULE OF DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES 
FOR SANITARY SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM 

Resolution No. 2004-9R Schedule Year 2018 

To provide for appropriate sewer facilities and facilitate connection to existing sewer 
system for new residential development in the community. 

Zone District 

For each equivalent single-family residential unit $ 748.00 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 74

SCHEDULE OF DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES 
FOR SANITARY SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM 

Resolution No. 2004-9R Schedule Year 2018 

To provide for appropriate sewer facilities and facilitate connection to existing sewer 
system for new residential development in the community. 

Zone District 

For each equivalent single-family residential unit $ 748.00 



ORDINANCE NO. __ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELMA APPROVING A 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH KARAMJIT SINGH NIJJAR, RELATED TO 

VESTED TENATIVE TRACT MAP #5519 

WHEREAS, on February 21, 2006 the City Council of the City of Selma ("City") 
approved vesting tentative tract map for the development of 66 residential units on 
approximately 20 acres ("Project"); and 

WHEREAS, in approving the Project, the City considered the environmental impacts 
of the Project and certified a negative declaration for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, City and Karamjit Singh Nijjar ("Developer") now desire to enter into a 
Development Agreement ("Development Agreement ") pursuant to §65864 et. Seq. of the 
California Government Code to facilitate the development of the Project and to extend the 
expiration date of the Project for the duration of the Development Agreement pursuant to 
Government Code §666452.6(a)(1); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code §65867, notice of intention to consider 
adoption of a Development Agreement was given pursuant to Government Code §§ 65090 
and 65091; and 

WHEREAS, California Government Code §65867.5(a) requires that a Development 
Agreement be adopted by Ordinance. 

NOW THEREFORE, The City Council of the City of Selma ordains as follows: 

SECTION 1: Findings. The City Council of the City of Selma, based on substantial 
evidence, finds as follows: 

A. All of the forgoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by this 
reference. 

B. The provisions of the Development Agreement are consistent with the General Plan 
of the City of Selma now in effect. 

C. Entry by the City into the Development Agreement is in the best interests of the 
City of Selma. 

D. The Development Agreement provides that any subsequent approvals related to 
the Project, including any subsequent tentative map, cannot be approved unless in 
compliance with the rules, regulations and official policies of the City, and, in the case of a 
subdivision map, must be in conformance with §664 73.7 of the Sub-division Map Act. 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 75

ORDINANCE NO. __ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELMA APPROVING A 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH KARAMJIT SINGH NIJJAR, RELATED TO 

VESTED TENATIVE TRACT MAP #5519 

WHEREAS, on February 21, 2006 the City Council of the City of Selma ("City") 
approved vesting tentative tract map for the development of 66 residential units on 
approximately 20 acres ("Project"); and 

WHEREAS, in approving the Project, the City considered the environmental impacts 
of the Project and certified a negative declaration for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, City and Karamjit Singh Nijjar ("Developer") now desire to enter into a 
Development Agreement ("Development Agreement ") pursuant to §65864 et. Seq. of the 
California Government Code to facilitate the development of the Project and to extend the 
expiration date of the Project for the duration of the Development Agreement pursuant to 
Government Code §666452.6(a)(1); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code §65867, notice of intention to consider 
adoption of a Development Agreement was given pursuant to Government Code §§ 65090 
and 65091; and 

WHEREAS, California Government Code §65867.5(a) requires that a Development 
Agreement be adopted by Ordinance. 

NOW THEREFORE, The City Council of the City of Selma ordains as follows: 

SECTION 1: Findings. The City Council of the City of Selma, based on substantial 
evidence, finds as follows: 

A. All of the forgoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by this 
reference. 

B. The provisions of the Development Agreement are consistent with the General Plan 
of the City of Selma now in effect. 

C. Entry by the City into the Development Agreement is in the best interests of the 
City of Selma. 

D. The Development Agreement provides that any subsequent approvals related to 
the Project, including any subsequent tentative map, cannot be approved unless in 
compliance with the rules, regulations and official policies of the City, and, in the case of a 
subdivision map, must be in conformance with §664 73.7 of the Sub-division Map Act. 



SECTION 2. Effective date and Posting of Ordinance: This Ordinance shall take effect 
and be enforce thirty (30) days from and after the date of passage. The City Clerk of the City 
of Selma shall cause this Ordinance to be published at least once within fifteen (15) days 
after its passage in the Selma Enterprise with the names of those City Council Members 
voting for and against the Ordinance. 

SECTION 3: Severability: If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of 
this Ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional, the decision shall not 
affect the validity of the remaining portions of the Ordinance. The City Council hereby 
declares that it would have passed this Ordinance, and each section, subsection, sentence, 
clause or phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that anyone or more sections, subsections, 
sentences, clauses or phrases have been declared invalid or unconstitutional. 

SECTION 4: Authorization. Upon the effective date of this Ordinance, the Mayor is 
authorized to sign on behalf of the City and the City Clerk is authorized to acknowledge the 
Mayor's signature on that certain Development Agreement which has been presented to the 
City Council and which has been the subject of this Council's hearings. The effective date of 
the Agreement shall be the date upon which this Ordinance was introduced to the City 
Council. The City Council further finds and determines that after the adoption of this 
Ordinance and its statutorily required publication, the further publication of this Ordinance in 
the City's bound Municipal Code Volume is not necessary and that the City Clerk is directed, 
at the time the Clerk customarily sends all new Ordinances to the publishing company for 
publication in the revisions of the bound Municipal Code Volume and/or the online publishing 
of the Selma Municipal Code, not to send this Ordinance for publication in that bound volume 
and/or online publication as a codified Ordinance of the City of Selma. 

************ 

I, Reyna Rivera, Chief Deputy City Clerk of the City of Selma, do hereby certify that 
the foregoing Ordinance was introduced at the , 2018 regular City Council 
meeting and passed at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Selma on the 
___ day of 2018, by the following vote, to wit: 

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

Mayor of the City of Selma 

ATTEST: 

Reyna Rivera, City Clerk 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 76

SECTION 2. Effective date and Posting of Ordinance: This Ordinance shall take effect 
and be enforce thirty (30) days from and after the date of passage. The City Clerk of the City 
of Selma shall cause this Ordinance to be published at least once within fifteen (15) days 
after its passage in the Selma Enterprise with the names of those City Council Members 
voting for and against the Ordinance. 

SECTION 3: Severability: If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of 
this Ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional, the decision shall not 
affect the validity of the remaining portions of the Ordinance. The City Council hereby 
declares that it would have passed this Ordinance, and each section, subsection, sentence, 
clause or phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that anyone or more sections, subsections, 
sentences, clauses or phrases have been declared invalid or unconstitutional. 

SECTION 4: Authorization. Upon the effective date of this Ordinance, the Mayor is 
authorized to sign on behalf of the City and the City Clerk is authorized to acknowledge the 
Mayor's signature on that certain Development Agreement which has been presented to the 
City Council and which has been the subject of this Council's hearings. The effective date of 
the Agreement shall be the date upon which this Ordinance was introduced to the City 
Council. The City Council further finds and determines that after the adoption of this 
Ordinance and its statutorily required publication, the further publication of this Ordinance in 
the City's bound Municipal Code Volume is not necessary and that the City Clerk is directed, 
at the time the Clerk customarily sends all new Ordinances to the publishing company for 
publication in the revisions of the bound Municipal Code Volume and/or the online publishing 
of the Selma Municipal Code, not to send this Ordinance for publication in that bound volume 
and/or online publication as a codified Ordinance of the City of Selma. 

************. 
I, Reyna Rivera, Chief Deputy City Clerk of the City of Selma, do hereby certify that 

the foregoing Ordinance was introduced at the , 2018 regular City Council 
meeting and passed at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Selma on the 
___ day of 2018, by the following vote, to wit: 

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

Mayor of the City of Selma 

ATTEST: 

Reyna Rivera, City Clerk 



CITY MANAGER'S/STAFF'S REPORT 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 

ITEM NO: 

February 20,2018 

Introduction and First Reading of Ordinance Approving a Development 
SUBJECT: Agreement Between the City and Weingart Ronald (TE)/Weingart Sherri 

(TE). 

DISCUSSION: On February 21,2006 the City Council approved Vesting Tentative Tract 
Map No. 5601 ("Tract 5601") for the development of 33 residential units on approximately 
20 acres in the City of Selma. As a result of the financial impacts of the 'great recession' the 
California Legislature approved a series of extensions to subdivision maps beyond the time 
period in which they would ordinarily expire by operation of law. The final 24 month 
extension approved by the Legislature extended the expiration of Tract 5601 to February 21, 
2018. Government Code §66452.6 provides that the expiration of an approved Vesting 
Tentative Tract Map may be extended by a development agreement for the term of the 
development agreement. 

The proposed development agreement, which must be approved by ordinance, will facilitate 
the completion of the approved development and will extend the expiration of the current 
map for the term of the development agreement which is two years. The proposed 
development agreement requires full compliance with all of the conditions imposed by the 
City when Tract 5601 was approved by Resolution No. 2006-17R and all subsequent 
approvals related to the project must fully comply with the City's General Plan, the 
approved tentative map, and all applicable ordinances, codes, and regulations. The 
resolution approving the project including the terms and conditions of approval, and the 
development fees related to the project are attached to and incorporated into the 
development agreement. Tract 5601 was included in the City of Selma 2035 General Plan, 
is consistent with the General Plan, and therefore the development agreement is also 
consistent with the City'S 2035 General Plan. 

Environmental review for Tract 5601 was done by the City Council when it considered 
approval of Tract 5601 and the City Council adopted and certified a Negative Declaration 
for the project. 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 77

CITY MANAGER'S/STAFF'S REPORT 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 

ITEM NO: 

February 20,2018 

Introduction and First Reading of Ordinance Approving a Development 
SUBJECT: Agreement Between the City and Weingart Ronald (TE)/Weingart Sherri 

(TE). 

DISCUSSION: On February 21,2006 the City Council approved Vesting Tentative Tract 
Map No. 5601 ("Tract 5601") for the development of 33 residential units on approximately 
20 acres in the City of Selma. As a result of the financial impacts of the 'great recession' the 
California Legislature approved a series of extensions to subdivision maps beyond the time 
period in which they would ordinarily expire by operation of law. The final 24 month 
extension approved by the Legislature extended the expiration of Tract 5601 to February 21, 
2018. Government Code §66452.6 provides that the expiration of an approved Vesting 
Tentative Tract Map may be extended by a development agreement for the term of the 
development agreement. 

The proposed development agreement, which must be approved by ordinance, will facilitate 
the completion of the approved development and will extend the expiration of the current 
map for the term of the development agreement which is two years. The proposed 
development agreement requires full compliance with all of the conditions imposed by the 
City when Tract 5601 was approved by Resolution No. 2006-17R and all subsequent 
approvals related to the project must fully comply with the City's General Plan, the 
approved tentative map, and all applicable ordinances, codes, and regulations. The 
resolution approving the project including the terms and conditions of approval, and the 
development fees related to the project are attached to and incorporated into the 
development agreement. Tract 5601 was included in the City of Selma 2035 General Plan, 
is consistent with the General Plan, and therefore the development agreement is also 
consistent with the City'S 2035 General Plan. 

Environmental review for Tract 5601 was done by the City Council when it considered 
approval of Tract 5601 and the City Council adopted and certified a Negative Declaration 
for the project. 

4.



COST: 

All costs associated with review of the 
development agreement are 
reimbursable by the developer pursuant 
to SMC §12-3-4(A)(14). 

FUNDING: (Enter the funding source for this 
item in box below - iffund exists, enter the balance 
in the fond). 

Funding Source: NONE 

Fund Balance: 

BUDGET IMPACT: 

None. 

ON-GOING COST: (Entertheamount 
that will need to be budgeted each year in box 
below - if one-time cost, enter NONE). 

Not applicable. 

RECOMMENDATION: Waive introduction and first reading of Ordinance Approving 
a Development Agreement related to Tract 5601. 

Neal E. Costanzo, City Attorney Date 

Henry Perea, Interim City Manager Date 

Attachments Page 

Proposed Development Agreement 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 78

COST: 

All costs associated with review of the 
development agreement are 
reimbursable by the developer pursuant 
to SMC §12-3-4(A)(14). 

FUNDING: (Enter the funding source for this 
item in box below - iffund exists, enter the balance 
in the fund). 

Funding Source: NONE 

Fund Balance: 

BUDGET IMPACT: 

None. 

ON-GOING COST: (Entertheamount 
that will need to be budgeted each year in box 
below - if one-time cost, enter NONE). 

Not applicable. 

RECOMMENDATION: Waive introduction and first reading of Ordinance Approving 
a Development Agreement related to Tract 5601. 

Neal E. Costanzo, City Attorney Date 

Henry Perea, Interim City Manager Date 

Attachments Page 

Proposed Development Agreement 

/s/ Neal E. Costanzo     02/16/18

/s/ Henry Perea      02/16/18



RECORDING REQUESTED BY: 
AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

City Manager 
City of Selma 
1710 Tucker Street 
Selma, CA 93662 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - VESTING TENTATIVE TRACT MAP NO.5601 

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and entered into this 
__ day of February 2018, by and between the City of Selma, a municipal corporation 
(hereinafter referred to as "City"), and Ronald Weingart, (hereinafter referred to as "Developer"). 
City and Developer are from time to time referred to individually as a "Party" and collectively as 
the "Parties." 

1. RECITALS 

This Agreement is predicated upon the following recitals, which, are incorporated into 
and made a part of this Agreement. 

1.1 Code Authorization . The City, a general law city, is authorized pursuant to 
Article 2.5 of Chapter 4 of Title 7 of the Government Code, Sections 65864 through 65869.5 
("Development Agreement Statute"), to enter into development agreements with persons having 
legal or equitable interests in real property for the development of such property in order to 
establish certainty in the development process. This Agreement has been processed, considered, 
approved and executed in accordance with the Development Agreement Statute and the Selma 
Municipal Code. 

1.2 Developer/Property. Developer owns certain real property located in the City of 
Selma, County of Fresno, California, which is the subject property of Vesting Tentative Tract 
Map No.5601("Project" or "VTTM No. 5601" or "Tract 5601 "), which real property is the 
subject matter ofthis Agreement ("Real Property") 

1.3 Interest of Developer. Developer represents that it has an equitable or a legal 
interest, as described in Section 1.2, in the Real Property and that all other persons holding legal 
or equitable interests in the Real Property are to be bound by this Agreement. 

1.4 Project. Developer intends to develop the Real Property to be used as 33 
residential lots ("Project"). The Project was approved by the City Council of the City of Selma 
by Resolution No 2006-17R on February 21,2006, attached and incorporated by reference herein 
as Exhibit A, with a finding that the Project was consistent with the General Plan, the adoption of 
a negative declaration, imposing conditions of approval, dedications and/or mitigation measures 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 79

RECORDING REQUESTED BY: 
AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

City Manager 
City of Selma 
1710 Tucker Street 
Selma, CA 93662 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - VESTTNG TENTATIVE TRACT MAP NO.5601 

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and entered into this 
__ day of February 2018, by and between the City of Selma, a municipal corporation 
(hereinafter referred to as "City"), and Ronald Weingart, (hereinafter referred to as "Developer"). 
City and Developer are from time to time referred to individually as a "Party" and collectively as 
the "Parties." 

1. RECITALS 

This Agreement is predicated upon the following recitals, which, are incorporated into 
and made a part of this Agreement. 

1.1 Code Authorizations. The City, a general law city, is authorized pursuant to 
Article 2.5 of Chapter 4 of Title 7 of the Government Code, Sections 65864 through 65869.5 
("Development Agreement Statute"), to enter into development agreements with persons having 
legal or equitable interests in real property for the development of such property in order to 
establish certainty in the development process. This Agreement has been processed, considered, 
approved and executed in accordance with the Development Agreement Statute and the Selma 
Municipal Code. 

1.2 Developer/Property. Developer owns certain real property located in the City of 
Selma, County of Fresno, California, which is the subject property of Vesting Tentative Tract 
Map No.5601("Project" or "VTTM No. 5601" or "Tract 5601 "), which real property is the 
subject matter ofthis Agreement ("Real Property") 

1.3 Interest of Developer. Developer represents that it has an equitable or a legal 
interest, as described in Section 1.2, in the Real Property and that all other persons holding legal 
or equitable interests in the Real Property are to be bound by this Agreement. 

1.4 Project. Developer intends to develop the Real Property to be used as 33 
residential lots ("Project"). The Project was approved by the City Council of the City of Selma 
by Resolution No 2006-17R on February 21,2006, attached and incorporated by reference herein 
as Exhibit A, with a finding that the Project was consistent with the General Plan, the adoption of 
a negative declaration, imposing conditions of approval, dedications andlor mitigation measures 



and approving other entitlements(s) or conditions which together are referred to herein as the 
Project Approvals. 

2. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

2.1 Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective upon the date the 
ordinance approving this Agreement becomes effective ("Effective Date"). 

2.2 Property Subject to the Agreement. This Agreement applies to and governs the 
development of the Real Property. 

2.3 Duration of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the 
Effective Date and shall expire on the second (2nd) anniversary of the Effective Date, unless 
extended by written mutual agreement of the parties. Expiration of this Agreement shall not 
affect any rights of Developer arising from the Project Approvals, Subsequent Approvals or 
other permits and entitlements granted by City prior to, concurrently with, or subsequent to the 
Effective Date of this Agreement. 

3. DEVELOPMENT OF REAL PROPERTY 

3.1 Permitted Uses. The Real Property shall be used in accordance with the Project 
Approvals and for such other uses that may be mutually agreed upon by the parties hereto. 

4. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

4.1 Rules of Construction. The singular includes the plural; the masculine gender 
includes the feminine; "shall" and "will" are mandatory; and "may" is permissive. 

4.2 Severability. The parties hereto agree that the provisions are severable. If any 
provision of this Agreement is held invalid, the remainder of this Agreement shall be effective 
and shall remain in full force and effect unless amended or modified by mutual consent of the 
parties. 

4.3 Findings of Support. City hereby finds and determines that execution of this 
Agreement is in the best interest of the public health, safety and general welfare and that the 
provisions of this Agreement are consistent with the General Plan, as amended. 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left: Blank] 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 80

and approving other entitlements(s) or conditions which together are referred to herein as the 
Project Approvals. 

2. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

2.1 Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective upon the date the 
ordinance approving this Agreement becomes effective ("Effective Date"). 

2.2 Property Subject to the Agreement. This Agreement applies to and governs the 
development ofthe Real Property. 

2.3 Duration of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the 
Effective Date and shall expire on the second (2nd) anniversary of the Effective Date, unless 
extended by written mutual agreement of the parties. Expiration of this Agreement shall not 
affect any rights of Developer arising from the Project Approvals, Subsequent Approvals or 
other permits and entitlements granted by City prior to, concurrently with, or subsequent to the 
Effective Date of this Agreement. 

3. DEVELOPMENT OF REAL PROPERTY 

3.1 Permitted Uses. The Real Property shall be used in accordance with the Project 
Approvals and for such other uses that may be mutually agreed upon by the parties hereto. 

4. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

4.1 Rules of Construction. The singular includes the plural; the masculine gender 
includes the feminine; "shall" and "will" are mandatory; and "may" is permissive. 

4.2 Severability. The parties hereto agree that the provisions are severable. If any 
provision of this Agreement is held invalid, the remainder of this Agreement shall be effective 
and shall remain in full force and effect unless amended or modified by mutual consent of the 
parties. 

4.3 Findings of Support. City hereby finds and determines that execution of this 
Agreement is in the best interest of the public health, safety and general welfare and that the 
provisions of this Agreement are consistent with the General Plan, as amended. 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left: Blank] 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties on the day 
and year first above written, as authorized by Ordinance No. of the City Council. 

CITY: 

CITY OF Selma, 
A Municipal Corporation 

By: __________________________ _ 
Mayor of the City of Selma 

ATTEST: 

By: ----------------------------
City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: __________________________ _ 
Neal E. Costanzo 
City Attorney 

DEVELOPER: 

By: __________________________ __ 
Ronald Weingart 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 81

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties on the day 
and year first above written, as authorized by Ordinance No. of the City Council. 

CITY: 

CITY OF Selma, 
A Municipal Corporation 

By: ________________ _ 
Mayor of the City of Selma 

ATTEST: 

By: ---------------------------
City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: _____________ _ 
Neal E. Costanzo 
City Attorney 

DEVELOPER: 

By: __________________________ __ 
Ronald Weingart 



EXHIBIT A 

CITY OF SELMA RESOLUTION NO. 2006-17R 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 82

EXHIBIT A 

CITY OF SELMA RESOLUTION NO. 2006-17R 



RESOLUTION NO. 2006-17R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SELMA CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELMA 
APPROVING VESTING TENTATIVE TRACT MAP NO. 5601 

WITH FINDINGS AND CONDITIONS, 
AND ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT NO. 2005-0006 

WHEREAS, on February 21, 2006, the Selma City Council, at a regularly scheduled 
meeting, considered Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5601, a request by California Planning & 
Engineering for Ronald Weingart, the subdivision of ± 20 acres into approximately 33 residential lots in 
the R-I-12 district. The Vesting Tentative Tract Map was a part of Submittal No. 2005-0006, which also 
included other applications. The vesting tentative tract map and applications for other entitlements are for 
approximately 20 acres of property located on north side of Rose Avenue, approximately 1,300 feet 
east of Country Club Lane (APN 389-020-62), pending annexation; and 

WHEREAS, the concurrent applications that were considered with VTTM No. 5601 
included a Zone Change to prezone the entire proj ect property to the R -1-12 zone district, and 
reorganization/annexation; and . 

WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a public hearing, noticed in accordance with 
all applicable state and local laws, and considered the proposal and the staff report and 
recommendations together with all public testimony of interested parties; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council considered the scope of the proposal, reviewed the 
evidence and determined that Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5601 will not have a significant impact 
on the environment; and 

WHEREAS, per the Public Resources Code, Section 21080.1, Division 13, 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the City of Selma is responsible for determining whether an 
environmental impact report, a negative declaration, or a mitigated negative declaration shall be 
required; and 

WHEREAS, based on substantial evidence provided in the Initial Study and the whole 
record before the Planning Commission for Environmental Assessment No. 2005-0006, it has been 
determined that there is no possibility this project may have any significant effects on the environment. 
The City Council certifies the adequacy of the document and adopts the Negative Declaration; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council determines that the following findings of fact for approval 
listed and included in this Resolution can be made based on the reports, evidence and verbal presentations, 
subject to annexation: 

1. The proposed map is consistent with applicable general plans. 

2. The proposed vesting tentative tract map design and improvements are consistent with the 
Selma General Plan and any applicable specific plans because the design complies with the 
implementation and policies set in the General Plan document. 

3. The site is physically suitable for this type of development. 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 83

RESOLUTION NO. 2006-17R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SELMA CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELMA 
APPROVING VESTING TENTATIVE TRACT MAP NO. 5601 

WITH FINDINGS AND CONDITIONS, 
AND ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT NO. 2005-0006 

WHEREAS, on February 21, 2006, the Selma City Council, at a regularly scheduled 
meeting, considered Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5601, a request by California Planning & 
Engineering for Ronald Weingart, the subdivision of ± 20 acres into approximately 33 residential lots in 
the R-I-12 district. The Vesting Tentative Tract Map was a part of Submittal No. 2005-0006, which also 
included other applications. The vesting tentative tract map and applications for other entitlements are for 
approximately 20 acres of property located on north side of Rose Avenue, approximately 1,300 feet 
east of Country Club Lane (APN 389-020-62), pending annexation; and 

WHEREAS, the concurrent applications that were considered with VTTM No. 5601 
included a Zone Change to prezone the entire proj ect property to the R -1-12 zone district, and 
reorganization/annexation; and . 

WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a public hearing, noticed in accordance with 
all applicable state and local laws, and considered the proposal and the staff report and 
recommendations together with all public testimony of interested parties; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council considered the scope of the proposal, reviewed the 
evidence and determined that Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5601 will not have a significant impact 
on the environment; and 

WHEREAS, per the Public Resources Code, Section 21080.1, Division 13, 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the City of Selma is responsible for determining whether an 
environmental impact report, a negative declaration, or a mitigated negative declaration shall be 
required; and 

WHEREAS, based on substantial evidence provided in the Initial Study and the whole 
record before the Planning Commission for Environmental Assessment No. 2005-0006, it has been 
determined that there is no possibility this project may have any significant effects on the environment. 
The City Council certifies the adequacy of the document and adopts the Negative Declaration; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council determines that the following findings of fact for approval 
listed and included in this Resolution can be made based on the reports, evidence and verbal presentations, 
subject to annexation: 

1. The proposed map is consistent with applicable general plans. 

2. The proposed vesting tentative tract map design and improvements are consistent with the 
Selma General Plan and any applicable specific plans because the design complies with the 
implementation and policies set in the General Plan document. 

3. The site is physically suitable for this type of development. 



4. The site is physically suitable for the proposed density of this development. 

5. The design ofthe subdivision or the proposed improvements are not likely to cause substantial 
environmental damage or substantially and unavoidably injure fish or wildlife or their habitat. 

6. The design of the subdivision or type of improvements are not likely to cause serious public 
health problems. 

7. The design ofthe subdivision or the type of improvements will not conflict with easements, 
acquired by the public at large, for access through or use of property within the proposed 
subdivision. 

8. All conditions of approval related to dedications, street improvements, the installation of 
infrastructure such as sewer and water lines, storm drain facilities, and other public 
improvements have been evaluated and it has been confirmed that a rough proportionality 
andlor a required degree of connection exists between the dedication imposed or public 
improvement required and the proposed development; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council, having made its findings of fact, was of the opinion that 
Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5601, subject to annexation, should be approved subject to the following 
certain conditions of approval to be listed and made a part ofthe Resolution: 

Planning Division 

1. Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5601 is approved subject to the conditions as developed. 

2. Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5601 shall be valid for two (2) years from the date of approval, 
unless extended in accordance with the Selma Municipal Code. If a Final Tract Map (the 'Tract 
Map') is not filed and approved prior to the end ofthe two-year life of the Vesting Tentative Tract 
Map approval, the Vesting Tentative Tract Map approval shall expire and become null and void. 

3. The design improvements of the subdivision shall be consistent with the Selma General Plan and 
the appropriate residential zone classification. The design and improvements of the Tract Map 
shall conform to the Selma City Zoning Ordinance or as otherwise permitted by this approval, and 
shall remain consistent with VTTM No. 5183. 

4. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall relay all Conditions of Approval for this Vesting 
Tentative Tract Map to all subsequent purchasers of individual lots if applicable andlor to 
subsequent purchasers of this entire Tract Map development. 

5. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall contact and comply with the requirements of 
the United States Postal Service - Selma Office - for the cost, location and type of mailbox 
to be installed if one is to be utilized on-site. The location of the facilities shall be 
approved by the Engineer prior to approval of improvement plans or any construction. 
Cluster boxes, when required, shall be installed at the Subdivider's cost by the Subdivider. 

6. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall obtain City approval in advance for temporary 
and permanent signs through a Master Signage Plan in a separate sign review consistent with 
the development criteria of the Selma Municipal Code Sign Ordinance. Signs require the 
submittal of a sign application, fees and approval by the Community Development Department 
prior to installation. 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 84

4. The site is physically suitable for the proposed density of this development. 

5. The design ofthe subdivision or the proposed improvements are not likely to cause substantial 
environmental damage or substantially and unavoidably injure fish or wildlife or their habitat. 

6. The design of the subdivision or type of improvements are not likely to cause serious public 
health problems. 

7. The design ofthe subdivision or the type of improvements will not conflict with easements, 
acquired by the public at large, for access through or use of property within the proposed 
subdivision. 

8. All conditions of approval related to dedications, street improvements, the installation of 
infrastructure such as sewer and water lines, storm drain facilities, and other public 
improvements have been evaluated and it has been confirmed that a rough proportionality 
and/or a required degree of connection exists between the dedication imposed or public 
improvement required and the proposed development; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council, having made its findings of fact, was of the opinion that 
Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5601, subject to annexation, should be approved subject to the following 
certain conditions of approval to be listed and made a part ofthe Resolution: 

Planning Division 

l. Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5601 is approved subject to the conditions as developed. 

2. Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5601 shall be valid for two (2) years from the date of approval, 
unless extended in accordance with the Selma Municipal Code. If a Final Tract Map (the 'Tract 
Map') is not filed and approved prior to the end ofthe two-year life of the Vesting Tentative Tract 
Map approval, the Vesting Tentative Tract Map approval shall expire and become null and void. 

3. The design improvements ofthe subdivision shall be consistent with the Selma General Plan and 
the appropriate residential zone classification. The design and improvements of the Tract Map 
shall conform to the Selma City Zoning Ordinance or as otherwise permitted by this approval, and 
shall remain consistent with VTTM No. 5183. 

4. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall relay all Conditions of Approval for this Vesting 
Tentative Tract Map to all subsequent purchasers of individual lots if applicable and/or to 
subsequent purchasers of this entire Tract Map development. 

5. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall contact and comply with the requirements of 
the United States Postal Service - Selma Office - for the cost, location and type of mailbox 
to be installed if one is to be utilized on-site. The location of the facilities shall be 
approved by the Engineer prior to approval of improvement plans or any construction. 
Cluster boxes, when required, shall be installed at the Subdivider's cost by the Subdivider. 

6. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall obtain City approval in advance for temporary 
and permanent signs through a Master Signage Plan in a separate sign review consistent with 
the development criteria of the Selma Municipal Code Sign Ordinance. Signs require the 
submittal of a sign application, fees and approval by the Community Development Department 
prior to installation. 



7. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall provide landscaping and irrigation plans for all 
proposed landscape areas as indicated on the Tract Map for review and approval by the 
Community Development Department. All irrigation systems shall be operated by an electric 
timer. No battery operated timers shall be permitted. 

8. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall plant two trees in the front yard setbacks of each 
single family residential lot. The trees shall be located outside of the ten (10) foot public right
of-way as measured from the face of the street curb. The trees within the front yard shall be 
selected by the lot owner from a list approved by the Community Development Department. 

9. All required trees shall be double-staked and tied with durable materials. Planting 
details shall be clearly shown on the submitted plans. Species of street trees to be planted 
shall be approved by the Community Development Department. All trees shall be of a 
fifteen-gallon container size or larger and not less than two inches in diameter, measured four 
and one half feet from the root ball. The trees must be planted prior to occupancy. 

10. Root barriers shall be installed in accordance with City standards for all trees planted within 
five (5) feet of a sidewalk, curb or masomy/other wall. Landscaping shall be provided on the 
street side yards of all corner lots. 

11. The Tract Map shall show all landscape frontages along streets adjacent to the subject site. 

12. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall request annexing the following landscaped area: 
Outlot A and the north side of Rose Avenue into a landscape and lighting maintenance district. 
These landscape areas shall be maintained by the developer for 120 days from the day of the 
Notice of Completion approval and prior to the district formation. 

13. The Subdivider is to provide a covenant for the Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District. 
The assessment for each lot must be obtained from the City for the tax year following the 
recordation of the Final Map. All potential lot buyers before they actually purchase a lot shall 
be notified that this tract is a part of a Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District and shall 
inform potential buyers of the assessment amount. Said notification shall be in a manner 
approved by the City. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall supply all necessary 
assessment diagrams and other pertinent materials for the Landscape and Lighting Maintenance 
District. 

14. Prior to purchasing residential lots adjacent to OUTLOT A and OUTLOT B, all buyers shall be 
notified that the farming/agricultural shed shall remain, as is, on "remainder parcel." Said 
notification shall be in a manner approved by the City. 

15. All landscape improvements shall be installed and accepted for maintenance by the City prior 
to issuance of 20% of the Tract's building permits. 

16. The street names designated on the Tract Map are not approved street names. Street names 
shall be reviewed and approved by the Community Development Department prior to the 
submission of the Final Map. 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 85

7. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall provide landscaping and irrigation plans for all 
proposed landscape areas as indicated on the Tract Map for review and approval by the 
Community Development Department. All irrigation systems shall be operated by an electric 
timer. No battery operated timers shall be permitted. 

8. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall plant two trees in the front yard setbacks of each 
single family residential lot. The trees shall be located outside of the ten (10) foot public right
of-way as measured from the face of the street curb. The trees within the front yard shall be 
selected by the lot owner from a list approved by the Community Development Department. 

9. All required trees shall be double-staked and tied with durable materials. Planting 
details shall be clearly shown on the submitted plans. Species of street trees to be planted 
shall be approved by the Community Development Department. All trees shall be of a 
fifteen-gallon container size or larger and not less than two inches in diameter, measured four 
and one half feet from the root ball. The trees must be planted prior to occupancy. 

10. Root barriers shall be installed in accordance with City standards for all trees planted within 
five (5) feet of a sidewalk, curb or masomy/other wall. Landscaping shall be provided on the 
street side yards of all corner lots. 

11. The Tract Map shall show all landscape frontages along streets adjacent to the subject site. 

12. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall request annexing the following landscaped area: 
Outlot A and the north side of Rose Avenue into a landscape and lighting maintenance district. 
These landscape areas shall be maintained by the developer for 120 days from the day of the 
Notice of Completion approval and prior to the district formation. 

13. The Subdivider is to provide a covenant for the Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District. 
The assessment for each lot must be obtained from the City for the tax year following the 
recordation of the Final Map. All potential lot buyers before they actually purchase a lot shall 
be notified that this tract is a part of a Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District and shall 
inform potential buyers of the assessment amount. Said notification shall be in a manner 
approved by the City. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall supply all necessary 
assessment diagrams and other pertinent materials for the Landscape and Lighting Maintenance 
District. 

14. Prior to purchasing residential lots adjacent to OUTLOT A and OUTLOT B, all buyers shall be 
notified that the farming/agricultural shed shall remain, as is, on "remainder parcel." Said 
notification shall be in a manner approved by the City. 

15. All landscape improvements shall be installed and accepted for maintenance by the City prior 
to issuance of 20% of the Tract's building permits. 

16. The street names designated on the Tract Map are not approved street names. Street names 
shall be reviewed and approved by the Community Development Department prior to the 
submission of the Final Map. 



17. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall request annexing said project area into a public 
safety community facilities district. 

18. The Subdivider is to provide a covenant for the Community Facilities District. The assessment 
for each lot must be obtained from the City for the tax year following the recordation of the 
Final Map. All potential lot buyers before they actually purchase a lot shall be notified that this 
tract is a part of a public safety Community Facilities District and shall inform potential buyers 
of the assessment amount. Said notification shall be in a manner approved by the City. The 
Subdivider or successor in interest shall supply all necessary assessment diagrams and other 
pertinent materials for the Community Facilities District. 

Building Division 

19. All private domestic or agriculture water wells and existing sewage disposal systems shall be 
safely and properly destroyed under permit and inspection in accordance with Fresno County 
Health Department standards and under the direction ofthe Building Official. 

20. All necessary building plans shall be submitted for review and approval by the Building Official. 
All required building permits and inspections shall be obtained prior to the issuance of a 
Certificate of Occupancy and commencement of operations. 

21. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with the most currently adopted version of all 
California Uniform Codes and regulations as required. 

Engineering Division 

22. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall have a Final Tract Map (the 'Tract Map') prepared 
in the fonn prescribed by the Subdivision Map Act and City of Selma Municipal Code. The 
Tract Map shall be submitted to the Engineer, and should include, but not be limited to, Tract 
Map, the current filing fee, closure calculations, current preliminary title report, legal 
descriptions and drawings of required dedications. 

23. The Tract Map shall include a "Right to Farm" covenant statement acknowledged by separate 
recorded instrument to ensure that normal farming operations may continue on adjacent and 
nearby agricultural uses and properties. 

24. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall submit to the Engineer, a set of construction plans 
on 24" x 36" sheets with City standard title block for all required improvements (the 
'Improvement Plans'). The Improvement Plans shall be prepared by a registered civil engineer, 
and shall include a site grading and drainage plan and an overall site utility plan showing 
locations and sizes of sewer, water, irrigation, and storm drain mains, laterals, manholes, 
meters, valves, hydrants, other facilities, etc. Plan check and inspection fees per City of Selma 
shall be paid with the first submittal of said Improvement Plans. All Improvement Plans shall 
be approved by the City and all other involved agencies prior to the release of any development 
pennits. 

25 . The design and construction of all off-site improvements shall be in accordance with City 
standards and construction specifications upon review and approval by the City Engineer. The 
Subdivider or successor in interest shall fumish to the City acceptable security to guarantee the 
construction of the off-site street improvements in accordance with the Subdivision Map Act. 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 86

17. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall request annexing said project area into a public 
safety community facilities district. 

18. The Subdivider is to provide a covenant for the Community Facilities District. The assessment 
for each lot must be obtained from the City for the tax year following the recordation of the 
Final Map. All potential lot buyers before they actually purchase a lot shall be notified that this 
tract is a part of a public safety Community Facilities District and shall inform potential buyers 
of the assessment amount. Said notification shall be in a manner approved by the City. The 
Subdivider or successor in interest shall supply all necessary assessment diagrams and other 
pertinent materials for the Community Facilities District. 

Building Division 

19. All private domestic or agriculture water wells and existing sewage disposal systems shall be 
safely and properly destroyed under permit and inspection in accordance with Fresno County 
Health Department standards and under the direction ofthe Building Official. 

20. All necessary building plans shall be submitted for review and approval by the Building Official. 
All required building permits and inspections shall be obtained prior to the issuance of a 
Certificate of Occupancy and commencement of operations. 

21. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with the most currently adopted version of all 
California Uniform Codes and regulations as required. 

Engineering Division 

22. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall have a Final Tract Map (the 'Tract Map') prepared 
in the fonn prescribed by the Subdivision Map Act and City of Selma Municipal Code. The 
Tract Map shall be submitted to the Engineer, and should include, but not be limited to, Tract 
Map, the current filing fee, closure calculations, current preliminary title report, legal 
descriptions and drawings of required dedications. 

23. The Tract Map shall include a "Right to Farm" covenant statement acknowledged by separate 
recorded instrument to ensure that normal farming operations may continue on adjacent and 
nearby agricultural uses and properties. 

24. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall submit to the Engineer, a set of construction plans 
on 24" x 36" sheets with City standard title block for all required improvements (the 
'Improvement Plans'). The Improvement Plans shall be prepared by a registered civil engineer, 
and shall include a site grading and drainage plan and an overall site utility plan showing 
locations and sizes of sewer, water, irrigation, and storm drain mains, laterals, manholes, 
meters, valves, hydrants, other facilities, etc. Plan check and inspection fees per City of Selma 
shall be paid with the first submittal of said Improvement Plans. All Improvement Plans shall 
be approved by the City and all other involved agencies prior to the release of any development 
pennits. 

25 . The design and construction of all off-site improvements shall be in accordance with City 
standards and construction specifications upon review and approval by the City Engineer. The 
Subdivider or successor in interest shall fumish to the City acceptable security to guarantee the 
construction of the off-site street improvements in accordance with the Subdivision Map Act. 



26. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with, and be responsible for obtaining 
encroachment permits from the City of Selma for all work performed within the City's right-of
way. 

27. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall agree to pay all applicable updated Community 
Development Fees upon approval prior to Final Map approval by Council. 

28. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall provide a dedication for a ten (10) foot public 
utility easement along all frontages of all lots as approved by the Engineer and the public 
utilities companies. No public utility easements (electric, gas, cable, telephone, sewer, water) 
shall be permitted in rear lot setback areas. 

29. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with the requirements of the Pacific, Gas 
and Electric Company (PG&E), SBC, ComCast. The City shall not accept first submittals 
without proof that the Subdivider has paid the appropriate PG&E engineering fees and 
provided PG&E with a set of plans showing proposed electrical vaults and proposed sidewalk 
and curb grades adjacent to the vaults. All PG&E vaults in which lids can not be sloped to 
match the proposed finished grading shall be located in sidewalk areas with pedestrian lids so 
the lid slope matches sidewalk cross slope. 

30. No above-ground transformer is permitted on the required sidewalk within the public right-of
way. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall utilize screening techniques recommended 
pursuant to PG&E design descriptions and City Engineer approval. 

31. All existing overhead and new utility facilities located on-site, or within the street rights-of -way 
adj acent to this subdivision shall be undergrounded. 

32. All underground utilities installed under streets shall be backfilled, compacted, tested and 
approved by the Engineer prior to placement of any aggregate base or asphalt concrete surfacing. 
Easements for utilities, including water, gas, telephone, electricity, sewage, pedestrian access, fire 
access, storm drainage, and irrigation facilities shall be provided, as required. 

33. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall install street lights on metal poles to local utility 
providers' andlor City standards at the locations designated by the Engineer. Street light 
locations shall be shown on the utility plans submitted with the final map for approval. Proof 
oflocal utility provider's approval shall be provided. The design and type of metal poles shall 
be reviewed and approved by the City Engineer. 

34. Drainage, grading, on-site and utility improvements shall be in accordance with plans reviewed 
and approved by the Engineer. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall be responsible for 
the preparation of plans prior to the approval of the Final Map. The applicant shall construct 
storm drainage facilities as deemed necessary by the Engineer to service the project site. The 
Final Map shall not be approved prior to the development of storm drainage master plans for the 
subject site and tributary areas. 

35 . Grade differentials between lots and adjacent properties shall be adequately shown on the grading 
plan and shall be treated in a manner in conformance with City of Selma standards (i.e retaining 
walls). 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 87

26. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with, and be responsible for obtaining 
encroachment permits from the City of Selma for all work performed within the City's right-of
way. 

27. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall agree to pay all applicable updated Community 
Development Fees upon approval prior to Final Map approval by Council. 

28. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall provide a dedication for a ten (10) foot public 
utility easement along all frontages of all lots as approved by the Engineer and the public 
utilities companies. No public utility easements (electric, gas, cable, telephone, sewer, water) 
shall be permitted in rear lot setback areas. 

29. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with the requirements of the Pacific, Gas 
and Electric Company (PG&E), SBC, ComCast. The City shall not accept first submittals 
without proof that the Subdivider has paid the appropriate PG&E engineering fees and 
provided PG&E with a set of plans showing proposed electrical vaults and proposed sidewalk 
and curb grades adjacent to the vaults. All PG&E vaults in which lids can not be sloped to 
match the proposed finished grading shall be located in sidewalk areas with pedestrian lids so 
the lid slope matches sidewalk cross slope. 

30. No above-ground transformer is permitted on the required sidewalk within the public right-of
way. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall utilize screening techniques recommended 
pursuant to PG&E design descriptions and City Engineer approval. 

31. All existing overhead and new utility facilities located on-site, or within the street rights-of -way 
adj acent to this subdivision shall be undergrounded. 

32. All underground utilities installed under streets shall be backfilled, compacted, tested and 
approved by the Engineer prior to placement of any aggregate base or asphalt concrete surfacing. 
Easements for utilities, including water, gas, telephone, electricity, sewage, pedestrian access, fire 
access, storm drainage, and irrigation facilities shall be provided, as required. 

33. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall install street lights on metal poles to local utility 
providers' andlor City standards at the locations designated by the Engineer. Street light 
locations shall be shown on the utility plans submitted with the final map for approval. Proof 
oflocal utility provider's approval shall be provided. The design and type of metal poles shall 
be reviewed and approved by the City Engineer. 

34. Drainage, grading, on-site and utility improvements shall be in accordance with plans reviewed 
and approved by the Engineer. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall be responsible for 
the preparation of plans prior to the approval of the Final Map. The applicant shall construct 
storm drainage facilities as deemed necessary by the Engineer to service the project site. The 
Final Map shall not be approved prior to the development of storm drainage master plans for the 
subject site and tributary areas. 

35 . Grade differentials between lots and adjacent properties shall be adequately shown on the grading 
plan and shall be treated in a manner in conformance with City of Selma standards (i.e retaining 
walls). 



36. Design and construction of all street cross sections and required off-site improvements shall be in 
accordance with City specifications and as approved by the Engineer. 

37. The ultimate width of Rose Avenue public right-of-way, an arterial street, is 84 feet. Constructed 
improvements for Rose Avenue from west to east shall be consistent with the improvements 
required for Tract Map No. 5183 and continued in like manner. 

38. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall be responsible for overlay of Rose Avenue from the 
easterly boundary of Tract Map No. 5601 (Country Rose Estates Phase IT) to the easterly curb 
returns of Country Club Lane. 

39. All other interior streets shall be constructed as ultimate sixty (60) foot rights-of-way, including 
standard curb, gutter, park landscape strips, sidewalk, handicap ramps, street lighting and full 
width permanent paving (40' permanent), pavement marking and signage, pursuant to review 
and approval by the City Engineer. As noted, the City may require park landscape strips 
between the curb and sidewalk, within the public right-of-way pursuant to the review and 
approval by the City Engineer. 

40. Traffic and road signs shall be installed in conformance to requirements and as approved by the 
Engineer. 

41. OUTLOT A (public right of way and open space) shall be dedicated to the City of Selma. 
Detailed agreements shall be r3viewed and approved by the Engineer and the City Council 
prior to the approval of the Final Map and Subdivision Agreement. OUTLOT A shall be 
improved with landscape and irrigation pursuant to plans reviewed and approved by the City. 

42. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall enter into a Subdivision Agreement in accordance 
with the City of Selma Municipal Code prior to approval of the Final Map. 

43. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall not install any fences, temporary or permanent in the 
public right-of-way. 

45. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall construct a solid a decorative six (6) foot masonry 
block wall along the entire length of Rose Avenue. Design and structural details for the type and 
style ofthe wall shall be submitted 0 the Community Development Department and the Engineer 
for review and approval by the City Council prior to the approval of the Final Map. The wall shall 
include constructed pilaster columns with a maximum spacing of twenty feet (20') o.c. The 
materials shall be of decorative block such as brick or split faced concrete block with textured 
block accents consistent with Tract Map No. 5183 as constructed. 

46. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall construct a solid six (6) foot masonry block wall 
separating the residential lots and OUTLOT B, as shown on the Tract Map, from OUTLOT A. 
Design details for the type and style of the wall shall be submitted to the Community Development 
Department and the Engineer for review and approval prior to the approval of the Final Map and 
Subdivision Agreement. 

47. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall construct a 6 foot chain-link fence along the north and 
east boundaries of OUTLOT A. Design details for the type and style of the wall shall be 
submitted to the Community Development Department and the Engineer for review and approval 
prior to the approval ofthe Final Map and Subdivision Agreement. 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 88

36. Design and construction of all street cross sections and required off-site improvements shall be in 
accordance with City specifications and as approved by the Engineer. 

37. The ultimate width of Rose Avenue public right-of-way, an arterial street, is 84 feet. Constructed 
improvements for Rose Avenue from west to east shall be consistent with the improvements 
required for Tract Map No. 5183 and continued in like manner. 

38. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall be responsible for overlay of Rose Avenue from the 
easterly boundary of Tract Map No. 5601 (Country Rose Estates Phase II) to the easterly curb 
returns of Country Club Lane. 

39. All other interior streets shall be constructed as ultimate sixty (60) foot rights-of-way, including 
standard curb, gutter, park landscape strips, sidewalk, handicap ramps, street lighting and full 
width permanent paving (40' permanent), pavement marking and signage, pursuant to review 
and approval by the City Engineer. As noted, the City may require park landscape strips 
between the curb and sidewalk, within the public right-of-way pursuant to the review and 
approval by the City Engineer. 

40. Traffic and road signs shall be installed in conformance to requirements and as approved by the 
Engineer. 

41. OUTLOT A (public right of way and open space) shall be dedicated to the City of Selma. 
Detailed agreements shall be r3viewed and approved by the Engineer and the City Council 
prior to the approval of the Final Map and Subdivision Agreement. OUTLOT A shall be 
improved with landscape and irrigation pursuant to plans reviewed and approved by the City. 

42. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall enter into a Subdivision Agreement in accordance 
with the City of Selma Municipal Code prior to approval of the Final Map. 

43. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall not install any fences, temporary or permanent in the 
public right-of-way. 

45 . The Subdivider or successor in interest shall construct a solid a decorative six (6) foot masonry 
block wall along the entire length of Rose Avenue. Design and structural details for the type and 
style ofthe wall shall be submitted 0 the Community Development Department and the Engineer 
for review and approval by the City Council prior to the approval of the Final Map. The wall shall 
include constructed pilaster columns with a maximum spacing of twenty feet (20') o.c. The 
materials shall be of decorative block such as brick or split faced concrete block with textured 
block accents consistent with Tract Map No. 5183 as constructed. 

46. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall construct a solid six (6) foot masonry block wall 
separating the residential lots and OUTLOT B, as shown on the Tract Map, from OUTLOT A. 
Design details for the type and style of the wall shall be submitted to the Community Development 
Department and the Engineer for review and approval prior to the approval of the Final Map and 
Subdivision Agreement. 

47. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall construct a 6 foot chain-link fence along the north and 
east boundaries of OUTLOT A. Design details for the type and style of the wall shall be 
submitted to the Community Development Department and the Engineer for review and approval 
prior to the approval ofthe Final Map and Subdivision Agreement. 



48. After all improvements have been constructed and accepted by the City, the Subdivider shall 
submit to the Engineering, one blue line copy of the approved set of construction plans revised to 
reflect all field revisions and marked "AS-BUll.T' for review and approval. 

49. Upon approval of the "AS-BUll.,TS" by the City, the Subdivider shall provide (1) reproducible 
and (1) copy ofthe "AS-BUll.,TS" to the City, and one (1) copy on diskette, CD or similar digital 
storage media in pdf OT tif format. 

50. The Subdivider shall provide the City with original improvement plans and Auto CAD files of 
the Final Map, improvement plans, and all drawings prepared on Auto CAD. 

51. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall submit wall design and architectural improvement 
plans for OUTLOT A to the Community Development Department for review and approval 
prior to the approval of the Final Map. 

52. The Del Rey alignment as shown on the General Plan Map is designated as an arterial street. 
Project approval shall include the set-aside of sufficient funds, pursuant to Caltrans Cost Index, 
to develop a portion of the street subject to review and approval by the City Engineer. 

Fire Department 

53. Fire hydrants and water supply systems of Cali fomi a Water Company shall be provided 
in accordance with the specifications of and at locations designated by the Selma Fire Chief. 
All fire hydrants and mains are to meet City standards and specifications. 

54. All weather access shall be provided to all areas of the development during construction to the 
satisfaction of the Fire Department. 

55. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with all applicable requirements of the 
most recent Uniform Fire Codes and local fire ordinances. 

Selma Unified School District 

56. The Subdivider or successor in interest must contact Selma Unified School District and pay all 
applicable fees at the time of building permit issuance. 

Selma-Kingsburg-Fowler County Sanitatioll District 

57. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall connect to S-K-F and comply with all applicable 
regulations, standards and specifications of the District. 

58. The Subdivider or successor in interest is responsible for arranging a pre-design meeting with 
District staff and the City of Selma in order to review the sewer improvements required to serve 
this project's needs. 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 89

48. After all improvements have been constructed and accepted by the City, the Subdivider shall 
submit to the Engineering, one blue line copy of the approved set of construction plans revised to 
reflect all field revisions and marked "AS-BUnT" for review and approval. 

49. Upon approval of the "AS-BUll.,TS" by the City, the Subdivider shall provide (1) reproducible 
and (1) copy ofthe "AS-BUll.,TS" to the City, and one (1) copy on diskette, CD or similar digital 
storage media in pdf or dfformat. 

50. The Subdivider shall provide the City with original improvement plans and Auto CAD files of 
the Final Map, improvement plans, and all drawings prepared on Auto CAD. 

51. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall submit wall design and architectural improvement 
plans for OUTLOT A to the Community Development Department for review and approval 
prior to the approval of the Final Map. 

52. The Del Rey alignment as shown on the General Plan Map is designated as an arterial street. 
Project approval shall include the set-aside of sufficient funds, pursuant to Caltrans Cost Index, 
to develop a portion of the street subject to review and approval by the City Engineer. 

Fire Department 

53. Fire hydrants and water supply systems of Cali fomi a Water Company shall be provided 
in accordance with the specifications of and at locations designated by the Selma Fire Chief. 
All fire hydrants and mains are to meet City standards and specifications. 

54. All weather access shall be provided to all areas of the development during construction to the 
satisfaction of the Fire Department. 

55. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with all applicable requirements of the 
most recent Uniform Fire Codes and local fire ordinances. 

Selma Unified School District 

56. The Subdivider or successor in interest must contact Selma Unified School District and pay all 
applicable fees at the time of building permit issuance. 

Selma-Kingsburg-Fowler County Sanitation District 

57. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall connect to S-K-F and comply with all applicable 
regulations, standards and specifications ofthe District. 

58. The Subdivider or successor in interest is responsible for arranging a pre-design meeting with 
District staff and the City of Selma in order to review the sewer improvements required to serve 
this project's needs. 



California Water Service Company 

59. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall connect to the Company and comply with all 
regulations, standards and specifications of the Company. 

60. California Water Service Company will extend its mains to serve this development in accordance 
with the main extension rules of the Public Utilities Commission ofthe State of California. If and 
when the Subdivider or the successor in interest has entered into an agreement with the Company 
and has deposited the estimated cost of making the extension, the Company will install the 
necessary water mains and serve the project with water at the rates and in accordance with the 
rules and regulations of the Commission. 

San Joaquin Valley Unified Air Pollution Control District 

61. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall refer to the SN APCD suggested rules and 
mitigation measures to reduce pollutants. 

Consolidated Irrigation District 

62. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with all applicable improvements and 
upgrades as per the rules and regulations of the Consolidated Irrigation District. 

Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District 

63. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with all applicable improvements and 
upgrades as per the rules and regulations ofthe Consolidated Irrigation District. 

County of Fresno Human Health System - Environmental Health 

64. All existing agricultural wells and irrigation systems must be safely and properly destroyed. 
The Subdivider or successor in interest shall obtain approval from the County of Fresno prior to 
the removal of any wells and irrigation systems. Well-head installations and abandonments 
shall be performed exclusively by licensed C-57 Specialty Contractors pursuant to the 
California State Contractor's Licensing Law. 

65. All construction equipment must be maintained according to the manufacturers' specifications, 
and noise generating construction equipment must be equipped with mufflers. Noise
generation construction activities shall be limited to daytime hours. 

66. Any construction materials deemed hazardous as identified in the demolition process must be 
characterized and disposed of in accordance with current federal, State, and local requirements. 

67. Should any underground storage tank(s) be found on the premises, the Subdivider or successor 
in interest shall apply for and secure and Underground Storage Tank Removal Permit from the 
Fresno County Department of Community Health, Environmental Health System (559) 445-
3271. 

California Regional Water Quality Control Board 

68. The Subdivider or successor in interest is required to comply with the State of California Water 
Resource Control Board requirements specifically related to the National Pollution Elimination 
System permit process. 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 90

California Water Service Company 

59. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall connect to the Company and comply with all 
regulations, standards and specifications of the Company. 

60. California Water Service Company will extend its mains to serve this development in accordance 
with the main extension rules of the Public Utilities Commission ofthe State of California. If and 
when the Subdivider or the successor in interest has entered into an agreement with the Company 
and has deposited the estimated cost of making the extension, the Company will install the 
necessary water mains and serve the project with water at the rates and in accordance with the 
rules and regulations of the Commission. 

San Joaquin Valley Unified Air Pollution Control District 

61. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall refer to the SN APCD suggested rules and 
mitigation measures to reduce pollutants. 

Consolidated Irrigation District 

62. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with all applicable improvements and 
upgrades as per the rules and regulations of the Consolidated Irrigation District. 

Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District 

63. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with all applicable improvements and 
upgrades as per the rules and regulations ofthe Consolidated Irrigation District. 

County of Fresno Human Health System - Environmental Health 

64. All existing agricultural wells and irrigation systems must be safely and properly destroyed. 
The Subdivider or successor in interest shall obtain approval from the County of Fresno prior to 
the removal of any wells and irrigation systems. Well-head installations and abandonments 
shall be performed exclusively by licensed C-57 Specialty Contractors pursuant to the 
California State Contractor's Licensing Law. 

65. All construction equipment must be maintained according to the manufacturers' specifications, 
and noise generating construction equipment must be equipped with mufflers. Noise
generation construction activities shall be limited to daytime hours. 

66. Any construction materials deemed hazardous as identified in the demolition process must be 
characterized and disposed of in accordance with current federal, State, and local requirements. 

67. Should any underground storage tank(s) be found on the premises, the Subdivider or successor 
in interest shall apply for and secure and Underground Storage Tank Removal Permit from the 
Fresno County Department of Community Health, Environmental Health System (559) 445-
3271. 

California Regional Water Quality Control Board 

68. The Subdivider or successor in interest is required to comply with the State of California Water 
Resource Control Board requirements specifically related to the National Pollution Elimination 
System permit process. 



69. The Subdivider or successor interest shall contact the Regional Water Quality Board and 
comply with all requirements, prior to the release of any development pennits. 

CITY ATTORNEY - Defense and Indemnification Provisions 

70. The City shall not be liable to the Subdivider or to any other person, firm, or corporation 
whatsoever, for any injury or damage that may result to any person or property by or from 
any cause whatsoever in, on, or about the subdivision of said land covered by this Agreement, 
or any part thereof. The preceding sentence shall not apply to any liability, loss, cost of 
damages caused solely by the negligence (active or passive) or willful misconduct of the City 
or its agents. 

71. The Subdivider hereby releases and agrees to indemnify and hold the City Engineer, and its 
officers, agents, employees and vohmteers harmless from and against any and all injuries to 
and deaths of persons or injuries to property, and all claims, demands, costs, loss, damage 
and liability, howsoever the same may be caused and whensoever the same may appear, 
resulting directly or indirectly from the performance or nonperformance of any or all work 
to be done in said subdivision including but not limited to the street rights of way in said 
Subdivision and upon the premises adjacent thereto pursuant to this Agreement, and also from 
any and all injuries to and deaths of persons and injuries to property or other interests, and all 
claims, demands, costs, loss, damage, and liability, howsoever same may be caused and 
whensoever same may appear, either directly or indirectly made or suffered by the Subdivider, 
the Subdivider's agents, employees, and subcontractors, while engaged in the performance of 
said work. The preceding sentence shall not apply to any liability, loss, cost, damage and 
liability caused solely by the negligence (active or passive) or willful misconduct of the City or 
its agents. 

Additional Engineering Conditions 

72. At this time, the Subdivider or successor in interest shall be responsible for the provision of a 
temporary detention basin and connect the entire storm water drainage conveyance system to 
the temporary detention basin. All the surface runoff generated from this development shall be 
stored in a temporary drainage basin to be located either in OUTLOT A or on lots 4 and 5 
within the project subject to the review and approval by the City Engineer and Pacific Gas & 
Electric. 

73. The drainage pond shall be designed to accommodate all the runoff with a minimum of two 
feet/ree board. Design details for a six foot chain link fence to be installed on lots 4 and 5, for 
security purposes due to the temporary use, shall be submitted to the City Engineer for review 
and approval prior to the approval of the Final Map and Subdivision Agreement. If the basin is 
installed in OUTLOT A and becomes part of the landscape, a chain-link fence may not be 
required by the City Engineer. 

74. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall be responsible for the maintenance of the ponding 
basin until which time it is no longer necessary. When the public drainage facility becomes 
available, it shall be the Subdivider' s or successor in interest responsibility to make the 
necessary connection to the facility with no cost to the City of Selma. In the event that lots are 
utilized as the temporary ponding basin, upon completion and connection to the public facility, 
the Subdivider or successor in interest shall backfill lots 4 and 5 and compact it to 90 percent 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 91

69. The Subdivider or successor interest shall contact the Regional Water Quality Board and 
comply with all requirements, prior to the release of any development permits. 

CITY ATTORNEY - Defense and Indemnification Provisions 

70. The City shall not be liable to the Subdivider or to any other person, firm, or corporation 
whatsoever, for any injury or damage that may result to any person or property by or from 
any cause whatsoever in, on, or about the subdivision of said land covered by this Agreement, 
or any part thereof. The preceding sentence shall not apply to any liability, loss, cost of 
damages caused solely by the negligence (active or passive) or willful misconduct of the City 
or its agents. 

71. The Subdivider hereby releases and agrees to indemnify and hold the City Engineer, and its 
officers, agents, employees and volunteers harmless from and against any and all injuries to 
and deaths of persons or injuries to property, and all claims, demands, costs, loss, damage 
and liability, howsoever the same may be caused and whensoever the same may appear, 
reSUlting directly or indirectly from the performance or nonperformance of any or all work 
to be done in said subdivision including but not limited to the street rights of way in said 
Subdivision and upon the premises adjacent thereto pursuant to this Agreement, and also from 
any and all injuries to and deaths of persons and injuries to property or other interests, and all 
claims, demands, costs, loss, damage, and liability, howsoever same may be caused and 
whensoever same may appear, either directly or indirectly made or suffered by the Subdivider, 
the Subdivider's agents, employees, and subcontractors, while engaged in the performance of 
said work. The preceding sentence shall not apply to any liability, loss, cost, damage and 
liability caused solely by the negligence (active or passive) or willful misconduct of the City or 
its agents. 

Additional Engineering Conditions 

72. At this time, the Subdivider or successor in interest shall be responsible for the provision of a 
temporary detention basin and connect the entire storm water drainage conveyance system to 
the temporary detention basin. All the surface runoff generated from this development shall be 
stored in a temporary drainage basin to be located either in OUTLOT A or on lots 4 and 5 
within the project subject to the review and approval by the City Engineer and Pacific Gas & 
Electric. 

73. The drainage pond shall be designed to accommodate all the runoff with a minimum of two 
feet/ree board. Design details for a six foot chain link fence to be installed on lots 4 and 5, for 
security purposes due to the temporary use, shall be submitted to the City Engineer for review 
and approval prior to the approval of the Final Map and Subdivision Agreement. If the basin is 
installed in OUTLOT A and becomes part of the landscape, a chain-link fence may not be 
required by the City Engineer. 

74. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall be responsible for the maintenance of the ponding 
basin until which time it is no longer necessary. When the public drainage facility becomes 
available, it shall be the Subdivider's or successor in interest responsibility to make the 
necessary connection to the facility with no cost to the City of Selma. In the event that lots are 
utilized as the temporary ponding basin, upon completion and connection to the public facility, 
the Subdivider or successor in interest shall backfill lots 4 and 5 and compact it to 90 percent 



compaction. Certification as to the completion of work verifying compaction of the land must 
be provided to City of Selma prior to application for a building permit. The cost of doing all of 
these shall be the Subdivider's or successor in interest responsibility at no cost to City. 

75. If the ponding basin is placed in OUTLOT A, the decision to retain the pond in perpetuity 
shall be reviewed and determined by the City Engineer. 

76. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall retain ownership and shall be responsible for 
the maintenance of the pond. The pond maintenance shall include but is not limited to slope 
protection, weeding and routine maintenance of the security fence. 

77. The Conditions, Covenants and Regulations that are created by the Subdivider or successor 
in interest shall clearly indicate that each dwelling shall be an individually designed custom 
home. When viewed from the road fronting the property, each dwelling's front elevation 
shall be unique. Sufficient changes to the roofline, over-hangs, and materials shall be 
provided as needed to provide such unique appearance for each dwelling. 

78. Monuments as described in Conditions No. 78 shall be set as required by City Standards and 
shall be shown on the Final Map. 

79. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall install all major street monumentation and 
section comer monumentation within the limits of the project work in accordance with City 
Standards prior to final acceptance of the project. Monumentation at the street center line 
intersections shall conform to City Standards Drawing No. 0-21. Any existing section 
comer or property comer monuments damaged by this development shall be reset to the 
satisfaction of the Engineer. A licensed land surveyor or civil engineer licensed to perform 
land surveying shall certify the placement of all required monumentation prior to final 
acceptance. Within five days after the final setting of all monuments has been completed the 
engineer or surveyor shall give written notice to the Engineer that the final monuments have 
been set. Upon payment to the engineer or surveyor for setting the final monuments, the 
applicant shall present to the Engineer evidence of the payment and receipt thereof by the 
engineer or surveyor. 

80. The Subdivider or successor in interest is responsible to connect to and pay all the necessary 
fees subject to the new storm drain master plans upon its approval. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Selma City Council hereby 
finds and takes the following actions: 

1. The above facts are true and correct. 

2. The City Council approves the Negative Declaration (Environmental Assessment No. 2005-
0006) for the project and approves Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5601 subject to 
annexation, and subject to the Findings for Approval and Conditions of Approval made part of 
this Resolution. 

* * * * * 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 92

compaction. Certification as to the completion of work verifying compaction of the land must 
be provided to City of Selma prior to application for a building permit. The cost of doing all of 
these shall be the Subdivider's or successor in interest responsibility at no cost to City. 

75. If the ponding basin is placed in OUTLOT A, the decision to retain the pond in perpetuity 
shall be reviewed and determined by the City Engineer. 

76. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall retain ownership and shall be responsible for 
the maintenance of the pond. The pond maintenance shall include but is not limited to slope 
protection, weeding and routine maintenance of the security fence. 

77. The Conditions, Covenants and Regulations that are created by the Subdivider or successor 
in interest shall clearly indicate that each dwelling shall be an individually designed custom 
home. When viewed from the road fronting the property, each dwelling's front elevation 
shall be unique. Sufficient changes to the roofline, over-hangs, and materials shall be 
provided as needed to provide such unique appearance for each dwelling. 

78. Monuments as described in Conditions No. 78 shall be set as required by City Standards and 
shall be shown on the Final Map. 

79. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall install all major street monumentation and 
section comer monumentation within the limits of the project work in accordance with City 
Standards prior to final acceptance ofthe project. Monumentation at the street center line 
intersections shall conform to City Standards Drawing No. 0-21. Any existing section 
comer or property comer monuments damaged by this development shall be reset to the 
satisfaction of the Engineer. A licensed land surveyor or civil engineer licensed to perform 
land surveying shall certify the placement of all required monumentation prior to final 
acceptance. Within five days after the final setting of all monuments has been completed the 
engineer or surveyor shall give written notice to the Engineer that the final monuments have 
been set. Upon payment to the engineer or surveyor for setting the final monuments, the 
applicant shall present to the Engineer evidence of the payment and receipt thereof by the 
engineer or surveyor. 

80. The Subdivider or successor in interest is responsible to connect to and pay all the necessary 
fees subject to the new storm drain master plans upon its approval. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Selma City Council hereby 
finds and takes the following actions: 

1. The above facts are true and correct. 

2. The City Council approves the Negative Declaration (Environmental Assessment No. 2005-
0006) for the project and approves Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5601 subject to 
annexation, and subject to the Findings for Approval and Conditions of Approval made part of 
this Resolution. 

* * * * * 



The foregoing Resolution No. 2006-17R is hereby approved the 21 51 day of February 2006 by 
the following vote, to wit: 

AYES: 5 COUNCIL MEMBERS: Lujan, Niswander, Avalos, Derr, Tow 

NOES: 0 COUNCIL MEMBERS: None 

ABSTAIN: 0 COUNCIL MEMBERS: None 

ABSENT: 0 COUNCIL MEMBERS: None 

Mayor of the City of Sehna 

ATTEST: 

Melanie A. Carter, CMC 
City Clerk of the City of Selma 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 93

The foregoing Resolution No. 2006-17R is hereby approved the 21 51 day of February 2006 by 
the following vote, to wit: 

AYES: 5 COUNCIL MEMBERS: Lujan, Niswander, Avalos, Derr, Tow 

NOES: 0 COUNCIL MEMBERS: None 

ABSTAIN: 0 COUNCIL MEMBERS: None 

ABSENT: 0 COUNCIL MEMBERS: None 

Mayor of the City of Selma 

ATTEST: 

Melanie A. Carter, CMC 
City Clerk of the City of Selma 



EXHIBITC 

FEE SCHEDULE 

OOOI6417.WPD;1 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 94

EXHIBITC 

FEE SCHEDULE 

OOOI6417.WPD;1 



ORDINANCE NO. __ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELMA APPROVING A 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH WEINGART RONALD (TE)IWEINGART 

SHERRI (TE) TO VESTED TENATIVE TRACT MAP #5601 

WHEREAS, on the City Council of the City of Selma ("City") approved vesting 
tentative tract map for the development of 33 residential units on approximately 20 acres 
("Project"); and 

WHEREAS, in approving the Project, the City considered the environmental 
impacts of the Project and certified a negative declaration for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, City and Weingart Ronald (TE)/Weingart Sherri (TE) ("Developer") 
now desire to enter into a Development Agreement ("Development Agreement ") pursuant 
to §65864 et. Seq. of the California Government Code to facilitate the development of the 
Project and to extend the expiration date of the Project for the duration of the 
Development Agreement pursuant to Government Code §666452.6(a)(1); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code §65867, notice of intention to consider 
adoption of a Development Agreement was given pursuant to Government Code §§ 
65090 and 65091; and 

WHEREAS, California Government Code §65867.5(a) requires that a 
Development Agreement be adopted by Ordinance. 

NOW THEREFORE, The City Council of the City of Selma ordains as follows: 

SECTION 1: Findings. The City Council of the City of Selma, based on substantial 
evidence, finds as follows: 

A. All of the forgoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by 
this reference. 

B. The provisions of the Development Agreement are consistent with the General 
Plan of the City of Selma now in effect. 

C. Entry by the City into the Development Agreement is in the best interests of the 
City of Selma. 

D. The Development Agreement provides that any subsequent approvals related 
to the Project, including any subsequent tentative map, cannot be approved unless in 
compliance with the rules, regulations and official policies of the City, and, in the case of 
a subdivision map, must be in conformance with §66473.7 of the Sub-division Map Act. 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 95

ORDINANCE NO. __ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELMA APPROVING A 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH WEINGART RONALD (TE)IWEINGART 

SHERRI (TE) TO VESTED TENATIVE TRACT MAP #5601 

WHEREAS, on the City Council of the City of Selma ("City") approved vesting 
tentative tract map for the development of 33 residential units on approximately 20 acres 
("Project"); and 

WHEREAS, in approving the Project, the City considered the environmental 
impacts of the Project and certified a negative declaration for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, City and Weingart Ronald (TE)/Weingart Sherri (TE) ("Developer") 
now desire to enter into a Development Agreement ("Development Agreement ") pursuant 
to §65864 et. Seq. of the California Government Code to facilitate the development of the 
Project and to extend the expiration date of the Project for the duration of the 
Development Agreement pursuant to Government Code §666452.6(a)(1); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code §65867, notice of intention to consider 
adoption of a Development Agreement was given pursuant to Government Code §§ 
65090 and 65091; and 

WHEREAS, California Government Code §65867.5(a) requires that a 
Development Agreement be adopted by Ordinance. 

NOW THEREFORE, The City Council of the City of Selma ordains as follows: 

SECTION 1: Findings. The City Council of the City of Selma, based on substantial 
evidence, finds as follows: 

A. All of the forgoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by 
this reference. 

B. The provisions of the Development Agreement are consistent with the General 
Plan of the City of Selma now in effect. 

C. Entry by the City into the Development Agreement is in the best interests of the 
City of Selma. 

D. The Development Agreement provides that any subsequent approvals related 
to the Project, including any subsequent tentative map, cannot be approved unless in 
compliance with the rules, regulations and official policies of the City, and, in the case of 
a subdivision map, must be in conformance with §66473.7 of the Sub-division Map Act. 



SECTION 2. Effective date and Posting of Ordinance: This Ordinance shall take 
effect and be enforce thirty (30) days from and after the date of passage. The City Clerk 
of the City of Selma shall cause this Ordinance to be published at least once within fifteen 
(15) days after its passage in the Selma Enterprise with the names of those City Council 
Members voting for and against the Ordinance. 

SECTION 3: Severability: If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase 
of this Ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional, the decision shall 
not affect the validity of the remaining portions of the Ordinance. The City Council hereby 
declares that it would have passed this Ordinance, and each section, subsection, 
sentence, clause or phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that anyone or more sections, 
subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases have been declared invalid or 
unconstitutional. 

SECTION 4: Authorization. Upon the effective date of this Ordinance, the Mayor 
is authorized to sign on behalf of the City and the City Clerk is authorized to acknowledge 
the Mayor's signature on that certain Development Agreement which has been presented 
to the City Council and which has been the subject of this Council's hearings. The 
effective date of the Agreement shall be the date upon which this Ordinance was 
introduced to the City Council. The City Council further finds and determines that after the 
adoption of this Ordinance and its statutorily required publication, the further publication 
of this Ordinance in the City's bound Municipal Code Volume is not necessary and that 
the City Clerk is directed, at the time the Clerk customarily sends all new Ordinances to 
the publishing company for publication in the revisions of the bound Municipal Code 
Volume and/or the online publishing of the Selma Municipal Code, not to send this 
Ordinance for publication in that bound volume and/or online publication as a codified 
Ordinance of the City of Selma. 

*********** 

I, Reyna Rivera, Chief Deputy City Clerk of the City of Selma, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing Ordinance was introduced at the I 2018 regular City 
Council meeting and passed at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Selma 
on the day of 2018, by the following vote, to wit: 

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

Mayor of the City of Selma 
ATTEST: 

Reyna Rivera, City Clerk 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 96

SECTION 2. Effective date and Posting of Ordinance: This Ordinance shall take 
effect and be enforce thirty (30) days from and after the date of passage. The City Clerk 
of the City of Selma shall cause this Ordinance to be published at least once within fifteen 
(15) days after its passage in the Selma Enterprise with the names of those City Council 
Members voting for and against the Ordinance. 

SECTION 3: Severability: If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase 
of this Ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional, the decision shall 
not affect the validity of the remaining portions of the Ordinance. The City Council hereby 
declares that it would have passed this Ordinance, and each section, subsection, 
sentence, clause or phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that anyone or more sections, 
subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases have been declared invalid or 
unconstitutional. 

SECTION 4: Authorization. Upon the effective date of this Ordinance, the Mayor 
is authorized to sign on behalf of the City and the City Clerk is authorized to acknowledge 
the Mayor's signature on that certain Development Agreement which has been presented 
to the City Council and which has been the subject of this Council's hearings. The 
effective date of the Agreement shall be the date upon which this Ordinance was 
introduced to the City Council. The City Council further finds and determines that after the 
adoption of this Ordinance and its statutorily required publication, the further publication 
of this Ordinance in the City's bound Municipal Code Volume is not necessary and that 
the City Clerk is directed, at the time the Clerk customarily sends all new Ordinances to 
the publishing company for publication in the revisions of the bound Municipal Code 
Volume and/or the online publishing of the Selma Municipal Code, not to send this 
Ordinance for publication in that bound volume and/or online publication as a codified 
Ordinance of the City of Selma. 

*********** 

I, Reyna Rivera, Chief Deputy City Clerk of the City of Selma, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing Ordinance was introduced at the I 2018 regular City 
Council meeting and passed at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Selma 
on the day of 2018, by the following vote, to wit: 

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

Mayor of the City of Selma 
ATTEST: 

Reyna Rivera, City Clerk 



CITY MANAGER'S/STAFF'S REPORT 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 

ITEM NO: 

February 20,2018 

Introduction and First Reading of Ordinance Approving a Development 
SUBJECT: Agreement Between the City and Merigian Michael L (TE) 

DISCUSSION: On November 6,2006 the City Council approved Vesting Tentative Tract 
Map No. 5640 ("Tract 5640") Country View Estates No.3 for the development of 23 
residential units on approximately 10 acres in the City of Selma. As a result of the financial 
impacts of the 'great recession' the California Legislature approved a series of extensions to 
subdivision maps beyond the time period in which they would ordinarily expire by 
operation of law. The fmal 24 month extension approved by the Legislature extended the 
expiration of Tract 5640 to November 6, 2018. Government Code §66452.6 provides that 
the expiration of an approved Vesting Tentative Tract Map may be extended by a 
development agreement for the term of the development agreement. 

The proposed development agreement, which must be approved by ordinance, will facilitate 
the completion of the approved development and will extend the expiration of the current 
map for the term of the development agreement which is two years. The proposed 
development agreement requires full compliance with all of the conditions imposed by the 
City when Tract 5640 was approved by Resolution No. 2006-84R and all subsequent 
approvals related to the project must fully comply with the City's General Plan, the 
approved tentative map, and all applicable ordinances, codes, and regulations. The 
resolution approving the project including the terms and conditions of approval, and the 
development fees related to the project are attached to and incorporated into the 
development agreement. Tract 5640 was included in the City of Selma 2035 General Plan, 
is consistent with the General Plan, and therefore the development agreement is also 
consistent with the City's 2035 General Plan. 

Environmental review for Tract 5640 was done by the City Council when it considered 
approval of Tract 5640 and the City Council adopted and certified a Negative Declaration 
for the project. 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 97

CITY MANAGER'S/STAFF'S REPORT 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 

ITEM NO: 

February 20,2018 

Introduction and First Reading of Ordinance Approving a Development 
SUBJECT: Agreement Between the City and Merigian Michael L (TE) 

DISCUSSION: On November 6,2006 the City Council approved Vesting Tentative Tract 
Map No. 5640 ("Tract 5640") Country View Estates No.3 for the development of 23 
residential units on approximately 10 acres in the City of Selma. As a result of the financial 
impacts of the 'great recession' the California Legislature approved a series of extensions to 
subdivision maps beyond the time period in which they would ordinarily expire by 
operation of law. The fmal 24 month extension approved by the Legislature extended the 
expiration of Tract 5640 to November 6, 2018. Government Code §66452.6 provides that 
the expiration of an approved Vesting Tentative Tract Map may be extended by a 
development agreement for the term of the development agreement. 

The proposed development agreement, which must be approved by ordinance, will facilitate 
the completion of the approved development and will extend the expiration of the current 
map for the term of the development agreement which is two years. The proposed 
development agreement requires full compliance with all of the conditions imposed by the 
City when Tract 5640 was approved by Resolution No. 2006-84R and all subsequent 
approvals related to the project must fully comply with the City's General Plan, the 
approved tentative map, and all applicable ordinances, codes, and regulations. The 
resolution approving the project including the terms and conditions of approval, and the 
development fees related to the project are attached to and incorporated into the 
development agreement. Tract 5640 was included in the City of Selma 2035 General Plan, 
is consistent with the General Plan, and therefore the development agreement is also 
consistent with the City's 2035 General Plan. 

Environmental review for Tract 5640 was done by the City Council when it considered 
approval of Tract 5640 and the City Council adopted and certified a Negative Declaration 
for the project. 

5.



COST: 

All costs associated with review ofthe 
development agreement are 
reimbursable by the developer pursuant 
to SMC § 12-3-4(A)(14). 

FUNDING: (Enter the funding source for this 
item in box below - if fund exists, enter the balance 
in the fund). 

Funding Source: NONE 

Fund Balance: 

BUDGET IMPACT: 

None. 

ON -GOING COST: (Enter the amount 
that will need to be budgeted each year in box 
below - if one-time cost, enter NONE). 

Not applicable. 

RECOMMENDATION: Waive introduction and first reading of Ordinance Approving 
a Development Agreement related to Tract 5640 Country View Estates No.3. 

Neal E. Costanzo, City Attorney Date 

Henry Perea, Interim City Manager Date 

Attachments Page 

Proposed Development Agreement 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 98

COST: 

All costs associated with review ofthe 
development agreement are 
reimbursable by the developer pursuant 
to SMC § 12-3-4(A)(14). 

FUNDING: (Enter the funding source for this 
item in box below - if fund exists, enter the balance 
in the fund). 

Funding Source: NONE 

Fund Balance: 

BUDGET IMPACT: 

None. 

ON -GOING COST: (Enter the amount 
that will need to be budgeted each year in box 
below - if one-time cost, enter NONE). 

Not applicable. 

RECOMMENDATION: Waive introduction and first reading of Ordinance Approving 
a Development Agreement related to Tract 5640 Country View Estates No.3. 

Neal E. Costanzo, City Attorney Date 

Henry Perea, Interim City Manager Date 

Attachments Page 

Proposed Development Agreement 

/s/ Neal E. Costanzo     02/16/18

/s/ Henry Perea      02/16/18



RECORDING REQUESTED BY: 
AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

City Manager 
City of Selma 
1710 Tucker Street 
Selma, CA 93662 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - VESTING TENTATIVE TRACT MAP NO. 5640 

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and entered into this 20th 

day of February 2018, by and between the City of Selma, a municipal corporation (hereinafter 
referred to as "City"), and Merigian Michael L (TE) (hereinafter referred to as "Developer"). City 
and Developer are from time to time referred to individually as a "Party" and collectively as the 
"Parties." 

1. RECITALS 

This Agreement is predicated upon the following recitals, which, are incorporated into and 
made a part of this Agreement. 

1.1 Code Authorizations. The City, a general law city, is authorized pursuant to 
Article 2.5 of Chapter 4 of Title 7 of the Government Code, Sections 65864 through 65869.5 
("Development Agreement Statute"), to enter into development agreements with persons having 
legal or equitable interests in real property for the development of such property in order to 
establish certainty in the development process. This Agreement has been processed, considered, 
approved and executed in accordance with the Development Agreement Statute and the Selma 
Municipal Code. 

1.2 Developer/Property. Developer owns certain real property located in the City of 
Selma, County of Fresno, California, which is the subject property of Vesting Tentative Tract Map 
No. 5640 ("Project" or "VTTM No. 5640" or "Tract 5640") more particularly described in Exhibit 
A, attached hereto and incorporated herein, which real property is the subject matter of this 
Agreement ("Real Property") 

1.3 Interest of Developer. Developer represents that it has an equitable or a legal 
interest, as described in Section 1.2, in the Real Property and that all other persons holding legal 
or equitable interests in the Real Property are to be bound by this Agreement. Developer will 
provide a current preliminary title report at the time of approval of this Agreement to establish the 
legal interests. 

{OOOl6427.DOCX;l} 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 99

RECORDING REQUESTED BY: 
AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

City Manager 
City of Selma 
1710 Tucker Street 
Selma, CA 93662 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - VESTING TENTATIVE TRACT MAP NO. 5640 

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and entered into this 20th 

day of February 2018, by and between the City of Selma, a municipal corporation (hereinafter 
referred to as "City"), and Merigian Michael L (TE) (hereinafter referred to as "Developer"). City 
and Developer are from time to time referred to individually as a "Party" and collectively as the 
"Parties." 

1. RECITALS 

This Agreement is predicated upon the following recitals, which, are incorporated into and 
made a part of this Agreement. 

1.1 Code Authorizations. The City, a general law city, is authorized pursuant to 
Article 2.5 of Chapter 4 of Title 7 of the Government Code, Sections 65864 through 65869.5 
("Development Agreement Statute"), to enter into development agreements with persons having 
legal or equitable interests in real property for the development of such property in order to 
establish certainty in the development process. This Agreement has been processed, considered, 
approved and executed in accordance with the Development Agreement Statute and the Selma 
Municipal Code. 

1.2 Developer/Property. Developer owns certain real property located in the City of 
Selma, County of Fresno, California, which is the subject property of Vesting Tentative Tract Map 
No. 5640 ("Project" or "VTTM No. 5640" or "Tract 5640") more particularly described in Exhibit 
A, attached hereto and incorporated herein, which real property is the subject matter of this 
Agreement ("Real Property") 

1.3 Interest of Developer. Developer represents that it has an equitable or a legal 
interest, as described in Section 1.2, in the Real Property and that all other persons holding legal 
or equitable interests in the Real Property are to be bound by this Agreement. Developer will 
provide a current preliminary title report at the time of approval of this Agreement to establish the 
legal interests. 

{OOOl6427.DOCX;l } 



1.4 Project. Developer intends to develop the Real Property to be used as 24 residential 
lots ("Project"). The Project was approved by the City Council of the City of Selma by Resolution 
No 2006-84R on November 6, 2006, with a finding that the Project was consistent with the 
General Plan, the adoption of a negative declaration, imposing conditions of approval, dedications 
and/or mitigation measures and approving other entitlements(s) or conditions which together are 
referred to herein as the Project Approvals. 

1.5 Benefits/Burdens - Intent of Parties. City and Developer desire to enter into this 
Agreement in order to facilitate the development of the Real Property. Developer and City have 
determined that the Project is a development project for which this Agreement is appropriate; that 
this Agreement will reduce uncertainty in planning and provide for a more orderly development 
of the Real Property, insure timely installation of necessary improvements; provide for public 
services appropriate to the development of the Real Property; insure attainment of the maximum 
effective utilization of resources within the City at the least economic cost to its citizens; and 
otherwise achieve the goals and purposes ofthe Development Agreement Statute. 

1.5.1 The Project will require the construction of substantial public 
improvements. Certain development risks and uncertainties associated with the magnitude and 
long-term nature of the Project, including the cost of portions of the public improvements, could 
discourage and deter Developer from making the long-term commitments necessary to fully 
develop the Real Property. The parties desire to enter into this Agreement in order to reduce or 
eliminate uncertainties associated with the development of the Project over which City has control 
and to set development fees, so that they are specific and certain. 

1.5.2 In exchange for these benefits to City, together with the public benefits to 
be served by the development ofthe Real Property, Developer desires to receive the assurance that 
it may proceed with development of the Real Property in accordance with the existing ordinances, 
resolutions, policies and regulations of City, the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement, 
and the Subsequent Approvals as defined in Section 7.2 of this Agreement. 

1.5.3 The assurances provided to Developer in this Agreement are provided 
pursuant to, and as contemplated by, the Development Agreement Statute as consideration for the 
undertakings of Developer as set forth in this Agreement, and are intended by City to be and have 
been relied upon by Developer in undertaking the obligations and covenants provided in this 
Agreement and will be relied upon to an even greater degree in expending monies and making 
improvements pursuant to this Agreement. 

1.5.4 This Agreement will promote and encourage the development of the Real 
Property and other City infrastructure by providing Developer with a greater degree of certainty 
as to its ability to expeditiously and economically complete the Project. The parties agree that the 
consideration to be received by City pursuant to this Agreement and the rights secured to 
Developer hereunder constitute good and sufficient consideration to support the mutual covenants 
and agreements. 

{00016427.DOCX;1 } 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 100

1.4 Project. Developer intends to develop the Real Property to be used as 24 residential 
lots ("Project"). The Project was approved by the City Council of the City of Selma by Resolution 
No 2006-84R on November 6, 2006, with a finding that the Project was consistent with the 
General Plan, the adoption of a negative declaration, imposing conditions of approval, dedications 
and/or mitigation measures and approving other entitlements(s) or conditions which together are 
referred to herein as the Project Approvals. 

1.5 Benefits/Burdens - Intent of Parties. City and Developer desire to enter into this 
Agreement in order to facilitate the development of the Real Property. Developer and City have 
determined that the Project is a development project for which this Agreement is appropriate; that 
this Agreement will reduce uncertainty in planning and provide for a more orderly development 
of the Real Property, insure timely installation of necessary improvements; provide for public 
services appropriate to the development of the Real Property; insure attainment of the maximum 
effective utilization of resources within the City at the least economic cost to its citizens; and 
otherwise achieve the goals and purposes of the Development Agreement Statute. 

1.5.1 The Project will require the construction of substantial public 
improvements. Certain development risks and uncertainties associated with the magnitude and 
long-term nature of the Project, including the cost of portions of the public improvements, could 
discourage and deter Developer from making the long-term commitments necessary to fully 
develop the Real Property. The parties desire to enter into this Agreement in order to reduce or 
eliminate uncertainties associated with the development of the Project over which City has control 
and to set development fees, so that they are specific and certain. 

1.5.2 In exchange for these benefits to City, together with the public benefits to 
be served by the development of the Real Property, Developer desires to receive the assurance that 
it may proceed with development of the Real Property in accordance with the existing ordinances, 
resolutions, policies and regulations of City, the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement, 
and the Subsequent Approvals as defined in Section 7.2 of this Agreement. 

1.5.3 The assurances provided to Developer in this Agreement are provided 
pursuant to, and as contemplated by, the Development Agreement Statute as consideration for the 
undertakings of Developer as set forth in this Agreement, and are intended by City to be and have 
been relied upon by Developer in undertaking the obligations and covenants provided in this 
Agreement and will be relied upon to an even greater degree in expending monies and making 
improvements pursuant to this Agreement. 

1.5.4 This Agreement will promote and encourage the development of the Real 
Property and other City infrastructure by providing Developer with a greater degree of certainty 
as to its ability to expeditiously and economically complete the Project. The parties agree that the 
consideration to be received by City pursuant to this Agreement and the rights secured to 
Developer hereunder constitute good and sufficient consideration to support the mutual covenants 
and agreements. 

{OOOl6427.DOCX;1 } 



1.5.5 The parties intend by this Agreement to accomplish and accommodate the 
respective goals and desires set forth in these recitals. 

1.6 City's Position. City, by electing to enter into contractual agreements such as this 
one, acknowledges that the obligations of City shall survive beyond the term or terms of the present 
City Council members, that such action will serve to bind City and future Councils to the 
obligations thereby undertaken, and this Agreement shall limit the future exercise of certain 
governmental and proprietary powers of City. By approving this Agreement, the City Council has 
elected to exercise certain governmental powers at the time of entering into this Agreement, rather 
than deferring its actions to some undetermined future date. The terms and conditions of this 
Agreement have undergone extensive review by City and its Council and have been found to be 
fair, just, and reasonable. City has concluded that the pursuit of the Project will serve the best 
interests of its citizens and the public health, safety and welfare will be served best by entering 
into this obligation. City acknowledges that Developer would not consider or engage in the Project 
without the assurances this Agreement provides. 

1.7 City Council Actions. On , 2018, the City Council, after providing 
public notice as required by law, held a public hearing on the Project Approvals and took the 
following actions: (a) made findings that the provisions ofthis Agreement are consistent with the 
General Plan, as well as all other applicable plans, policies and regulations of City, including 
existing development regulations is in the best interests of the health, safety, and general welfare 
of City, its residents, and the public; is entered into pursuant to, and constitutes a present exercise 
of, City's police power; and is entered into pursuant to, and in compliance with, the requirements 
of Government Code section 65867 ; and (b) adopted Ordinance No. approving and 
authorizing the execution of this Agreement effective on ,2018. 

2. DEFINITIONS 

In this Agreement, unless the context otherwise requires: 

2.1 "Agreement" means this Development Agreement. 

2.2 "CEQA" means the California Environmental Quality Act. 

2.3 "City" means the City of Selma, California. 

2.4 "City Manager" means the person holding the office of City Manager of City. 

2.5 "Conditions of Approval" means all conditions attached to the Project Approvals 
and Subsequent Approvals. 

2.6 "Default" has the meaning given in Section 11.1. 

{00016427.DOCX; I } 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 101

1.5.5 The parties intend by this Agreement to accomplish and accommodate the 
respective goals and desires set forth in these recitals. 

1.6 City's Position. City, by electing to enter into contractual agreements such as this 
one, acknowledges that the obligations of City shall survive beyond the term or terms of the present 
City Council members, that such action will serve to bind City and future Councils to the 
obligations thereby undertaken, and this Agreement shall limit the future exercise of certain 
governmental and proprietary powers of City. By approving this Agreement, the City Council has 
elected to exercise certain governmental powers at the time of entering into this Agreement, rather 
than deferring its actions to some undetermined future date. The terms and conditions of this 
Agreement have undergone extensive review by City and its Council and have been found to be 
fair, just, and reasonable. City has concluded that the pursuit of the Project will serve the best 
interests of its citizens and the public health, safety and welfare will be served best by entering 
into this obligation. City acknowledges that Developer would not consider or engage in the Project 
without the assurances this Agreement provides. 

1. 7 City Council Actions. On , 2018, the City Council, after providing 
public notice as required by law, held a public hearing on the Project Approvals and took the 
following actions: (a) made findings that the provisions ofthis Agreement are consistent with the 
General Plan, as well as all other applicable plans, policies and regulations of City, including 
existing development regulations is in the best interests of the health, safety, and general welfare 
of City, its residents, and the public; is entered into pursuant to, and constitutes a present exercise 
of, City's police power; and is entered into pursuant to, and in compliance with, the requirements 
of Government Code section 65867 ; and (b) adopted Ordinance No. approving and 
authorizing the execution ofthis Agreement effective on ,2018. 

2. DEFINITIONS 

In this Agreement, unless the context otherwise requires: 

2.1 "Agreement" means this Development Agreement. 

2.2 "CEQA" means the California Environmental Quality Act. 

2.3 "City" means the City of Selma, California. 

2.4 "City Manager" means the person holding the office of City Manager of City. 

2.5 "Conditions of Approval" means all conditions attached to the Project Approvals 
and Subsequent Approvals. 

2.6 "Default" has the meaning given in Section 11.1. 

{OOO 16427 .DOCX; I} 



2.7 "Developer" means the person, persons or entity(ies) having a legal or equitable 
interest in the Real Property as described in Exhibit A and includes the Developer's successors in 
interest. 

2.8 "Development Agreement Statute" has the meaning given in Section 1.1. 

2.9 "Effective Date" has the meaning given in Section 4.1. 

2.10 "Events of Default" means an event of default under this Agreement, as defined in 
Section 11.1 hereof. 

2.11 "Project" has the meaning given in Section 1.4. 

2.12 "Project Approvals" means Resolution No. 2006-84R and all other approvals 
received or required by the Rules, Regulations and Official Policies. 

2.13 "Real Property" means that real property as more particularly described III 

Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference. 

2.14 "Rules, Regulations and Official Policies" has the meaning set forth in Section 7.6. 

2.15 "Subsequent Approvals" has the meaning set forth in Section 7.2. 

3. EXHIBITS 

The following documents are referred to in this Agreement, and are incorporated herein as 
though set forth in full: 

Designation Descriptions 

Exhibit A Legal Description of the Real Property 

Exhibit B City of Selma Resolution No. 2006-84R 

Exhibit C Fee Schedule 

4. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

4.1 Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective upon the date the ordinance 
approving this Agreement becomes effective ("Effective Date"). 

4.2 Property Subject to the Agreement. This Agreement applies to and governs the 
development ofthe Real Property. 

4.3 Duration of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the 
Effective Date and shall expire on the second (2nd) anniversary of the Effective Date, unless 
{OOOl6427.DOCX;l } 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 102

2.7 "Developer" means the person, persons or entity(ies) having a legal or equitable 
interest in the Real Property as described in Exhibit A and includes the Developer's successors in 
interest. 

2.8 "Development Agreement Statute" has the meaning given in Section 1.1. 

2.9 "Effective Date" has the meaning given in Section 4.1. 

2.10 "Events of Default" means an event of default under this Agreement, as defined in 
Section 11.1 hereof. 

2.11 "Project" has the meaning given in Section 1.4. 

2.12 "Project Approvals" means Resolution No. 2006-84R and all other approvals 
received or required by the Rules, Regulations and Official Policies. 

2.13 "Real Property" means that real property as more particularly described III 

Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference. 

2.14 "Rules, Regulations and Official Policies" has the meaning set forth in Section 7.6. 

2.15 "Subsequent Approvals" has the meaning set forth in Section 7.2. 

3. EXHIBITS 

The following documents are referred to in this Agreement, and are incorporated herein as 
though set forth in full: 

Designation Descriptions 

Exhibit A Legal Description of the Real Property 

Exhibit B City of Selma Resolution No. 2006-84R 

Exhibit C Fee Schedule 

4. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

4.1 Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective upon the date the ordinance 
approving this Agreement becomes effective ("Effective Date"). 

4.2 Property Subject to the Agreement. This Agreement applies to and governs the 
development ofthe Real Property. 

4.3 Duration of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the 
Effective Date and shall expire on the second (2nd) anniversary of the Effective Date, unless 
{OOOl6427.DOCX;l } 



extended by written mutual agreement ofthe parties. Expiration ofthis Agreement shall not affect 
any rights of Developer arising from the Project Approvals, Subsequent Approvals or other permits 
and entitlements granted by City prior to, concurrently with, or subsequent to the Effective Date 
of this Agreement. 

4.4 Burden on Real Property. The parties agree that this Agreement is a burden on and 
runs with title to the Real Property. All of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall be 
binding upon the parties and their respective heirs, successors and assigns, representatives, lessees, 
and all other persons acquiring all or a portion of the Project, or any interest therein, whether it by 
operation of law or any manner whatsoever. All of the provisions contained in this Agreement 
shall be enforceable as equitable servitudes and shall constitute covenants running with the land 
pursuant to California law including, without limitations, California Civil Code § 1468. This 
Agreement shall be recorded with the Fresno County Recorder. 

4.5 Prohibition Against Assignment and Change in Ownership Management and 
Control of the Developer. No voluntary or involuntary successor in interest or assignee of 
Developer or of its constituent members shall acquire any rights or powers under this Agreement 
except as expressly set forth herein. The rights and obligations of Developer under this Agreement 
may not be transferred or assigned without the consent of City, as is more fully set forth in 
Section 4.5.1, except as is set forth in Section 4.5.2. Any transfer or assignment shall be subject 
to the provisions of this Agreement. During the term of this Agreement, for any transfer or 
assignment approved by City under the terms of Section 4.5.1 and for any transfer or assignment 
for which the City's consent is not required under the terms of Section 4.5.2, any assignee or 
transferee shall observe and perform all of the duties and obligations of Developer contained in 
this Agreement insofar as such duties may be transferred or assigned to another party and insofar 
as such duties relate to the development of the Real Property acquired by the assignee or transferee. 

4.5.1 The qualifications and identities comprising Developer are of particular 
concern to City. It is because of these qualifications and identities that City has entered into this 
Agreement with Developer. Except as expressly provided in Section 4.5.2 and other sections of 
this Agreement, Developer shall not assign all or any part of this Agreement without the prior 
written approval of City, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. City shall make a 
determination as to whether it consents to such a change in ownership or assignment within sixty 
(60) days of the request being made by Developer, so long as Developer and the prospective 
transferee or assignee provide the information requested by City upon which to base such a 
decision within the first fifteen (15) days of the sixty (60) day time period. The scope of review 
by City for City's approval is limited to financial capacity and experience to assure ability to meet 
the requirements of this Agreement. 

4.5.2 Prior consent of City is not necessary for the voluntary assignment or 
transfer of the benefits ofthis Agreement as follows: 

(a) A transfer to a limited partnership of which Developer is a general 
partner, a subsidiary corporation controlled by Developer, or a parent corporation which owns a 
controlling interest in Developer. 

{00016427.DOCX;1} 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 103

extended by written mutual agreement ofthe parties. Expiration ofthis Agreement shall not affect 
any rights of Developer arising from the Project Approvals, Subsequent Approvals or other permits 
and entitlements granted by City prior to, concurrently with, or subsequent to the Effective Date 
of this Agreement. 

4.4 Bill'den on Real Property. The parties agree that this Agreement is a burden on and 
runs with title to the Real Property. All of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall be 
binding upon the parties and their respective heirs, successors and assigns, representatives, lessees, 
and all other persons acquiring all or a portion of the Project, or any interest therein, whether it by 
operation of law or any manner whatsoever. All of the provisions contained in this Agreement 
shall be enforceable as equitable servitudes and shall constitute covenants running with the land 
pursuant to California law including, without limitations, California Civil Code § 1468. This 
Agreement shall be recorded with the Fresno County Recorder. 

4.5 Prohibition Against Assignment and Change in Ownership Management and 
Control of the Developer. No voluntary or involuntary successor in interest or assignee of 
Developer or of its constituent members shall acquire any rights or powers under this Agreement 
except as expressly set forth herein. The rights and obligations of Developer under this Agreement 
may not be transferred or assigned without the consent of City, as is more fully set forth in 
Section 4.5.1, except as is set forth in Section 4.5.2. Any transfer or assignment shall be subject 
to the provisions of this Agreement. During the term of this Agreement, for any transfer or 
assignment approved by City under the terms of Section 4.5.1 and for any transfer or assignment 
for which the City's consent is not required under the terms of Section 4.5.2, any assignee or 
transferee shall observe and perform all of the duties and obligations of Developer contained in 
this Agreement insofar as such duties may be transferred or assigned to another party and insofar 
as such duties relate to the development of the Real Property acquired by the assignee or transferee. 

4.5.1 The qualifications and identities comprising Developer are of particular 
concern to City. It is because of these qualifications and identities that City has entered into this 
Agreement with Developer. Except as expressly provided in Section 4.5.2 and other sections of 
this Agreement, Developer shall not assign all or any part of this Agreement without the prior 
written approval of City, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. City shall make a 
determination as to whether it consents to such a change in ownership or assignment within sixty 
(60) days of the request being made by Developer, so long as Developer and the prospective 
transferee or assignee provide the information requested by City upon which to base such a 
decision within the first fifteen (15) days of the sixty (60) day time period. The scope of review 
by City for City's approval is limited to financial capacity and experience to assure ability to meet 
the requirements of this Agreement. 

4.5.2 Prior consent of City is not necessary for the voluntary assignment or 
transfer of the benefits of this Agreement as follows: 

(a) A transfer to a limited partnership of which Developer is a general 
partner, a subsidiary corporation controlled by Developer, or a parent corporation which owns a 
controlling interest in Developer. 

{00016427.DOCX;1} 



(b) A transfer or assignment made as a part of the transfer, assignment, 
or sale of a completed residential unit. For the purposes of this section, the term "completed 
residential unit" shall mean a lot which is fully developed, habitable and has had an occupancy 
permit issued by City. 

4.5.3 Developer and any proposed successor in interest shall cooperate with City 
in providing information necessary for review hereunder. Developer shall promptly notify City of 
any and all changes in the identity of the parties in control of Developer or the degree thereof, of 
which it or any of its members have been notified or otherwise have knowledge or information. 
This Agreement may be terminated by City if there is any "significant change" (voluntary or 
involuntary) in membership or control of Developer (other than such changes occasioned by the 
death or incapacity of any individual) prior to expiration of this Agreement, other than a change in 
ownership, assignment or transfer for which the City's prior consent was obtained pursuant to 
Section 4.5.1 or which is exempt from the consent requirement by virtue of Section 4.5.2. A 
change shall be considered to be a "significant change" for the purposes of interpreting this 
Agreement ifit results in a change in ownership of forty-nine percent (49%) or more of Developer, 
particularly if it results in forty-nine percent (49%) or more of Developer being owned by someone 
who is not an owner of any part of Developer on the Effective Date of this Agreement. 

4.5.4 For any transfer or conveyance approved by City or for which City's 
approval is not necessary, the transferee shall succeed to all of Developer's rights and obligations 
under this Agreement, and upon recordation of the deed conveying title to the transferred property 
subject to this Agreement, Developer shall have no further rights or obligations under this 
Agreement, except for any such rights and obligations that accrued prior to the recordation of the 
deed. Developer shall provide City with written notification of the transfer and a copy ofthe deed 
within ten (10) days ofthe recordation of the deed. 

5. AMENDMENT OR CANCELLATION OF AGREEMENT 

5.1 This Agreement may be amended from time to time by the mutual consent of the 
parties hereto but only in the same manner as its adoption by an ordinance as set forth in 
Government Code sections 65867, 65867.5 and 65868. The term "this Agreement" or 
"Development Agreement" used herein shall include any such amendment properly approved and 
executed. 

5.1.1 Any amendment to this Agreement which does not relate to the term, 
permitted uses, provisions for reservation and dedication of land, or conditions, terms, restrictions 
and requirements relating to subsequent discretionary actions, monetary contributions by 
Developer or any conditions or covenants relating to the use of the Real Property shall not require 
notice or public hearing pursuant to Government Code sections 65867, 65867.5 and 65868. 

5.1.2 The parties acknowledge that this Agreement, like all agreements, may be 
subject to interpretation. The City Manager (with the advice and consent of the City Attorney's 
office) may issue written interpretations of this Agreement without the necessity of prior 
consultation with the City Council. A copy of any written interpretation shall be given to both 
Developer and the City Council. If Developer disagrees with any interpretation, Developer may 
{00016427.DOCX;1} 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 104

(b) A transfer or assignment made as a part of the transfer, assignment, 
or sale of a completed residential unit. For the purposes of this section, the term "completed 
residential unit" shall mean a lot which is fully developed, habitable and has had an occupancy 
permit issued by City. 

4.5.3 Developer and any proposed successor in interest shall cooperate with City 
in providing information necessary for review hereunder. Developer shall promptly notify City of 
any and all changes in the identity of the parties in control of Developer or the degree thereof, of 
which it or any of its members have been notified or otherwise have knowledge or information. 
This Agreement may be terminated by City if there is any "significant change" (voluntary or 
involuntary) in membership or control of Developer (other than such changes occasioned by the 
death or incapacity of any individual) prior to expiration of this Agreement, other than a change in 
ownership, assignment or transfer for which the City's prior consent was obtained pursuant to 
Section 4.5.1, or which is exempt from the consent requirement by virtue of Section 4.5.2. A 
change shall be considered to be a "significant change" for the purposes of interpreting this 
Agreement if it results in a change in ownership of forty-nine percent (49%) or more of Developer, 
particularly if it results in forty-nine percent (49%) or more of Developer being owned by someone 
who is not an owner of any part of Developer on the Effective Date of this Agreement. 

4.5.4 For any transfer or conveyance approved by City or for which City's 
approval is not necessary, the transferee shall succeed to all of Developer's rights and obligations 
under this Agreement, and upon recordation of the deed conveying title to the transferred property 
subject to this Agreement, Developer shall have no further rights or obligations under this 
Agreement, except for any such rights and obligations that accrued prior to the recordation of the 
deed. Developer shall provide City with written notification of the transfer and a copy ofthe deed 
within ten (10) days ofthe recordation of the deed. 

5. AMENDMENT OR CANCELLATION OF AGREEMENT 

5.1 This Agreement may be amended from time to time by the mutual consent of the 
parties hereto but only in the same manner as its adoption by an ordinance as set forth in 
Government Code sections 65867, 65867.5 and 65868. The term "this Agreement" or 
"Development Agreement" used herein shall include any such amendment properly approved and 
executed. 

5.1.1 Any amendment to this Agreement which does not relate to the term, 
permitted uses, provisions for reservation and dedication of land, or conditions, terms, restrictions 
and requirements relating to subsequent discretionary actions, monetary contributions by 
Developer or any conditions or covenants relating to the use of the Real Property shall not require 
notice or public hearing pursuant to Government Code sections 65867, 65867.5 and 65868. 

5.1.2 The parties acknowledge that this Agreement, like all agreements, may be 
subject to interpretation. The City Manager (with the advice and consent of the City Attorney's 
office) may issue written interpretations of this Agreement without the necessity of prior 
consultation with the City Council. A copy of any written interpretation shall be given to both 
Developer and the City Council. If Developer disagrees with any interpretation, Developer may 
{00016427.DOCX;1 } 



appeal that interpretation to the City Council, by means of a notice in writing to the City Council 
specifying the basis of Developer's disagreement with the interpretation. Within thirty (30) days 
after receipt of Developer's written appeal of an interpretation, the Council shall schedule the 
matter for hearing at the next regularly scheduled Council meeting or, if the Council deems it 
appropriate, at the next regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting. If the Council refers 
the matter to the Planning Commission, the Commission shall make a recommendation to the 
Council within ten (10) days of the Planning Commission hearing. The Council shall then 
determine, within thirty (30) days of its receipt of the Planning Commission's recommendation, 
whether the Council agrees with the interpretation by the City Manager or ifit deems it appropriate 
to modify or withdraw the interpretation of the City Manager. The Council may, on its own 
motion, take up an interpretation of the City Manager and at the next regularly scheduled Council 
meeting the Council shall decide whether it agrees with the interpretation or if it deems it 
appropriate to modify or withdraw the City Manager's interpretation. The decision of the Council 
as to an interpretation shall be considered a final determination of the issue and, therefore, an 
exhaustion of administrative remedies. 

5.1.3 Any amendment of the Project Approvals by either the City Manager or 
City, whichever is applicable, pursuant to Section 5.2 of this Agreement, shall not require an 
amendment to this Agreement. Subsequent Approvals which are consistent with the Rules, 
Regulation and Official Policies shall also not require an amendment to this Agreement. Such 
Subsequent Approvals shall be incorporated into this Agreement with new exhibits, and shall be 
an integral part hereof. 

5.1.4 City shall not impose, as a condition to any amendment to this Agreement, 
any new fee, exaction, dedication or other imposition not otherwise permitted under this 
Agreement, except to the extent the amendment will directly result in new burdens or impacts 
requiring additional mitigation or insofar as such amendment results in new or additional 
unmitigated significant environmental impacts. Exactions or fees imposed as a condition of any 
amendment pursuant to this Section shall be in accordance with the City laws, rules, ordinances or 
other regulations in effect at the time the amendment is made. 

5.1.5 This Agreement may be canceled at any time by mutual written consent of 
the parties. 

5.2 Amendment of Project Approvals. Upon the written request of Developer for an 
amendment or modification to the Project Approvals, the City Manager shall determine whether 
the requested amendment or modification is a minor amendment or modification. If the City 
Manager finds that the proposed amendment is a minor amendment or modification, the City 
Manager may approve the proposed amendment without notice or public hearing. 

5.2.1 The term "minor amendment or modification" shall include but not be 
limited to each of the following: (a) the location of buildings, streets and roadways and other 
physical facilities, or (b) the configuration of particular parcels, lots or development areas. For 
purposes of this Agreement, the determination whether such amendment or modification is minor 
shall be made by reference to whether the amendment or modification is minor in the context of 
the overall Project. 
{OOOl6427.DOCX;l } 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 105

appeal that interpretation to the City Council, by means of a notice in writing to the City Council 
specifying the basis of Developer's disagreement with the interpretation. Within thirty (30) days 
after receipt of Developer's written appeal of an interpretation, the Council shall schedule the 
matter for hearing at the next regularly scheduled Council meeting or, if the Council deems it 
appropriate, at the next regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting. If the Council refers 
the matter to the Planning Commission, the Commission shall make a recommendation to the 
Council within ten (10) days of the Planning Commission hearing. The Council shall then 
determine, within thirty (30) days of its receipt of the Planning Commission's recommendation, 
whether the Council agrees with the interpretation by the City Manager or ifit deems it appropriate 
to modify or withdraw the interpretation of the City Manager. The Council may, on its own 
motion, take up an interpretation of the City Manager and at the next regularly scheduled Council 
meeting the Council shall decide whether it agrees with the interpretation or if it deems it 
appropriate to modify or withdraw the City Manager's interpretation. The decision of the Council 
as to an interpretation shall be considered a final determination of the issue and, therefore, an 
exhaustion of administrative remedies. 

5.1.3 Any amendment of the Project Approvals by either the City Manager or 
City, whichever is applicable, pursuant to Section 5.2 of this Agreement, shall not require an 
amendment to this Agreement. Subsequent Approvals which are consistent with the Rules, 
Regulation and Official Policies shall also not require an amendment to this Agreement. Such 
Subsequent Approvals shall be incorporated into this Agreement with new exhibits, and shall be 
an integral part hereof. 

5.1.4 City shall not impose, as a condition to any amendment to this Agreement, 
any new fee, exaction, dedication or other imposition not otherwise permitted under this 
Agreement, except to the extent the amendment will directly result in new burdens or impacts 
requiring additional mitigation or insofar as such amendment results in new or additional 
unmitigated significant environmental impacts. Exactions or fees imposed as a condition of any 
amendment pursuant to this Section shall be in accordance with the City laws, rules, ordinances or 
other regulations in effect at the time the amendment is made. 

5.1.5 This Agreement may be canceled at any time by mutual written consent of 
the parties. 

5.2 Amendment of Project Approvals. Upon the written request of Developer for an 
amendment or modification to the Project Approvals, the City Manager shall determine whether 
the requested amendment or modification is a minor amendment or modification. If the City 
Manager finds that the proposed amendment is a minor amendment or modification, the City 
Manager may approve the proposed amendment without notice or public hearing. 

5.2.1 The term "minor amendment or modification" shall include but not be 
limited to each of the following: (a) the location of buildings, streets and roadways and other 
physical facilities, or (b) the configuration of particular parcels, lots or development areas. For 
purposes of this Agreement, the determination whether such amendment or modification is minor 
shall be made by reference to whether the amendment or modification is minor in the context of 
the overall Project. 
{OOOl6427.DOCX;l } 



5.2.2 In no case may any changes be made which, singularly or cumulatively, 
substantively alter the Project Approvals, as originally approved, without notice, hearing and 
approval by the City Council and, insofar as it is required by State law, the City's Planning 
Commission. For purposes of this Agreement, and notwithstanding any City ordinance or 
resolution to the contrary, lot line adjustments (consistent with the provisions of Section 66412(d) 
of the Government Code and any applicable section of the Municipal Code of the City of Selma), 
not increasing or reducing density shall be deemed minor amendments or modifications. 

5.3 Binding Effect of Agreement. The provisions of this Agreement shall constitute 
covenants or servitudes which shall run with the land comprising the Real Property, and the 
burdens and benefits hereof shall bind and inure to the benefit of all estates and interests in the 
Real Property and all successors in interest of the parties hereto. 

5.4 Notices. All notices, demands and correspondence required or provided for under 
this Agreement shall be in writing and delivered in person or dispatched by certified mail, postage 
prepaid. Notice required to be given to City shall be addressed as follows: 

City of Selma 
City Hall 
1710 Tucker Street 
Selma, CA 93662 
Attention: City Manager 

Notice required to be given to Developer shall be addressed as follows: 

A party may change its address by giving notice in writing to the other party. Thereafter, 
notices, demands and other pertinent correspondence shall be addressed and transmitted to the new 
address. 

6. CONFLICTS OF LAW 

6.1 Conflict of City and State or Federal Laws. In the event that State or federal laws 
or regulations enacted after the Effective Date of this Agreement prevent or preclude compliance 
with one or more provisions of this Agreement or require changes in plans, maps or permits 
approved by City, each party shall provide the other party with written notice of such State or 
federal restriction, a copy of such regulation or policy and a statement concerning the conflict with 
the provisions of this Agreement. The parties shall, within thirty (30) days after the dispatch of 
such notice, meet and confer in good faith in a reasonable attempt to modify this Agreement to 
comply with such federal or State law or regulation. 

6.2 Council Hearing. After the parties have met and conferred pursuant to Section 6.1 
hereof, regardless of whether the parties have reached an agreement on the effect of the change in 
{00016427.DOCX;1 } 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 106

5.2.2 In no case may any changes be made which, singularly or cumulatively, 
substantively alter the Project Approvals, as originally approved, without notice, hearing and 
approval by the City Council and, insofar as it is required by State law, the City's Planning 
Commission. For purposes of this Agreement, and notwithstanding any City ordinance or 
resolution to the contrary, lot line adjustments (consistent with the provisions of Section 66412(d) 
of the Government Code and any applicable section of the Municipal Code of the City of Selma), 
not increasing or reducing density shall be deemed minor amendments or modifications. 

5.3 Binding Effect of Agreement. The provisions of this Agreement shall constitute 
covenants or servitudes which shall run with the land comprising the Real Property, and the 
burdens and benefits hereof shall bind and inure to the benefit of all estates and interests in the 
Real Property and all successors in interest of the parties hereto. 

5.4 Notices. All notices, demands and correspondence required or provided for under 
this Agreement shall be in writing and delivered in person or dispatched by certified mail, postage 
prepaid. Notice required to be given to City shall be addressed as follows: 

City of Selma 
City Hall 
1710 Tucker Street 
Selma, CA 93662 
Attention: City Manager 

Notice required to be given to Developer shall be addressed as follows: 

A party may change its address by giving notice in writing to the other party. Thereafter, 
notices, demands and other pertinent correspondence shall be addressed and transmitted to the new 
address. 

6. CONFLICTS OF LAW 

6.1 Conflict of City and State or Federal Laws. In the event that State or federal laws 
or regulations enacted after the Effective Date of this Agreement prevent or preclude compliance 
with one or more provisions of this Agreement or require changes in plans, maps or permits 
approved by City, each party shall provide the other party with written notice of such State or 
federal restriction, a copy of such regulation or policy and a statement concerning the conflict with 
the provisions of this Agreement. The parties shall, within thirty (30) days after the dispatch of 
such notice, meet and confer in good faith in a reasonable attempt to modify this Agreement to 
comply with such federal or State law or regulation. 

6.2 Council Hearing. After the parties have met and conferred pursuant to Section 6.1 
hereof, regardless of whether the parties have reached an agreement on the effect of the change in 
{00016427.DOCX;1 } 



the federal or State law or regulation upon this Agreement, the matter shall be scheduled for 
hearing before the Council. Written notice of such hearing shall be given pursuant to Government 
Code section 65867 or the then applicable statute. The Council, at such hearing, shall determine 
the exact modification or suspension necessitated by such federal or State law or regulation. 
Developer, at the hearing, shall have the right to offer oral and written testimony. 

6.3 Cooperation in Securing Permits. City shall cooperate with Developer in the 
securing of any permits or approvals which may be required as a result of such modification or 
suspensions made pursuant to Section 6.2 hereof. Such cooperation does not include any financial 
participation or cost to the City other than financial participation or cost which is fully reimbursed 
to City by Developer. 

7. DEVELOPMENT OF REAL PROPERTY 

7.1 Permitted Uses. The Real Property shall be used in accordance with the Project 
Approvals and for such other uses that may be mutually agreed upon by the parties hereto in 
compliance with the applicable provisions of Section 5 relating to the amendment of this 
Agreement. Said uses and development standards, including, the maximum height, setback, 
parking, and other standards (collectively, "Development Standards") that shall apply to the 
development of the Real Property are more particularly described in the Selma Municipal Code, 
the Rules, Regulations and Official Policies and in the Project Approvals. 

7.2 Subsequent Approvals. The Project Approvals may include, without limitation to, 
additional development entitlements and permits, including, multiple vesting or non-vesting 
tentative subdivision maps, final vesting map(s), site plan approvals, multiple planned 
development zoning district approvals, use and grading permits, lot line adjustments, sewer and 
water connections, design review, building permits and certificates of occupancy or other 
approvals (collectively, "Subsequent Approvals") to accomplish the goals, objectives, policies and 
plans of the Project Approvals, as they may be amended pursuant to this Agreement. City intends 
to exercise a reasonable right of review to insure compliance with this Agreement before approval 
and issuance of any Subsequent Approvals. Subsequent Approvals shall be reviewed by City on 
a timely basis in accordance with Section 8.2 and approved by City only if the Subsequent 
Approvals are consistent with the plans, goals and policies of the Project Approvals and with the 
Rules, Regulations and Official Policies, and where in the case of approval of a map, Government 
Code §66473.7. References to the Subsequent Approvals shall include all conditions of approval 
imposed in connection therewith. 

7.3 Permitted Density of Development. The Real Property shall be developed to no 
greater density or level of intensity than indicated in the approved maps, plans, permits or other 
regulatory devices constituting the Project Approvals. 

7.4 Maximum Height and Size of Structures. The maximum height and size of 
structures to be constructed upon the Real Property shall be governed by the approved map, site 
plans, permits or other regulatory devices constituting the Project Approvals. 

{00016427.DOCX;1} 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 107

the federal or State law or regulation upon this Agreement, the matter shall be scheduled for 
hearing before the Council. Written notice of such hearing shall be given pursuant to Government 
Code section 65867 or the then applicable statute. The Council, at such hearing, shall determine 
the exact modification or suspension necessitated by such federal or State law or regulation. 
Developer, at the hearing, shall have the right to offer oral and written testimony. 

6.3 Cooperation in Securing Permits. City shall cooperate with Developer in the 
securing of any permits or approvals which may be required as a result of such modification or 
suspensions made pursuant to Section 6.2 hereof. Such cooperation does not include any financial 
participation or cost to the City other than financial participation or cost which is fully reimbursed 
to City by Developer. 

7. DEVELOPMENT OF REAL PROPERTY 

7.1 Permitted Uses. The Real Property shall be used in accordance with the Project 
Approvals and for such other uses that may be mutually agreed upon by the parties hereto in 
compliance with the applicable provisions of Section 5 relating to the amendment of this 
Agreement. Said uses and development standards, including, the maximum height, setback, 
parking, and other standards (collectively, "Development Standards") that shall apply to the 
development of the Real Property are more particularly described in the Selma Municipal Code, 
the Rules, Regulations and Official Policies and in the Project Approvals. 

7.2 Subsequent Approvals. The Project Approvals may include, without limitation to, 
additional development entitlements and permits, including, multiple vesting or non-vesting 
tentative subdivision maps, final vesting map(s), site plan approvals, multiple planned 
development zoning district approvals, use and grading permits, lot line adjustments, sewer and 
water connections, design review, building permits and certificates of occupancy or other 
approvals (collectively, "Subsequent Approvals") to accomplish the goals, objectives, policies and 
plans of the Project Approvals, as they may be amended pursuant to this Agreement. City intends 
to exercise a reasonable right of review to insure compliance with this Agreement before approval 
and issuance of any Subsequent Approvals. Subsequent Approvals shall be reviewed by City on 
a timely basis in accordance with Section 8.2 and approved by City only if the Subsequent 
Approvals are consistent with the plans, goals and policies of the Project Approvals and with the 
Rules, Regulations and Official Policies, and where in the case of approval of a map, Government 
Code §66473.7. References to the Subsequent Approvals shall include all conditions of approval 
imposed in connection therewith. 

7.3 Permitted Density of Development. The Real Property shall be developed to no 
greater density or level of intensity than indicated in the approved maps, plans, permits or other 
regulatory devices constituting the Project Approvals. 

7.4 Maximum Height and Size of Structures. The maximum height and size of 
structures to be constructed upon the Real Property shall be governed by the approved map, site 
plans, permits or other regulatory devices constituting the Project Approvals. 

{OOO16427.DOCX;1 } 



7.5 Vested Right to Develop. Developer shall have the vested right to develop the 
Project in accordance with the Project Approvals and the Rules, Regulations and Official Policies. 

7.6 Rules, Regulations, Official Policies. "Rules, Regulations and Official Policies" 
shall mean and include (a) those City rules, regulation and policies, including without limitation, 
the City of Selma Municipal Code and Selma General Plan, that are operative and in force and 
effect as of the Effective Date and are consistent with this Agreement; (b) the Project Approvals 
and any Subsequent Approvals; (c) the rights and obligations contained in this Agreement; (d) 
current Uniform Building Code and other uniform construction codes, but only to the extent such 
codes are in effect on a City-wide basis and are applied to all similarly-situated development in 
the City; (e) the fees attached as Exhibit C; and (f) City Laws adopted by City after the Effective 
Date, or by the voters of the City after the Effective Date through their referendum and initiative 
powers (collectively, "New City Laws"). 

7.7 Fees and Dedications. Developer shall make only those contributions and 
dedications and pay only those fees expressly prescribed in this Agreement or in force and 
applicable to the Project as of the Effective Date of this Agreement and the following: 

(a) Proces ing Fees. City may charge processing fees for land use approvals, 
building permits and other similar permits and entitlements which fees are in force and effect on a 
City-wide basis at the time Developer applies for and except as provided to the contrary in this 
Agreement. Such fees shall not be increased after submission of the application unless justified 
by an increase in the estimated reasonable cost to City for performing the work for which the 
particular fee is paid, and limited to an amount which will compensate City for the estimated 
reasonable cost and increases incurred, as permitted pursuant to Government Code sections 54990, 
et seq. 

(b) Taxing Power. City may impose additional fees, dedications or exactions 
("Additional Fees") which meet one of the following definitions: (1) they are directly imposed by 
another governmental agency; or (2) they are uniformly imposed on all comparable development 
projects within City and are required solely to provide capital infrastructure facilities or 
improvements needed for health and safety reasons, which the City could not have been aware of 
on the Effective Date, (ii) are a direct result of the Project, and (iii) are otherwise consistent with 
Government Code section 66000, et seq. Additional Fees shall in no event include fees, 
dedications or exactions relating to child care, public art, parks and recreation or other similar fees, 
dedications or exactions. Furthermore, the conditions, exactions, dedications, fees or regulations 
applicable to the Project as provided in the Project Approvals (including this Agreement), shall 
not be subject to modifications or renegotiation by City whether as a result of an amendment to 
any of the Project Approvals, the granting of a Subsequent Approval or as a result of the filing of 
any new subdivision map or parcel map, or any resubdivision of the Property (including a merger 
or lot line adjustment, as defined in Section 5.2.3 above, or the creation of new lots within a 
designated remainder parcel) or otherwise. Provided, however, that if the new map or 
resubdivision ofthe Property increases the overall density ofthe Project or requires a General Plan 
change, City may impose additional fees on the new units added by the new map or resubdivision. 

{OOO 16427 .DOCX; 1 } 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 108

7.5 Vested Right to Develop. Developer shall have the vested right to develop the 
Project in accordance with the Project Approvals and the Rules, Regulations and Official Policies. 

7.6 Rules, Regulations, Official Policies. "Rules, Regulations and Official Policies" 
shall mean and include (a) those City rules, regulation and policies, including without limitation, 
the City of Selma Municipal Code and Selma General Plan, that are operative and in force and 
effect as of the Effective Date and are consistent with this Agreement; (b) the Project Approvals 
and any Subsequent Approvals; (c) the rights and obligations contained in this Agreement; (d) 
current Uniform Building Code and other uniform construction codes, but only to the extent such 
codes are in effect on a City-wide basis and are applied to all similarly-situated development in 
the City; (e) the fees attached as Exhibit C; and (f) City Laws adopted by City after the Effective 
Date, or by the voters of the City after the Effective Date through their referendum and initiative 
powers (collectively, "New City Laws"). 

7.7 Fees and Dedications. Developer shall make only those contributions and 
dedications and pay only those fees expressly prescribed in this Agreement or in force and 
applicable to the Project as of the Effective Date of this Agreement and the following: 

(a) Processing Fees. City may charge processing fees for land use approvals, 
building permits and other similar permits and entitlements which fees are in force and effect on a 
City-wide basis at the time Developer applies for and except as provided to the contrary in this 
Agreement. Such fees shall not be increased after submission of the application unless justified 
by an increase in the estimated reasonable cost to City for performing the work for which the 
particular fee is paid, and limited to an amount which will compensate City for the estimated 
reasonable cost and increases incurred, as permitted pursuant to Government Code sections 54990, 
et seq. 

(b) Taxing Power. City may impose additional fees, dedications or exactions 
("Additional Fees") which meet one of the following definitions: (1) they are directly imposed by 
another governmental agency; or (2) they are uniformly imposed on all comparable development 
projects within City and are required solely to provide capital infrastructure facilities or 
improvements needed for health and safety reasons, which the City could not have been aware of 
on the Effective Date, (ii) are a direct result of the Project, and (iii) are otherwise consistent with 
Government Code section 66000, et seq. Additional Fees shall in no event include fees, 
dedications or exactions relating to child care, public art, parks and recreation or other similar fees, 
dedications or exactions. Furthermore, the conditions, exactions, dedications, fees or regulations 
applicable to the Project as provided in the Project Approvals (including this Agreement), shall 
not be subject to modifications or renegotiation by City whether as a result of an amendment to 
any of the Project Approvals, the granting of a Subsequent Approval or as a result of the filing of 
any new subdivision map or parcel map, or any resubdivision of the Property (including a merger 
or lot line adjustment, as defined in Section 5.2.3 above, or the creation of new lots within a 
designated remainder parcel) or otherwise. Provided, however, that if the new map or 
resubdivision ofthe Property increases the overall density ofthe Project or requires a General Plan 
change, City may impose additional fees on the new units added by the new map or resubdivision. 

{OOO 16427 .DOCX; 1 } 



(c) Increases. Fees, dedications or exactions authorized under this Agreement 
may be increased from time to time as otherwise permitted by law to account for inflation and 
increased costs. If required by State or federal law in order to update fees, then such fees may be 
increased from time to time using construction cost estimates, provided that such increases are 
uniformly applicable to all comparable residential development projects within City. 

(d) Taxes and Assessments. City shall not subject the Real Property, or any 
part thereof, to any special taxes, liens or assessments not applicable to the residents of City as a 
whole, over the protest of the owners of a majority of the Real Property. City shall give Developer 
notice of any proposal to impose such a special tax, lien or assessment, and an opportunity to be 
heard. City shall not subject the Real Property, or any part thereof to any special tax, lien or 
assessment not Generally Applicable to the residents of City as a whole, over the protest of 
Developer. For purposes ofthis subsection 7.7(d). 

(i) "Generally Applicable" is defined to mean that the Real Property 
shall not carry a greater proportionate share of the special tax, lien or assessment than property 
with similar zoning elsewhere in City. 

8. ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE 

8.1.1 In exercising its legislative discretion to enter into this Agreement, City has 
reviewed and certified the Project Negative Declaration as adequate to support approval of this 
Agreement. 

8.1.2 Environmental Findings. 

(a) City has reviewed and considered the potential adverse 
environmental impacts related to all aspects of the contemplated Project, including, without 
limitation, the potential demands the Project will make on local and regional streets, highways, 
parks and recreation areas, water capacity and water lines, sewer capacity and sewer lines, flood 
and storm drain systems, and energy conservation, and the effect on school capacity, traffic, 
pedestrian safety, noise and air quality impacts. City has further reviewed and considered a variety 
of assumptions, the projected future regional and cumulative environmental demands that will 
compete with the Project for available capacities and cumulatively add to potential adverse 
impacts. In so doing, City has considered, among other things, the possibilities that: 

(i) Federal, local, regional and State plans, if any, for provision 
of new infrastructure systems or expansion of existing infrastructure system may be delayed, 
modified; or 

(ii) The types, intensities, and amount of future regional 
development may exceed or otherwise be different from that currently being planned by City and 
other local agencies; and 

{00016427.DOCX;1} 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 109

(c) Increases. Fees, dedications or exactions authorized under this Agreement 
may be increased from time to time as otherwise permitted by law to account for inflation and 
increased costs. If required by State or federal law in order to update fees, then such fees may be 
increased from time to time using construction cost estimates, provided that such increases are 
uniformly applicable to all comparable residential development projects within City. 

(d) Taxes and Assessments. City shall not subject the Real Property, or any 
part thereof, to any special taxes, liens or assessments not applicable to the residents of City as a 
whole, over the protest of the owners of a majority of the Real Property. City shall give Developer 
notice of any proposal to impose such a special tax, lien or assessment, and an opportunity to be 
heard. City shall not subject the Real Property, or any part thereof to any special tax, lien or 
assessment not Generally Applicable to the residents of City as a whole, over the protest of 
Developer. For purposes of this subsection 7.7(d). 

(i) "Generally Applicable" is defined to mean that the Real Property 
shall not carry a greater proportionate share of the special tax, lien or assessment than property 
with similar zoning elsewhere in City. 

8. ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE 

8.1.1 In exercising its legislative discretion to enter into this Agreement, City has 
reviewed and certified the Project Negative Declaration as adequate to support approval of this 
Agreement. 

8.1.2 Environmental Findings. 

(a) City has reviewed and considered the potential adverse 
environmental impacts related to all aspects of the contemplated Project, including, without 
limitation, the potential demands the Project will make on local and regional streets, highways, 
parks and recreation areas, water capacity and water lines, sewer capacity and sewer lines, flood 
and storm drain systems, and energy conservation, and the effect on school capacity, traffic, 
pedestrian safety, noise and air quality impacts. City has further reviewed and considered a variety 
of assumptions, the projected future regional and cumulative environmental demands that will 
compete with the Project for available capacities and cumulatively add to potential adverse 
impacts. In so doing, City has considered, among other things, the possibilities that: 

(i) Federal, local, regional and State plans, if any, for provision 
of new infrastructure systems or expansion of existing infrastructure system may be delayed, 
modified; or 

(ii) The types, intensities, and amount of future regional 
development may exceed or otherwise be different from that currently being planned by City and 
other local agencies; and 

{00016427.DOCX; I} 



(iii) Regional and development generated demands on 
infrastructure and utility improvements to be constructed as a part of the Project may exceed in 
either the short run, or the long run, the allocated capacities for such demands. 

(iv) City has determined that completion of the Project in the 
manner contemplated will itself provide the mitigation measure needed to alleviate short run and 
long run potential adverse environmental impacts, and that the public benefits of the Project 
override any potential adverse environmental impacts which may arise during the development 
period. 

8.1.3 Subsequent Environmental Review. In connection with its processing of 
Developer's applications for any Subsequent Approvals pursuant to CEQA, City shall not require 
an environmental impact report except as may be required by Section 21166 of the California 
Public Resources Code and City shall: utilize the existing environmental impact report for the 
General Plan and the Project Negative Declaration to the fullest extent permitted by law; promptly 
commence and process any and all initial studies and assessments required by CEQA, if any; use 
all reasonable means to ensure that the Project and/or any Subsequent Approvals that constitute a 
"project" under CEQA shall be allowed to proceed pursuant to an exemption under CEQA or 
pursuant to a negative declaration; shall not require an initial study or negative declaration for any 
portion ofthe Project that is in substantial conformance with the General Plan; and shall not impose 
or require any environmental alternatives or mitigation measures ("Restrictive Measures") that 
would prevent or impede development of the Project, make the Project more expensive to carry 
out, or require an increase or reduction in the density or intensity of the Project. City has 
determined that development of the Project will provide specific economic, social and other 
community benefits that outweigh and override any environmental impacts and make infeasible 
any such Restrictive Measures; accordingly, to the maximum extent legally permissible, the City 
shall reject such Restrictive Measures as infeasible on the basis that, among other things, 
Government Code § 65866 and this Agreement legally bar the implementation of such measures 
and that the Project provides specific economic, social and other community benefits which 
outweigh, override and make infeasible any such Restrictive Measures. 

8.1.4 Cumulative Impacts. To the extent that development other than the Project 
("New Development") is proposed within the jurisdictional limits of City during the term of this 
Agreement, City agrees that any environmental document prepared for the New Development 
pursuant to CEQA will consider the entire buildout ofthe Project as part of any cumulative impacts 
analysis for the New Development. The parties intend the foregoing provisions of this Section 
8.1.4 to be a summary of the present requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act in 
regard to cumulative impacts. 

8.1.5 Duty to Hold Halmless, Indemnify, Defend. The Developer shall 
indemnify, hold harmless and defend City and each of its officers, officials and employees from 
any and all liability, loss, debts, costs, and damages (whether in mandamus, breach of the 
California Environmental Quality Act or breach of any other related law, whether sounding in 
contract, tort or strict liability including but not limited to attorney's fees, court costs, damage and 
damages for breach of contract, tort or statutory penalties) incurred by City and from any and all 
{OOO 16427 .DOCX; 1} 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 110

(iii) Regional and development generated demands on 
infrastructure and utility improvements to be constructed as a part of the Project may exceed in 
either the short run, or the long run, the allocated capacities for such demands. 

(iv) City has determined that completion of the Project in the 
manner contemplated will itself provide the mitigation measure needed to alleviate short run and 
long run potential adverse environmental impacts, and that the public benefits of the Project 
override any potential adverse environmental impacts which may arise during the development 
period. 

8.1.3 Subsequent Environmental Review. In connection with its processing of 
Developer's applications for any Subsequent Approvals pursuant to CEQA, City shall not require 
an environmental impact report except as may be required by Section 21166 of the California 
Public Resources Code and City shall: utilize the existing environmental impact report for the 
General Plan and the Project Negative Declaration to the fullest extent permitted by law; promptly 
commence and process any and all initial studies and assessments required by CEQA, if any; use 
all reasonable means to ensure that the Project and/or any Subsequent Approvals that constitute a 
"project" under CEQA shall be allowed to proceed pursuant to an exemption under CEQA or 
pursuant to a negative declaration; shall not require an initial study or negative declaration for any 
portion ofthe Project that is in substantial conformance with the General Plan; and shall not impose 
or require any environmental alternatives or mitigation measures ("Restrictive Measures") that 
would prevent or impede development of the Project, make the Project more expensive to carry 
out, or require an increase or reduction in the density or intensity of the Project. City has 
determined that development of the Project will provide specific economic, social and other 
community benefits that outweigh and override any environmental impacts and make infeasible 
any such Restrictive Measures; accordingly, to the maximum extent legally permissible, the City 
shall reject such Restrictive Measures as infeasible on the basis that, among other things, 
Government Code § 65866 and this Agreement legally bar the implementation of such measures 
and that the Project provides specific economic, social and other community benefits which 
outweigh, override and make infeasible any such Restrictive Measures. 

8.1.4 Cumulative Lmpacts. To the extent that development other than the Project 
("New Development") is proposed within the jurisdictional limits of City during the term of this 
Agreement, City agrees that any environmental document prepared for the New Development 
pursuant to CEQA will consider the entire buildout ofthe Project as part of any cumulative impacts 
analysis for the New Development. The parties intend the foregoing provisions of this Section 
8.1.4 to be a summary of the present requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act in 
regard to cumulative impacts. 

8.1.5 Duty to Hold Hatmless, Indemnify, Defend. The Developer shall 
indemnify, hold harmless and defend City and each of its officers, officials and employees from 
any and all liability, loss, debts, costs, and damages (whether in mandamus, breach of the 
California Environmental Quality Act or breach of any other related law, whether sounding in 
contract, tort or strict liability including but not limited to attorney's fees, court costs, damage and 
damages for breach of contract, tort or statutory penalties) incurred by City and from any and all 
{OOO 16427 .DOCX; 1} 



claims, demands, actions and proceedings in law or equity (whether or not well founded) brought 
by another public agency or any other person, not a party to this Agreement, arising directly or 
indirectly out of the City's agreement to require no additional studies, investigations, reports or 
mitigation measures to comply with CEQA, other than those set forth in this Agreement. The 
preceding sentence shall not apply to any liability, loss, debts, costs or damages caused by the 
negligence or willful misconduct of City. This duty of Developer is separate and apart from and 
in addition to any similar obligation of Developer arising under other provisions ofthis Agreement. 
This duty shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

8.2 Cooperation-lmplementation. 

8.2.1 Processing. If necessary or required, upon satisfactory completion by 
Developer of all required preliminary actions and payments of appropriate processing fees, if any, 

(a) City shall promptly commence and diligently proceed to complete 
all steps required or necessary for the implementation of this Agreement and the development by 
Developer ofthe Real Property in accordance with the Project Approvals, including but not limited 
to: 

(i) the scheduling, convening and concluding of all required 
public hearings in an expeditious manner consistent with applicable laws and regulations in force 
as of the date of the application; and 

(ii) processing and issuing a decision as to whether City 
approves, conditionally approves or disapproves, in an expeditious manner, all maps, plans, land 
use permits, building plans and specifications and other plans relating to the development of the 
Real Property filed by Developer which are complete and meet the statutory requirements, 
including but not limited to all zoning, preliminary and final development plans, tentative maps, 
parcel maps, final maps, resubdivisions, amendments to maps, subdivision improvement 
agreements, lot line adjustments, encroachments, grading and building permits, associated zoning 
actions and related matters as necessary for the completion of the development of all lots and 
parcels comprising the Project, that are in conformance with the General Plan, including reliance 
upon the Negative Declaration as certified on November 6,2006, or as amended, to the maximum 
extent possible in reviewing and approving all such applications relating to the Real Property 
described in Exhibit A. 

(b) Developer shall, in a timely manner, provide City with all 
documents, applications, plans and other information necessary for City to carry out its obligations 
hereunder and shall cause Developer's planners, engineers, and all other consultants to submit in a 
timely manner all required materials and documents therefor. 

(c) It is the express intent of the parties to cooperate and diligently work 
to implement any zoning, final development plan and/or other land use, vesting final map(s), 
grading or building permits or approvals, which are necessary or desirable in connection with the 
development of the Project. 

{00016427.DOCX;1 } 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 111

claims, demands, actions and proceedings in law or equity (whether or not well founded) brought 
by another public agency or any other person, not a party to this Agreement, arising directly or 
indirectly out of the City's agreement to require no additional studies, investigations, reports or 
mitigation measures to comply with CEQA, other than those set forth in this Agreement. The 
preceding sentence shall not apply to any liability, loss, debts, costs or damages caused by the 
negligence or willful misconduct of City. This duty of Developer is separate and apart from and 
in addition to any similar obligation of Developer arising under other provisions ofthis Agreement. 
This duty shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

8.2 Cooperation-Implementation. 

8.2.1 Processing. If necessary or required, upon satisfactory completion by 
Developer of all required preliminary actions and payments of appropriate processing fees, if any, 

(a) City shall promptly commence and diligently proceed to complete 
all steps required or necessary for the implementation of this Agreement and the development by 
Developer ofthe Real Property in accordance with the Project Approvals, including but not limited 
to: 

(i) the scheduling, convening and concluding of all required 
public hearings in an expeditious manner consistent with applicable laws and regulations in force 
as of the date of the application; and 

(ii) processing and issuing a decision as to whether City 
approves, conditionally approves or disapproves, in an expeditious manner, all maps, plans, land 
use permits, building plans and specifications and other plans relating to the development of the 
Real Property filed by Developer which are complete and meet the statutory requirements, 
including but not limited to all zoning, preliminary and final development plans, tentative maps, 
parcel maps, final maps, resubdivisions, amendments to maps, subdivision improvement 
agreements, lot line adjustments, encroachments, grading and building permits, associated zoning 
actions and related matters as necessary for the completion of the development of all lots and 
parcels comprising the Project, that are in conformance with the General Plan, including reliance 
upon the Negative Declaration as certified on November 6,2006, or as amended, to the maximum 
extent possible in reviewing and approving all such applications relating to the Real Property 
described in Exhibit A. 

(b) Developer shall, in a timely manner, provide City with all 
documents, applications, plans and other information necessary for City to carry out its obligations 
hereunder and shall cause Developer's planners, engineers, and all other consultants to submit in a 
timely manner all required materials and documents therefor. 

(c) It is the express intent of the parties to cooperate and diligently work 
to implement any zoning, final development plan and/or other land use, vesting final map(s), 
grading or building permits or approvals, which are necessary or desirable in connection with the 
development of the Project. 

{00016427.DOCX;1} 



(d) If mutually agreed, and if paid for by Developer, City will engage 
outside consultants, of City's choice, if deemed necessary by City in order to comply with this 
Section (8). 

8.2.2 Cooperation in the Event of Legal Challenge. In the event of any legal or 
equitable action or other proceeding instituted by a third party, other governmental entity or official 
challenging the validity of any provision of this Agreement, Developer shall indemnify, hold 
harmless and defend City and each of its officers, officials and employees from any and all liability, 
loss, debts, costs, and damages incurred by City and from any and all claims, demands, actions 
and proceedings in law or equity (whether or not well founded) arising directly or indirectly out 
of this Agreement. The preceding sentence shall not apply to any liability, loss, debts, costs or 
damages caused solely by the negligence or willful misconduct of City. The parties hereby agree 
to cooperate in defending said action or proceeding. 

8.3 Annual Review. Each year during the term of this Agreement beginning on the 
first (1 st) anniversary of the Effective Date, the City Manager shall conduct a review meeting to 
review the extent of good faith compliance by Developer with the terms of this Agreement. City 
shall not impose any fees or other exactions as a condition to a finding of good faith compliance 
with the terms of this Agreement, except for the requirement which is City's current ordinance that 
Developer reimburse City its administrative costs, including but not limited to the cost of in-house 
City staff, the cost of any time spent by the City Attorney, the City Engineer and/or the City 
Planning Consultant. Such periodic review shall be limited in scope to compliance with the terms 
of this Agreement pursuant to Government Code section 65865.1 and pursuant to the provisions 
of City's ordinance on the subject. 

8.3.1 Burden of Proof. At such review meeting, Developer shall be required to 
demonstrate good faith compliance with the terms of this Agreement pursuant to Government 
Code section 65865.1 and the applicable City ordinance. 

8.3.2 Duty to Disclose. In the manner prescribed in Section 5.4 hereof, City shall 
deposit in the mail to Developer a copy of all public staff reports, documents and related exhibits 
concerning Developer's performance hereunder at least ten (10) days prior to any such periodic 
reVIew. 

8.3.3 Deemed Approval. In the event City fails to either (1) hold the annual 
review meeting; or (2) notify Developer in writing within 30 days following the scheduled date of 
the review meeting of City's determination as to compliance or noncompliance with the terms of 
this Agreement, such failure shall be deemed an approval by City of Developer's good faith 
compliance with the terms of this Agreement. 

{00016427.DOCX;1} 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 112

(d) If mutually agreed, and if paid for by Developer, City will engage 
outside consultants, of City's choice, if deemed necessary by City in order to comply with this 
Section (8). 

8.2.2 Cooperation in the Event of Legal Challenge. In the event of any legal or 
equitable action or other proceeding instituted by a third party, other governmental entity or official 
challenging the validity of any provision of this Agreement, Developer shall indemnify, hold 
harmless and defend City and each of its officers, officials and employees from any and all liability, 
loss, debts, costs, and damages incurred by City and from any and all claims, demands, actions 
and proceedings in law or equity (whether or not well founded) arising directly or indirectly out 
of this Agreement. The preceding sentence shall not apply to any liability, loss, debts, costs or 
damages caused solely by the negligence or willful misconduct of City. The parties hereby agree 
to cooperate in defending said action or proceeding. 

8.3 Annual Review. Each year during the term of this Agreement beginning on the 
first (1 st) anniversary of the Effective Date, the City Manager shall conduct a review meeting to 
review the extent of good faith compliance by Developer with the terms of this Agreement. City 
shall not impose any fees or other exactions as a condition to a finding of good faith compliance 
with the terms of this Agreement, except for the requirement which is City's current ordinance that 
Developer reimburse City its administrative costs, including but not limited to the cost of in-house 
City staff, the cost of any time spent by the City Attorney, the City Engineer and/or the City 
Planning Consultant. Such periodic review shall be limited in scope to compliance with the terms 
of this Agreement pursuant to Government Code section 65865.1 and pursuant to the provisions 
of City's ordinance on the subject. 

8.3.1 Burden of Proof. At such review meeting, Developer shall be required to 
demonstrate good faith compliance with the terms of this Agreement pursuant to Government 
Code section 65865.1 and the applicable City ordinance. 

8.3.2 Duty to Disclose. In the manner prescribed in Section 5.4 hereof, City shall 
deposit in the mail to Developer a copy of all public staff reports, documents and related exhibits 
concerning Developer's performance hereunder at least ten (10) days prior to any such periodic 
reVIew. 

8.3.3 Deemed Approval. In the event City fails to either (1) hold the annual 
review meeting; or (2) notify Developer in writing within 30 days following the scheduled date of 
the review meeting of City's determination as to compliance or noncompliance with the terms of 
this Agreement, such failure shall be deemed an approval by City of Developer's good faith 
compliance with the terms of this Agreement. 

{OOO 16427 .DOCX; I} 



9. DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

9.1 Public Improvement Facilities and Services. Developer and its successors in 
interest agree to provide the public improvements, facilities and services required by the Project 
Approvals for the Project. 

10. FEES/REIMBURSEMENT 

10.1 Miscellaneous Fees. Any development fees not already specified in this Agreement 
shall not be levied or collected unless and until a building permit is issued for that lot. The amount 
of such fees shall be determined in accordance with the Rules, Regulations and Official Policies 
in effect on the Effective Date of this Agreement. 

10.1.1 Developer shall pay City's reasonable costs and fees associated with City's 
inspection of all improvements constructed by Developer as part of the Project including, but not 
limited to, all water systems, sewer systems, storm drainage, streets, alleys and grading. Said fees 
shall be paid in accordance with City's standard policies in effect as of the effective date of this 
Agreement. 

11. DEFAULT, REMEDIES AND TERMINATION 

11.1 Events of Default Defined. The following shall be "events of default" under this 
Agreement, and the terms "Events of Default" and "Default" shall mean, whenever they are used 
in this Agreement, with respect to the Project, anyone or more of the following events: 

11.1.1 Failure by Developer to observe and perform any covenant, condition or 
agreement on its part to be observed or performed under this Agreement or conditions of approval 
for any of the Project Approvals, for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice specifying 
such failure and requesting that it be remedied has been given to Developer by City; provided, 
however, if the failure stated in the notice can be corrected, but not reasonably within such thirty 
(30) day period, City shall not unreasonably withhold its consent to an extension of such time if 
corrective action is instituted by the Developer within the thirty (30) day period and diligently 
pursued until the failure is corrected. City Staffmay, but is not required, under such circumstances, 
to extend the time period for completion ofthe corrective action to a total time not to exceed ninety 
(90) days. Any extension oftime beyond the ninety (90) day time period would require the consent 
of the City Council after a noticed public hearing. 

11.1.2 The filing by Developer or any assignee or successor in interest, of a 
voluntary petition in bankruptcy, or failure by Developer promptly to lift any execution or 
attachment on any part of the Project (other than disputed mechanic's liens), or adjudication of 
Developer as a bankrupt, or assignment by Developer for the benefit of creditors, or the entry by 
Developer into an agreement of composition with creditors, or the approval by a court of competent 
jurisdiction of a petition applicable to Developer in any proceedings instituted under the provisions 
of the Federal Bankruptcy Act, as amended, or under any similar acts which may hereafter be 
enacted. 
{00016427.DOCX;1 } 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 113

9. DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

9.1 Public Improvement Facilities and Services. Developer and its successors in 
interest agree to provide the public improvements, facilities and services required by the Project 
Approvals for the Project. 

10. FEES/REIMBURSEMENT 

10.1 Miscellaneous Fees. Any development fees not already specified in this Agreement 
shall not be levied or collected unless and until a building permit is issued for that lot. The amount 
of such fees shall be determined in accordance with the Rules, Regulations and Official Policies 
in effect on the Effective Date of this Agreement. 

10.1.1 Developer shall pay City's reasonable costs and fees associated with City's 
inspection of all improvements constructed by Developer as part of the Project including, but not 
limited to, all water systems, sewer systems, storm drainage, streets, alleys and grading. Said fees 
shall be paid in accordance with City's standard policies in effect as of the effective date of this 
Agreement. 

11. DEFAULT, REMEDIES AND TERMINATION 

11.1 Events of Default Defined. The following shall be "events of default" under this 
Agreement, and the terms "Events of Default" and "Default" shall mean, whenever they are used 
in this Agreement, with respect to the Project, anyone or more of the following events: 

11.1.1 Failure by Developer to observe and perform any covenant, condition or 
agreement on its part to be observed or performed under this Agreement or conditions of approval 
for any of the Project Approvals, for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice specifying 
such failure and requesting that it be remedied has been given to Developer by City; provided, 
however, if the failure stated in the notice can be corrected, but not reasonably within such thirty 
(30) day period, City shall not unreasonably withhold its consent to an extension of such time if 
corrective action is instituted by the Developer within the thirty (30) day period and diligently 
pursued until the failure is corrected. City Staffmay, but is not required, under such circumstances, 
to extend the time period for completion ofthe corrective action to a total time not to exceed ninety 
(90) days. Any extension oftime beyond the ninety (90) day time period would require the consent 
of the City Council after a noticed public hearing. 

11.1.2 The filing by Developer or any assignee or successor in interest, of a 
voluntary petition in bankruptcy, or failure by Developer promptly to lift any execution or 
attachment on any part of the Project (other than disputed mechanic's liens), or adjudication of 
Developer as a bankrupt, or assignment by Developer for the benefit of creditors, or the entry by 
Developer into an agreement of composition with creditors, or the approval by a court of competent 
jurisdiction of a petition applicable to Developer in any proceedings instituted under the provisions 
of the Federal Bankruptcy Act, as amended, or under any similar acts which may hereafter be 
enacted. 
{00016427.DOCX;1 } 



11.1.3 Failure by City to observe and perform any covenant, condition or 
agreement on its part to be observed or performed under this Agreement on its part to be observed 
or performed under this Agreement or conditions of approval for any Project Approval, for a period 
of thirty (30) days after written notice specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied 
has been given to City by Developer; provided, however, if the failure stated in the notice can be 
corrected, but not within such thirty (30) day period, Developer shall not unreasonably withhold 
its consent to an extension of such time if corrective action is instituted by City within the thirty 
(30) day period and diligently pursued until the failure is corrected. In the event of a default by 
City resulting in delays in Developer's performance, such default shall serve to excuse a delay of 
the same period of time in performance by Developer under this Agreement, but shall not constitute 
grounds for termination or cancellation of this Agreement. 

11.2 General Provisions. In the event of default or breach of this Agreement, other than 
as determined in Section 8.3 hereof, or of its terms or conditions, the party alleging such default 
or breach shall give the breaching party not less than thirty (30) days Notice of Default in writing, 
unless the parties extend such time by mutual consent in writing. The time of notice shall be 
measured from the date of certified mailing. The Notice of Default shall specify the nature of the 
alleged default, and, where appropriate, the manner and period of time in which said default may 
be satisfactorily cured. Developer shall be given ninety (90) days from the date of notice in which 
to cure the specified default. If the nature of the alleged default is such that it cannot reasonably 
be cured within such ninety (90) day period, the commencement of the cure within such time 
period and the diligent prosecution to completion of the cure shall be deemed a cure within such 
period. During any period of curing, the party charged shall not be considered in default for the 
purposes of termination or institution of legal proceedings. If the default is cured, then no default 
shall exist and the noticing party shall take no further action. 

11.2.1 Option to institute Legal Proceedings or to Terminate. After proper notice 
and the expiration of said cure period, the noticing party to this Agreement, at its option, may 
institute legal proceedings or give notice of intent to terminate this Agreement pursuant to 
Government Code section 65868. Following notice of intent to terminate, the matter shall then be 
scheduled for consideration and review by the City Council, within thirty (30) days, in the manner 
set forth in Government Code sections 65865, 65867 and 65868, as amended. 

11.2.2 Notice of Termination. Following consideration of the evidence presented 
before the City Council, either party alleging a default by the other party may, at its option, give 
written notice of termination of this Agreement to the other party by certified mail. Written notice 
of termination of this Agreement shall be effective immediately upon certified mailing to the 
defaulting party. 

11.2.3 Waiver. Failure to give or delay in giving notice of default pursuant to this 
section shall not constitute a waiver of any default. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this 
Agreement, any failure or delay by the other party in asserting any of its rights or remedies as to 
any default shall not operate as a waiver of any default of such rights or remedies or deprive such 

{OOOl6427.DOCX;1} 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 114

11.1.3 Failure by City to observe and perform any covenant, condition or 
agreement on its part to be observed or performed under this Agreement on its part to be observed 
or performed under this Agreement or conditions of approval for any Project Approval, for a period 
of thirty (30) days after written notice specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied 
has been given to City by Developer; provided, however, if the failure stated in the notice can be 
corrected, but not within such thirty (30) day period, Developer shall not unreasonably withhold 
its consent to an extension of such time if corrective action is instituted by City within the thirty 
(30) day period and diligently pursued until the failure is corrected. In the event of a default by 
City resulting in delays in Developer's performance, such default shall serve to excuse a delay of 
the same period of time in performance by Developer under this Agreement, but shall not constitute 
grounds for termination or cancellation of this Agreement. 

11.2 General Provisions. In the event of default or breach of this Agreement, other than 
as determined in Section 8.3 hereof, or of its terms or conditions, the party alleging such default 
or breach shall give the breaching party not less than thirty (30) days Notice of Default in writing, 
unless the parties extend such time by mutual consent in writing. The time of notice shall be 
measured from the date of certified mailing. The Notice of Default shall specify the nature of the 
alleged default, and, where appropriate, the manner and period of time in which said default may 
be satisfactorily cured. Developer shall be given ninety (90) days from the date of notice in which 
to cure the specified default. If the nature of the alleged default is such that it cannot reasonably 
be cured within such ninety (90) day period, the commencement of the cure within such time 
period and the diligent prosecution to completion of the cure shall be deemed a cure within such 
period. During any period of curing, the party charged shall not be considered in default for the 
purposes of termination or institution of legal proceedings. If the default is cured, then no default 
shall exist and the noticing party shall take no further action. 

11.2.1 Option to Institute Legal Proceedings or to Terminate. After proper notice 
and the expiration of said cure period, the noticing party to this Agreement, at its option, may 
institute legal proceedings or give notice of intent to terminate this Agreement pursuant to 
Government Code section 65868. Following notice of intent to terminate, the matter shall then be 
scheduled for consideration and review by the City Council, within thirty (30) days, in the manner 
set forth in Government Code sections 65865, 65867 and 65868, as amended. 

11.2.2 Notice of Termination. Following consideration of the evidence presented 
before the City Council, either party alleging a default by the other party may, at its option, give 
written notice of termination of this Agreement to the other party by certified mail. Written notice 
of termination of this Agreement shall be effective immediately upon certified mailing to the 
defaulting party. 

11.2.3 Waiver. Failure to give or delay in giving notice of default pursuant to this 
section shall not constitute a waiver of any default. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this 
Agreement, any failure or delay by the other party in asserting any of its rights or remedies as to 
any default shall not operate as a waiver of any default of such rights or remedies or deprive such 

{OOOl6427.DOCX;1} 



party of its right to institute and maintain any actions or proceedings which it may deem necessary 
to protect, assert or enforce any such rights or remedies. 

11.3 Default by Developer. Government Code section 65865.1, as amended, requires 
the Developer to demonstrate its good faith compliance with the tenns of this Agreement at least 
annually. Such a periodic review may result in tennination or an agreement to amend this 
Agreement, provided a default has been established under the tenns of this Agreement. City shall 
not impose any fees or other exactions as a condition to a finding of good faith compliance with 
the tenns of this Agreement. 

11.4 Enforced Delay, Extension of Time of Performance. In addition to specific 
provisions of this Agreement, perfonnance by either party hereunder shall not be deemed to be in 
default, where delays or defaults are due to war, insurrection, strikes, walkouts, riots, floods, 
earthquakes, fires, casualties, acts of God, governmental restrictions imposed or mandated by other 
governmental entities, enactment of conflicting State or federal laws or regulations, new or 
supplementary environmental regulations, litigation, or similar bases for excused perfonnance. At 
the request of any party, an extension of time for such cause shall be granted in writing for the 
period of the enforced delay, or longer as may be mutually agreed upon. 

11.5 Institution of Legal Action. In addition to any other rights or remedies, either party 
may institute legal action to cure, correct or remedy any default, to enforce any covenants or 
agreements herein or to enjoin any threatened or attempted violation thereof; to recover damages 
for any default; or to obtain any remedies consistent with the purpose of this Agreement. In the 
event of such action, the prevailing Party shall be entitled to and shall recover from the other Party 
including but not limited to all costs of litigation including expert witness fees and reasonable 
attorney fees. 

11.6 Applicable Laws. 

11.6.1 This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the 
laws of the State of California. 

11.6.2 It is further understood that Developer is responsible for compliance with 
all applicable laws including, but not limited to, the Labor Code, Public Contract Code and 
Government Code of the State of California. City makes no representation as to the applicability 
of any laws regarding contracts, and especially public improvements, thereunder. Developer will 
not hold or seek to hold City liable for any failure by Developer to comply with any such laws 
without regard to whether City knew, could have known, or should have known as to the necessity 
of such compliance. The preceding section shall apply in regard to any enforcement action, 
whether public or private, and whether brought by a public enforcement agency or by private civil 
litigation, against City with regard to the content ofthis section. 

11.7 Indemnity. Developer shall indemnify, hold hannless and defend City and each of 
its officers, officials and employees from any and all liability, loss, debts, costs, and damages 
(whether in contract, tort or strict liability, including but not limited to personal injury, death at 
{OOO 16427 .DOCX; 1 } 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 115

party of its right to institute and maintain any actions or proceedings which it may deem necessary 
to protect, assert or enforce any such rights or remedies. 

11.3 Default by Developer. Government Code section 65865.1, as amended, requires 
the Developer to demonstrate its good faith compliance with the terms of this Agreement at least 
annually. Such a periodic review may result in termination or an agreement to amend this 
Agreement, provided a default has been established under the terms of this Agreement. City shall 
not impose any fees or other exactions as a condition to a finding of good faith compliance with 
the terms of this Agreement. 

11.4 Enforced Delav. Extension of Time of Performance. In addition to specific 
provisions of this Agreement, performance by either party hereunder shall not be deemed to be in 
default, where delays or defaults are due to war, insurrection, strikes, walkouts, riots, floods, 
earthquakes, fires, casualties, acts of God, governmental restrictions imposed or mandated by other 
governmental entities, enactment of conflicting State or federal laws or regulations, new or 
supplementary environmental regulations, litigation, or similar bases for excused performance. At 
the request of any party, an extension of time for such cause shall be granted in writing for the 
period ofthe enforced delay, or longer as may be mutually agreed upon. 

11.5 Institution of Legal Action. In addition to any other rights or remedies, either party 
may institute legal action to cure, correct or remedy any default, to enforce any covenants or 
agreements herein or to enjoin any threatened or attempted violation thereof; to recover damages 
for any default; or to obtain any remedies consistent with the purpose of this Agreement. In the 
event of such action, the prevailing Party shall be entitled to and shall recover from the other Party 
including but not limited to all costs of litigation including expert witness fees and reasonable 
attorney fees. 

11.6 Applicable Laws. 

11.6.1 This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the 
laws of the State of California. 

11.6.2 It is further understood that Developer is responsible for compliance with 
all applicable laws including, but not limited to, the Labor Code, Public Contract Code and 
Government Code of the State of California. City makes no representation as to the applicability 
of any laws regarding contracts, and especially public improvements, thereunder. Developer will 
not hold or seek to hold City liable for any failure by Developer to comply with any such laws 
without regard to whether City knew, could have known, or should have known as to the necessity 
of such compliance. The preceding section shall apply in regard to any enforcement action, 
whether public or private, and whether brought by a public enforcement agency or by private civil 
litigation, against City with regard to the content ofthis section. 

11.7 Indemnity. Developer shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend City and each of 
its officers, officials and employees from any and all liability, loss, debts, costs, and damages 
(whether in contract, tort or strict liability, including but not limited to personal injury, death at 
{OOO 16427 .DOCX; 1 } 



any time, property damage and damages for breach of contract or warranty) incurred by City, 
Developer or any other person, and from any and all claims, demands, actions or proceedings in 
law or equity (whether or not well founded) brought by Developer or any other person, arising 
directly or indirectly out of any act, omission or contract of Developer or any of its contractors, 
subcontractors, materialmen or employees in connection with construction of any of the facilities, 
work or improvements. The preceding sentence shall not apply to any liability, loss, debts, costs 
or damages caused solely by the negligence or willful misconduct of City. This duty shall survive 
the termination of this Agreement. 

12. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

12.1 Rules of Construction. The singular includes the plural; the masculine gender 
includes the feminine; "shall" and "will" are mandatory; and "may" is permissive. 

12.2 Severability. The parties hereto agree that the provisions are severable. If any 
provision of this Agreement is held invalid, the remainder of this Agreement shall be effective and 
shall remain in full force and effect unless amended or modified by mutual consent of the parties. 

12.3 Entire Agreement, Waivers, Amendment -- Superseding. This Agreement 
constitutes the entire understanding and agreement of the parties. This Agreement integrates all 
of the terms and conditions mentioned herein or incidental hereto, and supersedes all negotiation 
or previous agreements between the parties with respect to all or any part of the subject matter 
hereof. To the extent there are conflicts or inconsistencies between this Agreement and any prior 
agreement, map approval permit or conditions of approval, the provisions ofthis Agreement shall 
prevail. All waivers of the provisions of this Agreement must be in writing and signed by the 
appropriate authorities of City or of Developer. All amendments which are authorized in the 
manner provided by law must be in writing, signed by the appropriate authorities of City and 
Developer, in a form suitable for recording in the Office of the Recorder, County of Fresno. Any 
such amendments shall be promptly recorded. Upon the completion of performance of this 
Agreement or its earlier revocation and termination, a statement evidencing said completion or 
revocation signed by the appropriate agents of Developer and City shall be recorded in the Official 
Records of Fresno County, California. 

12.4 Project is a Private Undertaking. It is specifically understood and agreed to by and 
between the parties hereto that: (1) the Project is a private development; (2) City has no interest 
or responsibilities for or duty to third parties concerning any improvements until such time and 
only until such time that City accepts the same pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement or in 
connection with various subdivision map approvals; (3) Developer shall have full power over and 
exclusive control of Developer under this Agreement; and (4) the contractual relationship between 
City and Developer is such that Developer is an independent contractor and not an agent of City. 

12.5 Findings of Support. City hereby finds and determines that execution of this 
Agreement is in the best interest of the public health, safety and general welfare and that the 
provisions of this Agreement are consistent with the General Plan, as amended. 

{ODD 16427 .DOCX; I} 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 116

any time, property damage and damages for breach of contract or warranty) incurred by City, 
Developer or any other person, and from any and all claims, demands, actions or proceedings in 
law or equity (whether or not well founded) brought by Developer or any other person, arising 
directly or indirectly out of any act, omission or contract of Developer or any of its contractors, 
subcontractors, materialmen or employees in connection with construction of any of the facilities, 
work or improvements. The preceding sentence shall not apply to any liability, loss, debts, costs 
or damages caused solely by the negligence or willful misconduct of City. This duty shall survive 
the termination of this Agreement. 

12. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

12.1 Rules of Construction. The singular includes the plural; the masculine gender 
includes the feminine; "shall" and "will" are mandatory; and "may" is permissive. 

12.2 Severability. The parties hereto agree that the provisions are severable. If any 
provision ofthis Agreement is held invalid, the remainder of this Agreement shall be effective and 
shall remain in full force and effect unless amended or modified by mutual consent of the parties. 

12.3 Entire Agreement, Waivers, Amendment -- Superseding. This Agreement 
constitutes the entire understanding and agreement of the parties. This Agreement integrates all 
of the terms and conditions mentioned herein or incidental hereto, and supersedes all negotiation 
or previous agreements between the parties with respect to all or any part of the subject matter 
hereof. To the extent there are conflicts or inconsistencies between this Agreement and any prior 
agreement, map approval permit or conditions of approval, the provisions of this Agreement shall 
prevail. All waivers of the provisions of this Agreement must be in writing and signed by the 
appropriate authorities of City or of Developer. All amendments which are authorized in the 
manner provided by law must be in writing, signed by the appropriate authorities of City and 
Developer, in a form suitable for recording in the Office of the Recorder, County of Fresno. Any 
such amendments shall be promptly recorded. Upon the completion of performance of this 
Agreement or its earlier revocation and termination, a statement evidencing said completion or 
revocation signed by the appropriate agents of Developer and City shall be recorded in the Official 
Records of Fresno County, California. 

12.4 Project is a Private Undertaking. It is specifically understood and agreed to by and 
between the parties hereto that: (1) the Project is a private development; (2) City has no interest 
or responsibilities for or duty to third parties concerning any improvements until such time and 
only until such time that City accepts the same pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement or in 
connection with various subdivision map approvals; (3) Developer shall have full power over and 
exclusive control of Developer under this Agreement; and (4) the contractual relationship between 
City and Developer is such that Developer is an independent contractor and not an agent of City. 

12.5 Findings of Support. City hereby finds and determines that execution of this 
Agreement is in the best interest of the public health, safety and general welfare and that the 
provisions of this Agreement are consistent with the General Plan, as amended. 

{ODD 16427 .DOCX; I} 



[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

{00016427.DOCX;1} 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 117

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

{00016427.DOCX;1} 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties on the day 
and year first above written, as authorized by Ordinance No. ofthe City Council. 

CITY: 

CITY OF Selma, 
A Municipal Corporation 

By: _____________ _ 
Mayor of the City of Selma 

ATTEST: 

By: --------------------
City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: ______________ _ 
Neal E. Costanzo 
City Attorney 

{00016427.DOCX;1 } 

DEVELOPER: 

By: _____________ _ 

By: _ ____________ _ 

Attorney for _____ _ 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 118

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties on the day 
and year first above written, as authorized by Ordinance No. ofthe City Council. 

CITY: 

CITY OF Selma, 
A Municipal Corporation 

8y: _____________ _ 
Mayor of the City of Selma 

ATTEST: 

8y: _____________ _ 

City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

8y: ________ _____ _ 

Neal E. Costanzo 
City Attorney 

{00016427.DOCX;1} 

DEVELOPER: 

8y: _____________ ___ 

8y: _ ____________ _ 

Attorney for _____ _ 



EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE REAL PROPERTY 

000 16418.WPD;1 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 119

EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE REAL PROPERTY 

OOOJ6418.WPD;1 



B ~ ~ \ I I J~I-- 1--,- I--

~~ ~ 1nt------1 =~~u "'f-!-) ~I::;I-~_____t~__ja_:=~ 
~ _ .....-; . ~ t-- 1--1- _ 

1 r---------'r- ~2J-TK1e s=: ~ 
~-------.J l [ II Wlll/IIlllJl _ =1 ==1 =;1~=;~~~==~=~~~=1 

ElIIIIIll III ILUIIIWI I I J - J ~
.BIillJ 1111111111 mCJJ r ROSE 

EillIIJIIIIIIII I I [ 11 1111 1 
omm 11111111111 ;:::l 1::1:::::1:::1 =1 :=;1 I~~~~~~~=====, 

tIIJ,trm=n tmrrrn I I~~+-I III-+I-t-I -t-++-+-"'t-+I-/-I-I-III-IkCl 
~~~~ Ir~I~I ~I~I~~I ~I~II ~fz~ 

") DIJI'""T""'T""T
11 

) j-r;:.;r=1l1 T--r-r-1[ 11 ) ~I 1 I I I I I I 1 I I~ I 
ITIIIB __ L [pl~elllli II I I I I I I~ 

~ 11 111 Hid 1/ 
If I I rnHI 

r- fJNO 
,.., T I " " 1 I-------.--------l 
,-\1111 11U 

- I---= t-

-ffimE~ r-

c- t-

~'---_L..-'~ " " 1 I I r" I I L 
~ I I ~ 1 =;1=-:::::;:-=-=-==-~'-+V"'F~ ...... ""~'cr--=:t,,.,.-t-==----==~I~~1 =::=======:1 

/ 

C PROJECT SITE ::::> 
--.... _------
LOCATION MAP City of Selma GIS 2005 

SUBMITTAL NO. 2005-0143: Environmental Assessment, 
Vesting Tentative Tract Map 5640 
(Merigian -Country View III) 

CITY OF SELMA 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 120

/TTK1 
~_-----' '---' __ ----' [i=TI:!;:=1 Imrimlffiillllm=llllJ[ - =1 ==1 =l~~~;=~=:::::======l-==~C~~=I 

R lilT] I 111/11111 mCJJ r ROSE 

H/I II/11 1111~,UI IIWI II ) 
BIIIIJIIIIIIIIII [ 11 11 11 1 
omm 11111111111 ~( 1::1::::1::1 =1 ~I l~~~~~;:::;:~=====, 
~~ I~~~~~~~~ 

~ 1111 UJ1111) r====~~~H---,------F=~=====d 
11 111 H I \ I 

[til rnHI 
AI.JJNO 

C PROJECT SITE :::> --..... ----~ 
LOCATION MAP City of Selma GIS 2005 

SUBMITTAL NO. 2005-0143: Environmental Assessment, 
Vesting Tentative Tract Map 5640 
(Merigian -Country View III) 

CITY OF SELMA 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

~ 
N 



SITE OATA 
~~_.Aal:lr.~.~ 

~-. -......... ?-..,-- -~.- .. ..,...ara ..... ~c e u ...... _1D_~~~~" 
~ __ ......u ....c 

....... - ........ ::r,~~u 

~----. .,.. .. ..... 
~ .... ~ ...... . -_ ... 
.-:.o~~ _ _ .. 

_"_T"" ~I_ ..... _ rtirl~_n 
lalJIL ... ... ...... --.._~ .. .., 
....... UII .. u 
__ urrallil 'ov~v . 

.~;;;i\r:.~t. f.; .... :? .-JO ~.:_7';: 

:;:. r..:, ~ ':-" :::t, ? J 6, .. , ·!;.~.C3 
:- ~:-:-:'(:::' ~ 

.~ ~;;~;t-:;'{/;/ ;j~~ic 

_i' .2 (~ 

:~ lfi 

;.2 ,-

2~j z-.. 

:\:~ ;7 

... ... ~ 

:6 

i'rF s==t En _ 

"":' :" 

.) 

:1 
-!
oj, 

~,:j!~,J,-::::'":,,~ ....... .... - .. . ..... -

~ I. : I , ; n . i . _ ... _ ... , 

2t~ i: 

;!) <. 

ti ., 

:0881' 

t: 

RORDEN AVEM£ 

~ 
LEGAL De'SCRf'T!ON 
10.01. IHJ ~Q r J Of al:1.JU ~.MO 
~O"P"N'f'5 VILLA p~ TI£ MAP 
HEREOf' .. , R(CORQfO III IlOOK 2 
OF RECORe OF SUIfI,IETii n p&oc 
"FRESNO GOI..fIIT'! Rf:tO~Ds.. 

~ 

.: _.-b __ , '"' 
21 .IoI..L t:llS"i"lNCo _!L.J...J J,fIIII __ 'IQII I'II'(L.K:I IIIIL1.. 

It.......aCllllCtl~_IIOV'£a""'TIC"l101'1E:..II& 
.,~, 'illLlra .. J. ."H.II COW •• ,. I I~IID' 
.&HI] COIdDLCl.UD 1II~~Tlc. 0<&111'T tr~ 

).l Iti.L!:llI.tlllg 'O"[II'OLLJo -.. If! IICl.OC.TII:g 
~1~TO'4QI'"1t1U.""'fl.ZC:l.C*T~"_ 

4,1 iIU.:" 'IJIIO.IC _.Q ... ~n UIIU. -: ~OII'Tll'utH:Q 
Ij AttO.1).lN:E WITH THE ~ITY oF I£LIUo $TIJI~"/lQlI, 

;.'i'. :: ~':j" ._'~ .:. .. . ~i: 

-..:n 

~ 2ff ~ 2 01 
10~a5 = lO~as ~ 104" 

SF SF IF 

aa.1r a . ... 7· 1I1!I '"' t 

ff3 M ~5 

~ . vu Ii 9 Ig B 
; 1 12108 11I08 ~ 1!108 

SF SF SF 
~ .... 

8710' 

~ 

l! 2 _ ;; 3 I : 
--' 1II~t3 SF ;; 

la51~ 

./ 

----"''-K...... 

SUBOIVDERI 
1J€C0Rp OWNEll 
01...1"'1.1. ELIZASt.I" _",gIAOj 
.!i0 R-ORt:£N AYEf'fJE 
SELMA, C.A 8:l1.11 

I ~ 

1011:1.' 

4 

VESTING TENTATIVE 
TRACT MAP NO. 5640 

COUNTRY VIEW ESTATES NO.3 
PREPARED F~ 

MERIG/AN 
sa"A. CA ,3HZ 

LEGEND I ABBREVIA TIONS 

'" o. 
"" " ~ 
" .. 
" 
~ 

~".~I · wc. 

'~T ..... u.LQUl"n 
iUlJ/ts4 al !l£ • .au; 

[:JIUM I.NIE~OIN) ""LITt 
U":"l'"l[;,.aw:JI""Loc..l!CI'I 
~~ T:=: t,*,1lW~TlOW 

~Jalu.a;.u~ 
IJ"!IUT'I'l"''' ~tYf'E UNGTE~ 

~CI.su_OLt 
1,N.[ISMno 

=r[;:~~c~!:~o:Eac'll 

!~POtll 

ffi~;~T 

ffi1r::~ 

b 
~ 

SCALE. 1" • 60' 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 121

SITE DATA 
~~_ • • II:If'O.1iIlOnCI 

~~-... -,-....... - ----._ .. ..,.--.... ~ .. , ...... _1D_~~~~" 
0II7IIII .... ......,. ...c 

~-~ .".. .. -
~ .... ~ ....... .,..,....-
~~~- ........ __ ta.TW """_~ _nr. __ ,. 
lana. ...... ~_-. .... ~ ....... 
...,. .. Ulntu 
__ urr""OVQv . 

....-. .............. ::r..=: .. .::r 

?M. ?=-... :::1, ,:=O J. 
~ · ~:::-C:--:: 

6:4, ·!:.C3 
~ 

:~::.(.=;;t-~" ~~.':;';oJ'7 

f-li="--:';. -;,!..; ;,: ;;'~:C 

NOTES 
'I ~ ' . '11 0 eu III: _~ ..... '" 
21 .IoLLOIS"i"INCo.!L.L.J~ __ llQJI~I~~:lIII~ 

:~=:~~G-:U"'O:,,~::~ .. ~~'tJ~~~ 
.&HIlCO/lClDLCl"'UI"I'\UTIOIoC:lll.'T.T~. 

).)ItLLe: .... tllgro"U'OL..t;J .. . KIltLoc .. n:a 
~I~TO '.o.QI'"1C SA. a.cItJ.LC';UC ~T&lIl"_ 

4,j iIU.:" 'IJIIO.IC _~QVUlVoU lIHAlL C ~OII"T""'t1l::tJ 
Ij A~~OAI).lN:£ "IH~ THE "TV 01' t.£L .... s Ta..IIIUOtl, 

1-r __ \~ll _-?~_2_G ~Z=5 T-Z_~~~_'-~_22~_':~ I! 
/;$ ;7 :.; 

~. -- .~ 
~~J~~~~~~~~~~8 1 
~11.l ML 5.TReE: 

_ .~~ ____ ~___ ._ '.::.... __ _ -::...-w.?~ 

:" -, 
5 :t;o~.::·,:>( ~ . .). 

._---. .... , •. 

r-.,~ 1 

t I 1Z058 
~' .~ 

il l ,,," 
~Lk I I , .... 

I i iTl ~ ~ 
I ! I r 18475 IF 

C I II 

~VO 
; , I2J08 

s~, 

I!I?IO' 

1081111' 

c...J ~.sB _ 

LEGAL De'SCAf'T!ON 
1.01 INJ or 1 Of .~ ~~ 
~O"'P"'N'r"S V1LI.A p~ TI£ 'lAP 
TH£R(Of'" U RECORDED I .. 90011 2 
OF RECDRC OF SUR"IIETIi aT PilllE 
.... fAE"$HO e~T'!' Af:tD~Ds.. 

f4' 'a _ ,,;.;;;;;; .... .,. 
SU80IIIDERI ....... - ~ 
fi€CORD 0WNE'6 
OLI\lJ.I. ELlZABEl" NIOFlIOIA!j 
.!i0 RORt£N AYEf'fJE 
SELMA, c. .. 8:li.U 

VESTING TENTATIVE 
TRACT MAP NO. 5640 

COUNTRY VIEW ESTATES NO. 3 
PREPARED F~ 

MER/GIAN 

SCALE. 1" • 6IJ' 
P .. -



EXHIBITB 

CITY OF SELMA RESOLUTION NO. 2006-84R 

OOOl6418.WPD;1 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 122

EXHIBITB 

CITY OF SELMA RESOLUTION NO. 2006-84R 

OOOl6418.WPD;1 



- -
RESOLUTION NO. 2006- 84R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SELMA CITY COUNCIL 
APPROVING VESTING TENT A TIVE TRACT MAP NO. 5640 

WITH FINDINGS AND CONDITIONS, 
AND ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT NO. 2005-0143 

COUNTRY VIEW ESTATES NO.3 

WHEREAS, on November 6, 2006, the Selma City Council, at a regularly 
scheduled meeting, considered a request by Olivia Merigian for the subdivision of land into 
approximately 23 residential lots in the R -1-9 zoning district. The vesting tentative tract map is for 
approximately ten (10) acres of property located on the northeast corner of Rorden A venue and 
Country View Street, Selma, CA (APN 389-340-26), within the incorporated boundary of the City of 
Selma; and 

WHEREAS, the Selma City Council conducted a public hearing, noticed in 
accordance with all applicable state and local laws, and considered the proposal and the staff report 
and recommendations together with all public testimony of interested parties; and 

WHEREAS, the Selma City Council considered the scope of the proposal, reviewed 
the evidence and determined that Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5640 will not have a significant 
impact on the environment; and 

WHEREAS, per the Public Resources Code, Section 21080.1, Division 13, 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the City of Selma is responsible for determining 
whether an environmental impact report, a negative declaration, or a mitigated negative declaration 
shall be required; and 

WHEREAS, based on substantial evidence provided in the Initial Study and the 
whole record before the Selma City Council for Environmental Assessment No. 2005-0143, it has 
been determined that there is no possibility this project may have any significant effects on the 
environment. The City Council certifies the adequacy of the document and adopts the Negative 
Declaration; and 

WHEREAS, the Selma City Council determines that the following findings of fact for 
approval listed and included in this Resolution can be made based on the reports, evidence and verbal 
presentations; and 

1. The proposed vesting tentative tract map design and improvements are consistent with the 
Selma General Plan and any applicable specific plans because the design complies with the 
implementation and policies set in the General Plan document. 

2. The site is physically suitable for this type of development. 

3. The site is physically suitable for the proposed density of this development. 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 123

- -
RESOLUTION NO. 2006- 84R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SELMA CITY COUNCIL 
APPROVING VESTING TENT A TIVE TRACT MAP NO. 5640 

WITH FINDINGS AND CONDITIONS, 
AND ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT NO. 2005-0143 

COUNTRY VIEW ESTATES NO.3 

WHEREAS, on November 6, 2006, the Selma City Council, at a regularly 
scheduled meeting, considered a request by Olivia Merigian for the subdivision of land into 
approximately 23 residential lots in the R -1-9 zoning district. The vesting tentative tract map is for 
approximately ten (10) acres of property located on the northeast corner of Rorden A venue and 
Country View Street, Selma, CA (APN 389-340-26), within the incorporated boundary of the City of 
Selma; and 

WHEREAS, the Selma City Council conducted a public hearing, noticed in 
accordance with all applicable state and local laws, and considered the proposal and the staff report 
and recommendations together with all public testimony of interested parties; and 

WHEREAS, the Selma City Council considered the scope of the proposal, reviewed 
the evidence and determined that Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5640 will not have a significant 
impact on the environment; and 

WHEREAS, per the Public Resources Code, Section 21080.1, Division 13, 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the City of Selma is responsible for determining 
whether an environmental impact report, a negative declaration, or a mitigated negative declaration 
shall be required; and 

WHEREAS, based on substantial evidence provided in the Initial Study and the 
whole record before the Selma City Council for Environmental Assessment No. 2005-0143, it has 
been determined that there is no possibility this project may have any significant effects on the 
environment. The City Council certifies the adequacy of the document and adopts the Negative 
Declaration; and 

WHEREAS, the Selma City Council determines that the following findings of fact for 
approval listed and included in this Resolution can be made based on the reports, evidence and verbal 
presentations; and 

1. The proposed vesting tentative tract map design and improvements are consistent with the 
Selma General Plan and any applicable specific plans because the design complies with the 
implementation and policies set in the General Plan document. 

1 

2. '> The site is physically suitable for this type of development. 

3. The site is physically suitable for the proposed density of this development. 



-
4. The design of the subdivision or the proposed improvements are not likely to cause substantial 

environmental damage or substantially and unavoidably injure fish or wildlife or their habitat. 

5. The design of the subdivision or type of improvements are not likely to cause serious public 
health problems. 

6. The design of the subdivision or the type of improvements will not conflict with easements, 
acquired by the public at large, for access through or use of property within the proposed 
subdivision. 

7. All conditions of approval related to dedications, street improvements, the installation of 
infrastructure such as sewer and water lines, storm drain facilities, and other public 
improvements have been evaluated and it has been confirmed that a rough proportionality 
and/or a required degree of connection exists between the dedication imposed or public 
improvement required and the proposed development; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, having made its findings of fact, was of the 
opinion that Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5640, should be approved subject to the following 
specific conditions of approval to be listed and made a part of the Resolution: 

Planning Division 

1. Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5640 is approved subject to the conditions as developed. 

2. Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5640 shall be valid for two (2) years from the date of 
approval, unless extended in accordance with the Selma Municipal Code. If a Final Tract Map 
(the 'Tract Map') is not filed and approved prior to the end of the two-year life ofthe Vesting 
Tentative Tract Map approval, the Vesting Tentative Tract Map approval shall expire and 
become null and void. 

3. The design improvements of the subdivision shall be consistent with the Selma General Plan 
and the appropriate residential zone classification. The design and improvements of the Tract 
Map shall conform to the Selma City Zoning Ordinance or as otherwise permitted by this 
approval. 

4. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall relay all Conditions of Approval for this 
Vesting Tentative Tract Map to all subsequent purchasers of individual lots if applicable 
and/or to subsequent purchasers of this entire Tract Map development. 

5. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall contact and comply with the requirements of 
the United States Postal Service - Selma Office - for the cost, location and type of mailbox 
to be installed if one is to be utilized on-site. The location of the facilities shall be approved 
by the City Engineer prior to approval of improvement plans or any construction. Cluster 
boxes, when required, shall be installed at the Subdivider's cost by the Subdivider. 

6. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall obtain City approval in advance for temporary 
and permanent signs through a Master Signage Plan in a separate sign review consistent 
with the development criteria of the Selma Municipal Code Sign Ordinance. Signs require 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 124

-
4. The design of the subdivision or the proposed improvements are not likely to cause substantial 

environmental damage or substantially and unavoidably injure fish or wildlife or their habitat. 

5. The design of the subdivision or type of improvements are not likely to cause serious public 
health problems. 

6. The design of the subdivision or the type of improvements will not conflict with easements, 
acquired by the public at large, for access through or use of property within the proposed 
subdivision. 

7. All conditions of approval related to dedications, street improvements, the installation of 
infrastructure such as sewer and water lines, storm drain facilities, and other public 
improvements have been evaluated and it has been confirmed that a rough proportionality 
and/or a required degree of connection exists between the dedication imposed or public 
improvement required and the proposed development; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, having made its findings of fact, was of the 
opinion that Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5640, should be approved subject to the following 
specific conditions of approval to be listed and made a part of the Resolution: 

Planning Division 

1. Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5640 is approved subject to the conditions as developed. 

2. Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5640 shall be valid for two (2) years from the date of 
approval, unless extended in accordance with the Selma Municipal Code. If a Final Tract Map 
(the 'Tract Map') is not filed and approved prior to the end of the two-year life ofthe Vesting 
Tentative Tract Map approval, the Vesting Tentative Tract Map approval shall expire and 
become null and void. 

3. The design improvements of the subdivision shall be consistent with the Selma General Plan 
and the appropriate residential zone classification. The design and improvements of the Tract 
Map shall conform to the Selma City Zoning Ordinance or as otherwise permitted by this 
approval. 

4. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall relay all Conditions of Approval for this 
Vesting Tentative Tract Map to all subsequent purchasers of individual lots if applicable 
and/or to subsequent purchasers of this entire Tract Map development. 

5. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall contact and comply with the requirements of 
the United States Postal Service - Selma Office - for the cost, location and type of mailbox 
to be installed if one is to be utilized on-site. The location of the facilities shall be approved 
by the City Engineer prior to approval of improvement plans or any construction. Cluster 
boxes, when required, shall be installed at the Subdivider's cost by the Subdivider. 

6. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall obtain City approval in advance for temporary 
and permanent signs through a Master Signage Plan in a separate sign review consistent 
with the development criteria of the Selma Municipal Code Sign Ordinance. Signs require 



-
the submittal of a sign application, fees and approval by the Community Development 
Department prior to installation. 

7. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall provide landscaping and irrigation plans for 
Outlot A and Outlot B as indicated on the Tract Map for review and approval by the 
Community Development Department concurrently with the approval of the Final Map. All 
irrigation systems shall be operated by an electric timer. No battery operated timers shall be 
permitted. 

8. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall plant two trees in the front yard setbacks of 
each single family residential lot. The trees shall be located outside of the ten (10) foot 
public right-of-way as measured from the face of the street curb. The trees within the front 
yard shall be selected by the lot owner from a list approved by the Community Development 
Department. 

9. All required trees shall be double-staked and tied with durable materials. Planting details 
shall be clearly shown on the submitted plans. Species of street trees to be planted shall be 
approved by the Community Development Department. All trees shall be of a fifteen-gallon 
container size or larger and not less than two inches in diameter, measured four and one half 
feet from the root ball. The trees must be planted prior to occupancy. 

10. Root barriers shall be installed in accordance with City standards for all trees planted within 
five (5) feet of a sidewalk, curb or masonry/other wall. Landscaping and irrigation shall be 
provided on the street side yards of all comer lots. 

11. The Tract Map shall show all landscape frontages along streets adjacent to the subject site. 

12. All landscape improvements shall be installed and maintained by the Subdivider or 
successor in interest prior to issuance of20% of the Tract Map's certificates of occupancy. 

13. The proposed subdivision shall meet or exceed all R-I-9 (R-I) Residential Lot Standards, 
including, but not limited to, lot area" dimension and setback requirements, of the City 
Municipal Code in effect at the time of tentative tract map approval. 

14. The Conditions, Covenants and Regulations that are created by the Subdivider or successor in 
interest shall clearly indicate that each dwelling shall be an individually designed home subject 
to all available floor plans afforded by the Subdivider. Every effort shall be made to provide 
as many architectural and material variations and options as possible. When viewed from the 
road fronting the property, each dwelling's front elevation shall be unique. Sufficient changes 
to the roof line, over-hangs, and materials shall be provided as needed to provide such unique 
appearance for each dwelling. 

15 . The Subdivider or successor in interest is to provide a binding agreement with the City of 
Selma to enter into the Community Facilities District. The assessment for each lot must be 
obtained from the City for the tax year following the recordation of the Final Map. All 
potential lot buyers before they actually purchase a lot shall be notified that this tract is a 
part of a public safety Community Facilities District and shall inform potential buyers of the 
assessment amount. Said notification shall be in a manner approved by the City. The 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 125

-
the submittal of a sign application, fees and approval by the Community Development 
Department prior to installation. 

7. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall provide landscaping and irrigation plans for 
Outlot A and Outlot B as indicated on the Tract Map for review and approval by the 
Community Development Department concurrently with the approval of the Final Map. All 
irrigation systems shall be operated by an electric timer. No battery operated timers shall be 
permitted. 

8. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall plant two trees in the front yard setbacks of 
each single family residential lot. The trees shall be located outside of the ten (10) foot 
public right-of-way as measured from the face of the street curb. The trees within the front 
yard shall be selected by the lot owner from a list approved by the Community Development 
Department. 

9. All required trees shall be double-staked and tied with durable materials. Planting details 
shall be clearly shown on the submitted plans. Species of street trees to be planted shall be 
approved by the Community Development Department. All trees shall be of a fifteen-gallon 
container size or larger and not less than two inches in diameter, measured four and one half 
feet from the root ball. The trees must be planted prior to occupancy. 

10. Root barriers shall be installed in accordance with City standards for all trees planted within 
five (5) feet of a sidewalk, curb or masonry/other wall. Landscaping and irrigation shall be 
provided on the street side yards of all comer lots. 

11. The Tract Map shall show all landscape frontages along streets adjacent to the subject site. 

12. All landscape improvements shall be installed and maintained by the Subdivider or 
successor in interest prior to issuance of20% of the Tract Map's certificates of occupancy. 

13. The proposed subdivision shall meet or exceed all R-I-9 (R-l) Residential Lot Standards, 
including, but not limited to, lot area" dimension and setback requirements, of the City 
Municipal Code in effect at the time of tentative tract map approval. 

14. The Conditions, Covenants and Regulations that are created by the Subdivider or successor in 
interest shall clearly indicate that each dwelling shall be an individually designed home subject 
to all available floor plans afforded by the Subdivider. Every effort shall be made to provide 
as many architectural and material variations and options as possible. When viewed from the 
road fronting the property, each dwelling's front elevation shall be unique. Sufficient changes 
to the roof line, over-hangs, and materials shall be provided as needed to provide such unique 
appearance for each dwelling. 

15 . The Subdivider or successor in interest is to provide a binding agreement with the City of 
Selma to enter into the Community Facilities District. The assessment for each lot must be 
obtained from the City for the tax year following the recordation of the Final Map. All 
potential lot buyers before they actually purchase a lot shall be notified that this tract is a 
part of a public safety Community Facilities District and shall inform potential buyers of the 
assessment amount. Said notification shall be in a manner approved by the City. The 



-- -
Subdivider or successor in interest shall supply all necessary assessment diagrams and other 
pertinent materials for the Community Facilities District. 

Building Division 

16. All private domestic or agriculture water wells and existing sewage disposal systems shall 
be safely and properly destroyed under permit and inspection in accordance with Fresno 
County Health Department standards and under the direction of the Building Official. 

17. All necessary building plans shall be submitted for review and approval by the Building 
Official. All required building permits and inspections shall be obtained prior to the issuance of 
a Certificate of Occupancy and commencement of operations. 

18. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with the most currently adopted version of 
all California Uniform Codes and regulations as required. 

City Engineering Division 

19. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall have a Final Tract Map (the 'Tract Map') 
prepared in the form prescribed by the Subdivision Map Act and City of Selma Municipal 
Code. The Tract Map shall be submitted to the City Engineer, and should include, but not 
be limited to, current Soils Report, Tract Map, the current filing fee, closure calculations, 
current preliminary title report, legal descriptions and drawings of required dedications. 

20. The Tract Map shall include a "Right to Farm" covenant statement acknowledged by 
separate recorded instrument to ensure that normal farming operations may continue on 
adjacent and nearby agricultural uses and properties. 

21 . The Subdivider or successor in interest shall submit to the City Engineer, a set of 
construction plans on 24" x 36" sheets with City standard title block for all required 
improvements (the 'Improvement Plans'). The Improvement Plans shall be prepared by a 
registered Civil Engineer, and shall include a site grading and drainage plan and an overall 
site utility plan showing locations and sizes of sewer, water, irrigation, and storm drain 
mains, laterals, manholes, meters, valves, hydrants, other facilities, such as medians and 
stamped concrete, etc. Plan check and inspection fees per City of Selma shall be paid with 
the first submittal of said Improvement Plans. All Improvement Plans shall be approved by 
the City and all other involved agencies prior to the release of any development permits. 

22. The design and construction of all off-site improvements shall be in accordance with City 
standards and construction specifications. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall 
furnish to the City acceptable security to guarantee the construction of the off-site street 
improvements in accordance with the Subdivision Map Act. 

23 . The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with, and be responsible for obtaining 
encroachment permits from the City of Selma for all work performed within the City'S right
of-way. 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 126

-
Subdivider or successor in interest shall supply all necessary assessment diagrams and other 
pertinent materials for the Community Facilities District. 

Building Division 

16. All private domestic or agriculture water wells and existing sewage disposal systems shall 
be safely and properly destroyed under permit and inspection in accordance with Fresno 
County Health Department standards and under the direction of the Building Official. 

17. All necessary building plans shall be submitted for review and approval by the Building 
Official. All required building permits and inspections shall be obtained prior to the issuance of 
a Certificate of Occupancy and commencement of operations. 

18. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with the most currently adopted version of 
all California Uniform Codes and regulations as required. 

City Engineering Division 

19. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall have a Final Tract Map (the 'Tract Map') 
prepared in the form prescribed by the Subdivision Map Act and City of Selma Municipal 
Code. The Tract Map shall be submitted to the City Engineer, and should include, but not 
be limited to, current Soils Report, Tract Map, the current filing fee, closure calculations, 
current preliminary title report, legal descriptions and drawings of required dedications. 

20. The Tract Map shall include a "Right to Farm" covenant statement acknowledged by 
separate recorded instrument to ensure that normal farming operations may continue on 
adjacent and nearby agricultural uses and properties. 

21. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall submit to the City Engineer, a set of 
construction plans on 24" x 36" sheets with City standard title block for all required 
improvements (the 'Improvement Plans'). The Improvement Plans shall be prepared by a 
registered Civil Engineer, and shall include a site grading and drainage plan and an overall 
site utility plan showing locations and sizes of sewer, water, irrigation, and storm drain 
mains, laterals, manholes, meters, valves, hydrants, other facilities, such as medians and 
stamped concrete, etc. Plan check and inspection fees per City of Selma shall be paid with 
the first submittal of said Improvement Plans. All Improvement Plans shall be approved by 
the City and all other involved agencies prior to the release of any development permits. 

22. The design and construction of all off-site improvements shall be in accordance with City 
standards and construction specifications. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall 
furnish to the City acceptable security to guarantee the construction of the off-site street 
improvements in accordance with the Subdivision Map Act. 

23 . The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with, and be responsible for obtaining 
encroachment permits from the City of Selma for all work performed within the City'S right
of-way. 



-
24. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall agree to pay all applicable updated Community 

Development Fees prior to Final Map approval by Council. 

25. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall provide a dedication for a ten (10) foot public 
utility easement along all frontages of all lots as approved by the City Engineer and the 
public utilities companies. No public utility easements (electric, gas, cable, telephone, 
sewer, water) shall be permitted in rear lot setback areas. 

26. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with the requirements of the Pacific, 
Gas and Electric Company (PG&E), SBC and ComCast. The City shall not accept first 
submittals without proof that the Subdivider has paid the appropriate PG&E City 
Engineering fees and provided PG&E with a set of plans showing proposed electrical vaults 
and proposed sidewalk and curb grades adjacent to the vaults. All PG&E vaults in which 
lids can not be sloped to match the proposed finished grading shall be located in sidewalk 
areas with pedestrian lids so the lid slope matches sidewalk cross slope. 

27. No above-ground transformer is permitted on the required sidewalk within the public right
of-way. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall utilize screening techniques 
recommended pursuant to PG&E design descriptions or additional architectural features as 
determined by the Community Development Department as approved by the City Engineer. 

28. All existing overhead and new utility facilities located on-site, or within the street rights-of
way adjacent to this subdivision shall be under grotulded. 

29. All underground utilities installed under streets shall be backfilled, compacted, tested and 
approved by the City Engineer prior to placement of any aggregate base or asphalt concrete 
surfacing. Easements for utilities, including water, gas, telephone, electricity, sewage, 
pedestrian access, fire access, storm drainage, and irrigation facilities shall be provided, as 
required. 

30. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall install street lights on metal poles to City 
standards at the locations designated by the City Engineer. Street light locations shall be 
shown on the utility plans submitted with the final map for approval indicating conveyance 
of the street lights to the City of Selma. The design and type of metal poles shall be 
reviewed and approved by the City Engineer. 

31. Drainage, grading, on-site and utility improvements shall be in accordance with plans 
reviewed and approved by the City Engineer. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall 
be responsible for the preparation of plans prior to the approval of the Final Map. The 
applicant shall construct storm drainage facilities as deemed necessary by the City Engineer to 
service the project site. The Final Map shall not be approved prior to the development of storm 
drainage master plans for the subject site and tributary areas. 

32. Grade differentials between lots and adjacent properties shall be adequately shown on the 
grading plan and shall be treated in a manner in conformance with City of Selma standards (i.e. 
retaining walls). 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 127

-
24. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall agree to pay all applicable updated Community 

Development Fees prior to Final Map approval by Council. 

25. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall provide a dedication for a ten (10) foot public 
utility easement along all frontages of all lots as approved by the City Engineer and the 
public utilities companies. No public utility easements (electric, gas, cable, telephone, 
sewer, water) shall be permitted in rear lot setback areas. 

26 . The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with the requirements of the Pacific, 
Gas and Electric Company (PG&E), SBC and ComCast. The City shall not accept first 
submittals without proof that the Subdivider has paid the appropriate PG&E City 
Engineering fees and provided PG&E with a set of plans showing proposed electrical vaults 
and proposed sidewalk and curb grades adjacent to the vaults. All PG&E vaults in which 
lids can not be sloped to match the proposed finished grading shall be located in sidewalk 
areas with pedestrian lids so the lid slope matches sidewalk cross slope. 

27. No above-ground transformer is permitted on the required sidewalk within the public right
of-way. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall utilize screening techniques 
recommended pursuant to PG&E design descriptions or additional architectural features as 
determined by the Community Development Department as approved by the City Engineer. 

28. All existing overhead and new utility facilities located on-site, or within the street rights-of
way adjacent to this subdivision shall be under grotulded. 

29. All underground utilities installed under streets shall be backfilled, compacted, tested and 
approved by the City Engineer prior to placement of any aggregate base or asphalt concrete 
surfacing. Easements for utilities, including water, gas, telephone, electricity, sewage, 
pedestrian access, fire access, storm drainage, and irrigation facilities shall be provided, as 
required. 

30. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall install street lights on metal poles to City 
standards at the locations designated by the City Engineer. Street light locations shall be 
shown on the utility plans submitted with the final map for approval indicating conveyance 
of the street lights to the City of Selma. The design and type of metal poles shall be 
reviewed and approved by the City Engineer. 

31 . Drainage, grading, on-site and utility improvements shall be in accordance with plans 
reviewed and approved by the City Engineer. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall 
be responsible for the preparation of plans prior to the approval of the Final Map. The 
applicant shall construct storm drainage facilities as deemed necessary by the City Engineer to 
service the project site. The Final Map shall not be approved prior to the development of storm 
drainage master plans for the subject site and tributary areas. 

32. Grade differentials between lots and adjacent properties shall be adequately shown on the 
grading plan and shall be treated in a manner in conformance with City of Selma standards (i.e. 
retaining walls). 



-
33 . The ultimate width of Rorden, Evergreen, Mill, and Country View Streets shall be constructed 

in accordance with an ultimate cross section of sixty (60) feet. 

34. All driveway approaches shall be reviewed for line of sight distance and approved by the 
City Engineer. 

35. Traffic and road signs shall be installed in conformance to requirements and as approved by 
the City Engineer. 

36. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall enter into a Subdivision Agreement in accordance 
with the City of Selma Municipal Code prior to approval of the Final Map. 

37. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall not install any fences, temporary or permanent in 
the public right-of-way. 

38. Design and structural details for the type and style of the block walls shall be submitted to the 
Community Development Department and the City Engineer for review and approval by the 
City Council prior to the approval of the Final Map and Subdivision Agreement. All required 
walls shall be a minimum of six feet from the interior grade of the lots. The wall facing the 
Del Rey Alignment arterial street and designated open space (Lots, 4, 5, 6, 7, 16, 17, 18, 19) 
shall be constructed as a solid decorative six (6) foot masonry block wall with constructed 
pilaster columns with a maximum spacing oftwenty feet (20') o.c. The materials shall be of 
decorative block such as brick or split faced concrete block with textured block accents. 

39. All side yards facing public streets shall be provided with landscape and irrigation 
improvements typical of front yard improvements. 

40. All mechanical equipment (air conditioners or dual pact) will be located in the attic or on the 
ground on foundations. 

41. The Subdivider or successor in interest is responsible to connect to and pay all the necessary 
fees for the new storm drain master plans. 

42. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall install storm drain receptors in the storm drain 
system in a location just prior to the connection to the City storm drain system. 

43. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall provide a copy of their Storm Water Pollution 
Prevention Plan for review by the City Engineer and Public Works Director, prior to approval 
of the Final Map. 

44. Outlot A and Outlot B (PG&E McCall-Kingsburg #1 115KV Towerline easement) shall be 
dedicated to the City of Selma. Detailed agreements shall be reviewed and approved by the 
City Engineer and the City Council prior to the approval of the Final Map and Subdivision 
Agreement. Outlot A and Outlot B shall be improved with landscape and irrigation pursuant to 
plans reviewed and approved by the City Engineer. 

45 . Although legally formed upon recordation of the Final Map, Lots 5, 6, 17 and 18 cannot be 
built on pending the outcome of the Del Rey Alignment arterial status and street designation 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 128

-
33 . The ultimate width of Rorden, Evergreen, Mill, and Country View Streets shall be constructed 

in accordance with an ultimate cross section of sixty (60) feet. 

34. All driveway approaches shall be reviewed for line of sight distance and approved by the 
City Engineer. 

35. Traffic and road signs shall be installed in conformance to requirements and as approved by 
the City Engineer. 

36. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall enter into a Subdivision Agreement in accordance 
with the City of Selma Municipal Code prior to approval of the Final Map. 

37. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall not install any fences, temporary or permanent in 
the public right-of-way. 

38. Design and structural details for the type and style of the block walls shall be submitted to the 
Community Development Department and the City Engineer for review and approval by the 
City Council prior to the approval of the Final Map and Subdivision Agreement. All required 
walls shall be a minimum of six feet from the interior grade of the lots. The wall facing the 
Del Rey Alignment arterial street and designated open space (Lots, 4, 5, 6, 7, 16, 17, 18, 19) 
shall be constructed as a solid decorative six (6) foot masonry block wall with constructed 
pilaster columns with a maximum spacing of twenty feet (20') o.c. The materials shall be of 
decorative block such as brick or split faced concrete block with textured block accents. 

39. All side yards facing public streets shall be provided with landscape and irrigation 
improvements typical of front yard improvements. 

40. All mechanical equipment (air conditioners or dual pact) will be located in the attic or on the 
ground on foundations. 

41. The Subdivider or successor in interest is responsible to connect to and pay all the necessary 
fees for the new storm drain master plans. 

42. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall install storm drain receptors in the storm drain 
system in a location just prior to the connection to the City storm drain system. 

43. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall provide a copy of their Storm Water Pollution 
Prevention Plan for review by the City Engineer and Public Works Director, prior to approval 
of the Final Map. 

44. Outlot A and Outlot B (PG&E McCall-Kingsburg #1 115KV Towerline easement) shall be 
dedicated to the City of Selma. Detailed agreements shall be reviewed and approved by the 
City Engineer and the City Council prior to the approval of the Final Map and Subdivision 
Agreement. Outlot A and Outlot B shall be improved with landscape and irrigation pursuant to 
plans reviewed and approved by the City Engineer. 

45 . Although legally formed upon recordation of the Final Map, Lots 5, 6, 17 and 18 cannot be 
built on pending the outcome of the Del Rey Alignment arterial status and street designation 



removal from this area. Should the Del Rey Aligrunent arterial status and street designation be 
removed from the area pursuant to an amendment of the General Plan Circulation Element, the 
lots can be built on and developed. 

46. Pending the outcome of the General Plan Amendment of the Circulation Element to remove the 
Del Rey Alignment arterial status and street designation from this area, project approval shall 
include the set-aside of sufficient funds to develop a portion of the street subject to review and 
approval by the City Engineer. 

47. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall request annexing Outlot A and Outlot B, fully 
developed with landscape and irrigation improvements, into a landscape and lighting 
maintenance district. These landscape and irrigation improvement areas shall be maintained by 
the developer from the day of the Notice of Completion approval for a length of time to be 
determined by the City Engineer prior to the district formation. 

48. The Subdivider or successor in interest is to provide a covenant for the Landscape and 
Lighting Maintenance District. The assessment for each lot must be obtained from the City 
for the tax year following the recordation of the Final Map. All potential lot buyers before 
they actually purchase a lot shall be notified that this tract is a part of a Landscape and 
Lighting Maintenance District and shall inform potential buyers of the assessment amount. 
Said notification shall be in a manner approved by the City. The Subdivider or successor in 
interest shall supply all necessary assessment diagrams and other pertinent materials for the 
Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District, to be reviewed and approved by the City 
Engineer. 

49. Prior to purchasing residential lots adjacent to OUTLOT A and OUTLOT B, all buyers shall 
be notified that there are four lots proposed for the east side of the PG&E easement, which 
are on hold due to building restrictions pending the resolution of the Del Rey Aligrunent 
arterial status and street designation matter. 

50. Monuments shall be set as required by City Standards and shall be shown on the Final Map. 

51 . The Subdivider or successor in interest shall install all major street monumentation and 
section comer monumentation within the limits of the project work in accordance with City 
Standards prior to final acceptance of the project. Monumentation at the street center line 
intersections shall conform to City Standards Drawing No. 0-21. Any existing section 
comer or property comer monuments damaged by this development shall be reset to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer. A licensed land surveyor or Civil Engineer licensed to 
perform land surveying shall certify the placement of all required monumentation prior to 
final acceptance. Within five days after the final setting of all monuments has been 
completed the Civil Engineer or surveyor shall give written notice to the City Engineer that 
the final monuments have been set. Upon payment to the Civil Engineer or surveyor for 
setting the final monuments, the applicant shall present to the City Engineer evidence of the 
payment and receipt thereof by the City Engineer or surveyor. 

52. After all improvements have been constructed and accepted by the City, the Subdivider or 
successor in interest shall submit to the City Engineer, one blue line copy of the approved set of 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 129

removal from this area. Should the Del Rey Alignment arterial status and street designation be 
removed from the area pursuant to an amendment of the General Plan Circulation Element, the 
lots can be built on and developed. 

46. Pending the outcome of the General Plan Amendment ofthe Circulation Element to remove the 
Del Rey Alignment arterial status and street designation from this area, project approval shall 
include the set-aside of sufficient funds to develop a portion of the street subject to review and 
approval by the City Engineer. 

47. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall request annexing Outlot A and Outlot B, fully 
developed with landscape and irrigation improvements, into a landscape and lighting 
maintenance district. These landscape and irrigation improvement areas shall be maintained by 
the developer from the day of the Notice of Completion approval for a length of time to be 
determined by the City Engineer prior to the district formation. 

48 . The Subdivider or successor in interest is to provide a covenant for the Landscape and 
Lighting Maintenance District. The assessment for each lot must be obtained from the City 
for the tax year following the recordation of the Final Map. All potential lot buyers before 
they actually purchase a lot shall be notified that this tract is a part of a Landscape and 
Lighting Maintenance District and shall inform potential buyers of the assessment amount. 
Said notification shall be in a manner approved by the City. The Subdivider or successor in 
interest shall supply all necessary assessment diagrams and other pertinent materials for the 
Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District, to be reviewed and approved by the City 
Engineer. 

49. Prior to purchasing residential lots adjacent to OUTLOT A and OUTLOT B, all buyers shall 
be notified that there are four lots proposed for the east side of the PG&E easement, which 
are on hold due to building restrictions pending the resolution of the Del Rey Alignment 
arterial status and street designation matter. 

50. Monuments shall be set as required by City Standards and shall be shown on the Final Map. 

51 . The Subdivider or successor in interest shall install all major street monumentation and 
section comer monumentation within the limits of the project work in accordance with City 
Standards prior to final acceptance of the project. Monumentation at the street center line 
intersections shall conform to City Standards Drawing No. 0-21 . Any existing section 
comer or property comer monuments damaged by this development shall be reset to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer. A licensed land surveyor or Civil Engineer licensed to 
perform land surveying shall certify the placement of all required monumentation prior to 
final acceptance. Within five days after the final setting of all monuments has been 
completed the Civil Engineer or surveyor shall give written notice to the City Engineer that 
the final monuments have been set. Upon payment to the Civil Engineer or surveyor for 
setting the final monuments, the applicant shall present to the City Engineer evidence of the 
payment and receipt thereof by the City Engineer or surveyor. 

52. After all improvements have been constructed and accepted by the City, the Subdivider or 
successor in interest shall submit to the City Engineer, one blue line copy of the approved set of 



construction plans revised to reflect all field revisions and marked "AS-BUILT" for review and 
approval. 

53 . Upon approval of the "AS-BUlL TS" by the City, the Subdivider or successor in interest shall 
provide (1) reproducible and (1) copy of the "AS-BUILTS" to the City, and one (1) copy on 
diskette, CD or similar digital storage media in pdf or lif fonnat. 

54. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall provide the City with original improvement 
plans and Auto CAD files of the Final Map, improvement plans, and all drawings prepared 
on Auto CAD. 

54A. On Evergreen Street along the North side of the project, the Subdivider shall complete the cul
de-sac to the standards of the City of Selma; Standards of Specification for Public Works No. 
0-23. 

Fire Department 

50. A water source capable of supplying the required fire flow, either temporary or permanent, 
shall be made available as soon as combustible material accumulates at the site. 

51 . Fire hydrants and water supply systems of California Water Company shall be provided in 
accordance with the specifications of and at locations designated by the Selma Fire Chief. 
All fire hydrants and mains are to meet City standards, specifications and be capable of a 
minimum flow of 1,250 gpm at 20 psi. 

52. All weather access shall be provided to all areas of the development during construction to a 
minimum of twenty (20) feet in width, and shall have an unobstructed vertical clearance of 
at least thirteen feet, six inches (13' 6"), and shall be capable of supporting the imposed load 
of fire apparatus weighing at least 20,000 pounds. 

53 . When ajob shack or mobile office is provided, there shall be at least one (1) portable fire 
extinguisher with a minimum UL classification of 4A-608:C available at that location. 

54. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with all applicable requirements of the 
most recent Uniform Fire Codes and local fire ordinances. 

Police Department 

55. If applicable, effective design recommendations will be made by the Police Department to 
reduce the potential for crime. 

Selma Unified School District 

56. The Subdivider or successor in interest must contact Selma Unified School District and pay 
all applicable fees at the time of building permit issuance. 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 130

construction plans revised to reflect all field revisions and marked "AS-BUILT" for review and 
approval. 

53 . Upon approval of the "AS-BUlL TS" by the City, the Subdivider or successor in interest shall 
provide (1) reproducible and (1) copy of the "AS-BUILTS" to the City, and one (1) copy on 
diskette, CD or similar digital storage media in pdf or tifformat. 

54. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall provide the City with original improvement 
plans and Auto CAD files of the Final Map, improvement plans, and all drawings prepared 
on Auto CAD. 

54A. On Evergreen Street along the North side of the project, the Subdivider shall complete the cul
de-sac to the standards of the City of Selma; Standards of Specification for Public Works No. 
0-23. 

Fire Department 

50. A water source capable of supplying the required fire flow, either temporary or permanent, 
shall be made available as soon as combustible material accumulates at the site. 

51 . Fire hydrants and water supply systems of California Water Company shall be provided in 
accordance with the specifications of and at locations designated by the Selma Fire Chief. 
All fire hydrants and mains are to meet City standards, specifications and be capable of a 
minimum flow of 1,250 gpm at 20 psi. 

52. All weather access shall be provided to all areas of the development during construction to a 
minimum of twenty (20) feet in width, and shall have an unobstructed vertical clearance of 
at least thirteen feet, six inches (13' 6"), and shall be capable of supporting the imposed load 
of fire apparatus weighing at least 20,000 pounds. 

53 . When ajob shack or mobile office is provided, there shall be at least one (1) portable fire 
extinguisher with a minimum UL classification of 4A-608:C available at that location. 

54. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with all applicable requirements of the 
most recent Uniform Fire Codes and local fire ordinances. 

Police Department 

55 . If applicable, effective design recommendations will be made by the Police Department to 
reduce the potential for crime. 

Selma Unified School District 

56. The Subdivider or successor in interest must contact Selma Unified School District and pay 
all applicable fees at the time of building permit issuance. 



-
Selma-Kingsburg-Fowler County Sanitation District (S-K-F) 

57. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall connect to S-K-F and comply with all applicable 
regulations, standards and specifications of the District. 

58. The Subdivider or successor in interest is responsible for arranging a pre-design meeting with 
District staff and the City of Selma in order to review the sewer improvements required to serve 
this project's needs. The proposed development is within the District Boundaries as part ofthe 
Evergreen-Rorden Reorganization completed in January 1997. 

California Water Service Company (Cal Water) 

59. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall connect to the California Water Service Company 
and comply with all regulations, standards and specifications ofthe Company. 

60. The Subdivider or successor interest shall submit improvement plans to Cal Water stamped 
with the appropriate fire flow requirements from the Selma Fire Department. Once 
improvement plans are received, Cal Water will design the water system to meet the 
required fire flows and domestic water needs. 

61. California Water Service Company will extend its mains to serve this development in 
accordance with the main extension rules of the Public Utilities Commission of the State of 
California. If and when the Subdivider or the successor in interest has entered into an 
agreement with the Company and has deposited the estimated cost of making the extension, the 
Company will install the necessary water mains and serve the project with water at the rates 
and in accordance with the rules and regulations ofthe Commission. 

San Joaquin Valley Unified Air Pollution Control District (SJVAPCD) 

62. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall refer to the SJV APCD suggested rules and 
mitigation measures to reduce pollutants. 

Consolidated Irrigation District 

63 . The Subdivider or successor in interest shall not interfere with the function, operation and 
maintenance of the structures under the jurisdiction of the Consolidated Irrigation District. 

64. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall relocate the Warner Lateral Pipeline running 
north-south through the center of the project site. 

Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District 

64. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with all applicable improvements and 
upgrades as per the rules and regulations of the Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District. 

County of Fresno Human Health System - Environmental Health 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 131

-
Selma-Kingsburg-Fowler County Sanitation District (S-K-F) 

57. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall connect to S-K-F and comply with all applicable 
regulations, standards and specifications of the District. 

58. The Subdivider or successor in interest is responsible for arranging a pre-design meeting with 
District staff and the City of Selma in order to review the sewer improvements required to serve 
this project's needs. The proposed development is within the District Boundaries as part ofthe 
Evergreen-Rorden Reorganization completed in January 1997. 

California Water Service Company (Cal Water) 

59. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall connect to the California Water Service Company 
and comply with all regulations, standards and specifications ofthe Company. 

60. The Subdivider or successor interest shall submit improvement plans to Cal Water stamped 
with the appropriate fire flow requirements from the Selma Fire Department. Once 
improvement plans are received, Cal Water will design the water system to meet the 
required fire flows and domestic water needs. 

61. California Water Service Company will extend its mains to serve this development in 
accordance with the main extension rules of the Public Utilities Commission of the State of 
California. If and when the Subdivider or the successor in interest has entered into an 
agreement with the Company and has deposited the estimated cost of making the extension, the 
Company will install the necessary water mains and serve the project with water at the rates 
and in accordance with the rules and regulations ofthe Commission. 

San Joaquin Valley Unified Air Pollution Control District (SJVAPCD) 

62. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall refer to the SJV APCD suggested rules and 
mitigation measures to reduce pollutants. 

Consolidated Irrigation District 

63 . The Subdivider or successor in interest shall not interfere with the function, operation and 
maintenance of the structures under the jurisdiction of the Consolidated Irrigation District. 

64. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall relocate the Warner Lateral Pipeline running 
north-south through the center of the project site. 

Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District 

64. The Subdivider or successor in interest shall comply with all applicable improvements and 
upgrades as per the rules and regulations of the Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District. 

County of Fresno Human Health System - Environmental Health 



- -
65 . All existing agricultural wells and irrigation systems must be safely and properly destroyed. 

The Subdivider or successor in interest shall obtain approval from the County of Fresno 
prior to the removal of any wells and irrigation systems. Well-head installations and 
abandonments shall be performed exclusively by licensed C-57 Specialty Contractors 
pursuant to the California State Contractor's Licensing Law. 

66. All construction equipment must be maintained according to the manufacturers' 
specifications, and noise generating construction equipment must be equipped with mufflers. 
Noise-generation construction activities shall be limited to daytime hours. 

67. Should any underground storage tank(s) be found on the premises, the Subdivider or 
successor in interest shall apply for and secure and Underground Storage Tank Removal 
Permit from the Fresno County Department of Community Health, Environmental Health 
System (559) 445-3271. 

California Regional Water Quality Control Board 

68. The Subdivider or successor in interest is required to comply with the State of California 
Water Resource Control Board requirements specifically related to the National Pollution 
Elimination System permit process. A Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 
shall be prepared and submitted to the State. 

69. The Subdivider or successor interest shall contact the Regional Water Quality Board and 
comply with all requirements, prior to the release of any development permits. 

Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E) 

70. The Subdivider or successor interest shall coordinate with PG&E in the development of their 
project plans. Any proposed development plans shall provide for unrestricted utility access 
and prevent easement encroachments that might impair the safe and reliable maintenance 
and operation of PG&E's facilities. 

71 . Landscape plans and plant type must be reviewed and approved by PG&E prior to submittal 
to the City of Selma for review. 

72 . No structure may be located within sixty (60) feet ofthe center line of the existing power 
poles. 

CITY ATTORNEY - Defense and Indemnification Provisions: 

73 . The City shall not be liable to the Subdivider or to any other person, firm, or corporation 
whatsoever, for any injury or damage that may result to any person or property by or from 
any cause whatsoever in, on, or about the subdivision of said land covered by this 
Agreement, or any part thereof. The preceding sentence shall not apply to any liability, loss, 
cost of damages caused solely by the negligence (active or passive) or willful misconduct of 
the City or its agents. 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 132

-
65 . All existing agricultural wells and irrigation systems must be safely and properly destroyed. 

The Subdivider or successor in interest shall obtain approval from the County of Fresno 
prior to the removal of any wells and irrigation systems. Well-head installations and 
abandonments shall be performed exclusively by licensed C-57 Specialty Contractors 
pursuant to the California State Contractor's Licensing Law. 

66. All construction equipment must be maintained according to the manufacturers' 
specifications, and noise generating construction equipment must be equipped with mufflers. 
Noise-generation construction activities shall be limited to daytime hours. 

67. Should any underground storage tank(s) be found on the premises, the Subdivider or 
successor in interest shall apply for and secure and Underground Storage Tank Removal 
Permit from the Fresno County Department of Community Health, Environmental Health 
System (559) 445-3271. 

California Regional Water Quality Control Board 

68. The Subdivider or successor in interest is required to comply with the State of California 
Water Resource Control Board requirements specifically related to the National Pollution 
Elimination System permit process. A Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 
shall be prepared and submitted to the State. 

69. The Subdivider or successor interest shall contact the Regional Water Quality Board and 
comply with all requirements, prior to the release of any development permits. 

Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E) 

70. The Subdivider or successor interest shall coordinate with PG&E in the development of their 
project plans. Any proposed development plans shall provide for unrestricted utility access 
and prevent easement encroachments that might impair the safe and reliable maintenance 
and operation of PG&E's facilities. 

71 . Landscape plans and plant type must be reviewed and approved by PG&E prior to submittal 
to the City of Selma for review. 

72 . No structure may be located within sixty (60) feet ofthe center line of the existing power 
poles. 

CITY ATTORNEY - Defense and Indemnification Provisions: 

73 . The City shall not be liable to the Subdivider or to any other person, firm, or corporation 
whatsoever, for any injury or damage that may result to any person or property by or from 
any cause whatsoever in, on, or about the subdivision of said land covered by this 
Agreement, or any part thereof. The preceding sentence shall not apply to any liability, loss, 
cost of damages caused solely by the negligence (active or passive) or willful misconduct of 
the City or its agents. 



-
74. The Subdivider hereby releases and agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the City 

Engineer, and its officers, agents, employees and volunteers harmless from and against any 
and all injuries to and deaths of persons or injuries to property, and all claims, demands, 
costs, loss, damage and liability, whosoever the same may be caused and whensoever the 
same may appear, resulting directly or indirectly from the performance or nonperformance 
of any or all work to be done in said subdivision including but not limited to the street lights 
of said Subdivision and upon the premises adjacent thereto pursuant to this Agreement, and 
also from any and all injuries to and deaths of persons and injuries to property or other 
interests, and all claims, demands, costs, loss, damage, and liability, howsoever same may 
be caused and whensoever same may appear, either directly or indirectly made or suffered 
by the Subdivider, the Subdivider's agents, employees, and subcontractors, while engaged in 
the performance of said work. The preceding sentence shall not apply to any liability, loss, 
cost, damage and liability caused solely by the negligence (active or passive) or willful 
misconduct of the City or its agents. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Selma City Council 
hereby finds and takes the following actions: 

1 . The above facts are true and correct. 

2. The above findings are supported by the record and presentation to the Planning Commission. 

3. The Planning Commission recommends City Council approval of Submittal No. 2005-0143: 
Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5640 and the Environmental Assessment for the project, 
subject to the Findings for Approval and Conditions of Approval made part of this 
Resolution. 

The foregoing Resolution No. 2006- 84R is hereby approved the 6th day of 
November 2006 by the following vote, to wit: 

AYES: 5 COUNCIL MEMBERS: Derr, Niswander, Avalos, Luj an, Tow 

NOES: 0 COUNCIL MEMBERS: None 

ABSTAIN: 0 COUNCIL MEMBERS: None 

ABSENT: 0 COUNCIL MEMBERS: None 

DON TOW, MAYOR OF THE CITYOF SELMA 

ATTEST: 

~ {l. LCVtti.D 
Melanie A. Carter, CMC 
City Clerk of the City of Selma 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 133

-
74. The Subdivider hereby releases and agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the City 

Engineer, and its officers, agents, employees and volunteers harmless from and against any 
and all injuries to and deaths of persons or injuries to property, and all claims, demands, 
costs, loss, damage and liability, whosoever the same may be caused and whensoever the 
same may appear, resulting directly or indirectly from the performance or nonperformance 
of any or all work to be done in said subdivision including but not limited to the street lights 
of said Subdivision and upon the premises adjacent thereto pursuant to this Agreement, and 
also from any and all injuries to and deaths of persons and injuries to property or other 
interests, and all claims, demands, costs, loss, damage, and liability, howsoever same may 
be caused and whensoever same may appear, either directly or indirectly made or suffered 
by the Subdivider, the Subdivider's agents, employees, and subcontractors, while engaged in 
the performance of said work. The preceding sentence shall not apply to any liability, loss, 
cost, damage and liability caused solely by the negligence (active or passive) or willful 
misconduct of the City or its agents. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Selma City Council 
hereby finds and takes the following actions: 

1 . The above facts are true and correct. 

2. The above findings are supported by the record and presentation to the Planning Commission. 

3. The Planning Commission recommends City Council approval of Submittal No. 2005-0143: 
Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5640 and the Environmental Assessment for the project, 
subject to the Findings for Approval and Conditions of Approval made part of this 
Resolution. 

The foregoing Resolution No. 2006- 84R is hereby approved the 6th day of 
November 2006 by the following vote, to wit: 

AYES: 5 COUNCIL MEMBERS: Derr, Niswander, Avalos, Luj an, Tow 

NOES: 0 COUNCIL MEMBERS: None 

ABSTAIN: 0 COUNCIL MEMBERS: None 

ABSENT: 0 COUNCIL MEMBERS: None 

DON TOW, MAYOR OF THE CITYOF SELMA 

ATTEST: 

~ a. Lakt:eAJ 
Melanie A. Carter, CMC 
City Clerk of the City of Selma 



EXHIBITC 

FEE SCHEDULE 

0001641S.WPD;1 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 134

EXHIBITC 

FEE SCHEDULE 

000I641S.WPD;1 



ENR Construction Index, Monthly 

2003 6,580.54 6,640.06 6,627.39 6,635.49 6,641.98 6,693.94 6,695.57 6,732.81 6,741.03 6,770.96 6,794.25 6,781.86 6,694.64 

2004 6,824.90 6,861.10 6,956.53 7,016.91 7,064.14 7,109.40 7,125 .96 7,187.62 7,298.25 7,313.88 7,311.63 7,308.30 7,114.89 6.28% 
2005 7,297.24 7,297.58 7,308.75 7,355.38 7,398.03 7,414.97 7,421.57 7,478.15 7,518.28 7,562.50 7,631.58 7,646.87 7,445.98 4.65% 
2006 7,660.29 7.688.90 7,691.72 7,694.40 7,690.72 7,699.59 7,700.00 7,722.66 7,763.15 7,882.53 7,910.81 7,887.62 7,749.37 4.07% 
2007 7,879.58 7.879.54 7,856.27 7,862.58 7,942.00 7,983.58 7 ,959.17 8,007.48 8,049.65 8,045.14 8,091 .81 8,089.45 7,970.52 2.85% 
2008 8,090.06 8,094.28 8,109.00 8,126.30 8,140.61 8,184.94 8,293.05 8,361.74 8,556.72 8,623.22 8,602.45 8,551.32 8,311.14 4.27% 
2009 8,549.06 8,532.73 8,534.05 8,528.39 8,573.87 8,578.28 8,566.14 8,563.80 8,585.71 8,596.31 8,591.79 8,641.45 8,570.13 3.12% 
2010 8,660.08 8,671.00 8,671 .07 8,676.68 8,761.47 8,804.79 8,864.72 8,837.37 8,857.70 8,920,54 8,950.64 8,952.40 8,800.66 2.69% 
2011 8,938.30 8,998.02 9,010.80 9,027.23 9,034.67 9,052.64 9,080.15 9,088.24 9,115.95 9,146.95 9,173.21 9,171.73 9,096.82 3.37% 
2012 9.171.73 9.198.29 9,267.57 9,272.95 9,289.65 9.290.00 9,323.58 9,350.99 9,341.03 9,375.52 9,398.41 9.412.25 9,307.66 2.32% 
2013 9,437.27 9,453.02 9,455.98 9,483.70 9,515.86 9,542.33 9,551.78 9,545.33 9,551.58 9,688.86 9,666.46 9,667.77 9,546.66 2.57% 
2014 9,664.45 9,681.11 9,701.96 9,749.51 9,795.92 9.800.38 9,834.63 9,845.59 9,870.12 9,886.06 9,912.01 9,936.44 9,806.52 2.72% 
2015 9,971.96 9,961.75 9,972.38 9,992.34 9,979.00 10,036.38 10,037.40 10,038.79 10,065.09 10,128.32 10,092.38 10,135.00 10,034.23 2.32% 
2016 10,132.55 10,181.92 10.242.09 10,279.94 10,315.44 10,337.05 10,379.26 10,385.65 10,403.43 10,434.56 10,442.61 10,442.61 10,331.43 2.96% 
2017 10 ,542.01 10,558.63 10,667.39 10,678.15 10,692.17 10,702.81 10,789.41 10,826.31 10,822.92 10,817.11 10,870.06 10,873.46 10,736.70 3.92% 

httpJlwww.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/oortal/nrcs/main/nalionalltechnical/econ/pricesl 

As of Jan. 2018, Use ENR report dated 01-01-XXXX for inflation rate. 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 135

ENR Construction Index, Monthly 

YEAR JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC ANN 

2003 6,580.54 6,640.06 6,627.39 6,635.49 6,641 .98 6,693.94 6,695.57 6,732.81 6,741.03 6,770,96 6,794.25 6,781 .86 6 ,694.64 

2004 6,824.90 6,861 .1 0 6 ,956.53 7 ,016.91 7 ,064.14 7,109.40 7 ,125 .96 7,187.62 7,298.25 7,313.88 7,311 .63 7,308.30 7 ,114.89 

2005 7,297.24 7,297.58 7, 308.75 7,355.38 7,398.03 7,414.97 7,421 .57 7,478.15 7 ,518.28 7,562.50 7 ,631.58 7,646.87 7,445.98 

2006 7.660.29 7.688.90 7,691 .72 7,694.40 7,690.72 7,699.59 7,700.00 7,722.66 7,763.15 7.882.53 7,910.81 7.887.62 7,749.37 

2007 7,879.58 7,879.54 7 ,856.27 7 ,862.58 7,942.00 7 ,983.58 7 ,959.17 8,007.48 8,049.65 8,045.14 8,091 .81 8,089.45 7,970 .52 

2008 8,090.06 8 ,094.28 8,109.00 8,126.30 8,140.61 8,184.94 8,293.05 8,361.74 8,556.72 8,623.22 8,602.45 8,551.32 8,311.14 

2009 8,549.06 8,532.73 8,534.05 8,528.39 8,573.87 8,578,28 8,566.14 8,563.80 8,585.71 8,596.31 8,591 .79 8,641.45 8,570.13 

2010 8,660.08 8,671.00 8,671.07 8,676.68 8,761.47 8,804,79 8,864,72 8,837.37 8,857.70 8,920,54 8,950.64 8,952.40 8,800.66 

2011 8,938.30 8,998.02 9,010.80 9,027.23 9,034.67 9,052,64 9,080.15 9,088.24 9,115.95 9,146.95 9,173.21 9,171 .73 9,096.82 

2012 9,171.73 9,198.29 9,267.57 9,272.95 9,289.65 9,290,00 9,323.58 9,350.99 9,341.03 9,375.52 9,398.41 9,412.25 9,307.66 

2013 9,437.27 9,453.02 9,455.98 9,483.70 9,515.86 9,542.33 9,551 ,78 9,545.33 9,551 .58 9,688.86 9,666.46 9,667.77 9,546.66 

2014 9,664.45 9,681.11 9,701 .96 9,749.51 9,795.92 9,800.38 9,834.63 9,845.59 9,870.12 9,886.06 9,912.01 9,936.44 9,806.52 

2015 9,971 .96 9,961.75 9,972.38 9,992.34 9,979.00 10,036.38 10,037.40 10,038.79 10,065.09 10,128,32 10,092.38 10,135.00 10,034.23 

2016 10,132.55 10, 181.92 10,242.09 10,279.94 10,315.44 10,337.05 10,379.26 10,385.65 10,403.43 10,434.56 10,442.61 10,442.61 10,331.43 

2017 10,542.01 10,558.63 10,667.39 10,678.15 10,692.17 10,702.81 10,789.41 10,826.31 10,822.92 10,817.11 10,870.06 10,873.46 10,736.70 

http://www.nrcs.usda.qov/wos/oortal/nrcs/main/nationalltechnical/econlpricesl 

As of Jan. 2018, Use ENR report dated 01-01-XXXX for inflation rate. 

Annual 
Increase 

6.28% 
4.65% 
4.07% 
2.85% 
4.27% 
3.12% 
2.69% 
3.37% 
2.32% 
2.57% 
2.72% 
2.32% 
2.96% 
3.92% 



SCHEDULE OF DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES 
FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT FACILITIES, VEHICLES 

AND EQUIPMENT 
Resolution No. 2004-9R Schedule Year 2018 

INFLATION RATE USED FOR 2017 AT 3.92 

The Development Impact Fee for Law Enforcement Facilities, Vehicles and Equipment for the City of Selma is hereby 
revised as follows: 

Zone District Fee 
2017 Increase 2018 

Single Family Residential R-1 $ 528.15 3.92% $ 548.86 Per Dwelling Unit 
Duplex and Multi Family Residential R-2, R-3, R-4 $ 395.30 3.92% $ 410.79 Per Dwelling Unit 
Commercial Office/Business $ 0.299 3.92% $ 0.310 Per Square Foot 
Commercail Retail $ 0.299 3.92% $ 0.310 Per Square Foot 
Industrial Light Manufacturing M-1 $ 0.011 3.92% $ 0.012 Per Square Foot 
Industrial Heavy Manufacturing M-2 $ 0.011 3.92% $ 0.012 Per Square Foot 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 136

SCHEDULE OF DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES 
FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT FACILITIES, VEHICLES 

AND EQUIPMENT 
Resolution No. 2004-9R Schedule Year 2018 

INFLATION RATE USED FOR 2017 AT 3.92 

The Development Impact Fee for Law Enforcement Facilities, Vehicles and Equipment for the City of Selma is hereby 
revised as follows: 

Zone District Fee 
2017 Increase 2018 

Single Family Residential R-1 $ 528.15 3.92% $ 548.86 Per Dwelling Unit 
Duplex and Multi Family Residential R-2, R-3, R-4 $ 395.30 3.92% $ 410.79 Per Dwelling Unit 
Commercial Office/Business $ 0.299 3.92% $ 0.310 Per Square Foot 
Commercail Retail $ 0.299 3.92% $ 0.310 Per Square Foot 
Industrial Light Manufacturing M-1 $ 0.011 3.92% $ 0.012 Per Square Foot 
Industrial Heavy Manufacturing M-2 $ 0.011 3.92% $ 0.012 Per Square Foot 



SCHEDULE OF DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES 
FOR FIRE SUPPRESSION/MEDIC FACILITIES, 

VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT 
Resolution No. 2004-9R Schedule Year 2018 

INFLATION RATE USED FOR 2017 AT 3.92 

The Development Impact Fee for Fire Supression/Medic Facilities, Vehicles and Equipment for the City of Selma 
is hereby revised as follows: 

Zone District Fee 
2017 Increase 2018 

Single Family Residential R-1 $ 569.48 3.92% $ 591.80 Per Dwelling Unit 
Duplex and Multi Family Residential R-2, R-3, R-4 $ 779.37 3.92% $ 809.92 Per Dwelling Unit 
Com mercial Office/Business $ 0.434 3.92% $ 0.451 Per Square Foot 
Commercail Retail $ 0.398 3.92% $ 0.414 Per Square Foot 
Industrial Light Manufacturing M-1 $ 0.091 3.92% $ 0.095 Per Square Foot 
Industrial Heavy Manufacturing M-2 $ 0.145 3.92% $ 0.151 Per Square Foot 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 137

SCHEDULE OF DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES 
FOR FIRE SUPPRESSION/MEDIC FACILITIES, 

VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT 
Resolution No. 2004-9R Schedule Year 2018 

INFLATION RATE USED FOR 2017 AT 3.92 

The Development Impact Fee for Fire Supression/Medic Facilities, Vehicles and Equipment for the City of Selma 
is hereby revised as follows: 

Zone District Fee 
2017 Increase 2018 

Single Family Residential R-1 $ 569.48 3.92% $ 591.80 Per Dwelling Unit 
Duplex and Multi Family Residential R-2, R-3, R-4 $ 779.37 3.92% $ 809.92 Per Dwelling Unit 
Com mercial Office/Business $ 0.434 3.92% $ 0.451 Per Square Foot 
Commercail Retail $ 0.398 3.92% $ 0.414 Per Square Foot 
Industrial Light Manufacturing M-1 $ 0.091 3.92% $ 0.095 Per Square Foot 
Industrial Heavy Manufacturing M-2 $ 0.145 3.92% $ 0.151 Per Square Foot 



SCHEDULE OF DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES 
FOR GENERAL FACILITIES, VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT 

Resolution No. 2004-9R Schedule Year 2018 
INFLATION RATE USED FOR 2017 AT 3.92 

To provide funds to mitigate the impact of new development in the community on the general city facilities and 
equipment (Le .. , public works, administration) used to provide those services. 

Zone District Fee 
2017 Increase 2018 

Single Family Residential R-1 $ 1,535.59 3.92% $ 1,595.79 Per Dwelling Unit 
Duplex and Multi Family Residential R-2, R-3, R-4 $ 1,535.59 3.92% $ 1,595.79 Per Dwelling Unit 
Commercial Office/Business $ 0.628 3.92% $ 0.653 Per Square Foot 
Commercail Retail $ 0.628 3.92% $ 0.653 Per Square Foot 
Industrial Light Manufacturing M-1 $ 0.628 3.92% $ 0.653 Per Square Foot 
Industrial Heavy Manufacturing M-2 $ 0.628 3.92% $ 0.653 Per Square Foot 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 138

SCHEDULE OF DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES 
FOR GENERAL FACILITIES, VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT 

Resolution No. 2004-9R Schedule Year 2018 
INFLATION RATE USED FOR 2017 AT 3.92 

To provide funds to mitigate the impact of new development in the community on the general city facilities and 
equipment (Le .. , public works, administration) used to provide those services. 

Zone District Fee 
2017 Increase 2018 

Single Family Residential R-1 $ 1,535.59 3.92% $ 1,595.79 Per Dwelling Unit 
Duplex and Multi Family Residential R-2, R-3, R-4 $ 1,535.59 3.92% $ 1,595.79 Per Dwelling Unit 
Commercial Office/Business $ 0.628 3.92% $ 0.653 Per Square Foot 
Commercail Retail $ 0.628 3.92% $ 0.653 Per Square Foot 
Industrial Light Manufacturing M-1 $ 0.628 3.92% $ 0.653 Per Square Foot 
Industrial Heavy Manufacturing M-2 $ 0.628 3.92% $ 0.653 Per Square Foot 



SCHEDULE OF DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES 
FOR STORM DRAINAGE FACILITIES 

Resolution No. 2004-9R Schedule Year 2018 
INFLATION RATE USED FOR 2017 AT 3.92 

To provide for appropriate flood control and storm drainage facilities for the community due to the impact of new 
residential development. 

Zone District Fee 
2017 Increase 2018 

Single Family Residential R-1 $ 6,066.75 3.92% $ 6,304.57 Per Acre 
Duplex and Multi Family Residential R-2, R-3, R-4 $ 10,111.76 3.92% $ 10,508.14 Per Acre 
Commercial Office/Business $ 16,176.968 3.92% $ 16,811.11 PerAcre 
Commercail Retail $ 16,176.968 3.92% $ 16,811.11 Per Acre 
Industrial Light Manufacturing M-1 $ 14,155.233 3.92% $ 14,710.12 Per Acre 
Industrial Heavy Manufacturing M-2 $ 14,155.233 3.92% $ 14,710.12 Per Acre 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 139

SCHEDULE OF DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES 
FOR STORM DRAINAGE FACILITIES 

Resolution No. 2004-9R Schedule Year 2018 
INFLATION RATE USED FOR 2017 AT 3.92 

To provide for appropriate flood control and storm drainage facilities for the community due to the impact of new 
residential development. 

Zone District Fee 
2017 Increase 2018 

Single Family Residential R-1 $ 6,066.75 3.92% $ 6,304.57 Per Acre 
Duplex and Multi Family Residential R-2, R-3, R-4 $ 10,111.76 3.92% $ 10,508.14 Per Acre 
Commercial Office/Business $ 16,176.968 3.92% $ 16,811.11 Per Acre 
Commercail Retail $ 16,176.968 3.92% $ 16,811.11 Per Acre 
Industrial Light Manufacturing M-1 $ 14,155.233 3.92% $ 14,710.12 Per Acre 
Industrial Heavy Manufacturing M-2 $ 14,155.233 3.92% $ 14,710.12 Per Acre 



SCHEDULE OF DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES 
FOR CIRCULATION SYSTEM (STREETS. SIGNALS AND BRIDGES) 

Resolution No. 2004-9R Schedule Year 2018 
INFLATION RATE USED FOR 2017 AT 3.92 

To provide funds to mitigate the impact of new development in the community on the streets and traffic signals used to provide those services. 

land Use 
Residential Land Uses 

Single Family Detached 

Apartment 

Mobile Home 
Residential Condominium 

Assisted Care Facility 

Resort/Tourlst 
Hotel 
Motel 
Industrial 
General Light Industrial 

Heavy Industrial 
Manufacturing 
Warehouse 

Commercial 

Office Park 

Research Park 
Business Park 
Bldg. Materials/Lumber Store 

Specialty Retail Center 

Garden Center 

Movie Theater 

Church 
Cemetary 

Medical-Dental Office 
General Office Building 

Shopping Center 

Hospital 

Discount Center (Big Box) 
High-Turnover (Sit-Down) Restaurant 

Fast Food w/drive thru 
Drinking Place (Bar) 

Gasoline/Service Station w/mk 

Convenience Market 

Recreation Community Center 

Walk-In Bank 

ADT Rate Per Seat 

Room, KSF, or Unit (1) 

14.74 
9.37 
7.42 
9.04 

33.18 

13.43 
15.73 

10.76 

15.05 

5.94 
7.53 

17.62 
11.88 
22.18 
47.16 
62.77 
55.68 

0.09 

14.38 
6.42 

52.73 
25.59 
60_03 

25.85 
108.23 

316.93 
825.75 

17.81 
251.22 
119.88 

35.31 
217.00 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Room 

Room 

KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 

KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
Seat 

KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 

Island 

KSF 

KSF 
KSF 

2017 
Cost Per 

Trip Mile 

498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 

498.38 

498.38 
498 .38 

498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 

498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498,38 

498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 

498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 

ADTCost Per 

Room, KSF or Unit 

4759.54 
3025.18 

2397.21 

2920.51 

10715.20 

4335.91 
5078.51 

3.474 
4.860 

1.918 

2.432 

5.692 
3.838 
7.162 

15.231 
20.270 

17.981 
29.903 

4.645 
2.073 

17.030 

8.263 

19.387 
8.348 

34.951 
102.348 
266.659 

5.752 

81126.440 

38.714 
11.404 

70.077 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Room 

Room 

Sq . Ft 

Sq . Ft 

Sq . Ft 

Sq . Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq . Ft 

Sq. Ft 
Sq. Ft 

Seat 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Island 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

~ 

3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 

3.92% 
3.92% 

3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 

3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 

ADT Rate Per Seat 

Room, KSF, or Unit (1) 

15.32 Unit 
9.74 Unit 

7.71 Unit 
9.40 Unit 

34.48 Unit 

13.95 Room 

16.34 Room 

11.18 

15.64 
6.17 
7.83 

18.32 
12.35 
23.05 

49.01 

65.23 
57.87 

0.10 

14.95 

6.67 
54.80 

26.59 
62.39 
26.86 

112.47 

329.36 
858.12 

18.51 
261.07 

124.58 
36.70 

225.51 

KSF 

KSF 
KSF 
KSF 

KSF 
KSF 
KSF 

KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
Seat 

KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 

Island 

KSF 
KSF 
KSF 

~ 
Cost Per 

Trip Mile 

ADTCost Per 

Room, KSF or Unit 

517.92 4946.11 Unit 
517.92 3143.77 Unit 
517.92 2491.18 Unit 
517.92 3035.00 Unit 
517.92 11135.23 Unit 

517.92 4505.88 Room 
517.92 5277.58 Room 

517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 

517.92 
517.92 

517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 

517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 

517.92 

3.61 
5.05 

1.99 
2.53 

5.91 
3.99 
7.44 

15.83 
21.06 

18.69 
31.08 

4.83 
2.15 

17.70 
8.59 

20.15 

8.67 
36.32 

106.36 

277.11 
5.98 

84306.60 

40.23 

11.85 
72.82 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 
Sq. Ft 

Seat 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Island 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 140

SCHEDULE OF DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES 
FOR CIRCULATION SYSTEM (STREETS. SIGNALS AND BRIDGES) 

Resolution No. 2004-9R Schedule Year 2018 
INFLATION RATE USED FOR 2017 AT 3.92 

To provide funds to mitigate the impact of new development in the community on the streets and traffic signals used to provide those services. 

land Use 
Residential Land Uses 

Single Family Detached 

Apartment 

Mobile Home 
Residential Condominium 

Assisted Care Facilitv 

Resort/Tourlst 
Hotel 
Motel 
Industrial 
General Light Industrial 

Heavy Industrial 
Manufacturing 
Warehouse 

Commercial 

Office Park 

Research Park 
Business Park 
Bldg. Materials/Lumber Store 

Specialty Retail Center 

Garden Center 

Movie Theater 

Church 
Cemetary 

Medical-Dental Office 
General Office Building 

Shopping Center 

Hospital 

Discount Center (Big Box) 
High-Turnover (Sit-Down) Restaurant 

Fast Food w/drive thru 
Drinking Place (Bar) 

Gasoline/Service Station w/mk 

Convenience Market 

Recreation Community Center 

Walk-In Bank 

ADT Rate Per Seat 

Room, KSF, or Unit (1) 

14.74 
9.37 
7.42 
9.04 

33.18 

13.43 
15.73 

10.76 

15.05 

5.94 
7.53 

17.62 
11.88 
22.18 
47.16 
62.77 
55.68 

0.09 

14.38 
6.42 

52.73 
25.59 
60.03 

25.85 
108.23 

316.93 
825.75 

17.81 
251.22 
119.88 

35.31 
217.00 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Room 

Room 

KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 

KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
Seat 

KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 

Island 

KSF 

KSF 
KSF 

2017 
Cost Per 

Trip Mile 

498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 

498.38 

498.38 
498 .38 

498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 

498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 

498.38 
498.38 
498.38 
498.38 

ADTCost Per 

Room, KSF or Unit 

4759.54 
3025.18 

2397.21 

2920.51 

10715.20 

4335.91 
5078.51 

3.474 
4.860 

1.918 

2.432 

5.692 
3.838 
7.162 

15.231 
20.270 

17.981 
29.903 

4.645 
2.073 

17.030 

8.263 

19.387 
8.348 

34.951 
102.348 
266.659 

5.752 

81126.440 

38.714 
11.404 

70.077 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Unit 

Room 

Room 

Sq . Ft 

Sq . Ft 

Sq . Ft 

Sq . Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq . Ft 

Sq. Ft 
Sq. Ft 

Seat 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Island 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 

3.92% 
3.92% 

3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 

3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 
3.92% 

ADT Rate Per Seat 

Room, KSF, or Unit (1) 

15.32 Unit 
9.74 Unit 

7.71 Unit 
9.40 Unit 

34.48 Unit 

13.95 Room 

16.34 Room 

11.18 

15.64 
6.17 
7.83 

18.32 
12.35 
23.05 

49.01 

65.23 
57.87 

0.10 

14.95 

6.67 
54.80 

26.59 
62.39 
26.86 

112.47 

329.36 
858.12 

18.51 
261.07 

124.58 
36.70 

225.51 

KSF 

KSF 
KSF 
KSF 

KSF 
KSF 
KSF 

KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
Seat 

KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 

Island 
KSF 
KSF 
KSF 

aill 
Cost Per 

Trip Mile 

ADTCost Per 

Room, KSF or Unit 

517.92 4946.11 Unit 
517.92 3143.77 Unit 
517.92 2491.18 Unit 
517.92 3035.00 Unit 
517.92 11135.23 Unit 

517.92 4505.88 Room 
517.92 5277.58 Room 

517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 

517.92 
517.92 

517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 

517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 
517.92 

517.92 

3.61 
5.05 

1.99 
2.53 

5.91 
3.99 
7.44 

15.83 
21.06 

18.69 
31.08 

4.83 
2.15 

17.70 
8.59 

20.15 

8.67 
36.32 

106.36 

277.11 
5.98 

84306.60 

40.23 

11.85 
72.82 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 
Sq. Ft 

Seat 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Island 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 

Sq. Ft 



SCHEDULE OF DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES 
FOR SANITARY SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM 

Resolution No. 2004-9R Schedule Year 2018 

To provide for appropriate sewer facilities and facilitate connection to existing sewer 
system for new residential development in the community. 

Zone District Fee 

For each equivalent single-family residential unit $ 748.00 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 141

SCHEDULE OF DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES 
FOR SANITARY SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM 

Resolution No. 2004-9R Schedule Year 2018 

To provide for appropriate sewer facilities and facilitate connection to existing sewer 
system for new residential development in the community. 

Zone District 

For each equivalent single-family residential unit $ 748.00 



ORDINANCE NO. __ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELMA APPROVING A 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH MERIGIAN MICHAEL L (TE) RELATED TO VESTED 

TENATIVE TRACT MAP #5640 

WHEREAS, on November 21, 2006 the City Council of the City of Selma ("City") 
approved vesting tentative tract map for the development of 23 residential units on 
approximately 10 acres ("Project"); and 

WHEREAS, in approving the Project, the City considered the environmental impacts of 
the Project and certified a negative declaration for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, City and Merigian Michael L (TE) ("Developer") now desire to enter into a 
Development Agreement ("Development Agreement ") pursuant to §65864 et. Seq. of the 
California Government Code to facilitate the development of the Project and to extend the 
expiration date of the Project for the duration of the Development Agreement pursuant to 
Government Code §666452.6(a)(1); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code §65867, notice of intention to consider 
adoption of a Development Agreement was given pursuant to Government Code §§ 65090 and 
65091; and 

WHEREAS, California Government Code §65867.5(a) requires that a Development 
Agreement be adopted by Ordinance. 

NOW THEREFORE, The City Council of the City of Selma ordains as follows: 

SECTION 1: Findings. The City Council of the City of Selma, based on substantial 
evidence, finds as follows: 

A. All of the forgoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by this 
reference. 

B. The provisions of the Development Agreement are consistent with the General Plan 
of the City of Selma now in effect. 

C. Entry by the City into the Development Agreement is in the best interests of the City 
of Selma. 

D. The Development Agreement provides that any subsequent approvals related to the 
Project, including any subsequent tentative map, cannot be approved unless in compliance with 
the rules, regulations and official policies of the City, and, in the case of a subdivision map, must 
be in conformance with §664 73.7 of the Sub-division Map Act. 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 142

ORDINANCE NO. __ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELMA APPROVING A 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH MERIGIAN MICHAEL L (TE) RELATED TO VESTED 

TENATIVE TRACT MAP #5640 

WHEREAS, on November 21, 2006 the City Council of the City of Selma ("City") 
approved vesting tentative tract map for the development of 23 residential units on 
approximately 10 acres ("Project"); and 

WHEREAS, in approving the Project, the City considered the environmental impacts of 
the Project and certified a negative declaration for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, City and Merigian Michael L (TE) ("Developer") now desire to enter into a 
Development Agreement ("Development Agreement ") pursuant to §65864 et. Seq. of the 
California Government Code to facilitate the development of the Project and to extend the 
expiration date of the Project for the duration of the Development Agreement pursuant to 
Government Code §666452.6(a)(1); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code §65867, notice of intention to consider 
adoption of a Development Agreement was given pursuant to Government Code §§ 65090 and 
65091; and 

WHEREAS, California Government Code §65867.5(a) requires that a Development 
Agreement be adopted by Ordinance. 

NOW THEREFORE, The City Council of the City of Selma ordains as follows: 

SECTION 1: Findings. The City Council of the City of Selma, based on substantial 
evidence, finds as follows: 

A. All of the forgoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by this 
reference. 

B. The provisions of the Development Agreement are consistent with the General Plan 
of the City of Selma now in effect. 

C. Entry by the City into the Development Agreement is in the best interests of the City 
of Selma. 

D. The Development Agreement provides that any subsequent approvals related to the 
Project, including any subsequent tentative map, cannot be approved unless in compliance with 
the rules, regulations and official policies of the City, and, in the case of a subdivision map, must 
be in conformance with §664 73.7 of the Sub-division Map Act. 



SECTION 2. Effective date and Posting of Ordinance: This Ordinance shall take effect 
and be enforce thirty (30) days from and after the date of passage. The City Clerk of the City of 
Selma shall cause this Ordinance to be published at least once within fifteen (15) days after its 
passage in the Selma Enterprise with the names of those City Council Members voting for and 
against the Ordinance. 

SECTION 3: Severability: If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this 
Ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional, the decision shall not affect 
the validity of the remaining portions of the Ordinance. The City Council hereby declares that 
it would have passed this Ordinance, and each section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase 
thereof, irrespective of the fact that anyone or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses 
or phrases have been declared invalid or unconstitutional. 

SECTION 4: Authorization. Upon the effective date of this Ordinance, the Mayor is 
authorized to sign on behalf of the City and the City Clerk is authorized to acknowledge the 
Mayor's signature on that certain Development Agreement which has been presented to the 
City Council and which has been the subject of this Council's hearings. The effective date of 
the Agreement shall be the date upon which this Ordinance was introduced to the City Council. 
The City Council further finds and determines that after the adoption of this Ordinance and its 
statutorily required publication, the further publication of this Ordinance in the City's bound 
Municipal Code Volume is not necessary and that the City Clerk is directed, at the time the 
Clerk customarily sends all new Ordinances to the publishing company for publication in the 
revisions of the bound Municipal Code Volume and/or the online publishing of the Selma 
Municipal Code, not to send this Ordinance for publication in that bound volume and/or online 
publication as a codified Ordinance of the City of Selma. 

************ 

I, Reyna Rivera, Chief Deputy City Clerk of the City of Selma, do hereby certify that the 
foregoing Ordinance was introduced at the , 2018 regular City Council meeting 
and passed at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Selma on the day of 
______ 2018, by the following vote, to wit: 

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

Mayor of the City of Selma 
ATTEST: 

Reyna Rivera, City Clerk 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 143

SECTION 2. Effective date and Posting of Ordinance: This Ordinance shall take effect 
and be enforce thirty (30) days from and after the date of passage. The City Clerk of the City of 
Selma shall cause this Ordinance to be published at least once within fifteen (15) days after its 
passage in the Selma Enterprise with the names of those City Council Members voting for and 
against the Ordinance. 

SECTION 3: Severability: If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this 
Ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional, the decision shall not affect 
the validity of the remaining portions of the Ordinance. The City Council hereby declares that 
it would have passed this Ordinance, and each section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase 
thereof, irrespective of the fact that anyone or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses 
or phrases have been declared invalid or unconstitutional. 

SECTION 4: Authorization. Upon the effective date of this Ordinance, the Mayor is 
authorized to sign on behalf of the City and the City Clerk is authorized to acknowledge the 
Mayor's signature on that certain Development Agreement which has been presented to the 
City Council and which has been the subject of this Council's hearings. The effective date of 
the Agreement shall be the date upon which this Ordinance was introduced to the City Council. 
The City Council further finds and determines that after the adoption of this Ordinance and its 
statutorily required publication, the further publication of this Ordinance in the City's bound 
Municipal Code Volume is not necessary and that the City Clerk is directed, at the time the 
Clerk customarily sends all new Ordinances to the publishing company for publication in the 
revisions of the bound Municipal Code Volume and/or the online publishing of the Selma 
Municipal Code, not to send this Ordinance for publication in that bound volume and/or online 
publication as a codified Ordinance of the City of Selma. 

********'11'11** 

I, Reyna Rivera, Chief Deputy City Clerk of the City of Selma, do hereby certify that the 
foregoing Ordinance was introduced at the , 2018 regular City Council meeting 
and passed at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Selma on the day of 
______ 2018, by the following vote, to wit: 

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

Mayor of the City of Selma 
ATTEST: 

Reyna Rivera, City Clerk 



{00016333.DOC;1} 

CITY MANAGER’S/STAFF’S REPORT    

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: ___________________________ 
 

ITEM NO:             
 

SUBJECT:           

 

 

 

DISCUSSION:  The City of Selma Fire Department operated at Fire Station No. 2 out of a 

temporary trailer and building. The trailer recently become dilapidated and was 

subsequently demolished or removed.  A remodel of the fire station at that location is 
necessary for the provision of adequate fire protection services within the City.  For that 
reason, the staff is asking for the remodel of the existing fire station at this location.  Toward 

that end, the Fire Chief has sought and received proposals for financing and construction of 
the fire station at this location. 

 
An engineer retained by the city has developed a preliminary estimate of the cost of 

construction and furnishing of the proposed new fire station and NHA Advisors has develop 
a primary estimate on the financing structure. 
 

The City would need to borrow the money necessary for construction and in order to secure 
those funds at a reasonable interest rate, the City would need to structure the transaction so 

that the interest payable on the borrowed money is tax exempt to the recipient.  The City 
can procure tax-exempt financing for 100% of the project cost by structuring the transaction 

as a tax-exempt bond issuance. 
 
Interest rates fluctuate according to market conditions but as of February 16, the estimated 

tax-exempt interest rates are at 3.71%. 
 

Based on an estimated project cost of $4.9 million and cost of bond issuance, the payments 
of principle and interest on the bonds would be estimate to be $312,000-318,000 annually.  

If interest rates increases between now and issuance by 50 bps the annually payment would 
increase by an estimated $25,000 ($336,000-$341,000). 

 

The annual payments, which staff proposes to be made over a 30-year term would be 
payable from Measure S tax revenues.   

 
Staff is requesting authorization to give the Interim City Manager authority to negotiate and 

execute contracts within the approved budget and secure funding for the project. 
 

 

Consideration and Necessary Action on Resolution Authorizing Interim 

City Manager or Designee to enter into contracts for the Proposed Fire 
Station No. 2. 

 

February 20, 2018 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 144

6.



{00016333.DOC;1} 

COST:    BUDGET IMPACT:   

 
  

  

FUNDING:  (Enter the funding source for this 

item in box below – if fund exists, enter the balance 

in the fund). 

 ON-GOING COST:  (Enter the amount 

that will need to be budgeted each year in box 

below – if one-time cost, enter NONE). 

 
Funding Source:   
 

 
 
Fund Balance:           
 
 
 

  

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Consideration and Necessary Action on Resolution 

Authorizing Interim City Manager to enter into contracts for the Proposed Fire Station No. 
2. 

 
/s/ Neal E. Costanzo      02/16/2018 

_____________________________________________ ______________ 
 Neal E. Costanzo, City Attorney    Date 

 
/s/ Henry Perea      02/16/2018 

_____________________________________________ ______________ 

 Henry Perea, Interim City Manager   Date 

 

 

Attachments          Page 

1. Proposal and Preliminary Cost Estimates 

Measure S N/A 

None, currently $4,982,616.00 

With additional bond costs and 
interest 

 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 145



RESOLUTION NO. 2018- _________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE  

CITY OF SELMA APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF 

ADDENDUM TO  MUNICIPAL ADVISOR AGREEMENT, APPROVING 

BUDGET TO FINANCE COSTS OF REHABILILTATION AND EXPANSION OF 

SELMA FIRE STATION No. 54 AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 

TO EXECUTE AGREEMENTS WITHIN BUDGETED AMOUNTS FOR DESIGN 

AND ENGINEERING SERVICESAND TO TAKE FURTHER NECESSARY 

ACTIONS TO IMPLEMENT THE FINANCING OF PROJECT BY THE 

ISSUANCE OF BONDS  

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Selma, Fire Station No. 54, has out lived its useful life 

and requires rehabilitation and/or expansion; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2018-5R the Council authorized its City 

Manager to, among other things, procure a more definite cost estimate and develop and 

return to the City Council a proposal for the structuring of tax exempt bond financing for 

the rehabilitation and expansion of Fire Station No, 54; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has obtained a definite cost estimate for the 

construction work required for the proposed rehabilitation and expansion of Fire Station 

No. 54, including definite cost estimates and proposals for architectural or design services 

to be provided by RRM Design Group and construction management services to be 

provided at a not to exceed cost by Precision Civil Engineering, Inc. together with 

estimates of the costs of an underwriter, bond counsel and other professionals as 

necessary to properly structure tax exempt financing for the rehabilitation and expansion 

of Fire Station No. 54; and 

 WHEREAS, in carrying out the directive of Resolution No. 2018-5R the City 

Manager has procured a proposed addendum to the existing contract with NHA Advisors 

to serve as the City’s municipal advisor in connection with the structuring of tax exempt 

financing for the rehabilitation and expansion of Fire Station No. 54, a copy of which is 

attached as Exhibit A; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has further procured a definite construction and 

design estimate and estimates of the cost of financing, including the services of NHA 

Advisors, a copy of which is attached and incorporated by reference as Exhibit B. 

  

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 146



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 

 1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct. 

2. The City Council approves and authorizes its City Manager to execute the 

addendum to the existing contract with NHA Advisors attached and 

incorporated by reference as Exhibit A. 

3.  The City Manager is authorized to negotiate, finalize and execute an 

agreement with RRM Design Group and with Precision Civil Engineering, 

Inc. to provide architectural or design services and construction 

management services, respectively, that is acceptable to the City Manager 

and City Attorney and that is not materially different from or more costly 

than the estimates and/or proposals provided by RRM Design Group and 

Precision Civil Engineering, Inc.  

4. The City Council approves the budgeted amounts for design, construction 

and financial services to be provided in connection with the rehabilitation 

and expansion and tax exempt financing Selma Fire Station No. 54 and 

authorizes and directs its City Manager to return to Council a Resolution in 

the form required by law with respect to the contemplated tax exempt 

financing, by issuance of bonds, for the appointment of an underwriter, 

bond and disclosure counsel and such other professionals as are necessary 

to secure the financing of this project in the manner contemplated by this 

Resolution.  

The foregoing Resolution was duly approved by the Selma City Council at 

a regular meeting held on the 20
th

 day of February 2018, by the following vote, to 

wit: 

AYES:    COUNCIL MEMBERS:       

NOES:        COUNCIL MEMBERS:    

ABSTAIN:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:    

ABSENT:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:                                                                      

                 

      _________________________________  

      Jim Avalos  

Mayor of the City of Selma 

 ATTEST: 

 ___________________________________ 

Reyna Rivera, City Clerk  

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 147



 

 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT F 
 

PROPOSED SCOPE OF SERVICES AND COMPENSATION SCHEDULE 
(FIRE STATION PROJECT) 

 
Agreement – City of Selma (“City”) and NHA Advisors, LLC (“Consultant”) have executed an Independent 
Registered  Municipal  Advisor  Professional  Services  Agreement  (“Agreement”),  effective  July  7,  2014 
(“Effective Date”).  This EXHIBIT F shall be incorporated into the Agreement to provide a statement of the 
objective, scope of services and compensation for additional services to be provided by Consultant to the 
City.    This  engagement  between  the  City  and  Consultant  shall  become  effective  as  of  the  date  of  its 
acceptance as provided within the Agreement. 

Additionally,  this  EXHIBIT  F  (per  Municipal  Securities  Rulemaking  Board  and  United  States  Securities 
Exchange  Commission  rules)  reiterates  and  supplements  statements  of  Consultant’s  duties  and 
disclosures found in the Agreement. 

Objective.  City requires a financial analysis of proposed terms and conditions of Project.  City desires NHA 
Advisors, LLC (“Consultant”) to provide, review and validate various financing options.  Once an option 
has been selected and approved by City staff and/or City Council, City desires Consultant to manage and 
facilitate execution of selected financing option.   

Independent  Registered  Municipal  Advisor.  If  acting  in  the  capacity  of  an  Independent  Registered 
Municipal Advisor (“IRMA”) with regards to the IRMA exemption of the SEC Rule, Consultant will review 
all third‐party recommendations submitted to Consultant in writing by the City. 

Scope of Services.  Consultant will serve in the capacity of Municipal Advisor to the City with respect to 
the potential financing of the Project.  Consultant’s work will include, but not be limited to, the following 
tasks and/or elements: 

PHASE I – PROJECT ADVISORY/DUE DILIGENCE CONSULTING 

 Collect, review, analyze available project related data to assist in formulation of financial review of 
the Project. 

 Provide options relating to various means of financing and various considerations inherent in such 
financing methods for the Project.   

 
PHASE II – LEASE REVENUE BOND FINANCING 

 Provide and manage a detailed “master schedule” of tasks including bond structuring, documentation, 
approval, pricing, closing and post‐closing phases.   

 Work  with  City  of  Selma  staff  to  solicit  and  select  financing  partner/funding  source  (e.g.  bank, 
underwriter etc.) 

 Work  with  the  City  of  Selma  staff  to  solicit  and  select  trustee  service  provider  and  negotiate  of 
preferred terms and pricing 

 Recommend options with respect to other consultants, as applicable, that may be required as part of 
financing process 

 Analyze the rating criteria,  if appropriate, and  its application to the financing’s underlying security 
characteristics to gauge credit quality 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 148



NHA ADVISORS (EXHIBIT F – MUNICIPAL ADVISOR SERVICES FOR 2018 FIRE STATION 

FINANCING PROJECT  FEBRUARY 12, 2018 

   

 
PAGE 2  

 

 Attend all organizational, document review, and special meetings related to the financing 

 Evaluate, advise, and consult with the City of Selma and bond counsel regarding financial and non‐
financial bond covenants of the financing 

 Work with the City of Selma and bond counsel to develop the necessary financing documents 

 Assist in furnishing materials and data to rating agencies, bond insurers, and letter of credit providers 
(if required) 

 Work  with  disclosure  counsel  to  prepare  the  preliminary  official  statement  (POS  or  “disclosure 
document”), if required, as well as review all appropriate financing documents 

 Lead  team  discussions  in  conjunction  with  bond  and  disclosure  counsel  on  form,  content,  and 
sufficiency of information in the POS 

 Work with selected financing partner/source to determine optimal bond structure, including serial / 
term bonds, premium / discount bonds, and redemption provisions 

 Pricing of Bond Issue 
o Work with selected financing partner/source to recommend timing of bond pricing 
o Monitor municipal markets,  review  proposed  interest  rates,  and  advise  the  City  of  Selma 

during negotiations with financing partner / source 
o Provide independent numerical analysis of proposed bond issue pricing proposals 
o Provide  detailed  schedule  of  actions  and  timing  during  critical  bond  marketing  and  sale 

(pricing) time‐frame 

 Recommendations to the City of Selma 
o Prepare an oral and written recommendation to the City of Selma for bond issue outlining 

financial feasibility, bond covenants, and pricing 

 Bond Closing 
o Work with bond counsel to prepare a closing memorandum to outline the role of each party 

and to direct each party’s actions at closing 
o If requested, assist the City of Selma in evaluating the investment of bond proceeds for funds 

generated by the financing, (i.e. project construction fund, debt service reserve fund, etc.) 

 Special Meetings of the City of Selma 
o Attend all City of Selma governing board meetings and any special meetings with staff, bond 

counsel,  disclosure  counsel,  credit  enhancement  firms,  and  rating  agencies  as  the  City  of 
Selma deems necessary 

 Post Issuance Assistance 
o Provide follow‐up to financing team participants on any issues that need attention 
o Conduct post issuance reviews as requested by the City of Selma 
o Provide written report to City of Selma summarizing salient financial and credit features and 

financing results (e.g. “Post‐Closing Report”) 
 
Compensation Schedule.  For work described above in this Supplemental Exhibit F services, NHA Advisors 
will be compensated upon financing of the project (contingent on bond issuance).  The compensation will 
be $52,500 and includes all California travel‐related expenses.  Expenses such as data purchased on City’s 
behalf, are not expected to exceed $1,000 and shall not be incurred without prior written approval of City.   
   

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 149



NHA ADVISORS (EXHIBIT F – MUNICIPAL ADVISOR SERVICES FOR 2018 FIRE STATION 

FINANCING PROJECT  FEBRUARY 12, 2018 

   

 
PAGE 3  

 

MUNICIPAL ADVISOR DUTIES AND DISCLOSURES 
 
Consultant is registered as a Municipal Advisor with the SEC and Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board 
(“MSRB”).  As such, Consultant has a Fiduciary duty to City and must provide both a Duty of Care and a 
Duty of Loyalty that entails the following. 
 
Duty of Care 

a) exercise due care in performing its municipal advisory activities; 
b) possess the degree of knowledge and expertise needed to provide City with informed advice; 
c) make a reasonable inquiry as to the facts that are relevant to City’s determination as to whether 

to proceed with a course of action or that form the basis for any advice provided to City; and 
d) undertake  a  reasonable  investigation  to  determine  that  Consultant  is  not  forming  any 

recommendation on materially  inaccurate or  incomplete  information; Consultant must have a 
reasonable basis for:  

i. any advice provided to or on behalf of City;  
ii. any representations made in a certificate that it signs that will be reasonably foreseeably 

relied upon by City, any other party  involved in the municipal securities transaction or 
municipal financial product, or investors in City securities; and 

iii. any  information  provided  to  City  or  other  parties  involved  in  the municipal  securities 
transaction in connection with the preparation of an official statement. 

 
Duty of Loyalty.  Consultant must deal honestly and with the utmost good faith with City and act in City’s 
best interests without regard to the financial or other interests of Consultant.  Consultant will eliminate 
or provide full and fair disclosure (included herein) to Issuer about each material conflict of interest (as 
applicable).  Consultant will not engage in municipal advisory activities with City as a municipal entity, if it 
cannot manage or mitigate its conflicts in a manner that will permit it to act in City’s best interests. 

Conflicts of Interest and Other Matters Requiring Disclosures 

 As  of  the  date  of  the  Agreement,  there  are  no  actual  or  potential  conflicts  of  interest  that 
Consultant is aware of that might impair its ability to render unbiased and competent advice or 
to fulfill its fiduciary duty.  If Consultant becomes aware of any potential conflict of interest that 
arise after this disclosure, Consultant will disclose the detailed information in writing to City in a 
timely manner. 

• The fee paid to Consultant increases the cost of investment to City.  The increased cost occurs 
from compensating Consultant for municipal advisory services provided. 

• Consultant does not act as principal in any of the transaction(s) related to this Agreement. 
• During the term of the municipal advisory relationship, this agreement will be promptly amended 

or supplemented to reflect any material changes in or additions to the terms or information within 
this agreement and the revised writing will be promptly delivered to City. 

 Consultant does not have any affiliate that provides any advice, service, or product to or on behalf 
of  the  client  that  is  directly  or  indirectly  related  to  the  municipal  advisory  activities  to  be 
performed by Consultant; 

 Consultant  has  not  made  any  payments  directly  or  indirectly  to  obtain  or  retain  the  City’s 
municipal advisory business; 

 Consultant  has  not  received  any  payments  from  third  parties  to  enlist  Consultant’s 
recommendation  to  City  of  its  services,  any municipal  securities  transaction  or  any municipal 
finance product; 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 150



NHA ADVISORS (EXHIBIT F – MUNICIPAL ADVISOR SERVICES FOR 2018 FIRE STATION 

FINANCING PROJECT  FEBRUARY 12, 2018 

   

 
PAGE 4  

 

 Consultant  has  not  engaged  in  any  fee‐splitting  arrangements  involving  Consultant  and  any 
provider of investments or services to City; 

 Consultant  does  not  have  any  conflicts  of  interest  from  compensation  for municipal  advisory 
activities to be performed, that is contingent on the size or closing of any transactions as to which 
Consultant is providing advice; 

 Consultant does not have any other engagements or relationships that might impair Consultant 
ability  either  to  render unbiased and  competent  advice  to or on behalf  of  City or  to  fulfill  its 
fiduciary duty to the City, as applicable; and 

 Consultant does not have any legal or disciplinary event that is material to the City’s evaluation 
of the municipal advisory or the integrity of its management or advisory personnel. 

 
Legal Events and Disciplinary History.  Consultant does not have any legal events and disciplinary history 
on its Form MA and Form MA‐I, which includes information about any criminal actions, regulatory actions, 
investigations, terminations, judgments, liens, civil judicial actions, customer complaints, arbitrations and 
civil litigation.  City may electronically access Consultant’s most recent Form MA and each most recent 
Form MA‐I filed with the Commission at the following website:  
 
www.sec.gov/edgar/searchedgar/companysearch.html. 
  
There have been no material changes to a legal or disciplinary event disclosure on any Form MA or Form 
MA‐I filed with the SEC. 
 
Recommendations.    If  Consultant  makes  a  recommendation  of  a  municipal  securities  transaction  or 
municipal financial product or if the review of a recommendation of another party is requested in writing 
by City and is within the scope of the engagement, Consultant will determine, based on the information 
obtained  through  reasonable  diligence  of  Consultant  whether  a  municipal  securities  transaction  or 
municipal financial product is suitable for City.  In addition, Consultant will inform City of:   

 the evaluation of the material risks, potential benefits, structure, and other characteristics of the 
recommendation; 

 the basis upon which Consultant reasonably believes that the recommended municipal securities 
transaction or municipal financial product is, or is not, suitable for City; and 

 whether Consultant has investigated or considered other reasonably feasible alternatives to the 
recommendation that might also or alternatively serve the City’s objectives. 

 
If City elects a course of action that is independent of or contrary to the advice provided by Consultant, 
Consultant is not required on that basis to disengage from City.  
 
Record Retention.   Effective  July  1,  2014, pursuant  to  the  Securities  and  Exchange Commission  (SEC) 
record retention regulations, Consultant is required to maintain in writing, all communication and created 
documents between Consultant and City for 5 years. 
	
CITY	OF	SELMA	 	 	 	 	 CONSULTANT	

	

By:	 	 	 	 	 	 	 By:	 	 	 	 	
Henry	Perea,	City	Manager	 	 	 	 Eric	J.	Scriven,	Principal	
Date:		

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 151



   

$5,630,000 

Selma Public Financing Authority 

2018 Lease Revenue Bonds 

(Fire Station Project) 

Sources & Uses 
 Dated 06/01/2018 |  Delivered 06/01/2018

SOURCES OF FUNDS 
Par Amount of Bonds $5,630,000.00
 
TOTAL SOURCES $5,630,000.00
 
USES OF FUNDS 
Original Issue Discount (OID) 36,826.55
Total Underwriter's Discount  (1.000%) 56,300.00
Costs of Issuance 174,000.00
Gross Bond Insurance Premium ( 85.0 bp) 79,449.45
DSR Surety 9,544.88
Deposit to Capitalized Interest (CIF) Fund 287,943.75
Deposit to Project Construction Fund 4,982,616.00
Rounding Amount 3,319.37
 
TOTAL USES $5,630,000.00

2018 LRB (Fire - 30 yr, P  |  2/16/2018  |  9:27 AM

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 152



   

$5,630,000 

Selma Public Financing Authority 

2018 Lease Revenue Bonds 

(Fire Station Project) 

Net Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I CIF Net New D/S

06/01/2018 - - - - - -
06/01/2019 - - 191,962.50 191,962.50 (191,962.50) -
06/01/2020 125,000.00 2.000% 191,962.50 316,962.50 (95,981.25) 220,981.25
06/01/2021 125,000.00 2.000% 189,462.50 314,462.50 - 314,462.50
06/01/2022 130,000.00 2.000% 186,962.50 316,962.50 - 316,962.50
06/01/2023 130,000.00 2.000% 184,362.50 314,362.50 - 314,362.50
06/01/2024 135,000.00 3.000% 181,762.50 316,762.50 - 316,762.50
06/01/2025 140,000.00 3.000% 177,712.50 317,712.50 - 317,712.50
06/01/2026 140,000.00 3.000% 173,512.50 313,512.50 - 313,512.50
06/01/2027 145,000.00 4.000% 169,312.50 314,312.50 - 314,312.50
06/01/2028 150,000.00 4.000% 163,512.50 313,512.50 - 313,512.50
06/01/2029 160,000.00 2.750% 157,512.50 317,512.50 - 317,512.50
06/01/2030 165,000.00 3.000% 153,112.50 318,112.50 - 318,112.50
06/01/2031 170,000.00 3.125% 148,162.50 318,162.50 - 318,162.50
06/01/2032 175,000.00 3.250% 142,850.00 317,850.00 - 317,850.00
06/01/2033 180,000.00 3.375% 137,162.50 317,162.50 - 317,162.50
06/01/2034 185,000.00 3.375% 131,087.50 316,087.50 - 316,087.50
06/01/2035 190,000.00 3.375% 124,843.76 314,843.76 - 314,843.76
06/01/2036 195,000.00 3.500% 118,431.26 313,431.26 - 313,431.26
06/01/2037 205,000.00 3.500% 111,606.26 316,606.26 - 316,606.26
06/01/2038 210,000.00 3.500% 104,431.26 314,431.26 - 314,431.26
06/01/2039 220,000.00 3.500% 97,081.26 317,081.26 - 317,081.26
06/01/2040 225,000.00 3.500% 89,381.26 314,381.26 - 314,381.26
06/01/2041 235,000.00 3.625% 81,506.26 316,506.26 - 316,506.26
06/01/2042 240,000.00 3.625% 72,987.50 312,987.50 - 312,987.50
06/01/2043 250,000.00 3.625% 64,287.50 314,287.50 - 314,287.50
06/01/2044 260,000.00 3.625% 55,225.00 315,225.00 - 315,225.00
06/01/2045 270,000.00 4.000% 45,800.00 315,800.00 - 315,800.00
06/01/2046 280,000.00 4.000% 35,000.00 315,000.00 - 315,000.00
06/01/2047 290,000.00 4.000% 23,800.00 313,800.00 - 313,800.00
06/01/2048 305,000.00 4.000% 12,200.00 317,200.00 - 317,200.00

Total $5,630,000.00 - $3,716,993.82 $9,346,993.82 (287,943.75) $9,059,050.07

2018 LRB (Fire - 30 yr, P  |  2/16/2018  |  9:27 AM

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 153



   

$5,630,000 

Selma Public Financing Authority 

2018 Lease Revenue Bonds 

(Fire Station Project) 

Pricing Summary 

Maturity Type of Bond Coupon Yield

Maturity 

Value Price Dollar Price

06/01/2020 Serial Coupon 2.000% 1.620% 125,000.00 100.744%  125,930.00
06/01/2021 Serial Coupon 2.000% 1.790% 125,000.00 100.610%  125,762.50
06/01/2022 Serial Coupon 2.000% 1.960% 130,000.00 100.153%  130,198.90
06/01/2023 Serial Coupon 2.000% 2.170% 130,000.00 99.198%  128,957.40
06/01/2024 Serial Coupon 3.000% 2.270% 135,000.00 104.073%  140,498.55
06/01/2025 Serial Coupon 3.000% 2.440% 140,000.00 103.583%  145,016.20
06/01/2026 Serial Coupon 3.000% 2.610% 140,000.00 102.799%  143,918.60
06/01/2027 Serial Coupon 4.000% 2.800% 145,000.00 109.488%  158,757.60
06/01/2028 Serial Coupon 4.000% 2.920% 150,000.00 109.307%  163,960.50
06/01/2029 Serial Coupon 2.750% 3.090% 160,000.00 96.849%  154,958.40
06/01/2030 Serial Coupon 3.000% 3.250% 165,000.00 97.532%  160,927.80
06/01/2031 Serial Coupon 3.125% 3.350% 170,000.00 97.644%  165,994.80
06/01/2032 Serial Coupon 3.250% 3.460% 175,000.00 97.685%  170,948.75
06/01/2033 Serial Coupon 3.375% 3.560% 180,000.00 97.864%  176,155.20
06/01/2034 Serial Coupon 3.375% 3.620% 185,000.00 97.044%  179,531.40
06/01/2035 Serial Coupon 3.375% 3.650% 190,000.00 96.539%  183,424.10
06/01/2036 Serial Coupon 3.500% 3.690% 195,000.00 97.517%  190,158.15
06/01/2037 Serial Coupon 3.500% 3.730% 205,000.00 96.889%  198,622.45
06/01/2038 Serial Coupon 3.500% 3.760% 210,000.00 96.367%  202,370.70
06/01/2039 Serial Coupon 3.500% 3.780% 220,000.00 95.966%  211,125.20
06/01/2040 Serial Coupon 3.500% 3.800% 225,000.00 95.554%  214,996.50
06/01/2044 Term 1 Coupon 3.625% 3.840% 985,000.00 96.483%  950,357.55
06/01/2048 Term 2 Coupon 4.000% 3.730% 1,145,000.00 102.236% c 1,170,602.20

Total - - - $5,630,000.00 - - $5,593,173.45

Bid Information 
 
Par Amount of Bonds $5,630,000.00
Reoffering Premium or (Discount) (36,826.55)
Gross Production $5,593,173.45
 
Total Underwriter's Discount  (1.000%) $(56,300.00)
Bid (98.346%) 5,536,873.45
 
Total Purchase Price $5,536,873.45
 
Bond Year Dollars $102,840.00
Average Life 18.266 Years
Average Coupon 3.6143464%
 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 3.7049012%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 3.7113229%

2018 LRB (Fire - 30 yr, P  |  2/16/2018  |  9:27 AM

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 154



February 20, 2018 Council Packet 155

City of Selma 
Fire Station NO.2 

Conceptual Project Budget - DRAFT 

A. Building 

.DP..!!. M ,: App B8X Renovation 
A2Earatus Ba~ 

Tvpe A Total Area : 

.r¥P.!!..~ . .PP Bay · Addition 
Ap,paratus Bay Expansion 

Type A Tota Area : 

I1P..e B1: SUeJ!.ort Area - Renovation 
Turnout Area A 
Turnout Area B 
Clean Ue Room 
WorkRoom 
Med' SU~EI~ 
Wash Alcove 
Response Alcove 

r vpe B otaiArea: 

Tre.e B2: Support Area· Addition 
Yard Storage 
SCBARoom -
Ulint~ 
Comm I Equipment 
Hose Rack 
Storage Aclove 

Type B ota Area: 

_ T"le.e C1: Otnce l Uving • Renovation 
Watch Office 
.~Room . 
Kitchen 
Hallway - Renovation 

Type C Total Area: 
13~ 

T!1!.9 C2: Office I Uvlnu- - Addition -El(eroise 

.El!!~ -LObb~ 
Jaryitor Laundry 
Pubfic Restroom -Dorm RestRooms l2.L-
~~OOnls(4l 
Hallwav - Addition 

Type B Total Area : . 2814 

Tl'ee D: Livlnu.l Restroom • Addition 
Dorm Restrooms (~ 
Dorm Rooms (13) 

Tvpe C Total Area : 

101% 

Essential Services Structural Upgrade Budget 

Building Design Contingency (10% of budget) 

Building Square Footage Total: 

cost per square foot : 

B. Equipment and Furnishings 

Building and Site Equipment 

Buijdl'29 and Site Furnishings 
FF&E Design Contlngoncy (1 0% of budoet) 

QUANT UNIT BASE COST 
1,500 SF 

0 SF 

1,500 $266 

QUANT UNIT BASE COST 
480 SF 

SF 

480 M50 

QUANT UNIT BASE COST 
270 SF 
180 SF 
i OO SF 
135 SF ·----8 

I~ 
48 SF 
20 SF 

761 $305 

QUANT UNIT BASE COST 
40 SF 
82 SF 
40 SF 
84 SF 
54 SF 
21 SF 

321 $440 

QUANT UNIT BASE COST 
131 SF 
285 SF 
240 SF 
150 SF 
806 SF 5320 

QUANT UNIT BASE COST 
400 SF 
192 SF 
96 SF 
84 SF 
64 SF 

i 92 SF 
480 SF 
200 SF 

,708 $460 

QUANT UNIT BASE COST 
124 SF $490 
360 SF $460 
484 SF 

6,060 

$480 

QUANT UNIT COST 
1 LS ~60.000 
1 LS $40000 

10% % $100 ,000 

Equipment and Furnishings Subtotal: 

City of Selma 
Fire Station 2 Renovation Addition 

TOTAL 

S382,600 

TOTAL 

~2' 6-;000 

TOTAL 

S232;'1ll'O 

TOTAL 

$14' , 24~ 

TOTAL 

n57~ 

TOTAL 

$785-;6liO 

TOTAL 

$226~ 

$400.000 

$264,181 

$2,905,986 

TOTAL 
$60,000 

$40.000 
$10,000 

$110.000 

111012018 

SOURCE 

RRM/Sevlor 

SOURCE 

RRMI a lor 

SOURCE 

-

-RRM/Savlor 

SOURCE 

RRM/Savlor 

SOURCE 

Rt<Mftfavlor 

SOURCE 

RRM/Sa or 

SOURCE 
Included 
Included 

RRM1Savior 

SOURCE 
Budget 

Bud~_ 
% 

RRM Design Group 



February 20, 2018 Council Packet 156

City of Selma 
Fire Station NO.2 

Conceptual Project Budget - DRAFT 

111012018 

C. On-Site Improvements 
au ANT UNIT COST TOTAL SOURCE 

Site Paving - New Parkin9 Area 3 '-.~ SF $22 $69.960 Site Pian 
~.!l:l'a"ling Are8 - NeVI Curb Cut 144 sr- $25 $3,600 Site Plan 
'§!!!~~_:!,~IDJl Area - Sireel ADA Par~rn!l 360 SF $25 $9,000 Site Plan 
Slte~9 - Pedestrian - PaUO 600 SF $20 $12,000 Site Plan 
Landscape Improvements: 3,000 SF $14 $42,000 BudQeted Area 
.§~ Jmprovaments-Underground Retention 1 lS $20,000- $20.000 City to Confirm 
Emer9!:.!1~ Generator - R!p..I!~'!.n t :---2 LS $80,000 $80,000 RRM 

Site Gate and Fenclng 1 LS $25,000 $25000 RRM 
Hose Lift 1 LS $20,000 $20,000 RRM 

n-::ilta esl n ontln ency 10% of bUdget '--mol. ---or,--~.b50 ~26.1 56 070 

$530 On-Site Improvements Subtotal: $307,716 

D. Off-Site Improvements - Site Specific 
1 QUANT 1 UNIT 1 COST TOTAL SOURCE 

Sii-eel Fronlage Improvements 1 11 LS i. $50,000 $50,000 ADA Stall on Street 
Off-Site Contingency (1 0% of budget) 1 10%1 % 1 $50,000 $5.000 % 

Off-site Improvements Subtotal: $55,000 

E. Fees 
QUANT UNIT COST TOTAL SOURCE 1 

A~h/Erg lnoorJ ng-Ren~o~v~at~io~n~/~A~d~d~it~io~n~ ________ ~1 ____ ~1 ~L~S~+_~$~3,~3=23~,~7~02~-----~$~3~6~8 ,~0~00~1-----_:--·7%~ ____ __ 
LEED'''' DeSiQn, CertJlfcatioo ,--2 ~L:,:S:"" I __ ...:$::..4:.::8J,;,4~0.::;.0 - 1 ______ ~$.QI--_--,B:-,U_d",g-e:-1 ___ _ 
LEED~C~mmisslon lng __ .--2 LS $10,000 $0 ______ ;-B_u;:.d;"'9"'.eo.;l ____ _ 

Comissioning Agent 0 ~ _ $30,000 $0 __ --:::::_=8~ud=:g:<'e~I-=---__ 
Ul illty Hook-up !:eos 1 LS $15,000 ~~OO~O~I----'C~lty'-'-'t~o-'C:.:o:.:.n:::fl:.:.rm:.:....-
Impact ~F~ee~sO';: ______________________________ ~ ------+----~---------~I-·-----
Storm Draing Dev. Fee 1.0 Acre $0 ---$0 Not Req Per Clly 
Sewer Dev, Fee I Water Dc!\!. Fee 1 LS $0 -------$;:,;o~I---:..:N.:;.ot·;..R~;e;;.:q;,...;..pe;;;,;r..;CO';H'-'y'---

--IramC,!mn;.,;a",c,.:.t "-Fo.;;_e'--______________________ ~-·---:-::-:-:'---6 !-0 __ 60 SF $0 $0 Not Req Per Clly 
pub!iCF~~illty Impact Fee 6.060 SF ----- $0" ---------w ---'N'"'o- t"'R:-e-q"'p"e-r-'C"'lty-:'----

GeotechnicallnvestlgaUoll 1 LS ---$25,000 ----$25,Diiii Budge I 

Survey 1 LS $9,000 $9 000 Budgel 
Materials Testing an«1,!ipeclallnepocllon 1 Is $35,000 $35,000 !lvdgel 
Fee Conlingency {lO%] 10% % $452,000 $45.200 % 

Fees Subtotal: ~~~,,;;$4;;9;;;7~.2;;;0;;;0~~~~~~~~===I1 

F. Owner Systems Administration and Contingency 
QUANT UNIT COST TOTAL SOURCE 1 

Construction M~JI!!!l0nL I Cost Estimating 1 LS $40.000 $40000 Budgel 
FIre Administra tion Cost 0 LS $50.000 $O _____ ~ ____ 

Planning Dept.- CUP, Design Review 1 LS $0 $0 NotReqPerC~ 
CECA 0 LS $25.000 $0 NoneMllcl~ 

Building Oeel.-pcrml!...~~s 1 LS $0 $0 Not Re9~r CI~ 
School Impact Feos'~!!!l 0 sf $0.50 $0 None Anllclp~ __ 
Sile Ac,guisition Costs 0.00 Acre $ 0 $0 Not Antici [2oted 
Traffic Ree 0rt 0 LS $20.000 $0 Nol An ticipoled 
Mavin£! Costs 0 LS $4,000 $0 Cily 

~o(ho~d Meetl!!!1/Dedl'!!Uon Cer0..!!12!lY 0 LS $2,000 $0 Cil~ 
Communications 

Radio Tower 0 LS $150,000 $0 Bud~ ___ 

___ P_t!!,ne !!Y-Glem 1 LS $40,000 $40,000 Budge l 
Radio S ~slem 1 LS $60000 $60000 Cii};: Budget 
Data S~siems 1 LS $35000 $35,000 City Budget 

SQCU ril~~?ml Cameras 1 LS $25,000 $25,000 City Budgel 
--security Sys t~R~ader Access 0 LS $45,000 $0 City Budget ---
~~er S~slem Conlln!!2.!2..CY (1 0% of budget) 10% % 1200,000 $20000 

Conslruclion Con tingenc y 110% oJ A, C, D) 10% % $3.268.702 $326,870 % 
Owner Systems, Administration and Contingency Subtotal: $546,870 J 

Contract Division Totals: 

A, 8uildlng,,-; ~---,:-::----,;-:-:--______________ ~ ________ ~-=:S2,905.ge6 

'§.:.J~.9!!.ipmant I!.!.ld Furnj~'!.fls $1 10,000 
C. On-Site 1m rovements $307,716 
~te Imerovomonts $55,000 
E FeeS $497,200 
F.Ownfii'S'iiCins, M m/n /strntlon ~nd Contln enc 'S54e]7O 

Contract Division Subtotal: I= __ ~~~~~ ______ ~~~~==l 

G. Market Escalation (65% per year) for 16 mo. to mid-point of Construction 

Conceptual Construction Budget: 
L--'--'-----'_-' 

City of Selma 
Fire Station 2 Renovation Addition RRM Design Group 



Task	 Billing	Rate Hours Subtotal

1 Preconstruction	Phase
Principal 175.00$									 3 525.00$																				
Sr.	Engineer 160.00$									 6 960.00$																				
Project	Manager 145.00$									 12 1,740.00$																	
Sr.	Construction	Manager 145.00$									 20 2,900.00$																	
Construction	Manager/Eng	2 120.00$									 20 2,400.00$																	
Project	Engineer 105.00$									 20 2,100.00$																	
Clerical 60.00$											 6 360.00$																				
Printing	and	Plotting 25.00$											 5 125.00$																				

Subtotal	= 92 11,110.00$														

2 Construction	Phase
Principal 175.00$									 46 8,050.00$																	
Sr.	Engineer 160.00$									 92 14,720.00$														
Project	Manager 145.00$									 138 20,010.00$														
Sr.	Construction	Manager 145.00$									 460 66,700.00$														
Construction	Manager/Eng	2 120.00$									 736 88,320.00$														
Project	Engineer 105.00$									 368 38,640.00$														
Clerical 60.00$											 184 11,040.00$														
P i i d Pl i 25 00$ 240 6 000 00$

FEE	BUDGET	–		Construction	Management	Services	
for	City	of	Selma	Fire	Department	Facility

Printing	and	Plotting 25.00$											 240 6,000.00$																	

Subtotal	= 2024 253,480.00$												

3 Post	Constriction‐Project	Close	Out
Principal 175.00$									 4 700.00$																				
Sr.	Engineer 160.00$									 10 1,600.00$																	
Project	Manager 145.00$									 15 2,175.00$																	
Sr.	Construction	Manager 145.00$									 20 2,900.00$																	
Construction	Manager/Eng	2 120.00$									 20 2,400.00$																	
Project	Engineer 105.00$									 20 2,100.00$																	
Clerical 60.00$											 10 600.00$																				
Printing	and	Plotting 25.00$											 8 200.00$																				

Subtotal	= 99 12,675.00$														

Not	to	Exceed	Total	= 2,215 277,265.00$									 *

*

1 Estimated project schedule is based on 10 month construction schedule.

2 Estimated project schedule is based on 1 month pre‐construction schedule

3 Estimated project schedule is based on 1 month post‐construction for project close out.

4 Assumes PCE can utilize City hall for temporary office for Construction Manager.

The cost is estimate is based on the following assumptions. The cost proposal is subject to change based on the final 

negotiatied project scope.

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 157



                  Selma Police Department 
                             
                                                  

POLICE DEPARTMENT 

BI-WEEKLY COUNCIL UPDATE 

(2/5/18 – 2/16/18) 

Crime Trends 
 

 Over the last 28 days, overall crime in the city of Selma has dropped by 8%. The 
reduction in overall crime is as a result of a 46% decrease in reported violent crimes (7 
vs 13 the previous 28 days), including a 50% drop in aggravated assault (6 vs 12), and a 
66% drop in domestic violence (2 vs 6).  Property crime remained virtually the same 
(68 v 69). 
 

 
SIGNIFICANT CALLS FOR SERVICE 

 On 2/13/18, at approximately 11pm, Officers were dispatched to 2845 Orange 
Ave. regarding a call of a self-inflicted gunshot wound with a rifle.  While enroute 
dispatch updated the call as an attempt suicide.  Upon arrival a 17yr old male was 
found outside the residence with bleeding from the area of his left upper 
chest/shoulder area.  He was conscious and said he shot himself because he was tired 
of living. During the investigation a S&W AR-15 rifle was located inside the residence 
laying on the floor of the living room.  A blood trail from the subject’s bedroom 
extended down the hallway, out into the kitchen where a large pool of blood was 
found, and then into the living room and out the front door.  It was determined he 
shot himself while in his bedroom.  A spent shell casing with his name written on it 
with permanent marker on the casing.  The subject was transported to CRMC for 
treatment of the wound and a WIC 5150 hold attached.  The rifle was taken for 
safekeeping and entered into evidence 
 

 
Personnel 
 

 Personnel Vacancies (existing & pending) 

o Two new police officers to start orientation Feb 26th. 

o One cadet being sponsored while finishing the academy 

o Records/Dispatch candidates still in background 

o Two police officer candidates staring in the background phase and 

two more candidates moving on to polygraph phase. 

 

 

 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 158



                  Selma Police Department 
                             
                                                  

 

Special Events 

 2018 Bringing Broken Neighborhoods Back to Life series planning meetings have 
begun.  Annual Appreciation Luncheon scheduled for Saturday, February 23, 2018.  
2018 tentative dates for BBNBTL Block Party events include: 

1. April 14 
2. May 12 
3. June 9 
4. August 25 
5. September 22 

February 20, 2018 Council Packet 159


